
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
APRIL 16, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

April 16, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Philip Fitzgerald – First Baptist 
Church of Troy 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation – Jeanette Bennett ......................................................... 1 
b) Proclamation – National Anthem Awareness Week – April 23-27, 2007 

Presented to Jeff McCoy, Fine Arts Director for Troy School District ................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for Industrial Development 
District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Postponed Reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-103 from Regular City Council 
Meeting of April 2, 2007 – UM/ULI Funding Request 1 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 4 

a) National Anthem Awareness Week – April 23-27, 2007 ....................................... 4 
b) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2007 .................................................................. 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy 
Today, Quarterly Newsletter ................................................................................. 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Traffic Improvement 
Association (TIA) of Oakland County.................................................................... 4 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 
Concrete............................................................................................................... 4 

E-5 Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 5 

E-6 Private Agreement for Stone Haven Park Site Condominiums – Project No. 
06.936.3 5 

E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Wellington Corp. 5 

E-8 Request for Special Event Banner on Civic Center Property 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 6 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board 7 



 

 

F-2 Reconsideration of Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to 
RPS, Troy, LLC, Fronting on Big Beaver between Troy and Louis Streets, Section 
22 – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 8 

F-3 George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 9 

F-4 Bid Waiver – Pavement Condition Assessment and Digital Video 11 

F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 11 

F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations 12 

F-7 Revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 98 (Criminal Code) 12 

F-8 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 
2007/2008 13 

F-9 Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Engineering/Design Services – Inter-Modal 
Transit Center 13 

F-10 Application for New Class C and SDM License at Sanctuary Lake Golf Club 14 

F-11 Troy v. Premium Construction 15 

F-12 2007 Troy Daze Festival Parade 15 

F-13 AT&T Proposed Cable Franchise 15 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 17 

a) Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7), 
Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District – April 30, 2007...................................................................... 17 

b) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-726) – 190 East Maple, South Side of 
Maple, East of Livernois, Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 – May 14, 2007 .................... 17 

c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII 
– Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light Industrial District – May 
14, 2007 ............................................................................................................. 17 



 

 

d) Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number: CR-001) – Proposed Troy 
Medical Office Building, West Side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 
21 – R-1B to O-1 – May 14, 2007....................................................................... 17 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – January 17, 2007....................................................... 17 
b) Election Commission/Final – February 12, 2007 ................................................ 17 
c) Traffic Committee/Final – February 21, 2007 ..................................................... 17 
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – February 27, 2007 ................................. 17 
e) Youth Council/Final – February 28, 2007 ........................................................... 17 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 5, 2007.................................... 17 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 6, 2007............................... 17 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 7, 2007 ..................................... 17 
i) Planning Commission/Final – March 13, 2007 ................................................... 17 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 20, 2007............................................... 17 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 27, 2007............................. 17 
l) Youth Council/Draft – March 28, 2007................................................................ 17 
m) Election Commission/Draft – April 2, 2007 ......................................................... 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 18 

a) City Manager’s Office – Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2007/2008 
Annual Budget and Business Plan ..................................................................... 18 

b) Assessing Department – City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review 
Report................................................................................................................. 18 

c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of March, 2007 .......... 18 
d) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congressional 

Cities Conference ............................................................................................... 18 
e) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative 

Conference......................................................................................................... 18 
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 First Quarter Litigation Report .............................. 18 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 18 



 

 

a) Telephone Call from Resident Jim Forrer Commending Lt. Lyczkowski for his 
Wonderful Representation of the Police Department and Friendly and 
Outgoing Demeanor ........................................................................................... 18 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Lynn Crawford Regarding the Troy 
Police Department and the Compassion and Professionalism of Captain 
Mayer and Officer Himrod .................................................................................. 18 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Director of Building Operations 
Steve Pallotta in Recognition of the Contribution and Assistance of Ryan Wolf 
During the Fire Station #1 Kitchen Renovation................................................... 18 

d) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Isham and Officer Lenczewski from Warrant 
Officer Iola Miller Regarding the Assistance Received with the Execution of 
Tax Warrant........................................................................................................ 18 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 18 

a) City of Ferndale – Resolution to End the War in Iraq.......................................... 18 

J-5  Calendar 18 

J-6  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Regarding Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan 
and the Big Beaver Corridor Study 18 

J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Seasonal Outdoor 
Display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts 18 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Law Day 2007 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1 Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic Planning Initiatives: Goal 
III, “Retain and Attract Investment While Encouraging Redevelopment” 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 19 

L-1 Closed Session: 19 



 

 

RECESSED 19 

RECONVENED 19 

ADJOURNMENT 19 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 20 

Monday, April 23, 2007 Special City Council-Budget ............................................ 20 
Monday, April 30, 2007 Special City Council-Budget ............................................ 20 
Monday, May 14, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 20 
Monday, May 21, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 20 
Monday, June 4, 2007 Regular City Council ......................................................... 20 
Monday, June 18, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 20 
Monday, July 9, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................... 20 
Monday, July 23, 2007 Regular City Council......................................................... 20 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 20 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 20 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Philip Fitzgerald – First Baptist 
Church of Troy 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Service Commendation – Jeanette Bennett 
b) Proclamation – National Anthem Awareness Week – April 23-27, 2007 Presented to Jeff 

McCoy, Fine Arts Director for Troy School District     
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for Industrial Development 
District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) 

 
Public Hearing Cancelled at the Request of the Petitioner 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Postponed Reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-103 from Regular City Council 
Meeting of April 2, 2007 – UM/ULI Funding Request 

 
At the last Council meeting the Council adopted a resolution that states: “RESOLVED, That 
Resolution #2007-03-103, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, as it appears below 
be RECONSIDERED by City Council: That Troy City council hereby DIRECTS City 
Management to REMOVE the UM/ULI Funding Request as an action agenda item on an future 
agenda. 
 
As directed, staff has returned the item as an action item, and offers the following resolution 
options for Council review and consideration: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

Proposed Resolutions from City Management 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Resolution Option A 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council finds that plans and preparations for the redevelopment of 
certain strategic corridors should be of prime concern;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has accepted land use concepts that call for more pedestrian 
friendly areas in the City, and for more urbane type future developments;   
 
WHEREAS, The City has been selected by the University of Michigan and the Urban Land 
Institute as one of its project study areas;   
 
WHEREAS, Benefits of making the nationwide development community acutely aware of the 
potential and possibilities of developing and redeveloping in the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will continue to progress into the future as a result of participation in the 
study; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ELECTS TO PARTICIPATE 
monetarily in the proposed UM/ULI study in the amount of $ ________. 
 
Or 
 
Resolution Option B 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council finds that plans and preparations for the redevelopment of 
certain strategic corridors should be of prime concern;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has accepted land use concepts that call for more pedestrian 
friendly areas in the City, and for more urbane type future developments;   
 
WHEREAS, The City has been selected by the University of Michigan and the Urban Land 
Institute as one of its project study areas;   
 
WHEREAS, Benefits of making the nationwide development community acutely aware of the 
potential and possibilities of developing and redeveloping in the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City will continue to progress into the future as a result of participation in the 
study; 
 
THEREFORE,BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ELECTS TO PARTICIPATE 
monetarily in the proposed UM/ULI study, and based on the study corridor selected agrees to 
provide $________ to fund a portion of the study costs. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

 
Or 
 
Resolution Option C 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy ENDORSES the proposed study by UM/ULI, but based on 
budgetary needs for elements already contained in the proposed budget ELECTS TO NOT 
PARTICIPATE monetarily in the preparation of any corridor report and Troy City Council does 
ENCOURAGE the City Manager to commit to in-kind matching services during the conduct of 
the study. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 2, 2007 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) National Anthem Awareness Week – April 23-27, 2007  
b) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2007  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 

Quarterly Newsletter                 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year of 
printing services for the quarterly newsletter, Troy Today with two, one (1) year options to 
renew to Grand River Printing and Imaging of Belleville, MI, the bidder with the highest score as 
a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public 
interest, for an estimated annual cost of $80,342.80, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage; 
and additional charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the total contract cost or $8,034.28 at 
prices contained in the RFP tabulation opened March 26, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire upon completion of the Spring 
2008 issue.    
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of 
Oakland County                 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES to pay the renewal of City of Troy's 
membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2007, in the amount of 
$25,100.00 and funds are available in the 2006-2007 Traffic Engineering budget, Account No. 
446.7958. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 

Concrete                 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

low bidders, Superior Materials L.L.C. formerly Clawson Concrete Company of Farmington 
Hills, MI, as the primary supplier and Van Horn Concrete of Waterford, MI as the secondary 
supplier, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 14, 2007, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with contracts expiring April 30, 
2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department, to seek reimbursement in 
the amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures 
incurred while instituting proactive public health measures to reduce the population of infected 
mosquitoes in the environment.  
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Stone Haven Park Site Condominiums – Project No. 

06.936.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian 
Properties Stone Haven Development LLC, for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, 
storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Wellington Corp.   
 
(a) New License
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Wellington Corp. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C 
licensed business from Ichibang Corporation, Inc., located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI  
48098, Oakland County be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Wellington Corp. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C licensed business from Ichibang 
Corporation, Inc., located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI  48098, Oakland County, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Special Event Banner on Civic Center Property   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request of Pamela Hancock, 
representing the Troy National Day of Prayer Task Force, to place a 30 square foot banner on 
the lawn in front of City Hall from April 26, 2007, through May 3, 2007, in conjunction with an 
event to be held at the Limited Public Forum of the Veteran’s Plaza. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board   

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Unexpired Term 11/01/08 

 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by City Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Pauline Noce                       (Adv. Committee for Senior Citizens Rep) Term Expires 04/30/08 
* NOTE: Recommendation rec’d from Troy Daze Committee - 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Reconsideration of Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to 

RPS, Troy, LLC, Fronting on Big Beaver between Troy and Louis Streets, Section 
22 – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
   
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-03-074, Moved 
by Beltramini and Seconded by Fleming, as it appears below: 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the 
sale of certain parcels will best serve the public interest;   
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best 
be served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels; 
and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that 
the public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in 
accordance with Resolution 2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal 
(Sales) of Excess property and APPROVES the sale of the remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 on the north side of Big Beaver 
between Troy and Louis Streets to RPS Troy, LLC in the amount of 
$15,000.00, the appraised value, as outlined in the attached Offer to 
Purchase, plus closing costs;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the sale of the subject remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031, is CONDITIONED upon RPS 
Troy, LLC purchasing a privately owned parcel owned by Four Oaks 
Management for fair market value, Sidwell #88-20-22-356-014, for the 
purposes of encouraging a consolidated development; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement to Purchase and the 
Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED 
TO RECORD said documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to and 
made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Yes:  
No: 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-074 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-03-074, Moved by 
Beltramini and Seconded by Fleming, by STRIKING “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the 
sale of the subject remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031, is CONDITIONED upon 
RPS Troy, LLC purchasing a privately owned parcel owned by Four Oaks Management for fair 
market value, Sidwell #88-20-22-356-014, for the purposes of encouraging a consolidated 
development; and”. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 20 of Act No. 40, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1956, as amended, the George W. Kuhn Drainage District has issued its Drain Bonds, Series 
2000B dated October 1, 2000, in the original principal amount of $6,570,000 and its Drain 
Bonds, Series 2001E dated January 1, 2002, in the original principal amount of $9,870,000 
(collectively, the "Prior Bonds"), to defray part of the cost of constructing the George W. Kuhn 
Drain in anticipation of the collection of the several installments against the City of Troy (the 
"City") and other units of local government on the applicable Special Assessment Rolls for the 
George W. Kuhn Drain;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has been advised that conditions in the bond market have now 
improved from the conditions which prevailed at the time the Prior Bonds were sold and that the 
Prior Bonds could be refunded at a considerable savings to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is the determination and judgment of this City Council that the Prior Bonds 
should be refunded to secure for the City the anticipated savings; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That: 
 

1. The George W. Kuhn Drainage District is requested and authorized to 
issue its refunding bonds (the "Refunding Bonds") pursuant to the 
provisions of Act No. 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, in an 
amount necessary to refund all or part of the Prior Bonds (as shall be 
determined by the Drainage Board) and paying the costs of issuing the 
Refunding Bonds. 

 
2. The proceeds of the Refunding Bonds shall be sufficient to pay the costs 

of issuing the Refunding Bonds and to establish an Escrow Fund in an 
amount which will be sufficient to pay the principal of, the redemption 
premiums on, if any, and the interest on the Prior Bonds that are refunded 
without further payment by the City. 

 
3. The City AGREES and CONSENTS to the imposition of special 

assessments against the City on a refunding bonds special assessment 
roll for the payment of the Refunding Bonds. 

 
4. The Mayor or the City Manager is AUTHORIZED, if necessary, to file an 

Application for State Treasurer's Approval to Issue Long-Term Securities 
with respect to the Refunding Bonds. 

 
5. The Clerk, Treasurer and Mayor are each AUTHORIZED to approve the 

circulation of a preliminary and final official statement for the Refunding 
Bonds, to cause the preparation of those portions of the preliminary and 
final official statement for compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule").  The Clerk, 
Treasurer and Mayor are each authorized to execute and deliver such 
certificates and to do all other things necessary to effectuate the sale and 
delivery of the Refunding Bonds. 

 
6. The Mayor, City Clerk, and City Treasurer are each AUTHORIZED to 

execute a certificate of the City, constituting an undertaking to provide 
ongoing disclosure about the City for the benefit of beneficial owners of the 
Refunding Bonds as required under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and 
amendments to such certificate from time to time substantially in 
accordance with the terms of the form of certificate attached hereto as 
Appendix A (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate").  The City hereby 
COVENANTS and AGREES that it will comply with and carry out all of the 
provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Bid Waiver – Pavement Condition Assessment and Digital Video  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, Stantec Consulting Michigan, Inc. is providing pavement condition assessment 
data collection to the Road Commission for Oakland County and has agreed to extend the 
County’s contract price to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stantec Consulting Michigan, Inc. provided pavement condition assessment data 
collection and capture of digital video uniquely formatted for use within the City’s Hansen 
Pavement Management System in the past; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and a contract to provide pavement condition assessment data collection and 
capture of digital video is hereby APPROVED to Stantec Consulting Michigan, Inc. for an 
estimated total cost of $41,555.00, at rates contained in the Stantec proposal dated April 2, 
2007, File: 620-85000, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That a joint meeting between the Troy City Council and the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce for the purpose of discussing various topics is SCHEDULED for:  
 

Wednesday, June 13, 2007 at 7:30 PM in a banquet room at the  
Troy Community Center located at 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan.  
 
Or 
 
Wednesday, June 13, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the MSU Management Education 
Center located at 811 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Or 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

Wednesday, June 20, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Police/Fire Training Center 
located at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Or 
 
Wednesday, June 20, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the MSU Management Education 
Center located at 811 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Or 
 
Wednesday, June 20, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Community Center  
located at 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
(a) Installation of Sign – Stop Sign on Northbound Barabeau at Cadmus
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
sign on northbound Barabeau at Cadmus. 
 
(b) Installation of Signs – Stop Signs at the Intersection of Eastbound Cadmus and 

Westbound Delta at Shelldrake  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
signs at the intersection of eastbound Cadmus and westbound Delta at Shelldrake. 
 
(c) No Changes to the Signage Prohibiting Right Turns on Red during Morning and 

Evening Rush Hours on Rochester Road at Stephenson and at the Crossover for 
Southbound to Northbound Stephenson just South of Rochester Road

 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the signage prohibiting right turns on red during 
morning and evening rush hours on Rochester Road at Stephenson and at the crossover for 
southbound to northbound Stephenson just south of Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 98 (Criminal Code)  
 
Suggested Resolution  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Sections 1, 4, 7, 8, 10, and 11 of Chapter 
75 (Pet Shops) as recommended by City Administration; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the hunting and 
trapping regulations as provided in Chapter 98 (Criminal Code) as recommended by City 
Administration. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2007/2008 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League has provided Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the Michigan Municipal League due 
to the positive experience of participating in the MML program;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and the net estimated premium cost of $358,026.00 is hereby APPROVED for 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the MML for the 2007-2008 fiscal year with a 
resulting final estimated cost to the City of $260,354.00 after applying a dividend distribution 
check in the amount of $97,672.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Engineering/Design Services – Inter-Modal 

Transit Center 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide planning and 
engineering consulting services, to include conceptual and preliminary design for an Inter-
Modal Transit Facility to Wendel Duchscherer of Amherst, NY, the firm with the highest score 
as a result of a qualification based selection process, as directed by MDOT, at prices contained 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

in the derivation of cost proposal, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting for an estimated total cost of $415,814.00; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the consultant’s 
submission of proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Application for New Class C and SDM License at Sanctuary Lake Golf Club 
 
(a) New License
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Kosch Special Events, LLC, for a new Class C and 
Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) license in conjunction with official permits (food, golf), 
outdoor service area and 3 bars to be located at 1450 E. South, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland 
County. [MLCC REQ ID# 414222]; be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) Agreement
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Kosch Special Events, LLC, for a new Class C and Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) 
license in conjunction with official permits (food, golf), outdoor service area and 3 bars to be 
located at 1450 E. South, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County. [MLCC REQ ID# 414222]; and the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-11 Troy v. Premium Construction 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached Stipulated Order Settling 
Reimbursement of Fees and Closing the Case and the Stipulation for Voluntary Dismissal of the 
Court of Appeals case, in the matter of City of Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C., a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 01-035191-CC and Court of 
Appeals Case No. 271431), and the attorneys representing the City are hereby AUTHORIZED 
to execute these documents on behalf of the City.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-12 2007 Troy Daze Festival Parade 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Daze Committee to 
reinstate the parade for the 2007 Troy Daze Festival CONTINGENT upon the following:   
 

1. Sponsors will assume the estimated cost of $2,200.00 to fund the 
parade;  

2. The parade will be held on Saturday, September 15, 2007 at 9:00 a.m.; 
3. The parade route will begin at Troy High School, continue on Northfield 

Parkway to the back entrance of Boulan Park as recommended by the 
Troy Police Department as the most cost effective route for police 
staffing in addition to creating a minimal hazard at the main entrance to 
Boulan Park on Crooks Road. 

Yes: 
No:  
 
F-13 AT&T Proposed Cable Franchise 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-04- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 480 of 2006 (MCL 484.3301 et. seq.), the Uniform Video Service Local 
Franchise Act, is currently the law in the State of Michigan;  
 
WHEREAS, This law requires every provider to obtain a Uniform Video Service Local Franchise 
Agreement from the City prior to offering cable services in the City of Troy;   
 
WHEREAS, AT&T submitted a Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement to the City of 
Troy on March 29, 2007;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has 15 days from the date to object to the Uniform Video Service 
Local Franchise Agreement on the basis that it is incomplete;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has reviewed AT&T’s Uniform Video Service Local Franchise 
Agreement, and is not objecting to the completeness of the document;   
 
WHEREAS, Under the operation of the current law, the AT&T Uniform Video Service Local 
Franchise Agreement will be automatically approved within 30 days of the date a complete 
document is filed with the City, which is on or about April 27, 2007;   
 
WHEREAS, The AT&T Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement appears to satisfy 
the technical requirements of the current law, but the City of Troy wishes to reserve its rights to 
challenge the AT&T Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement in the event that Public 
Act 480 of 2006 (MCL 484.3301 et. seq.) is in any way challenged, amended, abrogated, or 
modified; and 
 
WHEREAS, AT&T has incorrectly calculated the Public, Education, and Government (PEG) 
fees that are currently paid by the incumbent providers, since the incumbent providers have 
paid for equipment, services, grants, and other miscellaneous items that exceed 1%, and that 
the total amount of PEG fees paid by the incumbent providers can be ascertained with a Needs 
Assessment;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council is NOT OBJECTING to the 
completeness of the AT&T Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the amount of PEG fees to be included in the AT&T 
Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement is approximately 2%, which can be verified 
by a Needs Assessment; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the amount of franchise fees for the AT&T Uniform Video 
Service Local Franchise Agreement shall be equal to the amount paid by the incumbent 
provider for the City of Troy that has the largest customer base (currently Comcast); and     
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City of Troy DOES NOT WAIVE its right to challenge any 
provision of the Public Act 480 of 2006 (MCL 484.3301 et. seq.) and/or any provisions of the 
AT&T Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement on the basis that such provisions are 
pre-empted by federal law, and/or are unconstitutional, and/or are impairments of contract 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

rights, and/or any other basis for invalidating, modifying, amending, or abrogating the law or the 
Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No:   
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7), Southwest Corner 

of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District – April 30, 2007 
b) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-726) – 190 East Maple, South Side of Maple, East 

of Livernois, Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 – May 14, 2007  
c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII – 

Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light Industrial District – May 14, 2007  
d) Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number: CR-001) – Proposed Troy Medical Office 

Building, West Side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – R-1B to O-1 – May 
14, 2007      

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Traffic Committee/Final – January 17, 2007 
b) Election Commission/Final – February 12, 2007  
c) Traffic Committee/Final – February 21, 2007  
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – February 27, 2007  
e) Youth Council/Final – February 28, 2007  
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 5, 2007 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 6, 2007  
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 7, 2007 
i) Planning Commission/Final – March 13, 2007  
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 20, 2007  

 raft – March 27, 2007  k) Planning Commission Special/Study/D
l) Youth Council/Draft – March 28, 2007 

) Election Commission/Draft – April 2, 2007 m
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City Manager’s Office – Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2007/2008 Annual Budget 

and Business Plan  
b) Assessing Department – City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of March, 2007  
d) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference  
e) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative Conference  
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 First Quarter Litigation Report  
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Telephone Call from Resident Jim Forrer Commending Lt. Lyczkowski for his Wonderful 

Representation of the Police Department and Friendly and Outgoing Demeanor  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Lynn Crawford Regarding the Troy Police 

Department and the Compassion and Professionalism of Captain Mayer and Officer 
Himrod  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Director of Building Operations Steve Pallotta 
in Recognition of the Contribution and Assistance of Ryan Wolf During the Fire Station 
#1 Kitchen Renovation  

d) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Isham and Officer Lenczewski from Warrant Officer Iola 
Miller Regarding the Assistance Received with the Execution of Tax Warrant 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) City of Ferndale – Resolution to End the War in Iraq 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Regarding Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan 
and the Big Beaver Corridor Study 

 
J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Seasonal Outdoor 

Display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts 
 
J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Law Day 2007 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic Planning Initiatives: Goal 

III, “Retain and Attract Investment While Encouraging Redevelopment” 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 19 - 

questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Hooters v. Troy.        
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 16, 2007 
 

- 20 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 23, 2007.................................................. Special City Council-Budget 
Monday, April 30, 2007.................................................. Special City Council-Budget 
Monday, May 14, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 21, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, June 4, 2007 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 18, 2007 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 9, 2007 ................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, July 23, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 6, 2007............................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
JEANETTE BENNETT 

 
WHEREAS, Jeanette Bennett began her career with the City of Troy Purchasing Department in 1985 when she 
was hired as a Buyer.  In 1989 she was promoted to Acting Purchasing Director, and in 1991 she was named 
Purchasing Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jeanette’s dedication to public purchasing extends beyond the City limits. She has been active in 
many purchasing organizations such as the Michigan Intergovernmental Purchasing Network, Michigan Public 
Purchasing Officers Association, and National Institute of Governmental Purchasing. Jeanette has also been a 
teacher to her co-workers and members of the American Public Works Association about Purchasing 101. She has 
numerous letters of appreciation for her services to various purchasing events and programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, In March 1988 Jeanette was honored as Troy’s Employee of the Month for conducting the 
SMOKELESS and WEIGHT NO MORE programs and she was also presented with a Civilian Citation by Police 
Chief Lawrence Carey for “saving the life of a fellow employee who was choking;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Jeanette is admired throughout the profession of governmental purchasing. She has been a mentor to 
many, and has earned the respect of all of her peers.  In 1997 the Michigan Public Purchasing Officers Association 
named Jeanette Purchasing Manager of the Year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jeanette retired from the City of Troy on January 19, 2007 after 22 years of dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In her retirement, Jeanette plans to travel to Florida and Northern Michigan. She also plans to take an 
Alaskan Cruise and would love to spend time in Mexico.  Jeanette will have more time to spend with her family, 
which includes her husband Jerry; son Brett; daughter-in-law Gina and grandson Jack; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jeanette will continue her favorite hobbies of scrap booking, knitting scarves, making fleece blankets, 
playing golf and skiing; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Jeanette Bennett for her many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management, 
and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Jeanette during 
her retirement years. 
 
Presented the 16th day of April 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



PROCLAMATION  
NATIONAL ANTHEM AWARENESS WEEK 

APRIL 23 – 27, 2007 
 
WHEREAS, The study of American heritage through music inspired by important moments 
in our nation’s history is basic to a complete education and the future of our country and its 
citizens; and 
  
WHEREAS, School music education programs ensure that students learn to take pride in 
our nation through the use of songs that teach the history and heritage of the United 
States; and 
  
WHEREAS, The study of music provides increased opportunities for valuable educational 
experiences, engages students in individual and group activities, develops creativity, 
problem-solving, and critical thinking skills; and 
  
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is concerned with maintaining and improving high quality 
school music programs for all students, as well as teaching the importance of the historical 
events that created our great nation;  
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Troy City Council recognizes and 
commends local music teachers, the National Association for Music Education, and The 
National Anthem Project for their commitment to enhancing the quality of music education 
in the Troy School District and their efforts to restore American heritage and promote the 
significance of the National Anthem; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby proclaims April 23 - 27, 
2007 as National Anthem Project Week in the City of Troy, and endorses the National 
Anthem Project as an opportunity to support music education and promote American 
traditions, and encourages all citizens to participate.  
 
Presented this 16th day of April 2007.  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



 

 
 
April 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation of IDD and IFT Public Hearings for Kostal of America, Inc. 

scheduled for April 16, 2007 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Two Public Hearings have been scheduled for Kostal of America, Inc. on April 16, 2007.  They 

had requested the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a new project at 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 

 
They have not secured the purchase or lease of the premises at 350 Stephenson, and in fact are 
also negotiating for one of the other buildings on the site. 
 
Therefore the Public hearings will need to be canceled, and will be rescheduled once they are 
certain of the site, and the costs. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 No district may be established unless the site is known. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 The Public Hearings must be canceled. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 14, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:   UM/ULI Funding Request 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached is a proposal from Michele Hodges asking the City of Troy to participate financially in the 

proposed UM/ULI Real Estate Forum.   
 The mission of the Urban Land Institute is to provide leadership in the responsible use of land and 

in creating and sustaining thriving communities worldwide.   
 The forum is designed to facilitate the open exchange of ideas, information and experience among 

local, national and international industry leaders and policy makers dedicated to creating better 
places. 

 The Troy Chamber will have representatives at the March 26th, City Council meeting to answer 
Council’s questions and to ask for Council’s consideration of the proposal. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Chamber is requesting financial support from the City of Troy for the project.  The request is 

for a gift of up to $60,000. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Under Section 12.2 of the Troy City Charter, “(t)he authority to contract on behalf of the City is 

vested in the Council and shall be exercised in accordance with the provisions of statute and of 
this Charter…” 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment.  (Goal III) 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community.  (Goal I) 

 
Options: 
 
 Council has the right to accept, amend or reject the proposal. 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



Memorandum 
 

 
To:   Honorable Mayor Schilling, and Members of the Troy City Council 
 
From:   Michele Hodges, President, Troy Chamber of Commerce 
 
Date:   13 March 2007 
 
RE:   Funding Support 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Name 
Creation of a Walkable Urbanity Strategic Plan for the Troy Transit Center Area, as 
part of the University of Michigan/Urban Land Institute (UM/ULI) Real Estate Forum. 
 
Project Thumbnail Description 
The yearlong study process will empower Troy to embrace relevant economic 
development strategies.  It will accelerate the pursuit of economic viability, enhance 
implementation of the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement Study, and further develop 
implementation strategies for the west end of the Maple Road Study, as 
recommmended by Lawrence Technological University.   
 
The process includes a high profile, two-day, national real estate forum, earning Troy 
access to highly credible national developers and investors, as well as market and base 
studies, a five to twenty year strategic plan, a four day charrette, and published content. 
 
Professional and student comprised teams, in tandem with local officials, will lead the 
process. 
 
Funding Request   
Financial Support of the Project, from the City of Troy, in an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.   
 
Funding Explanation 
The total project cost has a market value of $800,000, with $250,000 owed by the area 
of study (Troy and its stakeholders), thus making this initiative an important opportunity 
to leverage dollars.  A number of in-kind resources are required in addition to this 
amount, and presently being identified by the Chamber.   The Troy Chamber is also in 
the process of raising the $250,000 from foundations, other levels of government, and 
the private sector.   



 
In order for early stages of the study process to commence, and to gain momentum in 
the fundraising effort, seed money is necessary.  It is the hope of this body that the City 
of Troy can provide such dollars.  $60,000 is needed immediately and, depending on 
the success of the fundraising effort, as much as $35,000 could be reimbursed to the 
City.  With this scenario, the City of Troy’s investment would not exceed $60,000, and 
could be as little as $25,000, depending on the success of the overall fund raising effort.  
Either way, the investment is a good value, with potential for high returns strong.  
 
Expected Benefits 
Quality input for community planning in the form of a market study, strategic plan, four-
day charrette, and published content 
 
National exposure to a high quality developer and investor audience 
 
Substantial, high quality tax base growth   
 
Greater capacity to implement the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement Study 
 
Transit readiness and infrastructure supportive of the creative class 
 
Walkable urbanity designs 
 
Sustainable development potentials identified 
 
Background  
The Troy Chamber, an eight-hundred member business organization, seeks to 
collaborate with the University of Michigan, Urban Land Institute, Brookings Institute, 
City of Troy, private sector, and others, in creating a Walkable Urbanity Strategic 
Plan.  The epicenter for the area of study is the Transit Center, now proposed for the 
southwest corner of Maple and Coolidge Roads, and neighboring environs.   
 
Neighboring environs will likely include the Big Beaver/Coolidge intersection, with the 
Somerset Collection, former Kmart site, and The Kresge Foundation headquarters 
impacted by it; as well as assets heading east on the Maple Road Corridor. By 
developing this area appropriately, an important opportunity to create walkable urbanity 
exists.  The Troy Chamber hopes to leverage it for the benefit of the City, and for the 
Region. 
 
In review, the land proposed for the multi-modal Transit Center is owned by Grand 
Sakwa, which has agreed to donate it if developed within a ten-year period, of which 
three remain.  The site abuts the City of Birmingham, and SMART, Amtrak, and feeder 
transport providers are already engaged in preliminary planning processes with the City 
of Troy.  The Troy Airport is also nearby, and presents yet another mode of 
transportation.  An added benefit is the City of Troy’s consideration of a significant 
series of pathways, with bicycles made readily available at key points throughout the 
community, including the Center area. 
 



Additionally, the potential for artist colonies exists within the study area, which furthers 
the need to build the creative class, contributes to walkable urbanity, and is consistent 
with regional strategies under consideration.  This is a recognized economic 
development strategy for the future economy, and will ensure Troy remains relevant 
going forward. 
 
Best practice case studies from around the country make a compelling case for “transit 
ready” communities, with Washington DC, Reston, VA and Denver, CO important 
examples.  Transit readiness drives development in a new and significant way, with the 
potential to make a substantive tax base contribution likely (early estimates suggest 
Troy could experience a $3-4M increase in annual tax revenue). 
 
Transit readiness will create walkable urbanity in a quintessentially suburban locale, 
resulting in a level of prosperity that would contribute to regional health.  The capacity 
for regional transit would be enhanced, favorably impacting the Troy economy, and the 
Region. 
 
The U-M/ULI partnership is capable of high quality study, at a less than market rate; and 
it can engage a pedigreed audience of national real estate professionals and investors.  
Although difficult to measure, the market value of this strategic planning process is 
estimated at $800,000.  To secure such service for $250,000 is a unique opportunity to 
leverage dollars, while making significant local and regional impact. 
 
Creation of a strategic plan is a year long process, with the November 2007 U-M/ULI 
Real Estate Forum an important milestone.  Troy could become a national prototype, 
and potential for robust economic development is highly likely.  The study will look 
closely at the public right of way, and make recommendations for key areas, both public 
and private.  The private sector can choose whether or not to develop accordingly. 
 
In addition to the Forum, the process includes market and base studies, a five to twenty 
year strategic plan, four-day charrette, and published content.  These process 
components are to be led by professional and student comprised teams, with local 
stakeholders active participants.  The Troy Chamber, in concert with the appropriate 
agencies, will facilitate the process, thus reducing the impact on City of Troy staff 
resources. 
 
The Forum also presents an important collaborative opportunity, with government, 
academia, and the private sector working in tandem.  It addresses a market need, and 
the need to further sustainable development. 
 
Before the strategy development process can begin, however, the Troy Chamber must 
identify willing partners and investors.  We hope you choose to invest for, when 
complete, the outcome stands to include a vibrant, economically and socially viable, 
Troy.  Walkable urbanity will exist, an infrastructure supportive of collaboration engaged, 
sustainable development given greater value, relevant economic development 
strategies engaged, implementation of the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement and 
Maple Road Studies more likely, and yet another step towards quality planning taken.    
 



Thank you for your time, and I’d be happy to aid your decision making process in any 
way possible, by providing additional information, as you see fit. 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate      Sally M. Elmiger, Associate     Jeremy G. Lopatin, Associate 

 
 
March 13, 2007 
 
Honorable Mayor Schilling and City Council Members 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Re: 2007 UM/ULI Real Estate Forum Walkable Urbanity Strategic Plan  
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
Troy has been fortunate to be selected as the area of study for the UM/ULI Real Estate Forum.  
From past experience, I know this endeavor presents a significant opportunity to be a catalyst for 
new planning and economic development opportunities. 
 
The recent completion of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Futures Initiative, along with the 
initial concepts that have been discussed in the Master Plan update, reveal that the City is in an 
excellent position to pursue long term economic vitality and sustainability. 
 
The Walkable Urbanity and Strategic Plan will contribute significantly to the City’s efforts.  By 
bringing national resources to the table with local officials and experts, the opportunities to 
accelerate economic developments along Big Beaver, Maple Road, and other areas of the City 
will be increased.  Furthermore, the specific strategies that will be developed for walkable, 
transit oriented development will cement the City’s reputation as offering a high quality of life to 
its residents. 
 
The Troy Chamber is to be applauded for spearheading this effort.  I urge your support and stand 
read to provide whatever cooperation and assistance may be helpful. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
RKC: lh 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 2, 2007, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Pastor Dennis Wegner – Troy Church of the Nazarene gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Representative Marty Knollenberg provided City Council, City Staff and members of the 

audience with an update from the state legislature. 
b) Mayor Schilling presented Certificates of Recognition on behalf of the City of Troy 

recognizing graduates of Citizen Academy IX.       
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 8. D. Postponed Items
 
Resolution #2007-04-105 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 8. D. Postponed Items and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to move forward agenda item, D-4 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

D-4 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment  
 

SUPPORTS 
(a) Rejection of Proposed Consent Judgment

OPPOSES 
(a) Rejection of Proposed Consent Judgment

Thomas Fraser Sherri Moilanen 
Jo Alice Pelletier Victor Lenivov 
Noel Nelson Audre Zembrzuski 
Anthony P. Cruz Cynthia Wilsher 
Herb Evers Sally Spaulding 
Claudia Ferens Endres James Berar 
Tricia Imai  
Jim Laurain  
Bill Pelletier  
Barbara Harrell  
Jerry Andritsis  
Thomas Swanson  
Robert Antolak  
 
Vote on Rejection of Proposed Consent Judgment
 
Resolution #2007-04-106 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has REVIEWED AND CONSIDERED the March 12, 2007 
Consent Judgment proposal for the Hooters of Troy Inc. v. City of Troy case, which was drafted 
by the attorney for Hooters of Troy; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS the proposed March 
12, 2007 Proposed Consent Judgment in the Hooters of Troy Inc. and the City of Troy case. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert 
No: Stine, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:14 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:26 PM. 
 
D-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-725) – Proposed Office Building, East of 

Livernois, South Side of Wattles, Section 22 – R-1C to O-1 – Delayed at the Request 
of the Applicant 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Articles IV and 
XXXV – Planned Unit Development Provisions 

 
Resolution #2007-04-107 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Articles IV (DEFINITIONS) and XXXV 
(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to read as written in 
ZOTA 225, City Council version with correction. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
D-3 Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease in Cost of 

Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority 
(SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David Lambert 

 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak    
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting members of cities in SOCRRA and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium;  
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCCRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCCRA member cities amounting to a 
savings of approximately $2,730,000.00 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% to 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $776,423.00 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL REDUCE the property tax 
millage to equal the $776,423.00 savings, minus $182,330.00, the amount of subsidy to the 
Refuse and Recycling Fund from the General Fund, and that the Troy City Council REQUESTS 
that the City Manager and staff REDUCE this cost starting in the 2007 Troy City budget; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council respectfully REQUESTS that the 
Troy City Manager FORWARD copies of this resolution to the local media to inform citizens and 
taxpayers of this savings and reduction. 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

Pending Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution to Reduce the Property 
Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland 
County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member 
David Lambert by STRIKING “to equal the $776,423.00 savings, minus $182,330.00, the 
amount of subsidy to the Refuse and Recycling Fund from the General Fund,”. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend Amendment by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2007-04-108 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the pending resolution to amend the 
resolution for Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease 
in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority 
(SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David Lambert by STRIKING it in its 
entirety and SUBSTITUTING with the following: 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution to Reduce 
the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease in Cost of Trash Collection as 
a Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 
Member City – Referred by Council Member David Lambert by STRIKING it in 
its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with: 
 
“WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and 
Hazel Park Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to 
reduce the cost of trash collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County 
Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting members of 
cities in SOCRRA, and the new team met the challenge to reduce costs for the 
trash consortium;  
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and 
decreased the cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA 
member cities amounting to a total savings of approximately $2,730,000 per 
year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% and 24%, 
and the City of Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers 
cost; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby 
INSTRUCTS the City Manager and staff to REDUCE the Refuse and Recycling 
Fund millage rate in an amount equal to the $786,000 in savings.” 

 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Main Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2007-04-109 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution to Reduce the Property 
Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland 
County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member 
David Lambert by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with: 

 
“WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and 
Hazel Park Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to 
reduce the cost of trash collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County 
Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting members of 
cities in SOCRRA, and the new team met the challenge to reduce costs for the 
trash consortium;  
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and 
decreased the cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA 
member cities amounting to a total savings of approximately $2,730,000 per 
year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% and 24%, 
and the City of Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers 
cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby 
INSTRUCTS the City Manager and staff to REDUCE the Refuse and Recycling 
Fund millage rate in an amount equal to the $786,000 in savings.” 

 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming   
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2007-04-110 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak    
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting members of cities in SOCRRA, and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium;  
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA member cities amounting to a total 
savings of approximately $2,730,000 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% and 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby INSTRUCTS the City 
Manager and staff to REDUCE the Refuse and Recycling Fund millage rate in an amount equal 
to the $786,000 in savings. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-10, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 19, 2007 
and the 7:00 PM Special City Council Meeting of March 22, 2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material                
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract for Asphalt Patching 
Material to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Company of 
Saginaw, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 6, 2007, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
April 30, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item 2, 
QPR/UPM Picked-up.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Hauling and Disposal 

of Broken Concrete                
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one-year 
requirements of hauling and disposal services of broken concrete to low bidder, Bedrock 
Express LTD of Ortonville, MI at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 9, 
2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles                

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2007 
Dodge Charger from Golling Chrysler Jeep, Inc. of Bloomfield Hills, MI through an Oakland 
County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of $22,252.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) CityFutures Forum on the Future of Governance                

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Robin Beltramini is AUTHORIZED to attend the NLC 
CityFutures Forum on the Future of Governance in Portland, Oregon from June 21 - 22, 2007 in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Michigan Department of Natural Resources Canada Goose Roundup and Nest 

Destruction Programs  
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-5 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has adopted the Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
guidelines through a 5-year permit that will expire in May, 2007 allowing for the removal and 
destruction of goose eggs and for goose round-ups to control goose population. 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council REQUESTS the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources issue a permit to allow for Canada Goose Roundup and the Canada Goose Nest 
Destruction. 
 
E-6 Application for Transfer of SDM License for Maple Market  
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-6a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from ESM, Inc. to transfer location of 2006 SDM licensed 
business from 219 N. Eton, Birmingham MI 48009, to 164 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County, be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
 Resolution #2007-04-111-E-6b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with ESM, Inc. to TRANSFER location of 2006 SDM licensed business from 219 N. Eton, 
Birmingham MI 48009, to 164 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Logan’s Roadhouse  
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-7a 
RESOLVED, That the request from Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc. (A Tennessee Corporation) to 
transfer all stock in 2006 Class C licensed business, located at 86 W. Fourteen Mile, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County thru transfer of 1,000 shares from existing stockholder, CBRL Group, 
Inc. to new stockholder, LRI Holdings, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), be CONSIDERED for 
APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-7b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc. (A Tennessee Corporation) to transfer all stock in 2006 Class C 
licensed business, located at 86 W. Fourteen Mile, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County thru 
transfer of 1,000 shares from existing stockholder, CBRL Group, Inc. to new stockholder, LRI 
Holdings, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation).  
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Village of Tuscany Site Condominiums Project No. 06.908.3  
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mr. Gary Abitheira 
for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, detention, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Resolution to Excuse Council Members Howrylak and Stine from Special City 

Council Meeting of Thursday, March 22, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Howrylak due to being out of the county and Council Member Stine due to illness at the Special 
City Council meeting of March 22, 2007.  
 
E-11 City of Troy v. George Roberts 
 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Consent Judgment between the 
City of Troy and George Roberts and the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road 

Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, - Project No. 02.204.5 
Parcel #56 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-023 – Gladys J. Brewer Revocable Living Trust 

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit in the amount of $500.00 from Robert C. Brewer, as attorney in fact for the 
Gladys J. Brewer Revocable Living Trust dated April 29, 1993, owner of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-228-023; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Regrading 
and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard, - Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #54 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-025 – 
Harjinder Bhatia 

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Harjinder Bhatia, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-
025, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $10,900.00, plus closing costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $100.00 from Harjinder Bhatia, owner of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-025; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14 Ratification of Street Vacation Application (File Number SV 189) – A Section of 

Alley, West of Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, abutting Lots 5-12 of 
Troy Little Farms Subdivision and Lots 26 and 27 of Clark Estates Subdivision, 
Section 3 to Correct Error in Sidwell Number 

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-14 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES: 
 

WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a section of 
the 20-foot-wide platted alley, located west of Rochester Road, between 
Marengo and DeEtta, and abutting lots 5-12 of Troy Little Farms 
Subdivision and Lots 26 and 27 of Clark Estates Subdivision, in Section 3; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that this alley 
vacation be granted with the retention of public and private utility 
easements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The property which shall benefit 
from this requested vacation is Lot 12 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-03-278-
027) and Lots 10 and 11 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-03-278-028) and lots 
5 through 9 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-03-278-032), of Troy Little Farms 
Subdivision Section 3; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby VACATES the 
portion of the alley, 20-feet in width, located west of Rochester Road, 
between Marengo and DeEtta abutting Lots 5 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 of 
Troy Little Farms Subdivision. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

E-15 Addendum No. 1 – Contract 05-6 Square Lake and Rochester Road Water Main 
Replacement 

 
Resolution #2007-04-111-E-15 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Addendum No. 1 to Contract No. 05-6 
for the Square Lake and Rochester Road Water Main Replacement to Troelsen Excavating, 
1395 Rochester Road, Troy, MI  48083 in the amount of $2,602.75. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-10 TDDA, Interchange Committee, Big Beaver Road Intersections with I-75, 

Confirmation of Landscape Architectural Services 
 
Resolution #2007-04-112 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine   
 
WHEREAS, The TDDA accepted a landscape architectural proposal from Grissim Metz 
Andriese Associates on March 21, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, The TDDA authorized expenditures to not exceed $40,000.00; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONFIRMS the TDDA’s decision to 
accept the Grissim Metz Andriese Associates landscape architectural proposal, dated March 
14, 2007, and AUTHORIZES expenditures to not exceed $40,000.00.  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine   
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-3 Reconsideration of Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to 

RPS, Troy, LLC, Fronting on Big Beaver between Troy and Louis Streets, Section 
22 – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 – City Staff Directed to Submit to City Council at the 
Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 16, 2007 

 
 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board   

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-04-113 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
* Jeff Stewart          (Troy Daze Committee Rep) Unexpired Term Expires 11/30/07 
* NOTE: Recommendation rec’d from Troy Daze Committee  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Drainage Services – Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
 
Resolution #2007-04-114 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by  Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Water Management Specialist, Inc. has a proven reputation within the golf course 
industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, Water Management Specialist, Inc. meets departmental needs, having the 
expertise and equipment specifically suited for golf course work and can be completed within 
desired time lines; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and a contract to provide golf course drainage to Sylvan Glen and restore critical 
playing areas is hereby APPROVED to Water Management Specialist, Inc. for an estimated 
total cost of $59,336.00. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 98 (Criminal Code) 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proclamation Proclaiming May 1, 2007 as “Keep Kids Alive Drive 25 Day®” in Troy 
– Referred by Council Member David Lambert  

 
Resolution #2007-04-115 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, KEEP KIDS ALIVE DRIVE 25® is a 501c3 non-profit organization working with 
police departments, public works departments, schools, businesses and concerned citizens in 
communities across the country to decrease speeding in residential neighborhoods;  
 
WHEREAS, Their mission is to educate people on the serious consequences of driving above 
the posted residential speed, and encourage and remind everyone to drive at or below the legal 
limit;  
 
WHEREAS, KEEP KIDS ALIVE DRIVE 25® heightens public awareness and reminds motorists 
not to speed, largely through neighborhood networking and the use of temporary yard signs 
posted by residents in their yards;  
 
WHEREAS, KEEP KIDS ALIVE DRIVE 25® is encouraging communities to increase their 
efforts to inform the public about the speeding problem and the significant danger to children as 
spring and summer approaches;  
  
WHEREAS, The organization is asking Troy to join communities across the country in a 
significant national public awareness campaign kicking off on May 1, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, They will assist our community in this effort by making available educational 
literature, press releases, print and radio ads, flyers, and concepts for hosting special events in 
neighborhoods, schools and businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The goal of this awareness campaign is to save the lives of children and all 
pedestrians and cyclists in our community; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby PROCLAIMS May 1, 2007 as 
KEEP KIDS ALIVE DRIVE 25® DAY in Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7  

H-2 Council Member Robin Beltramini Requests Reconsideration of the UM/ULI 
Funding Request that Appeared on the March 19, 2007 City Council Agenda  

 
Resolution to Reconsider Resolution #2007-03-103 

 
Resolution #2007-04-116 
Moved by Beltramini  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2007-03-103, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
REMOVE the UM/ULI Funding Request as an action agenda item on any 
future agenda. 
 
Yes: All-4 
No: None 
Absent:  Beltramini, Howrylak, Stine 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-103 
 
Resolution #2007-04-117 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-
103, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, as it appears until the Regular City 
Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 16, 2007: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
REMOVE the UM/ULI Funding Request as an action agenda item on any 
future agenda. 
 
Yes: All-4 
No: None 
Absent:  Beltramini, Howrylak, Stine 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2006-04-118 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:30 AM. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special Meeting 
  
Resolution #2006-04-119 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, April 
23, 2007 at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan for the purpose of discussing the 2007-2008 City of Troy Budget. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Mayor Schilling advised that the presentation of the final document for the Futures Report last 
Thursday provided a wealth of information. She encouraged the public to be aware of the 
document and become involved. 
 
Council Member Lambert thanked City Staff and the Information Technology Department for 
setting up an Outlook calendar that is accessible by all City Council Members. 
 
Council Member Beltramini commented on a small brochure that she distributed to City Council 
Members that addressed ethics and hopes that Council finds it helpful. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – December 13, 2006  
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 10, 2007  
c) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 6, 2007  
d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 12, 2007 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – February 14, 2007  
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 20, 2007  
g) Historic District Commission/Final – February 20, 2007  
h) Downtown Development Authority/Final – February 21, 2007 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 27, 2007  
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 6, 2007  
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 6, 2007  
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 7, 2007 
m) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 12, 2007  
n) Planning Commission/Draft – March 13, 2007 
o) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – March 14, 2007  
p) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – March 14, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference 
b) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative Conference and 

Board of Trustees Meeting  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Mayor Schilling from Brad Byarski, Michigan Home Builders, Commending the 

Planning Department Staff and Planning Commission for the Efforts with Caswell Town 
Center Development  

b) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Rick Squires, Scoutmaster Troop 326, 
Regarding the Excellent Service Provided by Barb Pallotta and Aileen Bittner  

c) Letter of Appreciation from Tonni Bartholomew Recognizing Rob Bittner and Mary 
Redden for Their Assistance During the Oakland County Passport Drive   

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) County Executive Declaration - The Month of April, 2007 as Fair Housing Month 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Notice of 

Hearing Regarding the Application of International Transmission Company, Intent 
to Construct a Transmission Line – Case No. U-14933 

Noted and Filed   
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic Planning Initiatives: Goal 

III, “Retain and Attract Investment While Encouraging Redevelopment” 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Resolution #2007-04-120 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – City of Troy v. Premium Construction. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 2, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 12:05 AM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 12:14 AM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:23 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION  
NATIONAL ANTHEM AWARENESS WEEK 

APRIL 23 – 27, 2007 
 
WHEREAS, The study of American heritage through music inspired by important moments 
in our nation’s history is basic to a complete education and the future of our country and its 
citizens; and 
  
WHEREAS, School music education programs ensure that students learn to take pride in 
our nation through the use of songs that teach the history and heritage of the United 
States; and 
  
WHEREAS, The study of music provides increased opportunities for valuable educational 
experiences, engages students in individual and group activities, develops creativity, 
problem-solving, and critical thinking skills; and 
  
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is concerned with maintaining and improving high quality 
school music programs for all students, as well as teaching the importance of the historical 
events that created our great nation;  
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Troy City Council recognizes and 
commends local music teachers, the National Association for Music Education, and The 
National Anthem Project for their commitment to enhancing the quality of music education 
in the Troy School District and their efforts to restore American heritage and promote the 
significance of the National Anthem; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby proclaims April 23 - 27, 
2007 as National Anthem Project Week in the City of Troy, and endorses the National 
Anthem Project as an opportunity to support music education and promote American 
traditions, and encourages all citizens to participate.  
 
Presented this 16th day of April 2007.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



LAW DAY PROCLAMATION 
MAY 1, 2007 

 
 
WHEREAS, Law Day is a celebration of our great heritage of liberty, justice, and equality 
under law; and 
 
WHEREAS, All youth need to understand their rights and responsibilities under the law to 
become effective participants in our nation’s civic life; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Law Day 2007 theme of Liberty Under Law: Empowering Youth, Assuring 
Democracy encourages us to assure that our youth are equipped with the knowledge and 
skills necessary to effectively make their voices heard within our democracy;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy proclaims 
Monday, May 1, 2007, as Law Day.  We urge the citizens, schools, businesses, and media 
of the City of Troy to use this occasion to dedicate ourselves to preserve and strengthen the 
rule of law. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Troy encourages citizens to take advantage of 
the educational opportunities and information provided as part of the Troy City Attorney’s 
Office 2007 Law Day Program. 
 
 
Signed this 16th day of April 2007.   
 
 
  
 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



 
 
  April 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 

Quarterly Newsletter 
  

Background 
• On March 26, 2007, Requests for Proposals (RFP) were received and opened to provide printing 

services for the Troy Today, our quarterly newsletter. 
• 135 vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bidders responding and one (1) statement 

of no bid received.  
• Color Q had to withdraw from the process due to a their error, which assumed the size of the newsletter 

was 5x8 instead of 8 ¼ x 10 5/8. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the Community Affairs account # 748.7901, Library account #790.7901 and 

Parks & Recreation account # 752.7901. 
  

Legal Considerations 
• RFP-COT 07-07 for Printing of the Troy Today was competitively bid and opened with three bidders 

responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in printing a quarterly 

newsletter for the City of Troy.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• Troy Today, an all-encompassing quarterly newsletter to inform residents and businesses about 

pertinent City news, Library, Museum and Parks & Recreation programs and special events, is mailed 
to all residential and business addresses. (Goal IV) 

• Troy Today also incorporates standard resource information like contact names and phone numbers for 
City Departments, City Council, and other community organizations. It maintains regular features 
including road and infrastructure construction maps, business development news, City Council meeting 
schedules, Police and Fire safety tips and special programs, and other helpful information. (Goal II & 
Goal IV) 

 

Options 
• City Management and the Community Affairs department recommend awarding a one-year contract 

with two one (1) year renewal options for printing services for the Troy Today to the highest scoring 
respondent as a result of a best value process, Grand River Printing and Imaging, of Belleville, MI for 
an estimated one year total cost of $80,342.80 at prices contained in the RFP tabulation, plus the 
actual cost of bulk rate postage. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Printing of Troy Today 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One-Hundred Thirty-Five (135) Firms notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Three (3) proposals were received 

 
 Grand River Printing was the most qualified vendor by receiving the highest weighted 

score 
 

The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Firm SCORE 
Grand River Printing 69 
University Lithoprinters 61 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION 
(BID WITHDRAWN BY VENDOR)  
 

 Color Q 
 

Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Qualification Statement and Newsletter 
Sample Scoring 

 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

               Printing of Troy Today  
Final Score Calculation: 

 
40% x Sample Evaluation Process 
40% x Price Score 
20% x Interview Score        Deleted Phase 
                        

  100% = Final Weighted Score 
 

In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in order of bid opening.   

 
Weighted Average Score for Sample Evaluation: 40% 
RATERS 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
University Lithoprinters  97 99 97 98 
Grand River Printing  63 78 77 73 
 
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% 
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

 (1-(Proposal price - lowest price)/low price) x available points 
Vendors:  
University Lithoprinters (1-(117,460.00–80,342.80)/80,342.80) x 100    =                        54 
Grand River Printing (1-(80,342.80–80,342.80)/80,342.80) x 100    =                       100 

 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: University Lithoprinters **Grand River Printing 
Score   
Sample Evaluation Score:  (x .40) = 98 x .40 = 39 73 x .40 = 29 

   
Price Score:          (x .40) = 54 x .40 = 22 100 x .40 = 40 
   

Final Score:  61 69 

** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/RFP Documents-Agreements-Contracts / RFP – CA – RFP-COT 07-07 Troy Today – WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
award this proposal to the printer considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors 
including but not limited to the following: 
  

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
 

B.  Completeness of the proposal 
 
C.  Financial strength and capacity of the printer 
 
D.  Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
 
E.  Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
 
F.  Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1: Qualifications Evaluation.   
 Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to 

the second phase of the process. 
 
Phase 2: Sample Evaluation Process.   
 The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to independently evaluate 

the samples of the “City” type newsletters and paper stock submitted as 
required.  Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The 
scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 
bidder for this phase of the process. 

 
Phase3:  Interview (Optional).   
 The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to independently rate the 

interview.  Each committee member will calculate a weighted score.  The 
scores will be averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the 
process.  

 
Phase 4:  Price   
 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 

        FORMULA     - { 1 – (Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price} x available points 
 

Final Scoring and Printer Selection.   
     40% x Weighted Average Score – Sample Evaluation Process  
     20% x Interview Score 
 +  20% x Price Score  40% 
 =  Final Weighted Score  
 
 The highest final weighted scored printer will be the printer recommended to 

the Troy City Council for Award. 
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed 
in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-07
Opening Date -- 3-26-07 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 4/5/07 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: Grand River Printing and Imaging University Lithoprinters

CHECK # 12949 114845
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00/$1500.00 on File $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF OFFSET
    PRINTING AND DELIVERY OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION

Vendor Questionnaire Filled out     Y or N Yes Yes

40,000 Copies Printing of TROY TODAY
per Printing Four Times per Year (160,000 Copies per Year)

  Complete for the Sum of:     20,085.70$                             29,365.00$                              
Extended Yearly Cost:          80,342.80$                            117,460.00$                            

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Orion Mead West Vaco
Inside Windsor Domtar

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb  White Offset Paper 1,422.40$                              1st)   $147.00    2nd)   $2,478
60 lb Gloss Cover Stock 1,131.17$                              N/A

Add'l Scans 15.00$                                    
2) Changes once the Dylux or Sherpa is produced $95.00/Hour $65.00/Hour
3) Cost for additional quantities per 500 Copies:

   Offset       Gloss Text
Base Bid   (80 Pages +   4 pages) 193.36$                                  76 pgs + 4 pgs      $308.00
Optional Pricing

a.) 88 Pages  (84 Pages +    4 pages) 207.80$                                     80 pgs + 4 pgs      $315.00
b.) 88 Pages  (80 Pages +    8 pages) 206.15$                                     84 pgs + 4 pgs      $345.00
c.) 92 Pages  (84 Pages +    8 pages) 214.31$                                  N/A

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 BUSINESS DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 24 Hours / 7 Days per week Mon - Sat 24 Hours
24 Hrs Phone No. 734-394-1400 734-973-9414

Terms 2% 10 Days, Net 30 Net 30 

Delivery

Samples Y or N Yes Yes

Exceptions: Blank None

Acknowledgement Completed Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
Dearborn Lithograph, Inc BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL

BIDS WITHDRAWN BY VENDOR:
Color Q

ATTEST:  
Laura Campbell Susan Leirstein CPPB
Ellen Hodorek Purchasing Director
Julie Hamilton
G:\RFP-COT 07-07 Printing of Troy Today

10 BUSINESS DAYS



campbellld
Text Box
E-04b









 

 
April 10, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 

Concrete 
Background 
 
 On March 14, 2007, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with 

an option to renew for one additional year. 
 A secondary suppler is awarded in the event that the primary supplier is unable to provide material, or meet 

delivery needs. 
 21 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system and one- (1) vendor walked-in.  Six 

bidders responded.  
 
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drains, road and 

sidewalk surface maintenance; and the Water Division for mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-09, to furnish one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete was competitively bid and 

opened with six bidders responding. 
 Awards are contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying transit mixed 

concrete material to the City of Troy.  (Goal II) 
 Proper maintenance of our roadways and other public infrastructure enhances the livability and safety of 

the community.  (Goal l)  
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding the contract to low bidder, Superior Materials L.L.C. of 

Farmington Hills, MI, formerly Clawson Concrete Co. as the primary supplier at unit prices listed in the bid 
tabulation.  In addition, in the event that the primary supplier is unable to supply material as specified, Van 
Horn Concrete of Waterford, MI shall be named as the secondary supplier. 

 
 
EF\ef S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.16.07 SR1 Transit Mixed Concrete  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

Primary
Superior Materials Secondary Old Bid Form

VENDOR NAME: LLC formerly Van Horn Piedmont Utica Transit
Clawson Concrete Concrete, Inc. Mix

Concrete Co
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD
PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1. 100 YDS 6 SACK MIX 72.50$               69.50$             75.00$             77.00$              

2. 800 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 77.50$               76.50$             79.00$             84.00$              

3. 200 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 80.50$               -$                 78.00$             86.00$              
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
     a. 20 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS -$                  100.00$           40.00$             75.00$              
     b. 5 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS -$                  150.00$           40.00$             75.00$              

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 30 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 80.00$               60.00$             70.00$             60.00$              

6. 40 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$                4.00$               6.00$               5.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS- 87,950.00$        72,860.00$      89,640.00$      95,975.00$      

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

1. 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 77.50$               75.50$             81.00$             82.00$              

2. 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 82.50$               81.50$             85.00$             89.00$              

3. 100 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 85.50$               -$                 84.00$             91.00$              
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
      a. 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS -$                  100.00$           40.00$             85.00$              
      b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS -$                  150.00$           40.00$             85.00$              

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 10 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 80.00$               60.00$             70.00$             -$                  

6. 10 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$                4.00$               6.00$               5.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS - 19,587.50$        11,477.50$      19,965.00$      20,695.00$      

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6 minutes 6 minutes 7 minutes 6 minutes

MINIMUM LOAD: 2 yards 6 yards 6 yards 6 c.yards
  Sat. 6 to Noon

HOURS OF OPERATION:  7 to 5 7:00 to 5:00 M-F     6 to 5 7 AM to 5 PM

24 HRS PHONE NO.  810-533-0756 248-640-7640 248-446-1503 248-249-5026



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 4
Date Prepared  -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

Primary
Superior Materials Secondary Old Bid Form

VENDOR NAME: LLC formerly Van Horn Piedmont Utica Transit
Clawson Concrete Concrete, Inc. Mix

Concrete Co

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed  Y or N No Yes Yes Missing Page

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 30 Day Net

WARRANTY: 1 year Blank Blank Blank

DELIVERY TIME: 7 to 5 7 AM to 5 PM As specified Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL - One (1) Year Requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an Option to
Renew for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS
Debra Painter
Emily Frontera
Thomas Rosewarne ______________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 07-09 TransitMixConcrete 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: Nagy Ready Sterling Concrete
Mix, Inc. Products, Inc.

EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE/YD PRICE/YD
PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1. 100 YDS 6 SACK MIX 78.95$                78.00$                 

2. 800 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 83.95$                90.00$                 

3. 200 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 83.95$                84.00$                 
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
     a. 20 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 105.00$              75.00$                 
     b. 5 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 155.00$              75.00$                 

Range ($60 -$100)
5. 30 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$                80.00$                 

6. 40 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 6.00$                  6.00$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS- 96,910.00$        101,115.00$       

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

1. 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 84.95$                83.00$                 

2. 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 89.95$                95.00$                 

3. 100 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 89.95$                89.00$                 
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
      a. 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 105.00$              75.00$                 
      b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 155.00$              75.00$                 

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 10 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$                80.00$                 

6. 10 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 6.00$                  6.00$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS - 21,658.75$        21,860.00$         

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6 minutes 6 minutes

MINIMUM LOAD: 7 c. yards 1 c. yard
Sat  7 to Noon

HOURS OF OPERATION:  M-F    7 to 5:30 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM

24 HRS PHONE NO.  248-891-2231 Blank



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 4
Date Prepared  -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: Nagy Ready Sterling Concrete
Mix, Inc. Products, Inc.

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed  Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

DELIVERY TIME: Blank As Required

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Attached
To Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-09 TransitMixConcrete 



 
 
  March 20, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
  
 
Background 

• Oakland County has designated $500,000.00 for the West Nile Virus Fund to be distributed to 
assist cities in reducing the population of infected mosquitoes in the environment.  

• The portion of the annual West Nile Virus Fund appropriation available upon application to 
each Oakland County City has been established by a formula based on total population (75%) 
and total square miles (25%). 

• Based on the County formula the City of Troy is eligible for $30,057.91 
• To qualify for reimbursement of eligible expenses, City Council must pass a resolution 

authorizing the reimbursement request.  
 
Financial Considerations 

• Funds are deposited into the general fund revenue account  #1010.4589 and used to offset 
expenditures for the mosquito control contract. 

 
Legal Considerations 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.                        
 
Policy Considerations 

• Control of West Nile Virus enhances the livability and safety of the community (Goal #I). 
• Use of County funds reduces cost to the City (Goal #2) 
• Keeping diseases in check, encourages development in the area (Goal #3) 
 

Options 
• The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the City Council approve the request to 

seek reimbursement from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund in the amount of 
$30,057.91.  

 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



campbellld
Text Box
E-06









campbellld
Text Box
E-07























 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Request for Special Event Banner on Civic Center Property 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Troy National Day of Prayer Task Force, through it’s representative Pamela Hancock, has 
secured a permit to hold an event within the Limited Public Forum at the Veteran’s Plaza on May 3, 
2007.  They have done so through the Parks and Recreation Department in accordance with the 
policy that was adopted by City Council.  In addition to the event itself that is to be held from 11:30 
am till 1:30 pm on that day, they have also requested a banner be placed on the front lawn of City 
Hall for the week preceding the event. 
 
This application has been submitted and is being reviewed under the provisions of Section 85.03.01 
of the Sign Ordinance on Special Event Signs.  Those provisions require approval of the property 
owner for the placement of the Special Event Sign.  Since the sign is proposed to be placed on City 
property, the applicants seek City Council’s approval for the placement of the sign. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 None 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 None 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 The event complies with the policy on the use of the Limited Public Forum 

 
Options: 
 Council can approve the request for the placement of the banner. 
 Council can deny the request for the placement of the banner. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08





campbellld
Text Box
F-02





















 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance and Admin. 
  
SUBJECT:   George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Oakland County Drain Commission has issued several series of bonds over the years to fund 

improvements to the George W. Kuhn Drainage District, in which the City of Troy is a part of. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Drain Commissioner’s Office has determined that the participating cities can realize a 

considerable savings by refinancing the George W. Kuhn Drainage District Bonds, Series 2000B 
and 2001E Bonds. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Bond Counsel for the Drain Commissioner’s Office has reviewed and prepared the following 

resolution, relating to the Refunding of these series of bonds. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The saving of interest over the life of the bonds will “Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency 

and effectiveness of City government”. (Goal II) 
 
Options: 
 
 It is City Management’s recommendation that City Council approve the attached resolution to 

authorize the refunding of Series 2000B and Series 2001E George W. Kuhn District Drain Bonds.  
 
 
       

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 
 

APPENDIX A 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

 
CITY OF TROY 

 
$__________ 

George W. Kuhn Drainage District 
Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007G 

 
 
This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and 
delivered by the City of Troy, Michigan (the "City") in connection with the issuance by 
the George W. Kuhn Drainage District (the "Issuer") of its $____________ Drain 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007G (the "Bonds").  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered pursuant to a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City 
on __________, 2007.  The City covenants and agrees as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.   Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  
 
(a) This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and delivered by the City for the 

benefit of the Bondholders and the Beneficial Owners and in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriters in complying with subsection (b)(5) of the Rule.   

 
(b) In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any and all of the Bonds by 

those who shall hold the same or shall own beneficial ownership interests therein 
from time to time, this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to be and shall 
constitute a contract between the City and the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners 
from time to time of the Bonds, and the covenants and agreements herein set forth 
to be performed on behalf of the City shall be for the benefit of the Bondholders and 
Beneficial Owners of any and all of the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 2.   Definitions.   
 
The following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings in this Disclosure 
Certificate: 
 
"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the City pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which has or shares the power, directly or 
indirectly, to make investment decisions concerning ownership of any Bonds (including 
persons holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries). 
 
"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the City, or any successor Dissemination Agent 
appointed in writing by the City and which has filed with the City a written acceptance of 
such appointment. 



 
"GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles, as such principles are 
prescribed, in part, by the Financial Accounting Standards Board and modified by the 
Government Accounting Standards Board and in effect from time to time. 
 
"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 
 
"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  As of the date of this 
Disclosure Certificate, the address and telephone numbers of the MSRB are as follows: 
 
  CDI 
  1640 King Street, Suite 300 
  Alexandria, Virginia  22314-2719 
  Tel:  (202) 223-9503 
  Fax: (703) 683-1930 
 
"National Repository" shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities 
Information Repository for purposes of the Rule.  The National Repositories currently 
approved by the SEC are set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
"1934 Act" shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 
 
"Official Statement" shall mean the final Official Statement for the Bonds dated 
_____________, 2007. 
 
"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with the primary offering of the Bonds. 
 
"Repository" shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository. 
 
"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the 1934 Act, as 
the same may be amended from time to time, together with all interpretive guidances or 
other official interpretations or explanations thereof that are promulgated by the SEC. 
 
"SEC" shall mean the Securities and Exchange Board. 
 
"Securities Counsel" shall mean legal counsel expert in federal securities law. 
 
"State" shall mean the State of Michigan. 
 
"State Repository" shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by 
the State as a state information depository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized 
as such by the SEC.  As of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, the only State 
Repository is the Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan, 1445 First National Building, 
Detroit, Michigan 48226-3517, Tel: (313) 963-0420, Fax: (313) 963-0943. 
 
SECTION 3.   Provision of Annual Reports. 

 -2-



 
(a) Each year, the City shall provide, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, 

not later than seven months after the last day of the City's fiscal year, commencing 
with the City's Annual Report for its fiscal year ending ___________, 200___, to 
each Repository an Annual Report for the preceding fiscal year which is consistent 
with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  Not later than 
fifteen (15) business days prior to said date, the City shall provide the Annual 
Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the City).  In each case, the Annual 
Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents 
comprising a package, and may include by specific reference other information as 
provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided, however, that if the 
audited financial statements of the City are not available by the deadline for filing 
the Annual Report, they shall be provided when and if available, and unaudited 
financial statements in a format similar to the audited financial statements then most 
recently prepared for the City shall be included in the Annual Report. 

 
(b) If the City is unable to provide to the Repositories an Annual Report by the date 

required in subsection (a), the City shall send a notice, in a timely manner, to each 
National Repository or the MSRB, and to the State Repository, in substantially the 
form attached as Exhibit B, together with a cover sheet in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit D. 

 
(c) If the City's fiscal year changes, the City shall send written notice of such change to 

each National Repository or the MSRB, and to the State Repository, in substantially 
the form attached as Exhibit C, together with a cover sheet in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit D.  

 
(d) Whenever any Annual Report or portion thereof is filed as described above, it shall 

be attached to a cover sheet in substantially the form attached as Exhibit D. 
 
(e)  The Dissemination Agent shall: 
 

1) Determine each year, prior to the date for providing the Annual Report, the   
name and address of each National Repository and the State Repository; 
and  

 
 2)   If the Dissemination Agent is other than the City, file a report with the City   

  certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this 
Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was provided and listing all the 
Repositories to which it was provided. 

 
(f) In connection with providing the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent (if other 

than the City) is not obligated or responsible under this Disclosure Certificate to 
determine the sufficiency of the content of the Annual Report for purposes of the 
Rule or any other state or federal securities law, rule, regulation or administrative 
order. 

 
SECTION  4.  Content of Annual Reports.   

 -3-



 
The City's Annual Report shall contain or include by reference the following: 
 
(a) The audited financial statements of the City for its fiscal year immediately preceding 

the due date of the Annual Report. 
 
(b) Updates of the financial information and operating data relating to the City 

contained in the following sections of the Official Statement: 
 

(1) Population; 
 
(2) 10 Largest Taxpayers; 
 
(3) City Tax Rates & Levies; 
 
(4) Tax Collection Record; 
 
(5) State Equalized Valuation; 
 
(6) Taxable Valuation; 
 
(7) General Fund Revenues and Expenditures; 
 
(8) Revenues from the State of Michigan; 
 
(9) Debt Statement; and 
 
(10) City of Troy Credit Pledged. 

 
The City's financial statements shall be audited and prepared in accordance with GAAP 
with such changes as may be required from time to time in accordance with State law. 
 
Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents that previously have been provided to each of the Repositories or filed with 
the SEC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the document included by reference is a final 
official statement, it need only be available from the MSRB.  The City shall clearly 
identify each such other document so included by reference. 
 
SECTION  5.   Reporting of Significant Events. 
 
(a) The City covenants to provide, or cause to be provided, notice of the occurrence of 

any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material, in a timely manner 
and in accordance with the Rule: 

 
 (1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
 (2) Non-payment related defaults; 
 

 -4-



 (3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial  
  difficulties; 
 
 (4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial  
  difficulties; 
 
 (5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;  
 
 (6) Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the  
  Bonds; 
 
 (7) Modifications to rights of Bondholders; 

 (8) Bond calls; 
 
 (9) Defeasances; 
 
                  (10) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the  
  Bonds; and 
 
                  (11) Rating changes. 
 
(b) Whenever the City obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the City 

shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under 
applicable federal securities laws.  The City covenants that its determination of 
materiality will be made in conformance with federal securities laws. 

 
(c) If the City determines that the occurrence of a Listed Event would be material under 

applicable federal securities laws, the City shall promptly cause a notice of such 
occurrence to be filed with each National Repository or the MSRB, and with the 
State Repository, together with a cover sheet in substantially the form attached as 
Exhibit D.  In connection with providing a notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
described in subsection (a)(9), the City shall include in the notice explicit disclosure 
as to whether the Bonds have been escrowed to maturity or escrowed to call, as 
well as appropriate disclosure of the timing of maturity or call. 

 
(d) In connection with providing a notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the 

Dissemination Agent (if other than the City), solely in its capacity as such, is not 
obligated or responsible under this Disclosure Certificate to determine the 
sufficiency of the content of the notice for purposes of the Rule or any other state or 
federal securities law, rule, regulation or administrative order. 

 
(e) The City acknowledges that the "rating changes" referred to above in Section 

5(a)(11) of this Disclosure Certificate may include, without limitation, any change in 
any rating on the Bonds or other indebtedness for which the City is liable. 

 
(f) The City acknowledges that it is not required to provide a notice of a Listed Event 

with respect to credit enhancement when the credit enhancement is added after the 

 -5-



primary offering of the Bonds, the City does not apply for or participate in obtaining 
such credit enhancement, and such credit enhancement is not described in the 
Official Statement. 

 
(g) As of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, the Listed Events described in 

subsections (a)(3), (4), (5) and (10) are not applicable to the Bonds. 
 
SECTION 6.   Termination of Reporting Obligation.   
 
(a) The City's obligations under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal 

defeasance of the resolution of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Bonds or 
the prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. 

 
(b) This Disclosure Certificate, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the 

event that the City (i) receives an opinion of Securities Counsel, addressed to the  
City, to the effect that those portions of the Rule, which require such provisions of 
this Disclosure Certificate, do not or no longer apply to the Bonds, whether because 
such portions of the Rule are invalid, have been repealed, amended or modified, or 
are otherwise deemed to be inapplicable to the Bonds, as shall be specified in such 
opinion, and (ii) delivers notice to such effect to each National Repository or the 
MSRB, and to the State Repository. 

 
SECTION  7.  Dissemination Agent.   
 
The City, from time to time, may appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in 
carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any 
such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  The initial 
Dissemination Agent shall be the City.  Except as otherwise provided in this Disclosure 
Certificate, the Dissemination Agent (if other than the City) shall not be responsible in 
any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the City pursuant to this 
Disclosure Certificate. 
 
SECTION  8.  Amendment; Waiver. 
 
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Certificate, this Disclosure 

Certificate may be amended, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be 
waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:  

 
 (1) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), (b), (c), 4 

or 5(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances 
that arises from a change in legal requirements, a change in law or a change 
in the identity, nature or status of the City or the type of business conducted 
by the City; 

 
      (2) This Disclosure Certificate, as so amended or taking into account such 

waiver, would, in  the opinion of Securities Counsel, have complied with the 
requirements of the Rule at the  time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after 

 -6-



taking into account any amendments or  interpretations of the Rule, as well as any 
change in circumstances; and  

 
 (3)     The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized 
bond counsel,      materially impair the interests of the Bondholders or 
Beneficial Owners. 
 
(b) In the event of any amendment to, or waiver of a provision of, this Disclosure 

Certificate, the City shall describe such amendment or waiver in the next Annual 
Report, and shall include an explanation of the reason for such amendment or 
waiver.  In particular, if the amendment results in a change to the annual financial 
information required to be included in the Annual Report pursuant to Section 4 of 
this Disclosure Certificate, the first Annual Report that contains the amended 
operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the 
reasons for the amendment and the impact of such change in the type of 
operating data or financial information being provided.  Further, if the annual 
financial information required to be provided in the Annual Report can no longer 
be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially 
changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be included in the first 
Annual Report that does not include such information. 

 
(c) If the amendment results in a change to the accounting principles to be followed 

in preparing financial statements as set forth in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Certificate, the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall 
include a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared 
on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of 
the former accounting principles.  The comparison shall include a qualitative 
discussion of such differences and the impact of the changes on the presentation 
of the financial information.  To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison 
shall also be quantitative.  A notice of the change in accounting principles shall 
be sent by the City, or the Dissemination Agent (if other than the City) at the 
written direction of the City, to each National Repository or the MSRB, and to the 
State Repository. 

 
SECTION  9.  Additional Information.   
 
Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the City from 
disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 
Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to 
that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate.  If the City chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to 
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the City shall have no 
obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in 
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 
 
SECTION  10.  Failure to Comply.   
 

 -7-



In the event of a failure of the City or the Dissemination  Agent (if other than the City) to 
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any Bondholder or Beneficial 
Owner may bring an action to obtain specific performance of the obligations of the City 
or the Dissemination Agent (if other than the City) under this Disclosure Certificate, but 
no person or entity shall be entitled to recover monetary damages hereunder under any 
circumstances, and any failure to comply with the obligations under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall not constitute a default with respect to the Bonds or under the 
resolutions of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
SECTION 11.  Duties of Dissemination Agent.   
 
The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this 
Disclosure Certificate. 
 
SECTION  12.  Beneficiaries.   
 
This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the City, the Dissemination 
Agent, the Participating Underwriters, the Bondholders and the Beneficial Owners, and 
shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
 
SECTION  13.  Transmission of Information and Notices.   
 
Unless otherwise required by law or this Disclosure Certificate, and, in the sole 
determination of the City or the Dissemination  Agent, as applicable, subject to technical 
and economic feasibility, the City or the Dissemination Agent, as applicable, shall 
employ such methods of information and notice transmission as shall be requested or 
recommended by the herein designated recipients of such information and notices. 
 
SECTION 14.  Optional Filing with Texas Municipal Advisory Council.   
 
Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate may be made solely by transmitting such 
filing to the Texas Municipal Advisory Council (the "Texas MAC") as provided at 
http://www.disclosureusa.org unless the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission has withdrawn the interpretive advice in its letter to the Texas MAC dated 
September 1, 2004. 
 
SECTION  15.  Additional Disclosure Obligations.   
 
The City acknowledges and understands that other State and federal laws, including, 
without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated 
by the SEC pursuant to the 1934 Act, may apply to the City, and that under some 
circumstances, compliance with this Disclosure Certificate, without additional 
disclosures or other action, may not fully discharge all duties and obligations of the City 
under such laws. 
 
 
 
 

 -8-

http://www.disclosureusa.org/


 
SECTION  16.  Governing Law.   
 
This Disclosure Certificate shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this Disclosure Certificate 
shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, to the extent this Disclosure Certificate addresses matters of federal 
securities laws, including the Rule, this Disclosure Certificate shall be construed and 
interpreted in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations 
thereof. 
 
 CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 
 
 By:        
   
 
 Its:       
   
 
Dated: __________, 2007 
 

 -9-



EXHIBIT A
 
 
 
The nationally recognized municipal securities information repositories approved by the 
Securities and Exchange Board as of _________, 2007, are set forth below: 
 
Bloomberg Municipal Repository 
100 Business Park Drive 
Skillman, New Jersey 08558 
Phone: (609) 279-3225 
Fax: (609) 279-5962 
Email: Munis@Bloomberg.com 
 
DPC Data Inc. 
One Executive Drive  
Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 
Phone: (201) 346-0701 
Fax: (201) 947-0107 
Email: nrmsir@dpcdata.com  
 
FT Interactive Data 
Attn:  NRMSIR 
100 Williams Street 
New York, New York 10038 
Phone: (212) 771-6999 
Fax: (212) 771-7390 (Secondary Market Information) 
 (212) 771-7391 (Primary Market Information) 
Email: NRMSIR@FTID.com
 
Standard & Poor's J. J. Kenny Repository 
55 Water Street, 45th Floor 
New York, New York 10041 
Phone: (212) 438-4595 
Fax: (212) 438-3975 
Email: nrmsir_repository@sandp.com  
 
 
 
 

 -10-

mailto:NRMSIR@FTID.com


EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
NOTICE TO EACH NATIONAL REPOSITORY OR 
THE MSRB, AND TO THE STATE REPOSITORY, 
OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
 
Name of Obligated Person: City of Troy 
 
Name of Bond Issue: $________ George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2007G 
 
Date of Bonds: __________, 2007 
 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City has not provided an Annual Report with respect 
to the above-named Bonds as required by Section 3 of its Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
with respect to the Bonds.  The City of Troy anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed 
by __________________________. 
 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY,  MICHIGAN 
 
 
 By:        
   
 
 Its:       
   
 
 
 
Dated: _______________ 
 
 



EXHIBIT C
 
 
NOTICE TO EACH NATIONAL REPOSITORY OR 
THE MSRB, AND TO THE STATE REPOSITORY, 
OF CHANGE IN CITY'S FISCAL YEAR 
 
 
 
Name of Obligated Person: City of Troy 
 
Name of Bond Issue: $________ George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2007G 
 
Date of Bonds: __________, 2007 
 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the fiscal year of the City of Troy changed.  
Previously, the City’s fiscal year ended on _____________________.  It now ends on 
____________________. 
 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY,  MICHIGAN 
 
 
 By:        
   
 
 Its:       
   
 
 
 
 
Dated: ____________________ 
 
 



EXHIBIT D 
 
Municipal Secondary Market Disclosure  
Information Cover Sheet 
 
This cover sheet should be sent with all submissions made to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board, Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information 
Repositories, and any applicable State Information Depository, whether the filing is 
voluntary or made pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission rule 15c2-12 or 
any analogous state statute. 
 
See www.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm for list of current NRMSIRs and SIDs 
 
           
           
 
IF THIS FILING RELATES TO A SINGLE BOND ISSUE: 
Provide name of bond issue exactly as it appears on the cover of the Official Statement  
(please include name of state where Issuer is located): 
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
        
 
Provide nine-digit CUSIP* numbers if available, to which the information relates: 
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
 
IF THIS FILING RELATES TO ALL SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER OR ALL 
SECURITIES OF A SPECIFIC CREDIT OR ISSUED UNDER A SINGLE INDENTURE: 
 
Issuer's Name (please include name of state where Issuer is located):    
       

http://www.sec.gov/info/municipal/mrsir.htm


 
Other Obligated Person's Name (if any):        
        
        (Exactly as it 
appears on the Official Statement Cover) 
 
Provide six-digit CUSIP* number(s) if available, of Issuer:      
      
 
*(Contact CUSIP's Municipal Disclosure Assistance Line at 212.438.6518 for assistance 
with obtaining the proper CUSIP numbers.) 
 
           
           
 
TYPE OF FILING: 
 
□ Electronic (number of pages attached)     □
 Paper (number of pages attached)     
 
If information is also available on the Internet, give URL:      
       
 
           
           

 -14-



 

           
           
WHAT TYPE OF INFORMATION ARE YOU PROVIDING?  (Check all that apply): 
A. □ Annual Financial Information and Operating Data pursuant to 
Rule 15c2-12 
 (Financial information and operating data should not be filed with 
the MSRB.) 
 
 Fiscal Period Covered:       
          
B. □ Financial Statements or CAFR pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 
 
 Fiscal Period Covered:       
          
C. □ Notice of a Material Event pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 (Check 
as appropriate) 
 

1. □  Principal and interest payment 
delinquencies  

6.  □  Adverse tax opinions or events 
affecting the          tax-exempt status of 
the security 

2.  □  Non-payment related defaults 7.  □  Modifications to rights of security 
holders 
 

3.  □  Unscheduled draws on debt 
service reserves           reflecting 
financial difficulties 

8.  □  Bond calls 
 

4.  □  Unscheduled draws on credit 
enhancements           reflecting financial 
difficulties 

9.  □  Defeasances 

5.  □  Substitution of credit or liquidity 
providers, or           their failure to 
perform 

10. □  Release, substitution, or sale of 
property            securing repayment of 
the securities 

 11.  □  Rating changes 
 
D. □ Notice of Failure to Provide Annual Financial Information as 
Required 
E. □ Other Secondary Market Information (Specify):   
         
           
           
I hereby represent that I am authorized by the issuer or obligor or its agent to 
distribute this information publicly:  
 
Issuer Contact: 
Name          Title 
          
Employer           
          
Address        City   
  State   Zip Code    
Telephone          
 Fax          
Email Address          Issuer 
Web Site Address      

 



 
Dissemination Agent Contact, if any: 
Name          Title 
          
Employer           
          
Address        City   
  State   Zip Code    
Telephone          
 Fax          
Email Address         
 Relationship to Issuer      
 
Obligor Contact, if any: 
Name          Title 
          
Employer           
          
Address        City   
  State   Zip Code    
Telephone          
 Fax          
Email Address         
 Obligor Web Site Address      
 
Investor Relations Contact, if any: 
Name          Title 
          
Telephone          Email 
Address         
           
           
BLOOMFIELD  9007-370  827322v1 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GEORGE W. KUHN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
DRAIN REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2007 

 
 

Estimated Net Savings, and Principal 
& Interest Schedules for each Unit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
PLEASE WRITE OR CALL: 
 
Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated 
Suite 360 
21 Kercheval Avenue 
Grosse Pointe Farms, Michigan  48236 
(313) 884-1550 or 1-800-383-MFCI (6324) 
Fax (313) 884-0626 



 

 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
 

 Page 
 
Summary of Net Savings per Unit iii 
City of Berkley Schedules 1 
City of Birmingham Schedules 3 
City of Clawson Schedules 5 
City of Ferndale Schedules 7 
City of Hazel Park Schedules 9 
City of Huntington Woods Schedules 11 
City of Madison Heights Schedules 13 
City of Oak Park Schedules 15 
City of Pleasant Ridge Schedules 17 
City Royal Oak Schedules 19 
City of Southfield Schedules 21 
City of Troy Schedules 23 
Township of Royal Oak Schedules 25 
Village of Beverly Hills Schedules 27 
County of Oakland Schedules 29 
State of Michigan Schedules 31 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ii 



 

 
 
 

$12,455,000 
George W. Kuhn Drainage District 

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 
 
 
 

Summary of Net Savings per Unit 
 
 

Unit Amount 
 
City of Berkley $   48,250.68 
City of Birmingham 36,310.40 
City of Clawson 44,061.44 
City of Ferndale 76,495.93 
City of Hazel Park 16,768.71 
City of Huntington Woods 23,995.70 
City of Madison Heights 80,620.15 
City of Oak Park 100,392.14 
City of Pleasant Ridge 9,956.10 
City Royal Oak 221,804.90 
City of Southfield 57,366.27 
City of Troy 19,598.09 
Township of Royal Oak 12,346.04 
Village of Beverly Hills 6,222.76 
County of Oakland 11,957.51 
State of Michigan      17,181.52 
 
Total $783,328.33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

iii 



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Berkley Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 6.1597% 6.1597% 6.1597% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $22,273.67 $3,558.77 $10,305.43 $8,409.47
04/01/08 60,771.79 42,056.89 24,389.72 (5,674.82) $2,734.65
10/01/08 21,368.96 2,654.06 15,288.45 3,426.45
04/01/09 61,407.01 42,692.11 19,292.26 (577.36) 2,849.09
10/01/09 20,425.76 1,710.86 15,212.38 3,502.52
04/01/10 62,003.73 26,349.66 36,463.35 (809.27) 2,693.25
10/01/10 19,447.91 1,156.48 14,803.30 3,488.12
04/01/11 62,565.81 25,795.28 37,594.19 (823.67) 2,664.46
10/01/11 18,431.55 602.11 14,364.57 3,464.87
04/01/12 63,089.38 26,780.84 36,847.48 (538.94) 2,925.93
10/01/12 17,367.47 13,926.16 3,441.31
04/01/13 65,105.14 65,667.64 (562.50) 2,878.81
10/01/13 16,215.60 12,917.20 3,298.40
04/01/14 65,493.20 65,890.62 (397.42) 2,900.99
10/01/14 15,000.60 11,870.97 3,129.63
04/01/15 65,818.13 66,076.33 (258.21) 2,871.42
10/01/15 13,723.23 10,800.42 2,922.82
04/01/16 67,620.61 67,777.64 (157.03) 2,765.78
10/01/16 12,346.93 9,660.87 2,686.05
04/01/17 69,324.15 69,101.98 222.17 2,908.23
10/01/17 10,869.37 8,472.05 2,397.32
04/01/18 70,926.44 70,377.04 549.41 2,946.72
10/01/18 9,305.19 7,218.48 2,086.71
04/01/19 70,902.19 70,047.42 854.77 2,941.49
10/01/19 7,689.62 5,946.19 1,743.43
04/01/20 72,366.47 71,239.01 1,127.46 2,870.88
10/01/20 5,983.76 4,607.69 1,376.08
04/01/21 73,740.46 72,364.39 1,376.08 2,752.15
10/01/21 4,196.49 3,218.67 977.81
04/01/22 76,264.98 74,363.21 1,901.77 2,879.58
10/01/22 2,296.03 1,742.43 553.60
04/01/23 45,413.93 43,012.42 2,401.51 2,955.12
10/01/23 1,164.18 886.07 278.11
04/01/24 45,514.02 43,080.02 2,434.01 2,712.12

$1,316,433.76 $173,357.06 $1,094,826.03 $48,250.68 $48,250.68

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20071



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Berkley Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

6.1597% 6.1597% 6.1597% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $808.46 $2,750.31 $10,305.43 $13,864.20
04/01/08 $15,399.25 808.46        $23,098.88 2,750.31 $8,931.57 15,458.15 66,446.61
10/01/08 423.48        2,230.58 15,288.45 17,942.51
04/01/09 16,939.18 423.48        23,098.88 2,230.58 4,003.81 15,288.45 61,984.37
10/01/09 1,710.86 15,212.38 16,923.24
04/01/10 24,638.80 1,710.86 21,250.97 15,212.38 62,813.00
10/01/10 1,156.48 14,803.30 15,959.78
04/01/11 24,638.80 1,156.48 22,790.89 14,803.30 63,389.47
10/01/11 602.11 14,364.57 14,966.69
04/01/12 26,178.73 602.11 22,482.91 14,364.57 63,628.32
10/01/12 13,926.16 13,926.16
04/01/13 51,741.48 13,926.16 65,667.64
10/01/13 12,917.20 12,917.20
04/01/14 52,973.42 12,917.20 65,890.62
10/01/14 11,870.97 11,870.97
04/01/15 54,205.36 11,870.97 66,076.33
10/01/15 10,800.42 10,800.42
04/01/16 56,977.23 10,800.42 67,777.64
10/01/16 9,660.87 9,660.87
04/01/17 59,441.11 9,660.87 69,101.98
10/01/17 8,472.05 8,472.05
04/01/18 61,904.99 8,472.05 70,377.04
10/01/18 7,218.48 7,218.48
04/01/19 62,828.94 7,218.48 70,047.42
10/01/19 5,946.19 5,946.19
04/01/20 65,292.82 5,946.19 71,239.01
10/01/20 4,607.69 4,607.69
04/01/21 67,756.70 4,607.69 72,364.39
10/01/21 3,218.67 3,218.67
04/01/22 71,144.54 3,218.67 74,363.21
10/01/22 1,742.43 1,742.43
04/01/23 41,269.99 1,742.43 43,012.42
10/01/23 886.07 886.07
04/01/24 42,193.95 886.07 43,080.02

$32,338.43 $2,463.88 $121,654.08 $16,900.68 $767,190.64 $327,635.39 $1,268,183.08

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20072



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Birmingham Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 4.6354% 4.6354% 4.6354% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $16,761.75 $2,678.10 $7,755.22 $6,328.43
04/01/08 45,733.00 31,649.35 18,354.16 (4,270.51) $2,057.92
10/01/08 16,080.93 1,997.28 11,505.12 2,578.53
04/01/09 46,211.03 32,127.38 14,518.13 (434.48) 2,144.05
10/01/09 15,371.13 1,287.48 11,447.87 2,635.78
04/01/10 46,660.08 19,829.08 27,440.00 (609.00) 2,026.77
10/01/10 14,635.26 870.30 11,140.03 2,624.94
04/01/11 47,083.06 19,411.90 28,291.01 (619.84) 2,005.10
10/01/11 13,870.42 453.11 10,809.87 2,607.44
04/01/12 47,477.07 20,153.56 27,729.08 (405.57) 2,201.87
10/01/12 13,069.66 10,479.94 2,589.71
04/01/13 48,994.01 49,417.30 (423.30) 2,166.41
10/01/13 12,202.84 9,720.67 2,482.17
04/01/14 49,286.04 49,585.11 (299.07) 2,183.10
10/01/14 11,288.50 8,933.34 2,355.16
04/01/15 49,530.55 49,724.86 (194.31) 2,160.85
10/01/15 10,327.24 8,127.71 2,199.53
04/01/16 50,886.99 51,005.16 (118.17) 2,081.35
10/01/16 9,291.51 7,270.16 2,021.35
04/01/17 52,168.96 52,001.77 167.19 2,188.55
10/01/17 8,179.60 6,375.53 1,804.07
04/01/18 53,374.75 52,961.30 413.45 2,217.52
10/01/18 7,002.50 5,432.17 1,570.33
04/01/19 53,356.50 52,713.25 643.25 2,213.58
10/01/19 5,786.72 4,474.73 1,311.99
04/01/20 54,458.42 53,609.97 848.45 2,160.44
10/01/20 4,503.00 3,467.45 1,035.55
04/01/21 55,492.40 54,456.85 1,035.55 2,071.10
10/01/21 3,158.01 2,422.17 735.84
04/01/22 57,392.19 55,961.04 1,431.15 2,166.99
10/01/22 1,727.85 1,311.24 416.61
04/01/23 34,175.65 32,368.42 1,807.23 2,223.83
10/01/23 876.09 666.80 209.29
04/01/24 34,250.97 32,419.29 1,831.68 2,040.97

$990,664.65 $130,457.54 $823,896.71 $36,310.40 $36,310.40

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20073



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Birmingham Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

4.6354% 4.6354% 4.6354% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $608.40 $2,069.71 $7,755.22 $10,433.32
04/01/08 $11,588.50 608.40        $17,382.75 2,069.71 $6,721.33 11,632.83 50,003.51
10/01/08 318.68        1,678.59 11,505.12 13,502.40
04/01/09 12,747.35 318.68        17,382.75 1,678.59 3,013.01 11,505.12 46,645.51
10/01/09 1,287.48 11,447.87 12,735.36
04/01/10 18,541.60 1,287.48 15,992.13 11,447.87 47,269.09
10/01/10 870.30 11,140.03 12,010.32
04/01/11 18,541.60 870.30 17,150.98 11,140.03 47,702.90
10/01/11 453.11 10,809.87 11,262.98
04/01/12 19,700.45 453.11 16,919.21 10,809.87 47,882.64
10/01/12 10,479.94 10,479.94
04/01/13 38,937.36 10,479.94 49,417.30
10/01/13 9,720.67 9,720.67
04/01/14 39,864.44 9,720.67 49,585.11
10/01/14 8,933.34 8,933.34
04/01/15 40,791.52 8,933.34 49,724.86
10/01/15 8,127.71 8,127.71
04/01/16 42,877.45 8,127.71 51,005.16
10/01/16 7,270.16 7,270.16
04/01/17 44,731.61 7,270.16 52,001.77
10/01/17 6,375.53 6,375.53
04/01/18 46,585.77 6,375.53 52,961.30
10/01/18 5,432.17 5,432.17
04/01/19 47,281.08 5,432.17 52,713.25
10/01/19 4,474.73 4,474.73
04/01/20 49,135.24 4,474.73 53,609.97
10/01/20 3,467.45 3,467.45
04/01/21 50,989.40 3,467.45 54,456.85
10/01/21 2,422.17 2,422.17
04/01/22 53,538.87 2,422.17 55,961.04
10/01/22 1,311.24 1,311.24
04/01/23 31,057.18 1,311.24 32,368.42
10/01/23 666.80 666.80
04/01/24 31,752.49 666.80 32,419.29

$24,335.85 $1,854.16 $91,549.15 $12,718.38 $577,339.07 $246,557.64 $954,354.25

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20074



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Clawson Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 5.6249% 5.6249% 5.6249% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $20,339.81 $3,249.79 $9,410.69 $7,679.34
04/01/08 55,495.44 38,405.41 22,272.14 (5,182.11) $2,497.22
10/01/08 19,513.66 2,423.63 13,961.07 3,128.96
04/01/09 56,075.51 38,985.48 17,617.26 (527.23) 2,601.73
10/01/09 18,652.34 1,562.32 13,891.60 3,198.42
04/01/10 56,620.42 24,061.92 33,297.51 (739.01) 2,459.42
10/01/10 17,759.39 1,056.07 13,518.04 3,185.28
04/01/11 57,133.69 23,555.67 34,330.17 (752.15) 2,433.12
10/01/11 16,831.28 549.83 13,117.41 3,164.04
04/01/12 57,611.81 24,455.66 33,648.29 (492.14) 2,671.90
10/01/12 15,859.58 12,717.06 3,142.53
04/01/13 59,452.56 59,966.22 (513.66) 2,628.87
10/01/13 14,807.73 11,795.70 3,012.03
04/01/14 59,806.93 60,169.84 (362.91) 2,649.12
10/01/14 13,698.21 10,840.31 2,857.91
04/01/15 60,103.64 60,339.43 (235.79) 2,622.12
10/01/15 12,531.75 9,862.70 2,669.05
04/01/16 61,749.62 61,893.02 (143.40) 2,525.65
10/01/16 11,274.94 8,822.09 2,452.84
04/01/17 63,305.26 63,102.38 202.88 2,655.73
10/01/17 9,925.66 7,736.49 2,189.18
04/01/18 64,768.44 64,266.73 501.71 2,690.88
10/01/18 8,497.29 6,591.75 1,905.54
04/01/19 64,746.29 63,965.73 780.56 2,686.10
10/01/19 7,021.98 5,429.93 1,592.06
04/01/20 66,083.43 65,053.87 1,029.57 2,621.63
10/01/20 5,464.24 4,207.64 1,256.60
04/01/21 67,338.14 66,081.54 1,256.60 2,513.21
10/01/21 3,832.14 2,939.22 892.92
04/01/22 69,643.47 67,906.82 1,736.65 2,629.57
10/01/22 2,096.68 1,591.14 505.54
04/01/23 41,470.98 39,277.97 2,193.01 2,698.55
10/01/23 1,063.11 809.14 253.96
04/01/24 41,562.39 39,339.71 2,222.68 2,476.64

$1,202,137.81 $158,305.78 $999,770.59 $44,061.44 $44,061.44

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20075



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Clawson Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

5.6249% 5.6249% 5.6249% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $738.27 $2,511.52 $9,410.69 $12,660.48
04/01/08 $14,062.25 738.27        $21,093.38 2,511.52 $8,156.11 14,116.04 60,677.55
10/01/08 386.71        2,036.92 13,961.07 16,384.70
04/01/09 15,468.48 386.71        21,093.38 2,036.92 3,656.19 13,961.07 56,602.74
10/01/09 1,562.32 13,891.60 15,453.92
04/01/10 22,499.60 1,562.32 19,405.91 13,891.60 57,359.43
10/01/10 1,056.07 13,518.04 14,574.12
04/01/11 22,499.60 1,056.07 20,812.13 13,518.04 57,885.85
10/01/11 549.83 13,117.41 13,667.24
04/01/12 23,905.83 549.83 20,530.89 13,117.41 58,103.95
10/01/12 12,717.06 12,717.06
04/01/13 47,249.16 12,717.06 59,966.22
10/01/13 11,795.70 11,795.70
04/01/14 48,374.14 11,795.70 60,169.84
10/01/14 10,840.31 10,840.31
04/01/15 49,499.12 10,840.31 60,339.43
10/01/15 9,862.70 9,862.70
04/01/16 52,030.33 9,862.70 61,893.02
10/01/16 8,822.09 8,822.09
04/01/17 54,280.29 8,822.09 63,102.38
10/01/17 7,736.49 7,736.49
04/01/18 56,530.25 7,736.49 64,266.73
10/01/18 6,591.75 6,591.75
04/01/19 57,373.98 6,591.75 63,965.73
10/01/19 5,429.93 5,429.93
04/01/20 59,623.94 5,429.93 65,053.87
10/01/20 4,207.64 4,207.64
04/01/21 61,873.90 4,207.64 66,081.54
10/01/21 2,939.22 2,939.22
04/01/22 64,967.60 2,939.22 67,906.82
10/01/22 1,591.14 1,591.14
04/01/23 37,686.83 1,591.14 39,277.97
10/01/23 809.14 809.14
04/01/24 38,530.57 809.14 39,339.71

$29,530.73 $2,249.96 $111,091.78 $15,433.32 $700,581.30 $299,189.30 $1,158,076.37

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20076



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Ferndale Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 9.7655% 9.7655% 9.7655% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $35,312.35 $5,642.02 $16,338.09 $13,332.25
04/01/08 96,346.73 66,676.39 38,667.11 (8,996.77) $4,335.48
10/01/08 33,878.05 4,207.71 24,238.09 5,432.24
04/01/09 97,353.80 67,683.46 30,585.67 (915.33) 4,516.91
10/01/09 32,382.70 2,712.37 24,117.49 5,552.85
04/01/10 98,299.83 41,774.37 57,808.46 (1,283.00) 4,269.84
10/01/10 30,832.43 1,833.47 23,468.94 5,530.02
04/01/11 99,190.93 40,895.47 59,601.29 (1,305.83) 4,224.19
10/01/11 29,221.12 954.58 22,773.39 5,493.15
04/01/12 100,021.00 42,457.95 58,417.47 (854.42) 4,638.73
10/01/12 27,534.13 22,078.33 5,455.80
04/01/13 103,216.76 104,108.53 (891.77) 4,564.03
10/01/13 25,707.98 20,478.74 5,229.24
04/01/14 103,831.98 104,462.04 (630.06) 4,599.18
10/01/14 23,781.74 18,820.07 4,961.67
04/01/15 104,347.11 104,756.47 (409.36) 4,552.31
10/01/15 21,756.62 17,122.83 4,633.79
04/01/16 107,204.74 107,453.70 (248.96) 4,384.83
10/01/16 19,574.64 15,316.21 4,258.43
04/01/17 109,905.51 109,553.29 352.23 4,610.66
10/01/17 17,232.14 13,431.47 3,800.67
04/01/18 112,445.77 111,574.74 871.02 4,671.69
10/01/18 14,752.31 11,444.07 3,308.25
04/01/19 112,407.31 111,052.17 1,355.15 4,663.39
10/01/19 12,191.01 9,427.00 2,764.00
04/01/20 114,728.76 112,941.30 1,787.45 4,551.46
10/01/20 9,486.57 7,304.96 2,181.61
04/01/21 116,907.07 114,725.46 2,181.61 4,363.23
10/01/21 6,653.05 5,102.84 1,550.21
04/01/22 120,909.40 117,894.36 3,015.04 4,565.25
10/01/22 3,640.09 2,762.42 877.67
04/01/23 71,998.59 68,191.27 3,807.32 4,685.00
10/01/23 1,845.68 1,404.77 440.91
04/01/24 72,157.28 68,298.44 3,858.84 4,299.75

$2,087,055.19 $274,837.79 $1,735,721.48 $76,495.93 $76,495.93

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20077



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Ferndale Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

9.7655% 9.7655% 9.7655% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $1,281.72 $4,360.30 $16,338.09 $21,980.11
04/01/08 $24,413.75 1,281.72     $36,620.63 4,360.30 $14,159.98 24,507.13 105,343.50
10/01/08 671.38        3,536.33 24,238.09 28,445.80
04/01/09 26,855.13 671.38        36,620.63 3,536.33 6,347.58 24,238.09 98,269.13
10/01/09 2,712.37 24,117.49 26,829.86
04/01/10 39,062.00 2,712.37 33,690.98 24,117.49 99,582.83
10/01/10 1,833.47 23,468.94 25,302.41
04/01/11 39,062.00 1,833.47 36,132.35 23,468.94 100,496.76
10/01/11 954.58 22,773.39 23,727.97
04/01/12 41,503.38 954.58 35,644.08 22,773.39 100,875.42
10/01/12 22,078.33 22,078.33
04/01/13 82,030.20 22,078.33 104,108.53
10/01/13 20,478.74 20,478.74
04/01/14 83,983.30 20,478.74 104,462.04
10/01/14 18,820.07 18,820.07
04/01/15 85,936.40 18,820.07 104,756.47
10/01/15 17,122.83 17,122.83
04/01/16 90,330.88 17,122.83 107,453.70
10/01/16 15,316.21 15,316.21
04/01/17 94,237.08 15,316.21 109,553.29
10/01/17 13,431.47 13,431.47
04/01/18 98,143.28 13,431.47 111,574.74
10/01/18 11,444.07 11,444.07
04/01/19 99,608.10 11,444.07 111,052.17
10/01/19 9,427.00 9,427.00
04/01/20 103,514.30 9,427.00 112,941.30
10/01/20 7,304.96 7,304.96
04/01/21 107,420.50 7,304.96 114,725.46
10/01/21 5,102.84 5,102.84
04/01/22 112,791.53 5,102.84 117,894.36
10/01/22 2,762.42 2,762.42
04/01/23 65,428.85 2,762.42 68,191.27
10/01/23 1,404.77 1,404.77
04/01/24 66,893.68 1,404.77 68,298.44

$51,268.88 $3,906.20 $192,868.63 $26,794.09 $1,216,293.03 $519,428.45 $2,010,559.27

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20078



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Hazel Park Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 2.1407% 2.1407% 2.1407% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $7,740.84 $1,236.79 $3,581.48 $2,922.57
04/01/08 21,120.21 14,616.16 8,476.24 (1,972.19) $950.38
10/01/08 7,426.42 922.37 5,313.24 1,190.80
04/01/09 21,340.97 14,836.92 6,704.70 (200.65) 990.15
10/01/09 7,098.63 594.58 5,286.81 1,217.24
04/01/10 21,548.35 9,157.38 12,672.22 (281.25) 935.99
10/01/10 6,758.79 401.92 5,144.64 1,212.24
04/01/11 21,743.69 8,964.72 13,065.23 (286.25) 925.99
10/01/11 6,405.58 209.25 4,992.17 1,204.16
04/01/12 21,925.65 9,307.23 12,805.72 (187.30) 1,016.86
10/01/12 6,035.77 4,839.80 1,195.97
04/01/13 22,626.20 22,821.68 (195.49) 1,000.48
10/01/13 5,635.46 4,489.15 1,146.30
04/01/14 22,761.06 22,899.17 (138.12) 1,008.19
10/01/14 5,213.21 4,125.56 1,087.65
04/01/15 22,873.98 22,963.72 (89.74) 997.91
10/01/15 4,769.28 3,753.50 1,015.78
04/01/16 23,500.40 23,554.98 (54.57) 961.20
10/01/16 4,290.97 3,357.47 933.49
04/01/17 24,092.44 24,015.23 77.21 1,010.70
10/01/17 3,777.47 2,944.32 833.15
04/01/18 24,649.29 24,458.35 190.94 1,024.08
10/01/18 3,233.86 2,508.66 725.20
04/01/19 24,640.86 24,343.80 297.06 1,022.26
10/01/19 2,672.40 2,066.50 605.90
04/01/20 25,149.75 24,757.92 391.83 997.73
10/01/20 2,079.56 1,601.32 478.23
04/01/21 25,627.26 25,149.02 478.23 956.46
10/01/21 1,458.42 1,118.60 339.82
04/01/22 26,504.61 25,843.68 660.93 1,000.75
10/01/22 797.95 605.55 192.40
04/01/23 15,782.85 14,948.24 834.61 1,027.00
10/01/23 404.59 307.94 96.65
04/01/24 15,817.63 14,971.73 845.90 942.55

$457,504.38 $60,247.33 $380,488.35 $16,768.71 $16,768.71

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/20079



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Hazel Park Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

2.1407% 2.1407% 2.1407% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $280.97 $955.82 $3,581.48 $4,818.27
04/01/08 $5,351.75 280.97        $8,027.63 955.82 $3,104.02 5,372.22 23,092.40
10/01/08 147.17        775.20 5,313.24 6,235.62
04/01/09 5,886.93 147.17        8,027.63 775.20 1,391.46 5,313.24 21,541.62
10/01/09 594.58 5,286.81 5,881.39
04/01/10 8,562.80 594.58 7,385.42 5,286.81 21,829.60
10/01/10 401.92 5,144.64 5,546.55
04/01/11 8,562.80 401.92 7,920.59 5,144.64 22,029.94
10/01/11 209.25 4,992.17 5,201.42
04/01/12 9,097.98 209.25 7,813.56 4,992.17 22,112.95
10/01/12 4,839.80 4,839.80
04/01/13 17,981.88 4,839.80 22,821.68
10/01/13 4,489.15 4,489.15
04/01/14 18,410.02 4,489.15 22,899.17
10/01/14 4,125.56 4,125.56
04/01/15 18,838.16 4,125.56 22,963.72
10/01/15 3,753.50 3,753.50
04/01/16 19,801.48 3,753.50 23,554.98
10/01/16 3,357.47 3,357.47
04/01/17 20,657.76 3,357.47 24,015.23
10/01/17 2,944.32 2,944.32
04/01/18 21,514.04 2,944.32 24,458.35
10/01/18 2,508.66 2,508.66
04/01/19 21,835.14 2,508.66 24,343.80
10/01/19 2,066.50 2,066.50
04/01/20 22,691.42 2,066.50 24,757.92
10/01/20 1,601.32 1,601.32
04/01/21 23,547.70 1,601.32 25,149.02
10/01/21 1,118.60 1,118.60
04/01/22 24,725.09 1,118.60 25,843.68
10/01/22 605.55 605.55
04/01/23 14,342.69 605.55 14,948.24
10/01/23 307.94 307.94
04/01/24 14,663.80 307.94 14,971.73

$11,238.68 $856.28 $42,278.83 $5,873.55 $266,624.19 $113,864.16 $440,735.67

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200710



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Huntington Woods Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 3.0633% 3.0633% 3.0633% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $11,076.99 $1,769.82 $5,125.03 $4,182.14
04/01/08 30,222.61 20,915.45 12,129.33 (2,822.16) $1,359.98
10/01/08 10,627.07 1,319.90 7,603.15 1,704.02
04/01/09 30,538.52 21,231.35 9,594.29 (287.13) 1,416.89
10/01/09 10,158.00 850.83 7,565.32 1,741.85
04/01/10 30,835.27 13,104.03 18,133.70 (402.46) 1,339.39
10/01/10 9,671.70 575.13 7,361.88 1,734.69
04/01/11 31,114.80 12,828.33 18,696.09 (409.62) 1,325.07
10/01/11 9,166.26 299.44 7,143.69 1,723.13
04/01/12 31,375.18 13,318.46 18,324.74 (268.02) 1,455.11
10/01/12 8,637.07 6,925.66 1,711.41
04/01/13 32,377.65 32,657.38 (279.74) 1,431.67
10/01/13 8,064.23 6,423.89 1,640.34
04/01/14 32,570.63 32,768.27 (197.64) 1,442.70
10/01/14 7,460.00 5,903.59 1,556.41
04/01/15 32,732.22 32,860.63 (128.41) 1,428.00
10/01/15 6,824.75 5,371.19 1,453.55
04/01/16 33,628.62 33,706.72 (78.10) 1,375.46
10/01/16 6,140.29 4,804.48 1,335.81
04/01/17 34,475.81 34,365.32 110.49 1,446.30
10/01/17 5,405.48 4,213.26 1,192.22
04/01/18 35,272.66 34,999.43 273.23 1,465.44
10/01/18 4,627.59 3,589.84 1,037.75
04/01/19 35,260.59 34,835.50 425.09 1,462.84
10/01/19 3,824.15 2,957.12 867.03
04/01/20 35,988.80 35,428.10 560.70 1,427.73
10/01/20 2,975.80 2,291.46 684.34
04/01/21 36,672.10 35,987.76 684.34 1,368.68
10/01/21 2,086.97 1,600.69 486.28
04/01/22 37,927.58 36,981.80 945.77 1,432.05
10/01/22 1,141.85 866.53 275.31
04/01/23 22,584.95 21,390.64 1,194.30 1,469.62
10/01/23 578.96 440.66 138.31
04/01/24 22,634.72 21,424.26 1,210.46 1,348.77

$654,679.86 $86,212.75 $544,471.41 $23,995.70 $23,995.70

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200711



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Huntington Woods Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

3.0633% 3.0633% 3.0633% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $402.06 $1,367.76 $5,125.03 $6,894.85
04/01/08 $7,658.25 402.06        $11,487.38 1,367.76 $4,441.79 7,687.54 33,044.77
10/01/08 210.60        1,109.30 7,603.15 8,923.05
04/01/09 8,424.08 210.60        11,487.38 1,109.30 1,991.15 7,603.15 30,825.64
10/01/09 850.83 7,565.32 8,416.15
04/01/10 12,253.20 850.83 10,568.39 7,565.32 31,237.73
10/01/10 575.13 7,361.88 7,937.01
04/01/11 12,253.20 575.13 11,334.21 7,361.88 31,524.42
10/01/11 299.44 7,143.69 7,443.13
04/01/12 13,019.03 299.44 11,181.05 7,143.69 31,643.20
10/01/12 6,925.66 6,925.66
04/01/13 25,731.72 6,925.66 32,657.38
10/01/13 6,423.89 6,423.89
04/01/14 26,344.38 6,423.89 32,768.27
10/01/14 5,903.59 5,903.59
04/01/15 26,957.04 5,903.59 32,860.63
10/01/15 5,371.19 5,371.19
04/01/16 28,335.53 5,371.19 33,706.72
10/01/16 4,804.48 4,804.48
04/01/17 29,560.85 4,804.48 34,365.32
10/01/17 4,213.26 4,213.26
04/01/18 30,786.17 4,213.26 34,999.43
10/01/18 3,589.84 3,589.84
04/01/19 31,245.66 3,589.84 34,835.50
10/01/19 2,957.12 2,957.12
04/01/20 32,470.98 2,957.12 35,428.10
10/01/20 2,291.46 2,291.46
04/01/21 33,696.30 2,291.46 35,987.76
10/01/21 1,600.69 1,600.69
04/01/22 35,381.12 1,600.69 36,981.80
10/01/22 866.53 866.53
04/01/23 20,524.11 866.53 21,390.64
10/01/23 440.66 440.66
04/01/24 20,983.61 440.66 21,424.26

$16,082.33 $1,225.32 $60,500.18 $8,404.93 $381,534.02 $162,937.40 $630,684.16

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200712



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Madison Heights Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 10.2920% 10.2920% 10.2920% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $37,216.19 $5,946.20 $17,218.94 $14,051.05
04/01/08 101,541.19 70,271.20 40,751.82 (9,481.83) $4,569.22
10/01/08 35,704.56 4,434.57 25,544.87 5,725.12
04/01/09 102,602.56 71,332.57 32,234.67 (964.68) 4,760.44
10/01/09 34,128.59 2,858.60 25,417.77 5,852.22
04/01/10 103,599.59 44,026.60 60,925.17 (1,352.18) 4,500.05
10/01/10 32,494.74 1,932.32 24,734.25 5,828.17
04/01/11 104,538.74 43,100.32 62,814.65 (1,376.23) 4,451.93
10/01/11 30,796.56 1,006.04 24,001.20 5,789.31
04/01/12 105,413.56 44,747.04 61,567.00 (900.49) 4,888.83
10/01/12 29,018.62 23,268.67 5,749.95
04/01/13 108,781.62 109,721.47 (939.85) 4,810.09
10/01/13 27,094.01 21,582.84 5,511.17
04/01/14 109,430.01 110,094.04 (664.03) 4,847.15
10/01/14 25,063.91 19,834.74 5,229.17
04/01/15 109,972.91 110,404.34 (431.43) 4,797.74
10/01/15 22,929.61 18,045.99 4,883.62
04/01/16 112,984.61 113,246.99 (262.38) 4,621.24
10/01/16 20,629.99 16,141.97 4,488.02
04/01/17 115,830.99 115,459.77 371.22 4,859.24
10/01/17 18,161.20 14,155.62 4,005.58
04/01/18 118,508.20 117,590.22 917.98 4,923.56
10/01/18 15,547.67 12,061.07 3,486.61
04/01/19 118,467.67 117,039.47 1,428.21 4,914.82
10/01/19 12,848.28 9,935.25 2,913.02
04/01/20 120,914.28 119,030.45 1,883.82 4,796.84
10/01/20 9,998.03 7,698.80 2,299.23
04/01/21 123,210.03 120,910.80 2,299.23 4,598.47
10/01/21 7,011.75 5,377.96 1,633.79
04/01/22 127,428.15 124,250.56 3,177.59 4,811.38
10/01/22 3,836.34 2,911.35 924.99
04/01/23 75,880.34 71,867.75 4,012.59 4,937.59
10/01/23 1,945.19 1,480.50 464.68
04/01/24 76,047.59 71,980.70 4,066.88 4,531.57

$2,199,577.29 $289,655.48 $1,829,301.67 $80,620.15 $80,620.15

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200713



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Madison Heights Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

10.2920% 10.2920% 10.2920% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $1,350.83 $4,595.38 $17,218.94 $23,165.15
04/01/08 $25,730.00 1,350.83     $38,595.00 4,595.38 $14,923.40 25,828.42 111,023.02
10/01/08 707.58        3,726.99 25,544.87 29,979.44
04/01/09 28,303.00 707.58        38,595.00 3,726.99 6,689.80 25,544.87 103,567.24
10/01/09 2,858.60 25,417.77 28,276.37
04/01/10 41,168.00 2,858.60 35,507.40 25,417.77 104,951.77
10/01/10 1,932.32 24,734.25 26,666.57
04/01/11 41,168.00 1,932.32 38,080.40 24,734.25 105,914.97
10/01/11 1,006.04 24,001.20 25,007.24
04/01/12 43,741.00 1,006.04 37,565.80 24,001.20 106,314.04
10/01/12 23,268.67 23,268.67
04/01/13 86,452.80 23,268.67 109,721.47
10/01/13 21,582.84 21,582.84
04/01/14 88,511.20 21,582.84 110,094.04
10/01/14 19,834.74 19,834.74
04/01/15 90,569.60 19,834.74 110,404.34
10/01/15 18,045.99 18,045.99
04/01/16 95,201.00 18,045.99 113,246.99
10/01/16 16,141.97 16,141.97
04/01/17 99,317.80 16,141.97 115,459.77
10/01/17 14,155.62 14,155.62
04/01/18 103,434.60 14,155.62 117,590.22
10/01/18 12,061.07 12,061.07
04/01/19 104,978.40 12,061.07 117,039.47
10/01/19 9,935.25 9,935.25
04/01/20 109,095.20 9,935.25 119,030.45
10/01/20 7,698.80 7,698.80
04/01/21 113,212.00 7,698.80 120,910.80
10/01/21 5,377.96 5,377.96
04/01/22 118,872.60 5,377.96 124,250.56
10/01/22 2,911.35 2,911.35
04/01/23 68,956.40 2,911.35 71,867.75
10/01/23 1,480.50 1,480.50
04/01/24 70,500.20 1,480.50 71,980.70

$54,033.00 $4,116.80 $203,267.00 $28,238.68 $1,281,868.60 $547,433.07 $2,118,957.14

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200714



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Oak Park Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 12.8161% 12.8161% 12.8161% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $46,343.42 $7,404.50 $21,441.87 $17,497.05
04/01/08 126,444.04 87,505.13 50,746.15 (11,807.23) $5,689.81
10/01/08 44,461.05 5,522.14 31,809.72 7,129.20
04/01/09 127,765.70 88,826.79 40,140.19 (1,201.27) 5,927.93
10/01/09 42,498.59 3,559.67 31,651.44 7,287.47
04/01/10 129,007.26 54,824.07 75,866.99 (1,683.80) 5,603.68
10/01/10 40,464.03 2,406.22 30,800.29 7,257.52
04/01/11 130,176.73 53,670.62 78,219.86 (1,713.75) 5,543.76
10/01/11 38,349.38 1,252.77 29,887.47 7,209.14
04/01/12 131,266.10 55,721.20 76,666.23 (1,121.33) 6,087.81
10/01/12 36,135.39 28,975.28 7,160.11
04/01/13 135,460.17 136,630.52 (1,170.35) 5,989.76
10/01/13 33,738.78 26,876.00 6,862.78
04/01/14 136,267.58 137,094.46 (826.88) 6,035.90
10/01/14 31,210.81 24,699.19 6,511.62
04/01/15 136,943.63 137,480.87 (537.23) 5,974.39
10/01/15 28,553.07 22,471.75 6,081.32
04/01/16 140,693.94 141,020.67 (326.73) 5,754.59
10/01/16 25,689.47 20,100.77 5,588.70
04/01/17 144,238.40 143,776.14 462.26 6,050.96
10/01/17 22,615.21 17,627.26 4,987.95
04/01/18 147,572.18 146,429.07 1,143.12 6,131.06
10/01/18 19,360.72 15,019.03 4,341.69
04/01/19 147,521.72 145,743.25 1,778.47 6,120.17
10/01/19 15,999.30 12,371.86 3,627.44
04/01/20 150,568.35 148,222.52 2,345.83 5,973.26
10/01/20 12,450.04 9,586.92 2,863.12
04/01/21 153,427.14 150,564.02 2,863.12 5,726.23
10/01/21 8,731.37 6,696.89 2,034.48
04/01/22 158,679.74 154,722.85 3,956.89 5,991.37
10/01/22 4,777.20 3,625.35 1,151.85
04/01/23 94,489.90 89,493.22 4,996.68 6,148.52
10/01/23 2,422.24 1,843.60 578.65
04/01/24 94,698.16 89,633.88 5,064.28 5,642.93

$2,739,020.85 $360,693.11 $2,277,935.59 $100,392.14 $100,392.14

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200715



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Oak Park Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

12.8161% 12.8161% 12.8161% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $1,682.11 $5,722.39 $21,441.87 $28,846.37
04/01/08 $32,040.25 1,682.11     $48,060.38 5,722.39 $18,583.35 32,162.80 138,251.28
10/01/08 881.11        4,641.03 31,809.72 37,331.86
04/01/09 35,244.28 881.11        48,060.38 4,641.03 8,330.47 31,809.72 128,966.97
10/01/09 3,559.67 31,651.44 35,211.11
04/01/10 51,264.40 3,559.67 44,215.55 31,651.44 130,691.06
10/01/10 2,406.22 30,800.29 33,206.52
04/01/11 51,264.40 2,406.22 47,419.57 30,800.29 131,890.49
10/01/11 1,252.77 29,887.47 31,140.24
04/01/12 54,468.43 1,252.77 46,778.77 29,887.47 132,387.43
10/01/12 28,975.28 28,975.28
04/01/13 107,655.24 28,975.28 136,630.52
10/01/13 26,876.00 26,876.00
04/01/14 110,218.46 26,876.00 137,094.46
10/01/14 24,699.19 24,699.19
04/01/15 112,781.68 24,699.19 137,480.87
10/01/15 22,471.75 22,471.75
04/01/16 118,548.93 22,471.75 141,020.67
10/01/16 20,100.77 20,100.77
04/01/17 123,675.37 20,100.77 143,776.14
10/01/17 17,627.26 17,627.26
04/01/18 128,801.81 17,627.26 146,429.07
10/01/18 15,019.03 15,019.03
04/01/19 130,724.22 15,019.03 145,743.25
10/01/19 12,371.86 12,371.86
04/01/20 135,850.66 12,371.86 148,222.52
10/01/20 9,586.92 9,586.92
04/01/21 140,977.10 9,586.92 150,564.02
10/01/21 6,696.89 6,696.89
04/01/22 148,025.96 6,696.89 154,722.85
10/01/22 3,625.35 3,625.35
04/01/23 85,867.87 3,625.35 89,493.22
10/01/23 1,843.60 1,843.60
04/01/24 87,790.29 1,843.60 89,633.88

$67,284.53 $5,126.44 $253,117.98 $35,164.17 $1,596,245.26 $681,690.33 $2,638,628.70

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200716



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Pleasant Ridge Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 1.2710% 1.2710% 1.2710% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $4,595.98 $734.32 $2,126.44 $1,735.22
04/01/08 12,539.73 8,678.07 5,032.60 (1,170.95) $564.27
10/01/08 4,409.30 547.64 3,154.64 707.02
04/01/09 12,670.80 8,809.14 3,980.79 (119.13) 587.89
10/01/09 4,214.68 353.02 3,138.94 722.71
04/01/10 12,793.93 5,437.02 7,523.89 (166.99) 555.73
10/01/10 4,012.90 238.63 3,054.53 719.74
04/01/11 12,909.90 5,322.63 7,757.23 (169.96) 549.79
10/01/11 3,803.19 124.24 2,964.00 714.95
04/01/12 13,017.94 5,525.99 7,603.15 (111.20) 603.74
10/01/12 3,583.62 2,873.54 710.08
04/01/13 13,433.87 13,549.94 (116.07) 594.02
10/01/13 3,345.95 2,665.35 680.60
04/01/14 13,513.95 13,595.95 (82.00) 598.59
10/01/14 3,095.24 2,449.47 645.77
04/01/15 13,580.99 13,634.27 (53.28) 592.49
10/01/15 2,831.67 2,228.57 603.10
04/01/16 13,952.92 13,985.32 (32.40) 570.69
10/01/16 2,547.68 1,993.44 554.24
04/01/17 14,304.43 14,258.59 45.84 600.09
10/01/17 2,242.80 1,748.13 494.67
04/01/18 14,635.05 14,521.68 113.37 608.03
10/01/18 1,920.04 1,489.47 430.58
04/01/19 14,630.04 14,453.67 176.38 606.95
10/01/19 1,586.68 1,226.94 359.74
04/01/20 14,932.18 14,699.54 232.64 592.38
10/01/20 1,234.70 950.76 283.94
04/01/21 15,215.70 14,931.76 283.94 567.88
10/01/21 865.91 664.15 201.76
04/01/22 15,736.61 15,344.20 392.41 594.18
10/01/22 473.77 359.53 114.23
04/01/23 9,370.77 8,875.23 495.53 609.76
10/01/23 240.22 182.83 57.39
04/01/24 9,391.42 8,889.18 502.24 559.62

$271,634.55 $35,770.71 $225,907.74 $9,956.10 $9,956.10

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200717



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Pleasant Ridge Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

1.2710% 1.2710% 1.2710% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $166.82 $567.50 $2,126.44 $2,860.76
04/01/08 $3,177.50 166.82        $4,766.25 567.50 $1,842.95 3,189.65 13,710.67
10/01/08 87.38          460.26 3,154.64 3,702.28
04/01/09 3,495.25 87.38          4,766.25 460.26 826.15 3,154.64 12,789.93
10/01/09 353.02 3,138.94 3,491.96
04/01/10 5,084.00 353.02 4,384.95 3,138.94 12,960.91
10/01/10 238.63 3,054.53 3,293.16
04/01/11 5,084.00 238.63 4,702.70 3,054.53 13,079.86
10/01/11 124.24 2,964.00 3,088.24
04/01/12 5,401.75 124.24 4,639.15 2,964.00 13,129.14
10/01/12 2,873.54 2,873.54
04/01/13 10,676.40 2,873.54 13,549.94
10/01/13 2,665.35 2,665.35
04/01/14 10,930.60 2,665.35 13,595.95
10/01/14 2,449.47 2,449.47
04/01/15 11,184.80 2,449.47 13,634.27
10/01/15 2,228.57 2,228.57
04/01/16 11,756.75 2,228.57 13,985.32
10/01/16 1,993.44 1,993.44
04/01/17 12,265.15 1,993.44 14,258.59
10/01/17 1,748.13 1,748.13
04/01/18 12,773.55 1,748.13 14,521.68
10/01/18 1,489.47 1,489.47
04/01/19 12,964.20 1,489.47 14,453.67
10/01/19 1,226.94 1,226.94
04/01/20 13,472.60 1,226.94 14,699.54
10/01/20 950.76 950.76
04/01/21 13,981.00 950.76 14,931.76
10/01/21 664.15 664.15
04/01/22 14,680.05 664.15 15,344.20
10/01/22 359.53 359.53
04/01/23 8,515.70 359.53 8,875.23
10/01/23 182.83 182.83
04/01/24 8,706.35 182.83 8,889.18

$6,672.75 $508.40 $25,102.25 $3,487.31 $158,303.05 $67,604.69 $261,678.44

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200718



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City Royal Oak Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 28.3157% 28.3157% 28.3157% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $102,390.46 $16,359.40 $47,373.35 $38,657.71
04/01/08 279,363.58 193,332.52 112,117.78 (26,086.72) $12,570.99
10/01/08 98,231.59 12,200.53 70,279.92 15,751.14
04/01/09 282,283.64 196,252.58 88,685.13 (2,654.07) 13,097.07
10/01/09 93,895.75 7,864.69 69,930.22 16,100.84
04/01/10 285,026.72 121,127.49 167,619.39 (3,720.15) 12,380.69
10/01/10 89,400.63 5,316.27 68,049.71 16,034.65
04/01/11 287,610.53 118,579.07 172,817.80 (3,786.34) 12,248.31
10/01/11 84,728.54 2,767.86 66,032.92 15,927.76
04/01/12 290,017.36 123,109.58 169,385.23 (2,477.45) 13,450.31
10/01/12 79,837.00 64,017.55 15,819.45
04/01/13 299,283.68 301,869.43 (2,585.75) 13,233.70
10/01/13 74,541.97 59,379.44 15,162.53
04/01/14 301,067.57 302,894.46 (1,826.89) 13,335.63
10/01/14 68,956.69 54,570.02 14,386.68
04/01/15 302,561.22 303,748.18 (1,186.96) 13,199.72
10/01/15 63,084.73 49,648.75 13,435.98
04/01/16 310,847.10 311,568.97 (721.87) 12,714.10
10/01/16 56,757.94 44,410.34 12,347.59
04/01/17 318,678.16 317,656.85 1,021.31 13,368.90
10/01/17 49,965.71 38,945.41 11,020.29
04/01/18 326,043.78 323,518.20 2,525.58 13,545.88
10/01/18 42,775.29 33,182.81 9,592.47
04/01/19 325,932.29 322,002.95 3,929.33 13,521.81
10/01/19 35,348.61 27,334.21 8,014.40
04/01/20 332,663.46 327,480.63 5,182.83 13,197.24
10/01/20 27,506.93 21,181.21 6,325.73
04/01/21 338,979.63 332,653.91 6,325.73 12,651.45
10/01/21 19,290.96 14,796.02 4,494.94
04/01/22 350,584.65 341,842.35 8,742.30 13,237.24
10/01/22 10,554.68 8,009.80 2,544.87
04/01/23 208,764.58 197,724.99 11,039.58 13,584.46
10/01/23 5,351.67 4,073.21 1,278.45
04/01/24 209,224.71 198,035.76 11,188.95 12,467.40

$6,051,551.77 $796,909.98 $5,032,836.88 $221,804.90 $221,804.90

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200719



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City Royal Oak Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

28.3157% 28.3157% 28.3157% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $3,716.44 $12,642.96 $47,373.35 $63,732.74
04/01/08 $70,789.25 3,716.44     $106,183.88 12,642.96 $41,057.77 71,060.02 305,450.30
10/01/08 1,946.70     10,253.82 70,279.92 82,480.45
04/01/09 77,868.18 1,946.70     106,183.88 10,253.82 18,405.21 70,279.92 284,937.70
10/01/09 7,864.69 69,930.22 77,794.91
04/01/10 113,262.80 7,864.69 97,689.17 69,930.22 288,746.87
10/01/10 5,316.27 68,049.71 73,365.98
04/01/11 113,262.80 5,316.27 104,768.09 68,049.71 291,396.87
10/01/11 2,767.86 66,032.92 68,800.78
04/01/12 120,341.73 2,767.86 103,352.31 66,032.92 292,494.81
10/01/12 64,017.55 64,017.55
04/01/13 237,851.88 64,017.55 301,869.43
10/01/13 59,379.44 59,379.44
04/01/14 243,515.02 59,379.44 302,894.46
10/01/14 54,570.02 54,570.02
04/01/15 249,178.16 54,570.02 303,748.18
10/01/15 49,648.75 49,648.75
04/01/16 261,920.23 49,648.75 311,568.97
10/01/16 44,410.34 44,410.34
04/01/17 273,246.51 44,410.34 317,656.85
10/01/17 38,945.41 38,945.41
04/01/18 284,572.79 38,945.41 323,518.20
10/01/18 33,182.81 33,182.81
04/01/19 288,820.14 33,182.81 322,002.95
10/01/19 27,334.21 27,334.21
04/01/20 300,146.42 27,334.21 327,480.63
10/01/20 21,181.21 21,181.21
04/01/21 311,472.70 21,181.21 332,653.91
10/01/21 14,796.02 14,796.02
04/01/22 327,046.34 14,796.02 341,842.35
10/01/22 8,009.80 8,009.80
04/01/23 189,715.19 8,009.80 197,724.99
10/01/23 4,073.21 4,073.21
04/01/24 193,962.55 4,073.21 198,035.76

$148,657.43 $11,326.28 $559,235.08 $77,691.20 $3,526,720.44 $1,506,116.45 $5,829,746.87

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200720



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Southfield Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 7.3234% 7.3234% 7.3234% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $26,481.64 $4,231.09 $12,252.35 $9,998.20
04/01/08 72,252.89 50,002.34 28,997.46 (6,746.91) $3,251.28
10/01/08 25,406.02 3,155.47 18,176.77 4,073.78
04/01/09 73,008.12 50,757.57 22,936.98 (686.43) 3,387.35
10/01/09 24,284.62 2,034.07 18,086.33 4,164.22
04/01/10 73,717.57 31,327.67 43,352.06 (962.16) 3,202.07
10/01/10 23,122.03 1,374.97 17,599.96 4,147.10
04/01/11 74,385.83 30,668.57 44,696.54 (979.28) 3,167.83
10/01/11 21,913.67 715.86 17,078.35 4,119.46
04/01/12 75,008.32 31,840.31 43,808.76 (640.75) 3,478.71
10/01/12 20,648.56 16,557.11 4,091.45
04/01/13 77,404.91 78,073.67 (668.76) 3,422.68
10/01/13 19,279.08 15,357.54 3,921.54
04/01/14 77,866.28 78,338.78 (472.50) 3,449.05
10/01/14 17,834.54 14,113.66 3,720.88
04/01/15 78,252.59 78,559.58 (306.99) 3,413.89
10/01/15 16,315.85 12,840.85 3,475.00
04/01/16 80,395.60 80,582.30 (186.70) 3,288.30
10/01/16 14,679.53 11,486.02 3,193.51
04/01/17 82,420.98 82,156.83 264.15 3,457.65
10/01/17 12,922.83 10,072.60 2,850.22
04/01/18 84,325.98 83,672.77 653.20 3,503.42
10/01/18 11,063.14 8,582.20 2,480.94
04/01/19 84,297.14 83,280.88 1,016.26 3,497.20
10/01/19 9,142.35 7,069.55 2,072.80
04/01/20 86,038.05 84,697.59 1,340.46 3,413.25
10/01/20 7,114.23 5,478.18 1,636.05
04/01/21 87,671.63 86,035.58 1,636.05 3,272.10
10/01/21 4,989.30 3,826.75 1,162.54
04/01/22 90,673.08 88,412.02 2,261.05 3,423.60
10/01/22 2,729.80 2,071.61 658.19
04/01/23 53,993.60 51,138.39 2,855.21 3,513.40
10/01/23 1,384.12 1,053.47 330.65
04/01/24 54,112.60 51,218.76 2,893.84 3,224.49

$1,565,136.45 $206,107.94 $1,301,662.25 $57,366.27 $57,366.27

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200721



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Southfield Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

7.3234% 7.3234% 7.3234% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $961.20 $3,269.90 $12,252.35 $16,483.45
04/01/08 $18,308.50 961.20        $27,462.75 3,269.90 $10,618.93 18,378.53 78,999.80
10/01/08 503.48        2,651.99 18,176.77 21,332.24
04/01/09 20,139.35 503.48        27,462.75 2,651.99 4,760.21 18,176.77 73,694.55
10/01/09 2,034.07 18,086.33 20,120.40
04/01/10 29,293.60 2,034.07 25,265.73 18,086.33 74,679.73
10/01/10 1,374.97 17,599.96 18,974.93
04/01/11 29,293.60 1,374.97 27,096.58 17,599.96 75,365.11
10/01/11 715.86 17,078.35 17,794.21
04/01/12 31,124.45 715.86 26,730.41 17,078.35 75,649.07
10/01/12 16,557.11 16,557.11
04/01/13 61,516.56 16,557.11 78,073.67
10/01/13 15,357.54 15,357.54
04/01/14 62,981.24 15,357.54 78,338.78
10/01/14 14,113.66 14,113.66
04/01/15 64,445.92 14,113.66 78,559.58
10/01/15 12,840.85 12,840.85
04/01/16 67,741.45 12,840.85 80,582.30
10/01/16 11,486.02 11,486.02
04/01/17 70,670.81 11,486.02 82,156.83
10/01/17 10,072.60 10,072.60
04/01/18 73,600.17 10,072.60 83,672.77
10/01/18 8,582.20 8,582.20
04/01/19 74,698.68 8,582.20 83,280.88
10/01/19 7,069.55 7,069.55
04/01/20 77,628.04 7,069.55 84,697.59
10/01/20 5,478.18 5,478.18
04/01/21 80,557.40 5,478.18 86,035.58
10/01/21 3,826.75 3,826.75
04/01/22 84,585.27 3,826.75 88,412.02
10/01/22 2,071.61 2,071.61
04/01/23 49,066.78 2,071.61 51,138.39
10/01/23 1,053.47 1,053.47
04/01/24 50,165.29 1,053.47 51,218.76

$38,447.85 $2,929.36 $144,637.15 $20,093.58 $912,129.47 $389,532.78 $1,507,770.18

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200722



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Troy Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 2.5019% 2.5019% 2.5019% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $9,046.95 $1,445.47 $4,185.78 $3,415.69
04/01/08 24,683.82 17,082.35 9,906.43 (2,304.95) $1,110.74
10/01/08 8,679.48 1,078.01 6,209.75 1,391.73
04/01/09 24,941.83 17,340.36 7,835.98 (234.51) 1,157.22
10/01/09 8,296.38 694.90 6,178.85 1,422.63
04/01/10 25,184.20 10,702.50 14,810.40 (328.70) 1,093.92
10/01/10 7,899.20 469.73 6,012.69 1,416.78
04/01/11 25,412.50 10,477.33 15,269.72 (334.55) 1,082.23
10/01/11 7,486.39 244.56 5,834.49 1,407.33
04/01/12 25,625.16 10,877.64 14,966.43 (218.90) 1,188.43
10/01/12 7,054.19 5,656.42 1,397.76
04/01/13 26,443.91 26,672.38 (228.47) 1,169.29
10/01/13 6,586.33 5,246.61 1,339.72
04/01/14 26,601.53 26,762.95 (161.42) 1,178.30
10/01/14 6,092.83 4,821.66 1,271.17
04/01/15 26,733.51 26,838.38 (104.88) 1,166.29
10/01/15 5,574.00 4,386.83 1,187.17
04/01/16 27,465.62 27,529.41 (63.78) 1,123.38
10/01/16 5,014.98 3,923.98 1,091.00
04/01/17 28,157.56 28,067.31 90.24 1,181.24
10/01/17 4,414.84 3,441.11 973.72
04/01/18 28,808.36 28,585.21 223.15 1,196.88
10/01/18 3,779.51 2,931.95 847.57
04/01/19 28,798.51 28,451.33 347.19 1,194.75
10/01/19 3,123.31 2,415.18 708.13
04/01/20 29,393.26 28,935.32 457.94 1,166.07
10/01/20 2,430.44 1,871.52 558.92
04/01/21 29,951.34 29,392.42 558.92 1,117.85
10/01/21 1,704.50 1,307.34 397.16
04/01/22 30,976.73 30,204.28 772.45 1,169.61
10/01/22 932.58 707.72 224.86
04/01/23 18,445.88 17,470.45 975.43 1,200.29
10/01/23 472.86 359.90 112.96
04/01/24 18,486.54 17,497.91 988.63 1,101.59

$534,699.03 $70,412.85 $444,688.09 $19,598.09 $19,598.09

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200723



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

City of Troy Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

2.5019% 2.5019% 2.5019% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $328.37 $1,117.10 $4,185.78 $5,631.26
04/01/08 $6,254.75 328.37        $9,382.13 1,117.10 $3,627.76 6,278.67 26,988.78
10/01/08 172.01        906.00 6,209.75 7,287.75
04/01/09 6,880.23 172.01        9,382.13 906.00 1,626.24 6,209.75 25,176.34
10/01/09 694.90 6,178.85 6,873.75
04/01/10 10,007.60 694.90 8,631.56 6,178.85 25,512.91
10/01/10 469.73 6,012.69 6,482.42
04/01/11 10,007.60 469.73 9,257.03 6,012.69 25,747.05
10/01/11 244.56 5,834.49 6,079.05
04/01/12 10,633.08 244.56 9,131.94 5,834.49 25,844.06
10/01/12 5,656.42 5,656.42
04/01/13 21,015.96 5,656.42 26,672.38
10/01/13 5,246.61 5,246.61
04/01/14 21,516.34 5,246.61 26,762.95
10/01/14 4,821.66 4,821.66
04/01/15 22,016.72 4,821.66 26,838.38
10/01/15 4,386.83 4,386.83
04/01/16 23,142.58 4,386.83 27,529.41
10/01/16 3,923.98 3,923.98
04/01/17 24,143.34 3,923.98 28,067.31
10/01/17 3,441.11 3,441.11
04/01/18 25,144.10 3,441.11 28,585.21
10/01/18 2,931.95 2,931.95
04/01/19 25,519.38 2,931.95 28,451.33
10/01/19 2,415.18 2,415.18
04/01/20 26,520.14 2,415.18 28,935.32
10/01/20 1,871.52 1,871.52
04/01/21 27,520.90 1,871.52 29,392.42
10/01/21 1,307.34 1,307.34
04/01/22 28,896.95 1,307.34 30,204.28
10/01/22 707.72 707.72
04/01/23 16,762.73 707.72 17,470.45
10/01/23 359.90 359.90
04/01/24 17,138.02 359.90 17,497.91

$13,134.98 $1,000.76 $49,412.53 $6,864.59 $311,611.65 $133,076.45 $515,100.94

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200724



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

Township of Royal Oak Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 1.5761% 1.5761% 1.5761% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $5,699.23 $910.59 $2,636.88 $2,151.75
04/01/08 15,549.85 10,761.22 6,240.67 (1,452.03) $699.72
10/01/08 5,467.74 679.10 3,911.90 876.74
04/01/09 15,712.39 10,923.75 4,936.36 (147.73) 729.01
10/01/09 5,226.40 437.76 3,892.44 896.20
04/01/10 15,865.07 6,742.16 9,329.98 (207.07) 689.13
10/01/10 4,976.19 295.91 3,787.76 892.52
04/01/11 16,008.89 6,600.31 9,619.33 (210.75) 681.76
10/01/11 4,716.13 154.06 3,675.50 886.57
04/01/12 16,142.86 6,852.49 9,428.27 (137.90) 748.67
10/01/12 4,443.86 3,563.33 880.54
04/01/13 16,658.64 16,802.57 (143.93) 736.61
10/01/13 4,149.13 3,305.16 843.97
04/01/14 16,757.93 16,859.62 (101.69) 742.28
10/01/14 3,838.25 3,037.46 800.79
04/01/15 16,841.07 16,907.14 (66.07) 734.72
10/01/15 3,511.40 2,763.53 747.87
04/01/16 17,302.28 17,342.46 (40.18) 707.69
10/01/16 3,159.24 2,471.96 687.29
04/01/17 17,738.17 17,681.32 56.85 744.14
10/01/17 2,781.18 2,167.77 613.41
04/01/18 18,148.15 18,007.57 140.58 753.99
10/01/18 2,380.95 1,847.01 533.93
04/01/19 18,141.95 17,923.23 218.71 752.65
10/01/19 1,967.56 1,521.47 446.10
04/01/20 18,516.61 18,228.13 288.49 734.58
10/01/20 1,531.08 1,178.98 352.10
04/01/21 18,868.18 18,516.08 352.10 704.20
10/01/21 1,073.77 823.57 250.20
04/01/22 19,514.14 19,027.53 486.61 736.81
10/01/22 587.49 445.84 141.65
04/01/23 11,620.19 11,005.71 614.48 756.13
10/01/23 297.88 226.72 71.16
04/01/24 11,645.80 11,023.01 622.80 693.96

$336,839.66 $44,357.36 $280,136.26 $12,346.04 $12,346.04

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200725



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

Township of Royal Oak Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

1.5761% 1.5761% 1.5761% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $206.86 $703.73 $2,636.88 $3,547.47
04/01/08 $3,940.25 206.86        $5,910.38 703.73 $2,285.35 3,955.32 17,001.88
10/01/08 108.36        570.75 3,911.90 4,591.00
04/01/09 4,334.28 108.36        5,910.38 570.75 1,024.47 3,911.90 15,860.12
10/01/09 437.76 3,892.44 4,330.20
04/01/10 6,304.40 437.76 5,437.55 3,892.44 16,072.14
10/01/10 295.91 3,787.76 4,083.68
04/01/11 6,304.40 295.91 5,831.57 3,787.76 16,219.65
10/01/11 154.06 3,675.50 3,829.57
04/01/12 6,698.43 154.06 5,752.77 3,675.50 16,280.76
10/01/12 3,563.33 3,563.33
04/01/13 13,239.24 3,563.33 16,802.57
10/01/13 3,305.16 3,305.16
04/01/14 13,554.46 3,305.16 16,859.62
10/01/14 3,037.46 3,037.46
04/01/15 13,869.68 3,037.46 16,907.14
10/01/15 2,763.53 2,763.53
04/01/16 14,578.93 2,763.53 17,342.46
10/01/16 2,471.96 2,471.96
04/01/17 15,209.37 2,471.96 17,681.32
10/01/17 2,167.77 2,167.77
04/01/18 15,839.81 2,167.77 18,007.57
10/01/18 1,847.01 1,847.01
04/01/19 16,076.22 1,847.01 17,923.23
10/01/19 1,521.47 1,521.47
04/01/20 16,706.66 1,521.47 18,228.13
10/01/20 1,178.98 1,178.98
04/01/21 17,337.10 1,178.98 18,516.08
10/01/21 823.57 823.57
04/01/22 18,203.96 823.57 19,027.53
10/01/22 445.84 445.84
04/01/23 10,559.87 445.84 11,005.71
10/01/23 226.72 226.72
04/01/24 10,796.29 226.72 11,023.01

$8,274.53 $630.44 $31,127.98 $4,324.42 $196,303.26 $83,833.00 $324,493.62

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200726



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

Village of Beverly Hills Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 0.7944% 0.7944% 0.7944% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $2,872.58 $458.96 $1,329.06 $1,084.55
04/01/08 7,837.58 5,423.96 3,145.48 (731.87) $352.68
10/01/08 2,755.90 342.29 1,971.71 441.90
04/01/09 7,919.50 5,505.89 2,488.07 (74.46) 367.44
10/01/09 2,634.26 220.64 1,961.90 451.71
04/01/10 7,996.46 3,398.24 4,702.58 (104.37) 347.34
10/01/10 2,508.14 149.15 1,909.14 449.85
04/01/11 8,068.94 3,326.75 4,848.42 (106.23) 343.63
10/01/11 2,377.07 77.65 1,852.56 446.85
04/01/12 8,136.47 3,453.85 4,752.12 (69.51) 377.35
10/01/12 2,239.84 1,796.02 443.82
04/01/13 8,396.44 8,468.98 (72.54) 371.27
10/01/13 2,091.28 1,665.90 425.39
04/01/14 8,446.48 8,497.74 (51.25) 374.13
10/01/14 1,934.59 1,530.97 403.62
04/01/15 8,488.39 8,521.69 (33.30) 370.32
10/01/15 1,769.85 1,392.90 376.95
04/01/16 8,720.85 8,741.10 (20.25) 356.70
10/01/16 1,592.35 1,245.94 346.41
04/01/17 8,940.55 8,911.90 28.65 375.07
10/01/17 1,401.79 1,092.62 309.18
04/01/18 9,147.19 9,076.34 70.86 380.03
10/01/18 1,200.07 930.95 269.12
04/01/19 9,144.07 9,033.83 110.24 379.36
10/01/19 991.71 766.86 224.84
04/01/20 9,332.91 9,187.50 145.40 370.25
10/01/20 771.71 594.24 177.47
04/01/21 9,510.11 9,332.64 177.47 354.94
10/01/21 541.21 415.10 126.11
04/01/22 9,835.69 9,590.42 245.27 371.37
10/01/22 296.11 224.72 71.40
04/01/23 5,856.91 5,547.20 309.72 381.11
10/01/23 150.14 114.27 35.87
04/01/24 5,869.82 5,555.91 313.91 349.77

$169,776.93 $22,357.40 $141,196.78 $6,222.76 $6,222.76

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200727



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

Village of Beverly Hills Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

0.7944% 0.7944% 0.7944% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $104.27 $354.70 $1,329.06 $1,788.03
04/01/08 $1,986.00 104.27        $2,979.00 354.70 $1,151.88 1,993.60 8,569.44
10/01/08 54.62          287.67 1,971.71 2,314.00
04/01/09 2,184.60 54.62          2,979.00 287.67 516.36 1,971.71 7,993.96
10/01/09 220.64 1,961.90 2,182.54
04/01/10 3,177.60 220.64 2,740.68 1,961.90 8,100.82
10/01/10 149.15 1,909.14 2,058.29
04/01/11 3,177.60 149.15 2,939.28 1,909.14 8,175.17
10/01/11 77.65 1,852.56 1,930.21
04/01/12 3,376.20 77.65 2,899.56 1,852.56 8,205.97
10/01/12 1,796.02 1,796.02
04/01/13 6,672.96 1,796.02 8,468.98
10/01/13 1,665.90 1,665.90
04/01/14 6,831.84 1,665.90 8,497.74
10/01/14 1,530.97 1,530.97
04/01/15 6,990.72 1,530.97 8,521.69
10/01/15 1,392.90 1,392.90
04/01/16 7,348.20 1,392.90 8,741.10
10/01/16 1,245.94 1,245.94
04/01/17 7,665.96 1,245.94 8,911.90
10/01/17 1,092.62 1,092.62
04/01/18 7,983.72 1,092.62 9,076.34
10/01/18 930.95 930.95
04/01/19 8,102.88 930.95 9,033.83
10/01/19 766.86 766.86
04/01/20 8,420.64 766.86 9,187.50
10/01/20 594.24 594.24
04/01/21 8,738.40 594.24 9,332.64
10/01/21 415.10 415.10
04/01/22 9,175.32 415.10 9,590.42
10/01/22 224.72 224.72
04/01/23 5,322.48 224.72 5,547.20
10/01/23 114.27 114.27
04/01/24 5,441.64 114.27 5,555.91

$4,170.60 $317.76 $15,689.40 $2,179.64 $98,942.52 $42,254.26 $163,554.17

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200728



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

County of Oakland Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 1.5265% 1.5265% 1.5265% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $5,519.87 $881.94 $2,553.90 $2,084.04
04/01/08 15,060.50 10,422.56 6,044.27 (1,406.34) $677.70
10/01/08 5,295.67 657.73 3,788.79 849.14
04/01/09 15,217.92 10,579.98 4,781.02 (143.08) 706.06
10/01/09 5,061.92 423.99 3,769.94 868.00
04/01/10 15,365.80 6,529.99 9,036.36 (200.55) 667.44
10/01/10 4,819.59 286.60 3,668.56 864.43
04/01/11 15,505.09 6,392.60 9,316.61 (204.12) 660.31
10/01/11 4,567.72 149.22 3,559.84 858.67
04/01/12 15,634.84 6,636.84 9,131.56 (133.56) 725.11
10/01/12 4,304.01 3,451.19 852.83
04/01/13 16,134.39 16,273.79 (139.40) 713.43
10/01/13 4,018.56 3,201.15 817.41
04/01/14 16,230.56 16,329.05 (98.49) 718.92
10/01/14 3,717.46 2,941.87 775.59
04/01/15 16,311.08 16,375.07 (63.99) 711.60
10/01/15 3,400.90 2,676.57 724.33
04/01/16 16,757.77 16,796.69 (38.92) 685.42
10/01/16 3,059.82 2,394.16 665.66
04/01/17 17,179.95 17,124.89 55.06 720.72
10/01/17 2,693.65 2,099.55 594.10
04/01/18 17,577.03 17,440.87 136.15 730.26
10/01/18 2,306.02 1,788.89 517.13
04/01/19 17,571.02 17,359.19 211.83 728.96
10/01/19 1,905.64 1,473.59 432.06
04/01/20 17,933.89 17,654.49 279.41 711.46
10/01/20 1,482.90 1,141.88 341.02
04/01/21 18,274.40 17,933.38 341.02 682.04
10/01/21 1,039.98 797.65 242.32
04/01/22 18,900.03 18,428.73 471.30 713.62
10/01/22 569.00 431.81 137.19
04/01/23 11,254.50 10,659.36 595.14 732.34
10/01/23 288.51 219.59 68.92
04/01/24 11,279.31 10,676.11 603.20 672.12

$326,239.29 $42,961.43 $271,320.35 $11,957.51 $11,957.51

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200729



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

County of Oakland Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

1.5265% 1.5265% 1.5265% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $200.35 $681.58 $2,553.90 $3,435.83
04/01/08 $3,816.25 200.35        $5,724.38 681.58 $2,213.43 3,830.85 16,466.83
10/01/08 104.95        552.78 3,788.79 4,446.52
04/01/09 4,197.88 104.95        5,724.38 552.78 992.23 3,788.79 15,361.00
10/01/09 423.99 3,769.94 4,193.93
04/01/10 6,106.00 423.99 5,266.43 3,769.94 15,566.35
10/01/10 286.60 3,668.56 3,955.16
04/01/11 6,106.00 286.60 5,648.05 3,668.56 15,709.21
10/01/11 149.22 3,559.84 3,709.05
04/01/12 6,487.63 149.22 5,571.73 3,559.84 15,768.40
10/01/12 3,451.19 3,451.19
04/01/13 12,822.60 3,451.19 16,273.79
10/01/13 3,201.15 3,201.15
04/01/14 13,127.90 3,201.15 16,329.05
10/01/14 2,941.87 2,941.87
04/01/15 13,433.20 2,941.87 16,375.07
10/01/15 2,676.57 2,676.57
04/01/16 14,120.13 2,676.57 16,796.69
10/01/16 2,394.16 2,394.16
04/01/17 14,730.73 2,394.16 17,124.89
10/01/17 2,099.55 2,099.55
04/01/18 15,341.33 2,099.55 17,440.87
10/01/18 1,788.89 1,788.89
04/01/19 15,570.30 1,788.89 17,359.19
10/01/19 1,473.59 1,473.59
04/01/20 16,180.90 1,473.59 17,654.49
10/01/20 1,141.88 1,141.88
04/01/21 16,791.50 1,141.88 17,933.38
10/01/21 797.65 797.65
04/01/22 17,631.08 797.65 18,428.73
10/01/22 431.81 431.81
04/01/23 10,227.55 431.81 10,659.36
10/01/23 219.59 219.59
04/01/24 10,456.53 219.59 10,676.11

$8,014.13 $610.60 $30,148.38 $4,188.33 $190,125.58 $81,194.77 $314,281.78

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200730



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

State of Michigan Portion
Schedule of Total Debt Service and Savings

(A)
Portion of Non-Refunded (B)
Combined Combined Portion of Net
Old Debt @ Debt @ New Debt @ Savings/ Fiscal Year

Date 2.1934% 2.1934% 2.1934% (Loss) Net Savings

10/01/07 $7,931.40 $1,267.24 $3,669.65 $2,994.52
04/01/08 21,640.15 14,975.99 8,684.90 (2,020.74) $973.78
10/01/08 7,609.25 945.08 5,444.05 1,220.12
04/01/09 21,866.35 15,202.18 6,869.76 (205.59) 1,014.53
10/01/09 7,273.38 609.22 5,416.96 1,247.21
04/01/10 22,078.83 9,382.82 12,984.19 (288.17) 959.04
10/01/10 6,925.18 411.81 5,271.29 1,242.08
04/01/11 22,278.98 9,185.41 13,386.87 (293.30) 948.78
10/01/11 6,563.27 214.40 5,115.06 1,233.80
04/01/12 22,465.42 9,536.35 13,120.97 (191.91) 1,041.89
10/01/12 6,184.36 4,958.95 1,225.41
04/01/13 23,183.21 23,383.51 (200.30) 1,025.11
10/01/13 5,774.19 4,599.67 1,174.52
04/01/14 23,321.39 23,462.91 (141.52) 1,033.01
10/01/14 5,341.55 4,227.12 1,114.43
04/01/15 23,437.10 23,529.04 (91.94) 1,022.48
10/01/15 4,886.69 3,845.91 1,040.78
04/01/16 24,078.94 24,134.86 (55.92) 984.86
10/01/16 4,396.60 3,440.13 956.47
04/01/17 24,685.55 24,606.44 79.11 1,035.59
10/01/17 3,870.46 3,016.80 853.66
04/01/18 25,256.11 25,060.47 195.64 1,049.30
10/01/18 3,313.47 2,570.42 743.06
04/01/19 25,247.47 24,943.10 304.38 1,047.43
10/01/19 2,738.19 2,117.37 620.81
04/01/20 25,768.89 25,367.41 401.47 1,022.29
10/01/20 2,130.75 1,640.75 490.01
04/01/21 26,258.15 25,768.15 490.01 980.01
10/01/21 1,494.32 1,146.13 348.19
04/01/22 27,157.10 26,479.90 677.20 1,025.39
10/01/22 817.59 620.46 197.13
04/01/23 16,171.39 15,316.24 855.15 1,052.28
10/01/23 414.55 315.52 99.03
04/01/24 16,207.03 15,340.31 866.72 965.75

$468,767.28 $61,730.50 $389,855.25 $17,181.52 $17,181.52

Columns (A) and (B) are the only debt payments that the unit will be responsible to pay.

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200731



$12,455,000
George W. Kuhn Drainage District

Drain Refunding Bonds, Series 2007
(Refunds Series 2000B and 2001E)

State of Michigan Portion
Schedule of Debt Service Payments

Breakdown of Principal and Interest Amounts

Series 2000B Series 2001E Refunding Bonds
Non-Refunded Debt @ Non-Refunded Debt @ New Debt Service @ Total

2.1934% 2.1934% 2.1934% Debt
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

10/01/07 $287.88 $979.35 $3,669.65 $4,936.89
04/01/08 $5,483.50 287.88        $8,225.25 979.35 $3,180.43 5,504.47 23,660.89
10/01/08 150.80        794.28 5,444.05 6,389.13
04/01/09 6,031.85 150.80        8,225.25 794.28 1,425.71 5,444.05 22,071.94
10/01/09 609.22 5,416.96 6,026.17
04/01/10 8,773.60 609.22 7,567.23 5,416.96 22,367.00
10/01/10 411.81 5,271.29 5,683.10
04/01/11 8,773.60 411.81 8,115.58 5,271.29 22,572.28
10/01/11 214.40 5,115.06 5,329.47
04/01/12 9,321.95 214.40 8,005.91 5,115.06 22,657.33
10/01/12 4,958.95 4,958.95
04/01/13 18,424.56 4,958.95 23,383.51
10/01/13 4,599.67 4,599.67
04/01/14 18,863.24 4,599.67 23,462.91
10/01/14 4,227.12 4,227.12
04/01/15 19,301.92 4,227.12 23,529.04
10/01/15 3,845.91 3,845.91
04/01/16 20,288.95 3,845.91 24,134.86
10/01/16 3,440.13 3,440.13
04/01/17 21,166.31 3,440.13 24,606.44
10/01/17 3,016.80 3,016.80
04/01/18 22,043.67 3,016.80 25,060.47
10/01/18 2,570.42 2,570.42
04/01/19 22,372.68 2,570.42 24,943.10
10/01/19 2,117.37 2,117.37
04/01/20 23,250.04 2,117.37 25,367.41
10/01/20 1,640.75 1,640.75
04/01/21 24,127.40 1,640.75 25,768.15
10/01/21 1,146.13 1,146.13
04/01/22 25,333.77 1,146.13 26,479.90
10/01/22 620.46 620.46
04/01/23 14,695.78 620.46 15,316.24
10/01/23 315.52 315.52
04/01/24 15,024.79 315.52 15,340.31

$11,515.35 $877.36 $43,319.65 $6,018.14 $273,187.97 $116,667.28 $451,585.76

ded\refund\oakland\George Kuhn Combined.xls 3/26/200732



campbellld
Text Box
F-04















 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 9, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Troy Chamber of Commerce President Michele Hodges has requested a joint meeting between 

City Council, City Administration, the Chamber’s Board of Directors and exclusive level members. 
 Ms. Hodges suggested two possible dates for a joint meeting:  Wednesday, June 13, 2007 or 

Wednesday, June 20, 2007.   
 I am recommending that the joint meeting be held in the evening, beginning at 7:30 PM. 
 It looks at though this joint meeting would involve approximately 36 active participants.   
 Possible meeting locations are the Police/Fire Training Facility (available June 20 only), the 

Community Center, or the MSU Management Education Center. 
 
Options:
 
 I recommend scheduling a joint meeting between the City of Troy and the Troy Chamber of 

Commerce. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\04.16.07 - Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



campbellld
Text Box
F-06

















TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 4, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 98 (Criminal Code) 
 

 
 

 At the March 5, 2007, City Council meeting, Council approved several revisions to 
Troy’s Animal Ordinance, Chapter 90.  The approval of these recommended revisions left 
some inconsistencies between the revised Chapter 90 (Animals) and the current version of 
Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and Chapter 98 (Criminal Code) of the Troy ordinances.  Proposed 
revisions of Chapters 75 and 98 were therefore also presented to the Animal Control Appeals 
Board for review and recommendation.  The Animal Control Appeals Board has 
recommended approval of the attached proposed revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 
Chapter 98 (Criminal Code).   
 

We are requesting that Chapter 75 – Pet Shops be amended, as set forth in the 
attached red lined version. Specifically, the definition of animals has been expanded, so 
that it is the same definition that is found in the revised Chapter 90. Similarly, the 
definition of pet shops has been expanded.  In addition, the requirements for ventilation, 
sanitation, and enclosure requirements have also been amended to reflect revisions in 
the federal requirements and also changes recommended by Pet Shop operators.     
 

Since the amended version of Chapter 90 covers hunting and trapping of animals, 
these provisions are recommended for removal from Chapter 98.  The removal of these 
provisions from the Criminal Code minimizes the chances of conflicting regulations when two 
separate chapters govern the activity.  City Administration recommends deletion of Sections 
98.01.02.01, 98.07.01 and 98.07.02 of Chapter 98.    
 
 The proposed changes to Chapters 75 and 98 are highlighted for your convenience.  
We recommend that Council approve the amendment to Chapter 75 and delete portions of 
Chapter 98. 
 

If you have any questions please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



 
CHAPTER 75 PET SHOPS 

 
1. Definitions: 
 

(a) Pet Shop Defined: 
 

A place where animals are sold or offered for sale, exchange or transfer.  This 
Ordinance is not applicable to the following: 

 
(i)  Residence premises where animals sold or offered for sale, exchange or 

transfer are exclusively those animals born and raised on the premises or 
those animals owned by the transferring party and are not sold or offered for 
sale, exchange or transfer in the ordinary course of business; 

 
  (ii) Dduly organized humane societies; and  
 

(iii) (iii) Dduly authorized animal control departments.; 
 
(iv) Retail bait shops which sell any live or dead organisms used to attract fish, 

including but not limited to, worms, minnows, leeches, crayfish and aquatic 
insects; 

 
(v) A person who is a livestock dealer as defined in Act No. 284 of the Public 

Act of 1937, as amended, being Sections 287.121 to 287.131 of the 
Michigan Compiled Laws of 1948.  

 
(b) Animal: Any living creature except humans and plants. “Animal” includes any 

mammal, bird, reptile, snake, turtle, crustacean or any other vertebrate or 
invertebrate. mammal except livestock as defined in Act No. 284 of the Public Act of 
1937, as amended, being Sections 287.121 to 287.131 of the Michigan Compiled 
Laws of 1948. 

 
(c) Animal Control Officer: The person or persons employed by the City of Troy as its 

enforcement officer(s). 
 

(d) Animal Control Appeal Board: Consists of five members appointed by the City 
Council for three overlapping terms. 

 
2. License Required: 
 

No person shall operate a pet shop within the City of Troy without first obtaining a license.  
License application forms with a copy of this ordinance, will be available at the City Clerk's 
Office. License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City 
of Troy Code of Ordinances and must accompany each license application.  All existing 
establishments within the definition of Section 2(1)(a) must complete a license application 
within 30 days of the effective date of this Ordinance; existing establishments shall comply 
with the requirements of this Ordinance as any new license applicant. 

  
(a) Display of License:  A valid license must be framed under glass and shall be 

prominently displayed in full view of the licensed premises.  Licensee's name must 



 

  

2

be plainly visible on the license.  The phone number of the Animal Control Officer 
must also be plainly visible. 

 
3. Inspection; Certification by Animal Control Officer: 
 

The applicant shall demonstrate that the pet shop in question complies with all requirements 
of this Chapter.  The Animal Control Officer shall conduct an inspection of applicant's 
premises.  An application shall obtain certification by the Animal Control Officer before his 
application is to be considered. 

   
4. Licensee's Duty to Comply with all Requirements of this Chapter; Violation as 

Misdemeanor: 
 

A licensee must at all times comply with the requirements of this Ordinance.  The penalty for 
failure to comply is a misdemeanor, and may subject licensee to a fine of up to $500.00 and 
costs and/or 90 days in jail.  Any sentence that may be imposed does not preclude the City 
of Troy from taking any action to suspend and/or revoke the license in question. 

 
5. Licensee's Duty to Cease Operations during Period of Suspension; Revocation: 
 

During any period of suspension or revocation, a licensee, anyone with a financial interest in 
licensee's business, any agent, employee, servant or officer of licensee shall not sell or offer 
for sale, exchange or transfer, any animal within the scope of licensee's business.  A 
licensee's premises shall remain closed to members of the public.  Licensee must take 
whatever steps are necessary during any suspension or revocation period to meet the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
6. Animal Control Officer's Right to Impound Animals: 
 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right to impound any animal within the scope of 
licensee's business which has been mistreated, abused, neglected or abandoned as a 
result of licensee's failure to comply with the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
Impounded animals shall be properly housed in a shelter for animals and confined in a 
humane manner.  Animals must be reclaimed within a period of ten (10) business days; 
animals may be returned to licensee only after a proper showing of compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter.  Animals not returned to licensee within a period of ten (10) 
business days shall be humanely disposed of by the Animal Control Officer or by an agency 
delegated by him to exercise that authority.  Licensee shall remain responsible to the City of 
Troy for all costs or care, feeding and sheltering during any impound period, and costs of 
disposal, if any. 

 
7. Records: 
 

For each dog and cat animal sold or offered for sale, exchange or transfer, licensee shall 
maintain records of the following: 

 
(a) Health Certificate:  A certificate in which a competent and duly licensed veterinarian 



 

  

3

attests to:  the age, sex, breed and description of the animal, including its color and 
approximate weight, and to the fact that at the time of preparation of the certificate, 
the veterinarian examined the animal and found the animal to be free from 
detectable evidence of communicable disease. 

 
 (b) Proof of Requisite Inoculation:  Inoculation Requirements - Dogs:  A dog shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee or officer of a 
licensee unless the dog has been inoculated against distemper, hepatitis, 
leptospirosis, para influenza, and if indicated, has been treated for external and 
internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of Michigan.  
Proof of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee in the 
regular course of business and said records made available for inspection by a 
potential purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 
Appeal Board and any other duly authorized representative of the City of Troy.  Any 
dog sold, exchanged or transferred by a licensee, agent, employee or officer of a 
licensee shall be accompanied by a Health Certificate, as described above, 
including records of the dog's medication and immunization. 

 
(c) Proof of Requisite Inoculation; Inoculation Requirements - Cats: A cat shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee, officer of 
licensee, unless the cat has been inoculated against feline panleukopenia (cat 
distemper), rinotraecheitis, caliciviruses and if indicated, has been treated for 
external and internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of 
Michigan.  Proof of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee 
in the regular course of business and said records made available for inspection by 
a potential purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 
Appeal Board and any other duly authorized representative of the City of Troy.  Any 
cat sold, exchanged or transferred by a licensee shall be accompanied by a Health 
Certificate, as described above, including records of the cat's medication and 
immunization. 
(Rev. 11-14-83) 

 
(d) Name and address of the person from whom the animal was acquired. 

 
 (e) Date of acquisition. 
 

(f) Name and address of the person to whom it was sold or otherwise disposed of. 
 

(g) Date, NatureNature and Method of Disposition:  By sale, death, euthanasia, 
donation or other. 

 
 Said records shall be maintained by the licensee for a period of seven years from 

the date the animal was first acquired.  Said records shall be made available to the 
City Clerk's Office, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control Appeal Board, or 
any other authorized representative of the City of Troy during regular business 
hours. 

 
8. Indoor Facilities: 



 

  

4

 
(a) Generally:  Housing facilities for animals shall be structurally sound and maintained 

in good repair to protect the animals from injury, to contain the animals, and to 
restrict the entrance of other animals. 

 
(b) Temperature:  The temperature of an indoor housing facility for animals shall 

provide for the health and comfort of the animals.  Temperatures in the areas in 
which animals are kept shall be maintained between 65?F 65°F and 84?F 84°F.  
Said temperatures shall not be allowed to fluctuate up or down at a rate of greater 
than 5? 5° per hour. 

 
(c) Humidity:  Humidity in areas in which animals are kept shall be maintained at a 

relative humidity of 30% to 70% throughout the year. 
 

(d) Ventilation:  An indoor housing facility for animals shall be adequately ventilated to 
provide for the health and comfort of the animals at all times.  The air in areas 
housing animals shall be ventilated at a rate of exchange between 10 and 15 
changes of air per hour.  The air shall not be re-circulated unless said re-circulated 
air has been treated to remove gaseous contaminants., and to minimize odors, 
drafts, ammonia levels and moisture condensation.  Ventilation must be provided by 
windows, vents, fans or air conditioning.  The ventilation shall be provided in 
accordance with generally accepted professional and husbandry practices. 

 
(e) Light:  An indoor housing facility for animals shall have ample light and be of good 

quality, either by natural or artificial means or both.  The lighting shall provide 
uniformly distributed illumination of sufficient intensity to permit routine inspection 
and cleaning throughout the working period. Primary enclosures shall be so placed 
as to protect the animals from excessive illumination. 

 
9. Outdoor Facilities:  
 

(a) Shade:  When sunlight is likely to cause overheating or discomfort, sufficient shade 
shall be provided to allow animals to protect themselves from the direct rays of the 
sun. 

 
(b) Shelter:Shelter:  An access to shelter shall be provided to allow animals protection 

in inclement weather. 
 

(c) Drainage:  Outside shelters shall be located in areas having suitable drainage. 
 
10. Sanitation: 
 

(a) Cages and equipment:  Animal cages and equipment shall be washed and sanitized 
as often as necessary to keep them clean and free from contamination.  Any cage 
under regular use for the housing of animals shall be washed weekly and more 
often if necessary.  Cages or enclosures housing animals held in quarantine or 
under observation shall be washed and sanitized prior to a new animal being placed 
therein.  All animals shall be removed from cages or enclosures which are being 



 

  

5

washed, sanitized or rinsed.  Washing and rinsing shall be performed using water at 
least 180? 180° F for a period long enough to insure destruction of pathogenic 
organisms.  Chemicals may also be used to combat said organisms, providing 
cages and equipment are rinsed free of traces or chemicals prior to replacing 
animals. 

 
(b) Litter and bedding:  All animal enclosures shall be given regular sanitary 

maintenance.  Litter and bedding shall be changed at least daily and more often if 
necessary to allow animals to remain dry and clean and to minimize odors. 

 
(c) Equipment other than cages and enclosures:  All other equipment and 

implements, including food and water, shall be kept in a sanitary condition.  
Waste containers shall also be kept in a sanitary condition and shall be washed 
when emptied with water at least 180?F 180°F and/or with chemical disinfectant. 

 
(d) Facilities other than cages or enclosures:  All other areas of said pet shop, including 

hallways and storage areas shall be kept clean, neat and unlittered.  Detergents and 
disinfectants shall be used to keep them free from dirt, debris, and other harmful 
contaminants. 

  
(e) Surfaces to consist of readily sanitizable materials:  The indoor building surfaces of 

all indoor housing facilities shall be constructed of materials which may be readily 
sanitized. 

 
(f) Proper drainage necessary:  A suitable method shall be provided to eliminate 

excess water from indoor housing facilities.  Drains shall be properly constructed 
and kept in good repair to avoid foul odors.  Closed drainage systems shall be 
equipped with traps and installed to prevent back-ups. 

 
11. Primary Enclosures: 
 

(a) Generally:  All primary enclosures used for holding animals shall be structurally 
sound and maintained in good repair to protect animals from injury, to contain them, 
to keep predators out and to enable animals to remain dry and clean.  

 
(b) Sound construction:  All enclosures shall be of sound construction and made from 

material capable of facilitating effective sanitation.  Suggested nonporous materials 
include aluminum, steel and fiberglass. 

 
(c) Access to clean food and water:  A primary enclosure shall be constructed and 

maintained so that animals kept have convenient access to clean food and water. 
 

(d) Type of enclosure:  All primary enclosures shall be kept in good repair.  Enclosures 
with shaper edges, broken wires, broken snaps, unconnected sides, rust and any 
other defects shall not be used.  The purpose of this is to protect the animals from 
injury.  Portable cages are prohibited, including airport transit cages and wire cages 
with top access secured by clasps. 

 



 

  

6

(e) Size of enclosures:  A primary enclosure shall provide adequate room for the animal 
or animals housed, allowing each animal sufficient space to turn about freely and to 
easily stand, sit and lie in a comfortable normal position. Minimum specifications in 
the chart below shall be followed by the licensee: 

 
  ANIMAL SIZE   CAGE SPACE  HEIGHT 
 
  Cat up to 2 pounds  3 sq. ft.   24" 
 

Cat over 2 pounds  4 sq. ft.   24" 
 
Dog up to 7 pounds  8 sq. ft.   32" 
 
Dog 7 to 15 pounds  12 sq. ft.  36" 
 
Dog over 15 pounds  The height of a cage shall be the height of the dog 

over the shoulders (at the withers) plus 6". 
 

 Animals housed together shall be housed in accordance with the above schedule, 
the cage space required being determined by the cumulative weight of the group of 
animals. The size of the enclosure must be in compliance with requirements as set 
forth in CFR Title 9, Section 3.6, and generally accepted professional and 
husbandry practices. 

 
(f) Compatible groups:  Animals housed together shall be placed in compatible groups 

of the same sex, unless animals are from the same litter or of the same age and 
species and under six months of age.  Animals housed together shall be of 
approximate size.  The number of animals in a primary enclosure shall not exceed a 
number which would prevent proper ventilation and sanitation. 

 
12. Animal Health and Husbandry: 
 

(a) Feeding:  Animals shall have daily access to food according to their age and health.  
The food shall be free of contaminants, wholesome, palatable and of sufficient 
quantity and nutritive value to meet the normal daily requirements for condition and 
size of the animal.  Food receptacles shall be accessible to all animals and located 
to minimize contamination by excretion.  Feeding pans shall be durable and kept 
clean.  Disposable food receptacles may be used but shall be discarded after each 
feeding.  Self feeders may be used for the feeding of dry food and shall be sanitized 
regularly to prevent molding, deterioration or caking of food.  The following chart 
represents recommendations for daily feeding of healthy animals: 

 
  ANIMAL  AGE   * DAILY FEEDING 
 
  Adult dog  Over 6 mo.   Once daily 
 
  Puppy   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 



 

  

7

  Puppy   Under 4 mo.   Three times daily 
 
  Adult cat  Over 6 mo.   One daily 
 
  Kitten   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 
  Kitten   Under 4 mo.   Three times daily 
 
  (*In quantities according to animals' nutritional needs.) 
 

(b) Water:  All animals shall have daily access to potable, contaminant free water.  
Water shall be positioned to insure its availability without it being subject to tipping or 
contamination.  Water bowls or devices shall be affixed to cages and animals 
monitored to insure they receive necessary amounts of water. 

 
(c) Veterinary Services:  Licensee, agents, employees, or any other person responsible 

for maintaining the health of animals on licensee's premises shall seek the services 
of the veterinarian whenever a health hazard arises.  The veterinarian's name shall 
appear on the application for license or registration.  The City Clerk's Office shall be 
promptly notified of any change of veterinary services.  

 
(d) Quarantine Area Required:  Licensee shall designate and maintain an area separate 

and apart from the area(s) where healthy animals are housed for the purpose of 
housing any animal(s) suspected of carrying contagious  disease(s).  

 
13. Animals Suspected of Carrying Contagious Disease: 
 

(a) Observation:  No animal shall be sold, offered for sale, exchange or transfer if that 
animal is suspected to be infected with a contagious disease.  Any such animal, if it 
is to remain on pet shop premises, shall be housed in an observation or quarantined 
area in a room separate from the room or rooms housing animals offered to the 
public.  Such separation shall be for the period of time necessary to determine 
whether the animal is contagious.  

 
(b) Quarantined Areas:  Isolation Areas:  Persons responsible for care of animals shall 

use caution to protect healthy animals by instituting procedures to curtail the transfer 
of pathogenic organisms from suspected sick to healthy animals. 

 
(i) Care Procedures to be established:  Licensee shall establish a regime of 

caring for healthy animals to insure that they remain as disease free as 
possible.  Employees shall take particular caution not to transfer food, 
dishes, or other equipment from an observation or quarantine area to a 
healthy area. 

 
14. Animals Infected with Contagious Disease:  No pet shop shall keep upon the premises 

wherein healthy animals are housed, any animal known to be infected with a contagious 
disease. 

 



 

  

8

15. Other Prohibitions: 
 

(a) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of Dog, Cat Less than Eight Weeks Old:  A licensee 
agent, officer, employee of said licensee shall not import or cause to be imported 
into the State of Michigan or offer for sale or resale a dog or cat less than eight 
weeks old. 

 
(b) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of Dog, Cat Without Visible Deciduous Teeth:  No 

licensee, agent, employee, or officer of the licensee shall import or cause to be 
imported into the State of Michigan or offer for sale or resale a dog or cat unless the 
dog or cat has deciduous (baby) teeth visibly present. 

 
16. Return of Animal Refund: 
 

If within 7 business days from the date of purchase, a duly licensed veterinarian has 
certified in writing that the animal has a communicable debilitating disease including but not 
limited to distemper, leptospirosis, hepatitis, or other infectious disease substantially 
affecting the animal's  health or causing death of the animal, a purchaser of the animal  shall 
be entitled to return the animal to the pet shop.  Licensee shall either replace the animal or 
fully refund the amount of the purchase price. 

 
17. Licensee'sLicensee’s Presence Required Regularly: 
 

A licensee shall be present on the premises of a pet shop on a regular basis and shall be 
responsible for violations of this chapter. 

 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 75 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 75 – Pet Shops of 
the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 

CHAPTER 75 PET SHOPS 
 

1. Definitions: 
 

(a) Pet Shop Defined: 
 

A place where animals are sold or offered for sale, exchange or transfer.  This 
Ordinance is not applicable to the following: 

 
(i)  Residence premises where animals sold or offered for sale, exchange or 

transfer are exclusively those animals born and raised on the premises or 
those animals owned by the transferring party and are not sold or offered for 
sale, exchange or transfer in the ordinary course of business; 

 
  (ii) Duly organized humane societies; and  
 

(iii) Duly authorized animal control departments. 
 

(b) Animal: Any mammal except livestock as defined in Act No. 284 of the Public Act of 
1937, as amended, being Sections 287.121 to 287.131 of the Michigan Compiled 
Laws of 1948. 

 
(c) Animal Control Officer: The person or persons employed by the City of Troy as its 

enforcement officer(s). 
 

(d) Animal Control Appeal Board: Consists of five members appointed by the City 
Council for three overlapping terms. 

 
2. License Required: 
 

No person shall operate a pet shop within the City of Troy without first obtaining a license.  
License application forms with a copy of this ordinance, will be available at the City Clerk's 
Office. License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City 
of Troy Code of Ordinances and must accompany each license application.  All existing 
establishments within the definition of Section 2(1)(a) must complete a license application 
within 30 days of the effective date of this Ordinance; existing establishments shall comply 
with the requirements of this Ordinance as any new license applicant. 

  
(a) Display of License:  A valid license must be framed under glass and shall be 



 

  

2

prominently displayed in full view of the licensed premises.  Licensee's name must 
be plainly visible on the license.  The phone number of the Animal Control Officer 
must also be plainly visible. 

 
3. Inspection; Certification by Animal Control Officer: 
 

The applicant shall demonstrate that the pet shop in question complies with all requirements 
of this Chapter.  The Animal Control Officer shall conduct an inspection of applicant's 
premises.  An application shall obtain certification by the Animal Control Officer before his 
application is to be considered. 

   
4. Licensee's Duty to Comply with all Requirements of this Chapter; Violation as 

Misdemeanor: 
 

A licensee must at all times comply with the requirements of this Ordinance.  The penalty for 
failure to comply is a misdemeanor, and may subject licensee to a fine of up to $500.00 and 
costs and/or 90 days in jail.  Any sentence that may be imposed does not preclude the City 
of Troy from taking any action to suspend and/or revoke the license in question. 

 
5. Licensee's Duty to Cease Operations during Period of Suspension; Revocation: 
 

During any period of suspension or revocation, a licensee, anyone with a financial interest in 
licensee's business, any agent, employee, servant or officer of licensee shall not sell or offer 
for sale, exchange or transfer, any animal within the scope of licensee's business.  A 
licensee's premises shall remain closed to members of the public.  Licensee must take 
whatever steps are necessary during any suspension or revocation period to meet the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
6. Animal Control Officer's Right to Impound Animals: 
 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right to impound any animal within the scope of 
licensee's business which has been mistreated, abused, neglected or abandoned as a 
result of licensee's failure to comply with the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
Impounded animals shall be properly housed in a shelter for animals and confined in a 
humane manner.  Animals must be reclaimed within a period of ten (10) business days; 
animals may be returned to licensee only after a proper showing of compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter.  Animals not returned to licensee within a period of ten (10) 
business days shall be humanely disposed of by the Animal Control Officer or by an agency 
delegated by him to exercise that authority.  Licensee shall remain responsible to the City of 
Troy for all costs or care, feeding and sheltering during any impound period, and costs of 
disposal, if any. 

 
7. Records: 
 

For each dog and cat sold or offered for sale, exchange or transfer, licensee shall maintain 
records of the following: 

 



 

  

3

(a) Health Certificate:  A certificate in which a competent and duly licensed veterinarian 
attests to:  the age, sex, breed and description of the animal, including its color and 
approximate weight, and to the fact that at the time of preparation of the certificate, 
the veterinarian examined the animal and found the animal to be free from 
detectable evidence of communicable disease. 

 
 (b) Proof of Requisite Inoculation:  Inoculation Requirements - Dogs:  A dog shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee or officer of a 
licensee unless the dog has been inoculated against distemper, hepatitis, 
leptospirosis, para influenza, and if indicated, has been treated for external and 
internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of Michigan.  
Proof of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee in the 
regular course of business and said records made available for inspection by a 
potential purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 
Appeal Board and any other duly authorized representative of the City of Troy.  Any 
dog sold, exchanged or transferred by a licensee, agent, employee or officer of a 
licensee shall be accompanied by a Health Certificate, as described above, 
including records of the dog's medication and immunization. 

 
(c) Proof of Requisite Inoculation; Inoculation Requirements - Cats: A cat shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee, officer of 
licensee, unless the cat has been inoculated against feline panleukopenia (cat 
distemper), rinotraecheitis, caliciviruses and if indicated, has been treated for 
external and internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of 
Michigan.  Proof of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee 
in the regular course of business and said records made available for inspection by 
a potential purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 
Appeal Board and any other duly authorized representative of the City of Troy.  Any 
cat sold, exchanged or transferred by a licensee shall be accompanied by a Health 
Certificate, as described above, including records of the cat's medication and 
immunization. 
(Rev. 11-14-83) 

 
(d) Name and address of the person from whom the animal was acquired. 

 
 (e) Date of acquisition. 
 

(f) Name and address of the person to whom it was sold or otherwise disposed of. 
 

(g) Date, Nature and Method of Disposition:  By sale, death, euthanasia, donation or 
other. 

 
 Said records shall be maintained by the licensee for a period of two years from the 

date the animal was first acquired.  Said records shall be made available to the City 
Clerk's Office, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control Appeal Board, or any 
other authorized representative of the City of Troy during regular business hours. 

 
8. Indoor Facilities: 



 

  

4

 
(a) Generally:  Housing facilities for animals shall be structurally sound and maintained 

in good repair to protect the animals from injury, to contain the animals, and to 
restrict the entrance of other animals. 

 
(b) Heating, Cooling, and Temperature:  Indoor housing facilities for dogs and cats must 

be sufficiently heated and cooled when necessary to protect the dogs and cats from 
temperature or humidity extremes and to provide for their health and well-being.  
When dogs or cats are present, the ambient temperature in the facility must not fall 
below 50 degrees F (10 degrees C) for dogs and cats not acclimated to lower 
temperatures, for those breeds that cannot tolerate lower temperatures without 
stress or discomfort (such as short-haired breeds) and for sick, aged, young, or 
infirm dogs and cats, except as approved by the attending veterinarian.  Dry 
bedding, solid resting boards, or other methods of conserving body heat must be 
provided when temperatures are below 50 degrees F (10 degrees C) when dogs or 
cats are present, and must not rise above 85 degrees F (29.5 degrees C) or higher.  
The relative humidity must be maintained at a level that ensures the health and well-
being of the dogs or cats housed therein, in accordance with the directions of the 
attending veterinarian and generally accepted professional and husbandry 
practices. 

 
 

 
(c) Ventilation:  Indoor housing facilities for dogs and cats must be sufficiently ventilated 

at all times when dogs or cats are present to provide for their health and well-being, 
and to minimize odors, drafts, ammonia levels, and moisture condensation.  
Ventilation must be provided by windows, vets, fans, or air conditioning.  Auxiliary 
ventilation, such as fans, blowers, or air conditioning, must be provided when the 
ambient temperature is 85 degrees F (29.5 degrees C) or higher.  The relative 
humidity must be maintained at a level that ensures the health and well-being of the 
dogs or cats housed therein, in accordance with the directions of the attending 
veterinarian and generally accepted professional and husbandry practices.  

 
(d) Light:  An indoor housing facility for animals shall have ample light and be of good 

quality, either by natural or artificial means or both.  The lighting shall provide 
uniformly distributed illumination of sufficient intensity to permit routine inspection 
and cleaning throughout the working period. Primary enclosures shall be so placed 
as to protect the animals from excessive illumination. 

 
9. Outdoor Facilities:  
 

(a) Shade:  When sunlight is likely to cause overheating or discomfort, sufficient shade 
shall be provided to allow animals to protect themselves from the direct rays of the 
sun. 

 
(b) Shelter:  An access to shelter shall be provided to allow animals protection in 

inclement weather. 
 



 

  

5

(c) Drainage:  Outside shelters shall be located in areas having suitable drainage. 
 
10. Sanitation: 
 

(a) Cages and equipment:  Animal cages and equipment shall be washed and sanitized as 
often as necessary to keep them clean and free from contamination.  One of the 
following methods must be used:   

i. live steam under pressure; or  
ii. washing with hot water(at least 180 degrees F (82.2 degrees C) and 

soap or detergent, as with a mechanical cage washer; or  
iii. washing all soiled surfaces with appropriate detergent solutions and 

disinfectants, or by using a combination detergent/disinfectant product 
that accomplishes the same purpose, with a thorough cleaning of the 
surfaces to remove organic material, so as to remove all organic material 
and mineral build-up, and to provide sanitation followed by a clean water 
rinse.  

 
(b) Litter and bedding:  All animal enclosures shall be given regular sanitary 

maintenance.  Litter and bedding shall be changed at least daily and more often if 
necessary to allow animals to remain dry and clean and to minimize odors. 

 
(c) Equipment other than cages and enclosures:  All other equipment and 

implements, including food and water, shall be kept in a sanitary condition.  
Waste containers shall also be kept in a sanitary condition and shall be washed 
when emptied with water at least 180°F and/or with chemical disinfectant. 

 
(d) Facilities other than cages or enclosures:  All other areas of said pet shop, including 

hallways and storage areas shall be kept clean, neat and unlittered.  Detergents and 
disinfectants shall be used to keep them free from dirt, debris, and other harmful 
contaminants. 

  
(e) Surfaces to consist of readily sanitizable materials:  The indoor building surfaces of 

all indoor housing facilities shall be constructed of materials which may be readily 
sanitized. 

 
(f) Proper drainage necessary:  A suitable method shall be provided to eliminate 

excess water from indoor housing facilities.  Drains shall be properly constructed 
and kept in good repair to avoid foul odors.  Closed drainage systems shall be 
equipped with traps and installed to prevent back-ups. 

 
11. Primary Enclosures: 
 

(a) Generally:  All primary enclosures used for holding animals shall be structurally 
sound and maintained in good repair to protect animals from injury, to contain them, 
to keep predators out and to enable animals to remain dry and clean.  

 
(b) Sound construction:  All enclosures shall be of sound construction and made from 

material capable of facilitating effective sanitation.  Suggested nonporous materials 



 

  

6

include aluminum, steel and fiberglass. 
 

(c) Access to clean food and water:  A primary enclosure shall be constructed and 
maintained so that animals kept have convenient access to clean food and water. 

 
(d) Type of enclosure:  All primary enclosures shall be kept in good repair.  Enclosures 

with shaper edges, broken wires, broken snaps, unconnected sides, rust and any 
other defects shall not be used.  The purpose of this is to protect the animals from 
injury.  Portable cages are prohibited, including airport transit cages and wire cages 
with top access secured by clasps. 

 
(e) Size of enclosures:  A primary enclosure shall provide adequate room for the animal 

or animals housed, allowing each animal sufficient space to turn about freely and to 
easily stand, sit and lie in a comfortable normal position.  The size of the enclosure 
must be in compliance with requirements as set forth in CFR Title 9, Section 3.6, 
and generally accepted professional and husbandry practices. 

 
(f) Compatible groups:  Animals housed together shall be placed in compatible groups 

of the same sex, unless animals are from the same litter or of the same age and 
species and under six months of age.  Animals housed together shall be of 
approximate size.  The number of animals in a primary enclosure shall not exceed a 
number which would prevent proper ventilation and sanitation. 

 
12. Animal Health and Husbandry: 
 

(a) Feeding:  Animals shall have daily access to food according to their age and health.  
The food shall be free of contaminants, wholesome, palatable and of sufficient 
quantity and nutritive value to meet the normal daily requirements for condition and 
size of the animal.  Food receptacles shall be accessible to all animals and located 
to minimize contamination by excretion.  Feeding pans shall be durable and kept 
clean.  Disposable food receptacles may be used but shall be discarded after each 
feeding.  Self feeders may be used for the feeding of dry food and shall be sanitized 
regularly to prevent molding, deterioration or caking of food.  The following chart 
represents recommendations for daily feeding of healthy animals: 

 
  ANIMAL  AGE   * DAILY FEEDING 
 
  Adult dog  Over 6 mo.   Once daily 
 
  Puppy   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 
  Puppy   Under 4 mo.   Three times daily 
 
  Adult cat  Over 6 mo.   One daily 
 
  Kitten   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 
  Kitten   Under 4 mo.   Three times daily 



 

  

7

 
  (*In quantities according to animals' nutritional needs.) 
 

(b) Water:  All animals shall have daily access to potable, contaminant free water.  
Water shall be positioned to insure its availability without it being subject to tipping or 
contamination.  Water bowls or devices shall be affixed to cages and animals 
monitored to insure they receive necessary amounts of water. 

 
(c) Veterinary Services:  Licensee, agents, employees, or any other person responsible 

for maintaining the health of animals on licensee's premises shall seek the services 
of the veterinarian whenever a health hazard arises.  The veterinarian's name shall 
appear on the application for license or registration.  The City Clerk's Office shall be 
promptly notified of any change of veterinary services.  

 
(d) Quarantine Area Required:  Licensee shall designate and maintain an area separate 

and apart from the area(s) where healthy animals are housed for the purpose of 
housing any animal(s) suspected of carrying contagious  disease(s).  

 
13. Animals Suspected of Carrying Contagious Disease: 
 

(a) Observation:  No animal shall be sold, offered for sale, exchange or transfer if that 
animal is suspected to be infected with a contagious disease.  Any such animal, if it 
is to remain on pet shop premises, shall be housed in an observation or quarantined 
area in a room separate from the room or rooms housing animals offered to the 
public.  Such separation shall be for the period of time necessary to determine 
whether the animal is contagious.  

 
(b) Quarantined Areas:  Isolation Areas:  Persons responsible for care of animals shall 

use caution to protect healthy animals by instituting procedures to curtail the transfer 
of pathogenic organisms from suspected sick to healthy animals.  No pet shop shall 
keep any animal known to be infected with a contagious disease in an 
unquarantined area.  

 
(i) Care Procedures to be established:  Licensee shall establish a regime of 

caring for healthy animals to insure that they remain as disease free as 
possible.  Employees shall take particular caution not to transfer food, 
dishes, or other equipment from an observation or quarantine area to a 
healthy area. 

 
 
 
14. Other Prohibitions: 
 

(a) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of Dog, Cat Less than Eight Weeks Old:  A licensee 
agent, officer, employee of said licensee shall not import or cause to be imported 
into the State of Michigan or offer for sale or resale a dog or cat less than eight 
weeks old. 

 



 

  

8

(b) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of Dog, Cat Without Visible Deciduous Teeth:  No 
licensee, agent, employee, or officer of the licensee shall import or cause to be 
imported into the State of Michigan or offer for sale or resale a dog or cat unless the 
dog or cat has deciduous (baby) teeth visibly present. 

 
15. Return of Animal Refund: 
 

If within 7 business days from the date of purchase, a duly licensed veterinarian has 
certified in writing that the animal has a communicable debilitating disease including but not 
limited to distemper, leptospirosis, hepatitis, or other infectious disease substantially 
affecting the animal's health or causing death of the animal, a purchaser of the animal  shall 
be entitled to return the animal to the pet shop.  Licensee shall either replace the animal or 
fully refund the amount of the purchase price. 

 
16. Licensee’s Presence Required Regularly: 
 

A licensee shall be present on the premises of a pet shop on a regular basis and shall be 
responsible for violations of this chapter. 

 
 
 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

1 

CHAPTER 98 – CRIMINAL CODE 
     

HEADINGS, DEFINITIONS, PENALTIES AND AID AND ABET 
 
98.01.01 Section Headings and Ordinance Titles.  Section headings and ordinance 

titles provided in bold are not part of this Chapter and are not to be used in 
the interpretation of this ordinance. 

 
98.01.02.1 Definitions.  The following definitions are to be used in this Chapter: 
 
  “Alcoholic liquor” includes any spirituous, vinous, malt, or fermented liquor, 

liquids and compounds, whether or not medicated, proprietary, patented, and 
by whatever name called, containing ½ of 1% or more of alcohol by volume, 
which are fit for use for beverage purposes. 

 
  “Dating relationship” means frequent, intimate associations primarily 

characterized by the expectation of affectional involvement.  This term does 
not include a casual relationship or an ordinary fraternization between two 
individuals in a business or social context. 

 
 (Rev. 04-08-02) 

 
“Domestic assault and battery” includes an individual who assaults or 
assaults and batters his or her spouse or former spouse, an individual 
which whom he or she has or has had a dating relationship, an individual 
with whom he or she has had a child in common, or a resident or former 
resident of his or her household. 

 
  (Rev. 04-08-02) 
 

"Firearm" includes any weapon from which a dangerous projectile may be 
propelled by using explosives, gas or air as a means of propulsion. 
 
“Hunt” includes seeking, provoking, pursuing or taking any animal. 

 
“Normal average retail price” is that price at which similar merchandise 
was sold during the ninety (90) days immediately preceding a declared 
emergency, or at a mark-up which is a larger percentage over wholesale 
cost than was added to wholesale cost prior to a declared emergency. 
 
“Person” includes any individual, co-partnership, corporation, association, 
club, joint venture, estate, trust, and any other group or combination acting 
as a unit, and the individuals constituting such group or unit. 
 
“Picket” or picketing” includes, standing, sitting, lying, walking, running, or 
otherwise moving, on a public right-of-way, to convey an opinion or 
message. These terms also include posting a person at a particular place 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

2 

to communicate to the public vocally or by any other means an opinion or 
message. 

 
“Public place” includes any street, alley, park, public building, any place of 
business or assembly open to or frequented by the public, and any other 
place which is open to the public view, or to which the public has access. 
 
“Principal” is a person who commits an offense punishable by this code. 
 
"School property" includes any public, private, or parochial school building 
or any building owned, occupied, or otherwise utilized by any public, 
private, or parochial school, and expressly includes the grounds, 
outbuildings, fences, trees, shrubbery, equipment, personal property, or 
other appurtenances, fixtures, or improvements, attached or in any way 
belonging thereto. 
 
“Telecommunications device” means any instrument, equipment,  
machine, or device that facilitates telecommunications, including but not 
limited to a computer, computer chip or circuit, telephone, cellular 
telephone, pager, personal communications device, transponder, receiver, 
radio, modem, or device that enables use of a modem. 
 
“Trap” includes hunting, confining, taking or entrapping any animal by 
means of any trap, snare, bait, hook or other device. 
 

98.01.03 Penalties.  In addition to the penalties provided in each section of Chapter 
98, the court may impose any sanction or remedial measure provided in 
state law for misdemeanor offenses.  

 
98.01.04 Aid and Abet.  A person who aids, abets, counsels, commands, or 

procures the commission of a violation of this code shall be punished as if 
that person were the principal.   

 
HUNTING 

 
98.07.01 Hunting.    No person shall hunt any animal.  A person who violates this 

section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the 
county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500, or 
both. 
 
Exception.  Police Officers and Animal Control Officers are authorized to 
use shell crackers or other noise making devices to control geese and 
migratory waterfowl.   

 
98.07.02 Trapping.   No persons shall trap any animal.  A person who violates this 

section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

3 

county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500, or 
both. 

 
 Exceptions:  This section shall not apply to the following:  
 

a) Persons may trap small rodents such as mice, rats and 
moles with any type of trap. 

 
b) Persons licensed by the State to trap may trap subject to the 

following: 
 

1) Only live traps that cannot kill or injure animals or persons 
may be used. 

 
2)All traps must be permanently marked with the owner’s 

name and a telephone number where the owner or 
owner’s agent can be contacted 24 hours a day.  

 
3)All traps must be checked at least every 24 hours. 

 
c) Persons authorized by State law or regulation may trap animals. 
 
d) Police Officers and Animal Control Officers are authorized to use 
   traps to capture wild or domestic birds or animals that are running 
at large or have become a public nuisance.   



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

CHAPTER 98 – CRIMINAL CODE 
     

HEADINGS, DEFINITIONS, PENALTIES AND AID AND ABET 
 
98.01.01 Section Headings and Ordinance Titles.  Section headings and ordinance 

titles provided in bold are not part of this Chapter and are not to be used in 
the interpretation of this ordinance. 

 
98.01.02.1 Definitions.  The following definitions are to be used in this Chapter: 
 
  “Alcoholic liquor” includes any spirituous, vinous, malt, or fermented liquor, 

liquids and compounds, whether or not medicated, proprietary, patented, and 
by whatever name called, containing ½ of 1% or more of alcohol by volume, 
which are fit for use for beverage purposes. 

 
  “Dating relationship” means frequent, intimate associations primarily 

characterized by the expectation of affectional involvement.  This term does 
not include a casual relationship or an ordinary fraternization between two 
individuals in a business or social context. 

 
 (Rev. 04-08-02) 

 
“Domestic assault and battery” includes an individual who assaults or 
assaults and batters his or her spouse or former spouse, an individual 
which whom he or she has or has had a dating relationship, an individual 
with whom he or she has had a child in common, or a resident or former 
resident of his or her household. 

 
  (Rev. 04-08-02) 
 

"Firearm" includes any weapon from which a dangerous projectile may be 
propelled by using explosives, gas or air as a means of propulsion. 
 

 
“Normal average retail price” is that price at which similar merchandise 
was sold during the ninety (90) days immediately preceding a declared 
emergency, or at a mark-up which is a larger percentage over wholesale 
cost than was added to wholesale cost prior to a declared emergency. 
 
“Person” includes any individual, co-partnership, corporation, association, 
club, joint venture, estate, trust, and any other group or combination acting 
as a unit, and the individuals constituting such group or unit. 
 
“Picket” or picketing” includes, standing, sitting, lying, walking, running, or 
otherwise moving, on a public right-of-way, to convey an opinion or 
message. These terms also include posting a person at a particular place 

1 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

to communicate to the public vocally or by any other means an opinion or 
message. 

 
“Public place” includes any street, alley, park, public building, any place of 
business or assembly open to or frequented by the public, and any other 
place which is open to the public view, or to which the public has access. 
 
“Principal” is a person who commits an offense punishable by this code. 
 
"School property" includes any public, private, or parochial school building 
or any building owned, occupied, or otherwise utilized by any public, 
private, or parochial school, and expressly includes the grounds, 
outbuildings, fences, trees, shrubbery, equipment, personal property, or 
other appurtenances, fixtures, or improvements, attached or in any way 
belonging thereto. 
 
“Telecommunications device” means any instrument, equipment,  
machine, or device that facilitates telecommunications, including but not 
limited to a computer, computer chip or circuit, telephone, cellular 
telephone, pager, personal communications device, transponder, receiver, 
radio, modem, or device that enables use of a modem. 
 
 

98.01.03 Penalties.  In addition to the penalties provided in each section of Chapter 
98, the court may impose any sanction or remedial measure provided in 
state law for misdemeanor offenses.  

 
98.01.04 Aid and Abet.  A person who aids, abets, counsels, commands, or 

procures the commission of a violation of this code shall be punished as if 
that person were the principal.   

 
  

2 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 11, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
    Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance  

Renewal for Fiscal Year 2007/2008 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The City is in receipt of a renewal package from the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ 

Compensation Fund (MML WCF) which includes an improved experience discount from 
our own claims history as well as a dividend distribution attributable to Fund members 
overall. 

 In March of 2003, City Management engaged independent insurance counselor, Mr. 
Angelo Zervos to evaluate the current state of the City’s workers’ compensation program.   

 His evaluation indicated the MML WCF program would cost the City less than if we were 
self-insured or went to the commercial marketplace.    

 The MML WCF belongs to a larger non-profit captive mutual insurance company, the 
National League of Cities Mutual.   

 The NLC Mutual Company annually takes competitive bids from re-insurers.  As of 
January 1, 2007 the re-insurer and Best rating is: Safety National Casualty Corporation 
(A). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The initial renewal premium to the City for FY 07/08 is $358,026.  
 After applying the dividend distribution check of $97,672 the net cost to the City for FY 

07/08 is $260,354.  
 The City’s overall cost for FY 07/08 of $260,354 compares with FY 06/07 of $246,041 and 

$444,846 for FY 05/06 and $588,653 for FY 04/05. 
 Funds are available in the Workers’ Compensation Fund. 

 
Legal Considerations: 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



 
 As an employer, the State of Michigan requires the City of Troy to provide workers’ 

disability compensation under Public Act 317 of 1969. 
 The MML WCF provides legal expertise and defense as part of their services, which are 

included in their premium. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The dividend distribution and decrease in the City’s experience modifier (from .69 to .60) 

provide the City with continued sound financial position without the increased risk of being 
self-insured. (Goal #2) 

 City Management’s fiscal responsibility to City Council and our residents is best served by 
continuing the relationship with the MML WCF. (Goal #2) 

 
Options: 
 
 It is Risk Management’s recommendation that City Council approve the renewal of the 

City’s workers’ compensation coverage with the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ 
Compensation Fund  (MML WCF) for the net cost in fiscal year 2007-08 of $260,354. 





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
April 9, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   Mark S. Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
   John K. Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
   Steve A. Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Engineering/Design 

Services – Inter-Modal Transit Center 
 
Background 
 The City of Troy has contracted with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for the 

planning and design of a new rail passenger Inter-modal Transit facility along the existing Amtrak 
route between the borders of Troy and Birmingham.   

 On November 10, 2007, statements of qualifications (SOQ) were received to provide conceptual 
and preliminary engineering /design services for an inter-modal transit facility. 

 188 vendors were notified via the MITN e-procurement website and three (3) vendors walked-in to 
pick-up copies.  Eleven (11) companies responded with two statements of no bid received.   

 Engineering services are considered a professional service, a “human commodity” whose 
knowledge, experience, and ability to perform the job at hand is not readily quantifiable.  
Therefore, a QBS multi-step process was utilized to establish a contract with the highest rated 
firm.   

 First, statements of qualifications were evaluated, a short list established, short-listed vendors 
interviewed, then the vendor scores were ranked from highest to lowest.  In the final step, the 
pricing proposal of the highest rated firm was opened and negotiations ensued. 

 A competitive contract was successfully negotiated with the highest rated firm, Wendel 
Duchscherer of Amherst, NY.    

 
Financial Considerations 
 MDOT will reimburse the City for eligible project costs not to exceed $350,000.00.  Funds for the 

balance are available in the City Hall Transportation Center, Account #401265.7975.035. 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



Page 2 of 2 

April 9, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Qualification Based Selection – Inter-Modal Transit Facility 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 SOQ-COT-06-01 was competitively solicited and all vendors were given the opportunity to 

respond with their level of interest in providing engineering/design services for the inter-modal 
transit facility.   

 The award recommendation is based on the best-qualified consultant as a result of a QBS 
process. 

 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 
supplemental documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 The consultant will focus on improving the attractiveness, reliability, safety, and economic 

efficiency of rail passenger service.  (Goal 1 & 2) 
 The project was designed to encourage the development of a passenger facility that will increase 

rail travel and expand inter-modal transit coordination and integration with other transit / para-
transit modes. (Goal 3 & 5) 

 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a contract for engineering/design services for the inter-

modal transit facility to Wendel Duchscherer of Amherst, New York, the highest rated firm, as a 
result of a qualification based selection process at an estimated total cost of $415,814.00.  

 
 
Approved as to Form:   _________________________ 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Inter-Modal Transit Facility 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One-Hundred Forty-One (141) Firms notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Eleven (11) proposals were received 

 
 Six (6) proposals were short listed and brought in for interviews 

 
 Wendell Duchscherer was the most qualified firm by receiving the highest weighted score 

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Firm SCORE 
Wendell Duchscherer 87 
Mannik Smith 85 
Parsons Brinkeroff 84 
Carter & Burgess 82 
URS 82 
FTC & H  80 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION  
(BASED ON QUALIFICATIONS SCORE) 
 

 Corradino     79 
 Spalding Dedecker  75 
 Rosetti   73 
 Ehresman   67 
 Giffels    66 
  

Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Qualification Statement and Interview 
Scoring 

 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

           Inter-Modal Transit Facility 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
40% x Qualifications Statement Score 
60% x Interview Score                           
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in interview order.   

 
Weighted Average Score for Qualifications: 40% 
RATERS 1 2 3 4 5 AVERAGE 
Vendors:       
Mannik & Smith Group 67 100 74 87 83 82 
FTC & H 75 99 67 84 87 82 
Parsons Brinkerhoff 79 93 82 89 80 85 
Carter Burgess 70 100 78 89 80 83 
URS  70 95 75 85 83 82 
Wendell Duchscherer 82 75 79 92 77 81 
 
Interview Score:  60%  

Raters: 1 2 3 4 AVERAGE 
Vendors:      
Mannik & Smith Group 91 86 77 89 86 
FTC & H 85 79 76 73 78 
Parsons Brinkeroff 91 76 77 87 83 
Carter Burgess 95 77 69 84 81 
URS 79 83 81 81 81 
Wendell Duchscherer 96 87 89 97 92 
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: Mannik & 

Smith 
Group 

FTC & H Parsons 
Brinkeroff 

Carter 
Burgess 

URS **Wendell 
Duchscherer 

Score       
Qualifications Score:  
(x .40) = 

82 x .40 = 
33 

82 x .40 = 
33 

85 x .40 = 
34 

83 x .40 = 
33 

82 x .40 = 
33 

81 x .40 = 32 

       
Interview Score:          
(x .60) = 

86 x .60 = 
52 

78 x .60 = 
47 

83 x .60 = 
50 

81 x .60 = 
49 

81 x .60 = 
49 

92 x .60  =  55 

       

Final Score:  85 80 84 82 82 87 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Inter-Modal Transit Facility – WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
negotiate a final contract (pending City Council approval) with the most qualified firm based upon a 
combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the SOQ 
C. Financial strength of the firm 
D. Correlation of the SOQ submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Firms will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.  (Evaluation Sheet Proposal) 
 
Phase 2:  Statement of Qualifications Evaluation 
Each City Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Statement 
of Qualifications; each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the 
Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Interview Score 

 At least, the top three (3) rated firms will be invited to participate in an interview.  Each City Committee 
member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each Committee Member 
will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for 
each firm for this phase of the process.    Those being interviewed may be supplied with further instructions 
and requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the firm at the interview must be the personnel who 
will be assigned to this project.   
 
Phase 4:  Final Scoring and Selection 
The firm with the highest final weighted score  will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award. 
 
   40% x Qualifications Statement Score (100 point base) 
   60% x Interview Score (100 point base)    = 
       100%                Final Weighted Score  
 
Phase 5:  Price   

 The separately sealed envelope containing the pricing page of the highest rated firm will be opened to 
determine the contract cost.  The parties will determine the final Scope of Work and negotiate the final terms 
and conditions of the contract.  If the parties cannot reach agreement as to the final contract terms and 
conditions of the contract, the City of Troy reserves the right to start negotiations with the next highest rated 
firm.  The process will continue until both parties sign a contract or the Quality Based Selection process is 
rejected and new Statement of Qualification documents are sought. 

 
Note:   
The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed in the 
City’s best interest to do so. 



CITY OF TROY SOQ-COT 06-01
Opening Date -- 11/10/06 SOQ TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/13/07 TRANSIT FACILITY

FIRM NAME: WENDELL MANNIK PARSONS CARTER
DUCHSCHERER SMITH BRINKEROFF & BURGESS

PROPOSAL: STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONCEPT AND PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING/DESIGN
             SERVICES FOR AN INTER-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY.
QUALIFICATIONS CONTENT

5 Copies Y or N YES YES YES YES

Insurance; Completed (Page 1 of 2) Y or N 1/2 YES YES YES 1/2 YES

Indemnification; Insurance - Completed Y or N 1/2 YES YES YES 1/2 YES
(Page 2 of 2)

Signature Page; Completed (Signed 3 x) Y or N YES YES YES YES

A. Transmittal Letter Y or N YES YES YES YES

B. Firm Information Y or N YES YES YES YES

C. Project Approach Y or N YES YES YES YES

D. Team Membership Y or N YES YES YES YES

E. Technical Experience Y or N YES YES YES YES

F. References Y or N YES YES YES YES

G. Pricing - (Sealed Separtate Envelope w/ Y or N YES YES YES YES
  Company Name Identified)

NO BIDS:
TY Lin International Great Lakes Inc
John Tagle Assoc Inc

ATTEST:
Cheryl Stewart
Steve Vandette Susan Leirstein
John Abraham Purchasing Director
Mark Stimac
Linda Bockstanz
Jeanette Bennett

G:SOQ-COT 06-01 - TRANSIT FACILITY



CITY OF TROY SOQ-COT 06-01
Opening Date -- 11/10/06 SOQ TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/13/07 TRANSIT FACILITY

FIRM NAME: URS FTC&H CORRADINO SPALDING
GROUP DEDECKER

PROPOSAL: STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONCEPT AND PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING/DESIGN
             SERVICES FOR AN INTER-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY.
QUALIFICATIONS CONTENT

5 Copies Y or N YES YES YES YES

Insurance; Completed (Page 1 of 2) Y or N 1/2 YES YES YES YES

Indemnification; Insurance - Completed Y or N 1/2 YES YES YES 1/2 YES
(Page 2 of 2)

Signature Page; Completed (Signed 3 x) Y or N YES YES YES YES

A. Transmittal Letter Y or N YES YES YES YES

B. Firm Information Y or N YES YES YES YES

C. Project Approach Y or N YES YES YES YES

D. Team Membership Y or N YES YES YES YES

E. Technical Experience Y or N YES YES YES YES

F. References Y or N YES YES YES YES

G. Pricing - (Sealed Separtate Envelope w/ Y or N YES YES YES YES
  Company Name Identified)



CITY OF TROY SOQ-COT 06-01
Opening Date -- 11/10/06 SOQ TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/13/07 TRANSIT FACILITY

FIRM NAME: ROSSETTI EHRESMAN GIFFELS
ASSOC INC INC

PROPOSAL: STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONCEPT AND PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING/DESIGN
             SERVICES FOR AN INTER-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY.
QUALIFICATIONS CONTENT

5 Copies Y or N YES YES YES

Insurance; Completed (Page 1 of 2) Y or N YES YES YES

Indemnification; Insurance - Completed Y or N YES NO YES
(Page 2 of 2)

Signature Page; Completed (Signed 3 x) Y or N 1/2 YES YES 1/2 YES

A. Transmittal Letter Y or N YES YES YES

B. Firm Information Y or N YES YES YES

C. Project Approach Y or N YES YES YES

D. Team Membership Y or N YES YES YES

E. Technical Experience Y or N YES YES YES

F. References Y or N YES YES YES

G. Pricing - (Sealed Separtate Envelope w/ Y or N YES YES YES
  Company Name Identified)















 - 1 - 

AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT entered into on _____________________, 2007, between 

the CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, hereinafter referred to 

as the “City”, and WENDEL DUCHSCHERER, 140 John James Audubon 

Parkway Suite 201, Amherst, New York, hereinafter referred to as the “Design 

and Engineering Consultant” is to provide conceptual and preliminary 

engineering/design services for an Inter-modal Transit Facility as follows:

 WITNESSETH: 

Whereas, the Design and Engineering Consultant has professional 

qualifications that meet generally accepted standards and guidelines for the 

industry, in accordance with the Statement of Qualifications - SOQ-COT 06-01, 

Inter-modal Transit Facility, which has been accepted by the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the respective 

agreements and undertakings herein contained, the parties agree as follows: 

1. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that this 

Agreement incorporates by reference as though fully set out herein the following 

documents: Statement of Qualifications - SOQ-COT 06-01, Inter-modal Transit 

Facility, dated November 10, 2006, including all addenda attached hereto as 

Exhibit A; the prime contract between MDOT and the City of Troy attached 

hereto as Exhibit B; Derivation of Cost Proposal – Exhibit C; and Wendel 

Duchscherer fee proposal and scope of work – Exhibit D and shall be binding 

upon all parties hereto.  If any of the documents are in conflict with one another, 

the Agreement shall take precedence.   



 - 2 - 

All provisions of the prime contract between MDOT and the City of Troy are 

hereby incorporated in this contract. 

2. The City shall pay the Design and Engineering Consultant for the 

performance of this Agreement and the Scope of Work as set forth in the 

Statement of Qualifications - SOQ-COT 06-01, Inter-modal Transit Facility and 

Exhibit D, for actual costs plus fixed fee in an amount not to exceed $ 415,814.00 

which includes a fixed fee amount of $ 14,819.00 to be paid on a phase 

completion basis for the work completed and accepted by the City at the time of 

invoicing.   Detailed billing will be required which minimally includes the project 

name, service(s) provided, a detailed breakdown of deliverables and allowable 

expenses.  Work outside the scope of work contained in this Agreement will not 

be performed unless and until the City provides the Design and Engineering 

Consultant an authorized signed change order.   

3. This Agreement shall commence work upon execution by both  

parties, unless the City exercises its option to terminate the Agreement in 

accordance with the Statement of Qualifications - SOQ-COT 06-01, Inter-modal 

Transit Facility.  The project is scheduled for completion in 6-18 months 

depending upon the outcome of the environmental process for this project. 

 4. The Design and Engineering Consultant and the City agree that the 

Design and Engineering Consultant is acting as an independent contractor with 

respect to the Design and Engineering Consultant’s role in providing services to 

the City pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own 

actions and neither the Design and Engineering Consultant nor its employees 



 - 3 - 

shall be construed as employees of the City.  Nothing contained in this 

Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and neither 

party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, power or authority to act 

or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other party, except 

as specifically outlined herein.  Neither the City nor the Design and Engineering 

Consultant shall be considered or construed to be the agent of the other, nor 

shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as 

specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a contract of agency.  The Design and Engineering Consultant shall 

not be considered entitled or eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges 

given or extended by the City, or be deemed an employee of the City for 

purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, unemployment, 

workers’ compensation or any other employer contributions on behalf of the City. 

5. The Design and Engineering Consultant shall have no authority of  

power to assign, sublet or transfer any rights, privileges, or interest under the 

terms of this Agreement without prior written consent of the City. 

6. The Design and Engineering Consultant shall conform to all 

applicable laws, ordinances, City standards and statutes of the Federal 

Government, State of Michigan and City of Troy.   

7. The project is subject to the provisions of 49 CFR Part 265 – 

Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Railroad Projects and the State of 

Michigan provisions for “Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts”, as set 

forth in Appendix A, dated March 1998.  The City agrees to comply with the Civil 



 - 4 - 

Rights Act of 1964, being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241 as amended, being Title 42 

USC Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6, and the Regulations of 

the Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R. Part 21) issued pursuant to said 

Act, including Appendix B, dated June 2003.  This provision will be included in all 

subcontracts relating to the MDOT Agreement.   

8. The Design and Engineering Consultant will not discriminate 

against any individual or group because of race, sex, religion, age, national 

origin, marital status, or handicap.  This statement is being made for the purpose 

of conforming to the MDOT Inter-modal Passenger Station Capital Agreement, 

Contract No. 2006-0537, Project No. 88253A, Account No. 77090, Agenda: CAB, 

Exhibit B. 

9. The Design and Engineering Consultant shall employ personnel of 

good moral character and fitness in performing all services under this Agreement.

 10. The City of Troy reserves the right to terminate the contract without 

penalty upon 7 days written notice due to poor performance or for any reason 

deemed to be in its best interest.  The City of Troy designated representative will 

be solely responsible for determining acceptable performance levels.  His/her 

decision will be deemed in the City of Troy’s best interest and will be final.  The 

City of Troy may take any and all remedial actions provided by the specifications or 

otherwise permitted by law.      

11. The Design and Engineering Consultant will be held responsible for 

all additional costs resulting from Design and Engineering Consultant’s 

negligence, mismanagement, delays or improper guidance.  The City of Troy 



 - 5 - 

designated representative will be solely responsible for determining if costs 

should be paid in full by the Design and Engineering Consultant under this 

Paragraph.   

12. The Design and Engineering Consultant shall carry general liability 

insurance, automobile insurance, excess liability, workers’ compensation 

coverage and errors and omissions coverage for any actions, claims, liability or 

damages caused to others arising out of the performance of this agreement in 

amounts consistent with the sample Certificate of Liability Insurance form as 

specified in the Statement of Qualifications - SOQ-COT 06-01, Inter-modal 

Transit Facility.  The cancellation provision shall read as indicated on that sample 

form.  All insurance carriers shall be licensed and admitted to do business 

in the State of Michigan. 

 13. All insurance policies must be approved as to form and amount by 

the City and copies of certificates of insurance furnished to the City.  All policies, 

except errors and omissions coverage and workmen’s compensation, must name 

the City as an additional insured.  Insurance must be carried for the entire 

duration of this agreement. 

14. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Design and Engineering  

Consultant agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the 

City of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and 

others working on behalf of the City of Troy against any and all claims, demands, 

suits, or loss, including all costs connected therewith, and for any damages which 

may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy, its 



 - 6 - 

elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on 

behalf of the City of Troy, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 

death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of 

or is in any way connected or associated with this contract/agreement. 

15. JURISDICTION.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed  

in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. The parties agree that 

venue for any causes of action shall be Oakland County, Michigan. 

16. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such provision shall be severed from this 

Agreement and all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.   

17.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement and documents 

incorporated by reference constitute the entire Agreement and any changes 

thereto shall be in writing signed by both parties unless otherwise set out in this 

Agreement. 

 
WITNESS:      
      The Design and Engineering Consultant 
 

 _____________________________ 
1.  ______________________  (Name) 
 
  ______________________________ 
2.  ______________________  (Title) 
 

 CITY OF TROY: 
 

By____________________________ 
     Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
     ______________________________ 
     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
  



 - 7 - 

 Dated:__________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager or Designee 
 
Resolution Number: _________________ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
By________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     



campbellld
Text Box
F-10



















TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 11, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Troy v. Premium Construction 
 

    
In October 2001, the City initiated a condemnation lawsuit to acquire a 15.28- acre parcel of 

property in Section 36.  The defendant, Premium Construction, previously owned this property.  The 
property was acquired by the City to be developed into a passive neighborhood park.  The City 
acquired possession of the property on November 7, 2001, and the property was immediately added 
to the list of park development projects that have been prioritized and are currently waiting for 
additional funding.   

 
As in all condemnation cases, the amount of the just compensation (or the price that the City 

would need to pay for the property) remained as the only issue to be litigated.  It is not unusual for 
this litigation to be drawn out for several months after possession is obtained.  Unfortunately, due to 
several reasons, including the death of the original judge and the death of the City’s original 
appraiser, this case was substantially delayed.  Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Mark Goldsmith 
entered his final opinion resolving the just compensation issue on February 3, 2006.   

 
Just prior to the Court’s opinion, there was a condemnation case from another public 

corporation (Carrier Creek Drainage District) that raised some of the same legal issues that we 
unsuccessfully raised in our condemnation case.  According to the Court of Appeals decision in 
Carrier Creek, property owners are required to provide a condemning authority with timely 
notification of all factors impacting the value of property.  The Carrier Creek case was submitted to 
the Michigan Supreme Court, and a decision affirming the Court of Appeals would have some 
application to our case, since we unsuccessfully argued in the trial court that the property owners  
(Premium Construction), failed to provide the City with timely notification that the wetlands should 
have been de-regulated by the MDEQ.  In February 2006, the Troy City Council authorized an 
appeal of our case, which was based in part on the Carrier Creek case.  Subsequently, the Michigan 
Supreme Court issued a decision in Carrier Creek, refusing to address the legal issues, since the 
November 2006 passage of the constitutional amendment on condemnation significantly altered the 
previous statutory provisions.  The deadline for the City to file its brief on appeal is April 27, 2007.     

 
In the interim, the parties have continued to negotiate a possible settlement of the case, 

which has been encouraged by the Court of Appeals facilitator, David Baumhart.  Pursuant to these 
negotiations, the property owner, Premium Construction, has made a significant settlement offer for 
City Council consideration.  In exchange for the City’s dismissal of the appeal, Premium is willing to 
reduce the Court ordered attorney fees by $ 400,000.  Since the majority of cases at the Court of 
Appeals are affirmed, there are several risks in pursuing the appeal.   

 
A proposed Stipulated Order Settling Reimbursement of Fees and Closing File is attached for 

City Council consideration.  If Council approves this settlement, and authorizes execution of this 
document, then this long-standing condemnation case will be concluded.  If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.     

campbellld
Text Box
F-11



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan      Case No. 01-035191-CC 
municipal corporation,      Hon. Mark A. Goldsmith 
 Plaintiff, 
 
v 
 
PREMIUM CONSTRUCTION, L.L.C., a 
Michigan Limited Liability Company. 
 
 Defendant. 
________________________________________________/ 
CITY OF TROY-CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908) 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER (P33168) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3320 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
BERRY REYNOLDS & ROGOWSKI, PC 
DAVID W. BERRY (P25418) 
RONALD E. REYNOLDS (40524) 
JOSEPH M. ROGOWSKI, II (P51316) 
33493 W. 14 Mile Road, Ste. 100 
Farmington Hills, MI  48331-1587 
(248) 851-3434 
Attorneys for Defendant Premium Construction, LLC, 
_______________________________________________/ 
 
 

STIPULATED ORDER SETTLING REIMBURSEMENT OF FEES,  
DISBURSING ESCROWED FUNDS, AND CLOSING THE CASE 

 
 
    At a session of said Court, held in the 
    County of Oakland, Michigan  
    on __________________________ 
 
    PRESENT: ______________________ 
     CIRCUIT JUDGE 
 
 



 The Court, having noted the parties' stipulation through their counsel, having the 

authority to consider such stipulation pursuant to MCR 7.208(A)(2), and being otherwise fully 

advised in the premises; 

 1. The parties have agreed to settle this litigation and have entered a Stipulation to 

Voluntarily Dismiss the pending appeal in consideration of Plaintiff’s payment, and Defendant’s 

acceptance, of $750,000 in lieu of the court’s award for reimbursement of fees in its June 9, 

2006, Opinion and Order Re: Attorney Fees of $1,152,000.00.  In addition, the parties have 

agreed that, in lieu of any statutory interest that would have accrued on the $1,152,000.00 that 

Plaintiff placed into an escrow account in accordance with this Court’s July 13, 2006 Stipulated 

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Order of Stay of Proceedings and Order for Establishment 

of an Escrow Account, the only interest that shall apply to the $750,000 payment is a pro rata or 

proportionate share of the accrued interest on the escrow account that was established by the 

City, which such interest shall be in lieu of any statutory interest that might otherwise apply from 

the date of the June 9, 2006 Opinion and Order.  . 

 2. All other Judgments or Orders requiring payment between the parties shall be 

considered to be satisfied in full and are not modified in any manner as a result of this stipulated 

Order. 

 IT IS HERBY ORDERED that Plaintiff shall make payment to Defendant in the amount 

of $750,000, plus the Defendant’s pro rata or proportionate share of the accrued interest on the 

escrow account as set forth in Paragraph 1 of this Order as of the date of this Order; 

 

 

 

 2



 This Order resolves the last pending claim and closes the case. 

 

     _______________________________ 
     CIRCUIT JUDGE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY STIPULATE 
AND AGREE TO ENTRY OF THE ABOVE 
ORDER: 
 
 
 
CITY OF TROY    BERRY REYNOLDS & ROGOWSKI, PC 
 
 
BY:______________________________ BY:______________________________  
      LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908) 
      SUSAN M. LANCASTER (P33168)      DAVID W. BERRY (P25418) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road        RONALD E. REYNOLDS (P40524) 
Troy, MI  48084        JOSEPH M. ROGOWSKI, II (P51316) 
(248) 524-3320    33493 W. 14 Mile Road, Suite 100 
Attorney for Plaintiff   Farmington Hills, MI 48331-1587  
      (248) 851-3434 
      Attorneys for Defendants Premium 
      Construction, LLC,  
 

925465 

 3



 

 
 
April 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance and Administration 
    Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
    Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
    Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  
 
SUBJECT:   2007 Troy Daze Festival Parade 
 
Background: 

 
 At a Special Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Troy Daze Committee on February 28, 

2006 it was the consensus of both groups to continue the parade if they could obtain a 

corporate sponsor pay for the cost of the parade and also consider holding the parade on 

Saturday morning.  A corporate sponsor was not found and the parade has not been held 

since 2005. 

 The Troy Daze Advisory Committee would like to propose bringing back the Troy Daze Parade 

for the 2007 Festival.  The Committee’s proposed plan is to hold the parade on Saturday, 

September 15 at 9 am. The proposed parade route is to begin at Troy High School and travel 

down Northfield Parkway to the back entrance of Boulan Park. Committee members have 

already talked to Shir Tikvah, and the parade route would pose no problems to their Saturday 

services.  Northfield Parkway is the recommended route from the Troy Police Department and 

the most cost effective route for police staffing.  It would also not affect the main entrance to 

Boulan Park off Crooks Road. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated expenses for the 2007 parade would be $2000 for Police Department staffing 

costs and $200 for Awards and Trophies.  The Troy Daze Advisory Committee will seek 

sponsorship to offset these costs. The Committee has also obtained volunteers to chair the 

Parade. 

 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Obtaining corporate sponsorship would meet the Council/Troy Daze Committee consensus from 

2006 that the parade support itself with corporate donations. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
 
 
       



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: April 11, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: AT & T Proposed Cable Franchise   
 

 
The City of Troy has received a Uniform Video Service Local Franchise 

Agreement from AT&T.  This uniform agreement is the result of 2006 PA 480 (MCL 
484.3303), which was effective January 1, 2007.  AT & T has also served a Uniform 
Video Service Local Franchise Agreement on several other metropolitan Detroit 
communities.   

 
Prior to this new law, communities were able to negotiate cable franchises with 

any proposed providers.  Although the annual franchise fee was one item of negotiation, 
municipalities also insisted on other provisions, such as requiring providers to procure 
appropriate insurance coverage, requirements for the cable providers to make their 
services available to the entire community (including the less affluent sections of the 
City), and a demonstration of their experience and financial security.  With the passage 
of the new law, communities are precluded from negotiating any of the above referenced 
items.   

 
Under the new law, once a municipality receives a Uniform Video Service Local 

Franchise Agreement from a proposed provider, it has 15 business days to determine 
whether the application was complete.  The City received AT& T’s Franchise Agreement 
on March 29, 2007, so if the City is going to object to the completeness of this uniform 
agreement, it would need to be done at the April 16, 2007 City Council meeting.  Upon 
information and belief, there are some communities that are objecting to the 
completeness of the AT&T Franchise Agreement, based upon the fact that AT&T has 
failed to fill in the appropriate franchise fee and/or PEG (Public, Education, and 
Government Access) fee information and/or AT&T has failed to provide a map that 
meets or exceeds national map accuracy standards.   

 
City Administration does not recommend objecting to the completeness of the 

AT&T Franchise, since the franchise amount is clearly based on the franchise amount 
paid by the incumbent cable provider with the largest customer base in the City of Troy 
(currently Comcast).  The PEG fees are also based on the amounts in the Comcast 
franchise.  In regards to the map, the City can pass a resolution requesting more detailed 
information as soon as the installation plans are finalized.  As allowed by the new law, 
the map is confidential, and not subject to public dissemination.   

 
If the City does not object to the completeness of the AT&T uniform cable 

franchise, then it will be automatically approved 30 days after receipt of a complete 
agreement (April 27, 2007).  The uniform franchise is for a 10- year period of time, with 
10-year renewals thereafter.  The franchise fees will be 5%, which will be offset by any 
payments that AT&T makes under the METRO Act.  The total cable franchise revenue 
for the City of Troy will likely be substantially reduced as a result of this new law.    

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



 
It is possible that the new uniform cable franchise law (2006 PA 480) will be 

challenged.  Specifically, the new law may be pre-empted by the federal cable act and/or 
the Michigan constitution, which gives municipalities the right to control local rights of 
ways.  In addition, the act may be challenged, since it essentially abrogates the contracts 
between municipalities and incumbent cable providers.  In Troy’s case, the 
contract/franchise with Comcast does not expire until 7/1/2012.  However, with the 
passage of the new law, anything in the Comcast or WOW cable franchise agreement 
that is inconsistent with the uniform cable franchise agreement is not enforceable.        

 
Based on these possible challenges to the new law, City Administration 

recommends that Council pass a resolution that sets forth its rights to terminate the 
contract in the event that the law is invalidated or amended.  The resolution should not 
affirmatively approve the AT&T uniform cable franchise, or the amounts that AT&T has 
claimed as franchise fees and PEG fees.  Under the law, these franchise amounts will be 
the same amounts that are currently paid under the incumbent provider with the largest 
subscription base in the City (currently Comcast).   AT&T also proposes to limit the PEG 
fees to 1%.  However, the new law allows for the PEG fees to be as much as what the 
incumbent cable providers are paying.  The incumbents, Comcast and WOW, are 
contractually paying a base of 1%, plus equipment, grants, and other services, including 
but not limited to dedicated PEG channels.  Upon information and belief, AT&T’s 
technology is not compatible with our current system, which will require a substantial 
investment in order to continue the PEG channels with AT&T cable.  The incumbent 
cable providers are providing the City with more PEG funding than 1%, and AT&T should 
also be required to provide consistent amounts of PEG funding.  A needs assessment 
can verify the actual amount of PEG fees that are being paid by our incumbent cable 
providers.  It is the recommendation of City Administration that the total amount of PEG 
fees in the uniform franchise agreement be computed after such a needs assessment is 
completed.       

 
A proposed resolution is attached for your consideration.   





























 1

 
 
DATE: April 10, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 

Development (PUD 7) – Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, 
Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for this item for the April 30, 2007 City Council Special meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended approval of PUD 7 (with conditions) at the April 3, 

2007 Special/Study meeting.   
 
• The project includes a combination of retail stores and other commercial uses near the 

intersection of Big Beaver Road and John R Road, and a senior living facility to the south 
along John R Road.  The proposed retail/commercial uses equal 62,545 square feet.  The 
senior living facility use proposes a four (4) story building with 120 units for independent living, 
and a three (3) story building with 80 units for assisted living. 

 
• Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 

a report summarizing the project and recommending Preliminary PUD Approval. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Preliminary PUD Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Preliminary PUD Approval with conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Preliminary PUD Approval. 
 
• No action required until the April 30, 2007 Special meeting. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated March 29, 2007. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the April 3, 2007 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 7 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 007 Village at Big Beaver\Announce CC Public Hearing 04 16 07.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



1647
1649
1651
1653

1646
1648
1650

16
57

16
59

16
61

16
63

16
5416

52
16

55

16
56

16
58

16
60

16
29

16
31

16
33

16
35

16
37

16
39

1638
1640
1642
16441645

1643
164116

36
16

34
16

32
16

30

1686
1684
16821679

1681
1683

16
95

16
93

16
91

16
89

16
88

16
90

16
92

16
94 16

96
16

98
17

00

1665
1667
1669
1671

1662
1664
1666
1668

1670
168016

77
16

75
16

73
16

72
16

74
16

76
16

78

18
55

18
53

18
43

18
41

20
73

20
85

20
53

2701

2691

2980

20
60

20
67

20
55

20
45

2554
2556

2694
26922688

2683

2685

2680

2707

2695
2701
2699

27
15

27
11

26
77

2675
2689

2687

2697

2713
2693

2691 27
03

2705

2717

2709

2686 2698
2696

2704
2702

26
84

2673

26
71

2679

2672

2682

2612
2610

20
74 20

78

20
50

2598
2596

2681

2690
2676

2674 26
78

2039
18

35

18
53 18

57

18
45

3056

20
90

2601

2890

1970

2901

2801

1965

2078

2910

2741

2095

2051

1820

2930

18
73

18
85

18
89

18
93

18
97

19
05

19
09

19
13

19
17

19
19

1925

JO
H

N 
R

ROUNDTREE

GARRY

LINCOLN

E BIG BEAVER

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED VILLAGE AT BIG BEVER P.U.D.
SW CORNER BIG BEAVER & J0HN R 
SEC. 26  (PUD #7)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



B
E

LL
IN

G
H

A
M

JACKSON

ROUNDTREE

D
O

M
IN

IQ
U

E

LINCOLN

E BIG BEAVER

R
H

O
D

E
ISLA

N
DGARRY

JO
H

N
 R

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED P.U.D. #7 VILLAGE AT BIG BEAVER
SW CORNER BIG BEAVER & JOHN R
SEC. 26    ZONED M-1     (PUD #7)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



B
E

LL
IN

G
H

A
M

JACKSON

ROUNDTREE

D
O

M
IN

IQ
U

E

LINCOLN

E BIG BEAVER

R
H

O
D

E
ISLA

N
DGARRY

JO
H

N
 R

CJ-17

CJ-22

CJ-16

(R-1E)

(RM-1)

(B-1)

(B-2)
(O-1)

(M-1)

(R-C)

(R-2)

(B-3)

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED P.U.D. #7 VILLAGE AT BIG BEAVER
SW CORNER BIG BEAVER & JOHN R
SEC. 26    ZONED M-1     (PUD #7)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³





































 1

 
 
DATE: April 9, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – 190 East Maple, South side 

of Maple, East of Livernois, Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 (File Number Z-726) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for the May 14, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to M-1 
at the March 13, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Light Industrial/Research.  The application 

therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned 
as Light Industrial/Research since 1971. 

 
• The applicant proposes to rezone the southern portion of an existing building on a developed 

site.  The southern portion of the building would be rezoned to M-1 while the northern portion 
of the building would remain B-2.  No construction is required to reuse the existing building for 
industrial purposes. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging development). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

• No City Council action until the May 14, 2007 public hearing.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the March 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 726 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-726 190 East Maple Sec 34\Announce CC Public Hearing 04 16 07.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
STE

R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

KS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



C
O

M
B

E
R

M
E

R
E

B
E

E
C

H 
LA

N
E

K
IR

K
TO

N

E
A

S
TP

O
R

T

BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

W MAPLE

FORTHTON

E MAPLE

M
A

S
TI

N

H
A

R
TS

H
O

R
N

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

REZONING REQUEST
WAREHOUSE PORTION OF EX. BLDG
FROM B-2 TO M-1
S SIDE OF MAPLE, E OF LIVERNOIS (190 E MAPLE)
SEC. 34 (Z-726)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



C
O

M
B

E
R

M
E

R
E

B
E

E
C

H 
LA

N
E

K
IR

K
TO

N

E
A

S
TP

O
R

T

BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

W MAPLE

FORTHTON

E MAPLE

M
A

S
TI

N

H
A

R
TS

H
O

R
N

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

B-1
B-3

P-1

H-S

R-2

M-1

R-1E

O-1

B-2

REZONING REQUEST
WAREHOUSE PORTION OF EX. BLDG
FROM B-2 TO M-1
S SIDE OF MAPLE, E OF LIVERNOIS (190 E MAPLE)
SEC. 34 (Z-726)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



...\sec34\z 726 190 e maple.dgn  3/6/2007 1:39:53 PM



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 726) – Warehouse portion of 
Existing Michigan Chandelier Building, South side of Maple Road, East of 
Livernois (190 E. Maple), Section 34 – From B-2 (Community Business) to M-1 
(Light Industrial) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management 
to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Tagle questioned the ownership of the building, noting the aerial photograph 
portrays the building extending beyond the west property line.   
 
A brief discussion followed.  It was determined the aerial photography is distorted 
and that the building sits on the west property line.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if both uses could operate under the M-1 zoning.   
 
Mr. Miller replied in the negative because the two uses are not associated.   
 
The petitioner, Terence Bilovus of Mandell Bilovus Lenderman + Associates, 
4082 John R, Troy, was present.   
 
Mr. Strat brought to the members’ attention that he has known the petitioner for 
several years but that he has no financial interest in the project.   
 
The members agreed no impropriety exists, and welcomed Mr. Strat’s 
participation in the matter.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-058 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-2 to M-1 rezoning request, for the warehouse portion of the 
existing Michigan Chandelier building, located on the south side of Maple, east of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

Livernois, within Section 34, being approximately 1.57 acres in size, be granted, 
for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



 1

 
 
 
DATE: April 9, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII – Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light 
Industrial District 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the May 14, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the March 13, 2007 

Regular meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 229.   
 
• The proposed amendment permits Automobile Rental Establishments as a Special 

Condition Use in the M-1 District.  All maintenance activities shall take place inside a 
building.  The amendment will improve usability and marketability of M-1 property. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community), Goal II (Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and 
effectiveness of City government), and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
• No action until public hearing on May 14, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 229 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from March 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 229 Rental Car Agencies in M-1\Announce CC Public Hearing 04 16 07.doc 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   1

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
automobile rental establishments subject to Special Conditions in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District, to read as follows: 
 
28.25.07 Automobile rental establishments, including trucks, trailers or 

recreational vehicles. 
 

A. There shall be a minimum distance of 300 feet between the 
automobile rental establishment and any residential-zoned 
property. 

 
  B. Vehicle maintenance and automobile washing shall occur 

within fully enclosed buildings.  
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   2

Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 229 Rental Car Agencies in M-1\CC Public Hearing Draft ZOTA 229 03 28 07.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 229) – 

Article 28.00.00  Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to automobile rental establishments, and reported City 
Management recommends approval of the ZOTA.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-063 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 
permitting Automobile Rental Establishments subject to Special Conditions in the 
M-1 District, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, Planning Commission Draft dated February 9, 2007.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 1

 
 
DATE: April 9, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Conditional Rezoning Application (File No: CR-001) 

– Proposed Troy Medical Office Building, West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, 
Section 21 – R-1B to O-1 (CR-001) 

 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for the May 14, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to conditionally rezone the 
parcel to O-1 at the March 13, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• This area is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office, which has a primary 

correlation with the O-1 zoning district.  The application is therefore consistent with the intent of 
the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned as Low Rise Office since 1972. 

 
• Conditions were offered by the applicant to reduce the potential impacts of the development on 

the residential neighborhood to the north.   
 

• The rezoning application is compatible with adjacent uses and zoning districts.   
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01d



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the 
livability and safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the Conditional Rezoning Application. 
 

• No action until public hearing on May 14, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 
3. Minutes from March 13, 2007 Planning Commission meeting. 
4. Letter of support from President of Westwood Park Subdivision Association. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /CR-001 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-001 Medical Office Bldg Sec 21\Announce CC Public Hearing 05 14 07.doc 
 
 
 





CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



3179

210

139155187
28

90
138

3409

3364

3392

3424

3400

3496

60

44

7692

7591

23
38

39

71 5587

130

140156172188204

171203

154170186202

135151167183199

108124

107123

106122

103119

3621

33193312

33053304

32933296

3263

3574

3323

3268

3603

3605

3615

MILLSTONE

TOWN CENTER

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

LO
U

IS

TIMBERVIEW

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO O-1
PROPOSED TROY MEDICAL OFFICE BLDG.
W SIDE OF LIVERNOIS, N OF TOWN CENTER DR
SEC. 21  (CR-001)

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



MILLSTONE

CIVIC 
CEN

TER

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

LO
U

IS

TOWN CENTER

TR
O

Y

TIMBERVIEW
C

H
E

R
IS

H
E

D
 V

IE
W

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO O-1
PROPOSED TROY MEDICAL OFFICE
W SIDE OF LIVERNOIS, N OF TOWN CENTER DR.
SEC. 21 (CR-001)

0 200 400100
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



MILLSTONE

CIVIC 
CEN

TER

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

LO
U

IS

TOWN CENTER

TR
O

Y

TIMBERVIEW
C

H
E

R
IS

H
E

D
 V

IE
W (R-1C)

(R-1E)

(C-F)

(E-P)

(R-1B)

(O-1)

(P-1)

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO O-1
PROPOSED TROY MEDICAL OFFICE
W SIDE OF LIVERNOIS, N OF TOWN CENTER DR.
SEC. 21 (CR-001)

0 200 400100
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



























PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR-001) – Proposed Troy 

Medical Office (formerly Z 719), West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 
– From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the revisions and additions to the proposed conditional rezoning 
request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement and preliminary site plan.   
 
Mr. Wright requested clarification on the width of the cross access easement driveway.   
 
The petitioner, Brandon Kaufman of Vision Quest Consulting, 4657 Wendrick Drive, 
West Bloomfield, was present.   
 
There was discussion on the proposed landscaping, specifically the caliber of the spruce 
trees, and the possibility of locating the sidewalk along the southern property line down 
the center between the one-way and two-way parking.   
 
Mr. Kaufman indicated his intent to continue to work with and communicate with the 
residents.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-057 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council that 
the R-1B to O-1 conditional rezoning request, as per Section 03.24.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, located on the west side of Livernois, north of Big Beaver, within 
Section 21, being approximately 1.26 acres in size, be granted, for the following 
reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The applicant has worked with the neighbors to the north to reduce the impacts 

of the proposed office on the abutting residential property. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 





campbellld
Text Box
J-01a































































ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final February 12, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, February 12, 2007, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order 
at 5:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 23, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2007-02-001 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 23, 2006, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Precincts in the City of Troy for the 
Election Scheduled for Tuesday, May 8, 2007 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-02-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED for 
the May 8, 2007 Election as deemed necessary and in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:05 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



campbellld
Text Box
J-01c





















































TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL FEBRUARY 27, 2007 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held 
Tuesday, February 27, 2007 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was 
called to order at 7:05 pm. 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
 
Members Present: Bob Preston 

Mike Gonda 
Sandy Macknis 
Jeff Super 
Jim Hattan  
Alison Miller 
Dan O’Brien 

 
Members Absent: Bob Berk 

Jeff Stewart 
Kasey Wang – student representative 

 
City Staff Present: Bob  Matlick 
    Gerry Scherlinck 
    Jeff Biegler 
 
Guests:   Poncho Massaini 
 
 
C. Excuse Members Absent 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-2007-02-009 
Moved by Alison Miller 
Seconded by Jim Hattan 
 
RESOLVED, that the absent members by excused. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 

  
 
 

C-1. Approval of Minutes 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL FEBRUARY 27, 2007 

RESOLUTION #2007-02-010 
Moved by Alison Miller 
Seconded by Bob Preston 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of January 23, 2007 are approved as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D. Additions / Deletions to Agenda 
 
Add Item E. c. – Resignation of Karen Mooradian and Darcel Connors as Co-
chairs of the Magic Cauldron – Crafts event. 
 
Add Item F. c. – Update Phone List 
 
E. New Business 
 
a. Appointment Recommendation of a Troy Daze Advisory Committee 

Member to Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2007-02-011 
Moved by Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by Jeff Super 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee recommends to City 
Council that Jeff Stewart be appointed to serve on the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board as Troy Daze Advisory Committee representative. 
 
Yes: Super, Gonda, Macknis, Hattan, Miller, O’Brien 
No: Preston 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
b. Review & Finalize Committee List 

 
Ethnic Entertainment needs a chairperson. We will wait until next month to 
appoint someone for this task. 
 
Outdoor Entertainment needs a stage manager. We will also wait until next 
month to fill this position. Jeff Super may have someone in mind for stage 
manager (Gary and Ann Cosart). Bob Matlick will check to see if they are 
interested. 
 
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL FEBRUARY 27, 2007 

c. Resignation 
 

Mike read the letter sent to Bob Berk from Karen Mooradian and Darcel 
Conners indicating that they are resigning from their positions as co-
chairpersons of the Magic Cauldron – Crafts event. Alison Miller indicated that 
she and Karen Hattan would be willing to co-chair the Magic Cauldron – 
Crafts, as well as the Magic Cauldron – Games & Entertainment events. 

 
F. Old Business 
 
a. Tasks Assigned 

 
Already discussed in item E. b. 
 
b. Tents and Electrical Bids 

 
Tent specs are complete and will be sent to Purchasing to package for bidding 
purposes. Outdoor stage changing tent size will be reduced from 20’x40’ to 
20’x20’. 
 
Electrical bid specifications are nearly complete. 
 
c. Update Phone List 

 
Cindy Stewart will be putting together a master phone list. 
 
G.       Public Comment 
 
No public comment. 
 
H.      Member Comment 

 
Sandy – Nick Flaherty was nominated for the Troy Youth Assistance Award 
and will be recognized on April 25, 2007 at Troy High. 
 
Mike – Urge members to think of people that can help out throughout the 
festival. The more people available to work in the days leading to the festival 
will mean shorter days for everyone. Also, we need to order another 200 
bungee cords and more “caution” tape. 
 
Jeff S. – Need more adult volunteers to serve as shuttle drivers.  
 
Alison – Idea for new event. Scarecrow competition for elementary grades 
where teams of kids would construct scarecrows using old clothing, straw, 
etc., then tie them to the tennis court fence where they would be judged. 
Winning group would receive an ice crème party from TCBY. Idea received 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL FEBRUARY 27, 2007 

positive reception from committee. Alison will put together a written proposal 
and return with more specifics to a future meeting. 
 
Gerry inquired whether event and schedule would be the same as last year. 
Mike indicated that all event times and schedule would remain the same. 
 
Bob M. – Has a person interested in bidding on the electrical contract that 
does electrical for the auto show and has necessary electrical panels. 
 
Poncho – Consider moving the fireworks to Thursday or Friday night to signal 
the beginning of the festival. Discussion followed with committee members 
expressing concern that holding the fireworks on an evening when the festival 
is open later could potentially decrease spending on the midway for the 
duration of the fireworks display.  
 
I. Adjourn 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-02-012 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Sandy Macknis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee meeting of February 27, 
2007 is adjourned. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:02 pm. 
 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Mike Gonda, Co-Chairperson 
 

 
     _____________________________________________ 
     Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 

 
 
 
 

REMINDER: Next meeting – March 27, 2007 at 7:00 PM 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   February 28, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on February 28, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Andrew Corey and Nicole Vitale called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey (Co-chair) 
Maxine D’Amico 
Alex Gabriel 
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert  

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-2-2 
  Moved by   Thoenes 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 24, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 13 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  0    
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through January 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Visitor:   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Presented information on the following: 

-Make up of legal department – 5 attorneys and 4 paralegals. 
-Provide effective and efficient legal services to City Council, 
management and boards/committees. 
-Reports directly to City Council. 
-Summarized defense and plaintiff areas covered by department. 
-6,531 cases in 2006. 
-114 Civil Court appearances in 2006. 
-Sunshine Act – Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). 
-Open meetings policy. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   February 28, 2007  
 

 2

 
5. Troy Daze Festival Update:      

-Discussed upcoming meeting and which Youth Council member will attend.   
-Discussed letter and requested that item be added to March agenda. 

 
6.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provid ed Advance Notification  
  No motion – no excused members 
  Resolution # TY- 

  Moved by   
  Seconded by    

  
 RESOLVED that  

  Yes:   
            No:         
  Absent:    
 
7.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
8. Public Comments  –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:17 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Andrew Corey, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: March 28 at 7:00 P.M.  



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL MARCH 5, 2007 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Tuesday, March 5, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called 
to order at 7:38 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Linda Rivetto 
    
  ABSENT Paul Lin 
   Bob Miller 
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-03-001 
Moved by Rivetto  
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Lin and Miller be excused  
Yes: 4⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-03-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman 
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 10, 2007 be approved  
Yes: 4⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 4820 Livernois 
Loraine Campbell reported that Wil Bedford has sold his property and that the 
new owners wish it to remain a historic district. Mr. Bedford also provided the 
museum old records that reveal important information about the history of the 
house. A copy of the records will be placed in the file for use in the above ground 
survey. 

 
B. 2955 Quail Run Update 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



The resolution to amend Chapter 13 will be on the March 19, 2007 City Council 
Agenda as an action item. 

 
C. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 

The following assignments were made: 
4820 Livernois:  Paul Lin 
3645 Crooks   Kevin Lindsey 
839 W. Wattles  Kevin Lindsey 
770 W. Square Lake. Linda Rivetto 
330 W. Square Lake Linda Rivetto 

  160 E. Square lake  Kinda Hupman 
 
New Business 

A. Local History Conference 
Committee members were provided information the annual Local History 
Conference that will be held at Wayne State University April 20 and 21. 
 

B. Committee Members 
Loraine was asked to see if there are other Historic District Commission or 
Historical Society members who would like to serve on the Study Committee. 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:23 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, April 3, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & Historic 
Village.  

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

2 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:31 p.m. on March 6, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) Michael W. Hutson 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Chair Schultz indicated that Ms. Kerwin would be arriving a few minutes late to the 
meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-050 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Hutson is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson, Kerwin (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-051 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson, Kerwin (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – February 13, 2007 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-052 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 13, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented.   
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #7) – Proposed 
Village at Big Beaver, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly summarized the project and introduced the applicant. 
 
Jim Butler, PEA Associates, Project Engineer, summarized the PUD negotiation 
process to date and summarized the project.  Mr. Butler provided building material 
samples for the proposed CVS and commercial buildings C and D. 
 
Laura Hester, Sunrise Senior Living, summarized the southern senior living facility 
portion of the project.  She explained the levels of care proposed for the project.  
She indicated there are no similar facilities presently constructed in Michigan 
although there is one that will soon be under construction in Grosse Pointe. 
 
Mr. Littman commented on the location with respect to residents’ ability to walk to 
the drug store, restaurants, shops, etc.  
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Strat stated the proposed elevations for Sunrise senior living facility remind him 
of Disney World and are not appropriate.  He said elevations for other projects, 
including Grosse Pointe, are better. 
 
Ms. Troshynski expressed concern with whether there is enough parking. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Ms. Hester stated the retail component of the PUD offered shared parking 
opportunities.  She said the parking ratio for this project is higher than other projects 
they have developed.   
 
Ms. Hester provided brick and siding samples for Sunrise.  The proposed 
construction is 50% brick and 50% siding.  Ms. Hester said elevations are still being 
developed. 
 
Mr. Littman asked Mr. Butler if pervious pavement was considered. 
 
Mr. Butler replied in the negative. 
 
Mr. Strat expressed concern with the visibility of the retail parking area from Big 
Beaver.  Additionally, he expressed concern with the different architectural styles 
between Sunrise and the retail component.  Mr. Strat said it looks like two separate 
developments.  He stressed it was a significantly better development than when he 
first saw plans for it. 
 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., presented a review of the 
project.  He stated the project has advanced and improved from when it was first 
presented.  He suggested details could be worked out prior to Final Approval.  
Further, signage should simply comply with the respective zoning districts normally 
applied to each use (B and RM zoning districts). 
 
Mr. Carlisle recommended Preliminary Approval with conditions.   
 
Bob Jacobs, attorney for the applicant, stated if the applicant received a 
recommendation for Preliminary Approval this evening, they would voluntarily agree 
to bring the project back for a Planning Commission recommendation prior to Final 
Approval. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the public hearing. 
 
Gary Smith, owner 2691 John R, abutting the property to the south, asked if the City 
would require a zoning change to his property as part of PUD approval. 
 
Chair Schultz responded in the negative. 
 
Philip Fitzgerald, 2601 John R, Troy, MI, representing the abutting church, spoke in 
support of the PUD project. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Vleck stated there was not much difference between the retail portion of the 
PUD and the retail development on the north side of Big Beaver.  He wanted to see 
something more like the Novi Town Center, more like a “downtown”.  He does not 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

see public benefit; what the City would be getting in excess of what it would get 
under “normal” development. 
 
Ms. Kerwin was pleased to see a fully phased facility for seniors at this location.  
She is concerned with the 6-story height.  She asked if the site plan specifically 
delineated staff parking. 
 
Ms. Hester responded that staff would be directed to park in the most remote 
spaces; visitors would enter and exit through the porte-cochere. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked the City’s Planning Consultant if his concerns have been 
addressed. 
 
Mr. Carlisle responded in the affirmative. 
 
Ms. Lancaster stated the additional third step is not provided in the existing PUD 
approval process.  She is not sure what the creation of this step would accomplish. 
 
Mr. Jacobs stated that the additional meeting was suggested as a way of meeting 
deadlines.  They simply wanted to provide a third step to show the Planning 
Commission that the project incorporated their conditions. 
 
Mr. Strat expressed his preference that the restaurant be moved closer to Big 
Beaver.  He suggested the development was missing innovative storm water 
management techniques.  Mr. Strat said he is not sure what the public benefit is, 
and suggested a location could be provided on the site for public art. 
 
Mr. Vleck stated he wanted to see more of the Big Beaver Corridor Study concepts 
built into the project. 
 
A straw vote was taken to determine the Planning Commission’s opinion of the 
proposed 6-story height for the Sunrise building. 
 
The Planning Commission generally did not have a problem with the 6-story height; 
however, some members supported the 6-story height only if the architectural style 
was appropriate with respect to the height. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-053 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to such time that revised plans are submitted to 
the Planning Department.   
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chair Schultz stated the public hearing would be re-opened at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Strat stressed the developer should submit new materials only, and indicated 
there is no need to provide new binders and reproduce materials. 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:55 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., presented the concept for the 
Housing chapter.  
 
There was general support for the proposed chapter format. 
 
Mr. Carlisle introduced the concept of the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment 
Tool (SGRAT).  This online assessment tool is a self-evaluation process that gives 
a baseline score of how a community compares with accepted Smart Growth 
tenets. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Wright addressed the number of geese that live at storm water retention basins.  
He indicated the City might want to discourage open water features due to the 
problem with geese. 
 
Mr. Strat commented on CIOD, an industrial use under construction on the east side 
of Coolidge, south of Maple.  Prior to receiving Preliminary Site Plan Approval from 
the Planning Commission, they were granted variances from the BZA because the 
existing building was going to remain.  Only two walls are presently standing; the 
building has essentially been demolished.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 11:15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\03-06-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals meeting to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, March 7, 2007 in the Lower 
Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 7, 2007. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 7, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 6688 GRANGER, for relief 
of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section R 305 of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement.  The plans submitted indicate the 
existing basement has a 7’ height to the bottom of the joist and a dropped I-beam and 
ductwork with 6’-4” clear height.  The proposed finish materials would lower the main 
ceiling height to 6’-10” and the drops under the I-beam and ducts to 6’-3”. 
 
Mr. Steve Attar, representing Basement Experts was present.  Mr. Attar explained that 
they would attempt to bring the ceiling as close as they possibly could to the bottom of 
the joists.  Mr. Attar also stated that they would not have any 90-degree angles, but 
would change the corners to be 45 degrees so there would not be any sharp corners. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the proposed use of this basement area was.  Mr. Attar said 
they have two children and plan to make this a play area for the children.  There will not 
be any bedrooms in this basement. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Basement Experts, 6688 Granger, relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish a basement that will result in the main ceiling height to be 6’-
10” where 7’ is required; and the drops under the I-beam and ducts to 6’-3”. 
 

• All 90-degree angles are to be changed to 45-degree angles. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TROY GYMNASTICS, 1600 W. MAPLE, for relief 
of Section 803.2 of the International Fire Code. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner operates a gymnastics facility in an existing 
building in the City of Troy.  The petitioner has constructed a pit within the floor of the 
building that is to be used for a landing area from some of the gymnastics equipment.  
The pit is approximately 28’ long, 16’ wide and 6’ deep.  The top approximately 4’ of this 
pit is filled with foam plastic cubes used to cushion the fall of the users of the apparatus.  
The bottom 2’ of the pit has a trampoline-like suspension device to further cushion the 
impact.  There are approximately 7000 of these 6” square foam cubes in the pit or 
approximately 1800 cubic feet of the foam. 
 
Section 803.2 of the International Fire Code requires that exposed foam plastic material 
used in assembly use buildings have a maximum rate of heat release of 100 kilowatts 
(kW) when tested in accordance with Underwriters Laboratory test standard #1975-96.  
Our inquiries with the manufacturer of the foam failed to show that the material complies 
with or has been tested in accordance with this standard. 
 
The manufacturer has submitted information that they did their own test on the foam 
and that it passes the California Technical Bulletin 117 test for materials used in 
upholstered furniture.  Part of that test criterion is that the average afterflame (the 
amount of time that the specimen continues to burn after the burner flame is removed) 
of 5 test specimens shall not be more than 5 seconds.  It further requires that the 
maximum afterflame time of any test specimen not exceed 10 seconds.  Members of 
the Troy Fire Department did a field test on a sample of the material from the site and 
the results showed that the material did support flame, dripped flaming material and did 
not self extinguish for at least 30 seconds after the heat source was removed. 
 
The petitioner is asking that this foam material be permitted to be used in the building. 
 
Toby Buechner and his wife, owners of this property, the manager of this facility and a 
patron were present.  Mr. Buechner said that he had a video from the University of 
Michigan showing how this pit was used and offered to show it to members of the Board 
on his laptop.  Mr. Buechner stated that the United States Gymnastics Association 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
promotes the use of this product.  He also brought in a letter from a former Olympian 
endorsing this foam and stated that these foam squares are used worldwide.  These 
foam squares are used so that when children fall on them they are not injured.  Mr. 
Buechner went on to say that the building is sprinklered per the City Code and there is 
constant supervision.  The foam is contained in a cement pit and he does not see how a 
fire would even start.   His children will be using it also, and if he felt there was a safety 
concern he would not let them use it.  Colleges all over the country use it in their foam 
pits and he does not see why this would be problem.  Mr. Buechner asked if the Fire 
Code was different in other parts of the county. 
 
Chief Nelson stated that he thought that colleges are exempt from most local control. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the City of Troy in Chapter 93 and references the 2003 
International Fire Code.  The standard was the same in 2000 but he did not go back any 
further.  The requirements in the 2000 Code are the same.  The results of the studies by 
the manufacturer do not apply to displays, decorative spaces and foam that is directly 
exposed to the environment. 
 
Mr. Dziurman clarified that this is an issue of Fire Prevention rather than impact safety. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the City is concerned about all the safety of all residents in 
buildings.  The main concern in this issue is the question of flammability.  Provided in 
each members packet was a material safety data sheet from the manufacturer, page 1 
of 2, section 4 that addresses NFPA fire and explosion hazards and states that this has 
a sprinkler classification of extra hazard.  Upholstery with foam establishes different 
classifications and is considered an ordinary hazard.  Sprinkling systems are different 
for ordinary hazard and extra hazard classifications. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was anything that would tell the Board what the 
requirements would be to design the system for the extra hazard. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he did not know but that the design criteria used for the existing 
system was ordinary hazard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if extra sprinklers would be required over this area only.  Mr. 
Stimac said that was correct.   
 
Mr. Stimac said the Fire Department conducted their own tests and their results did not 
produce the same results as the results the manufacturer indicates.  Material tests 
should be conducted by an independent third party agency that has no vested 
interested in this material. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he did not see how a fire could possibly start at this area is 
usually used by 5 to 8 year olds.  There is no smoking in the building and the children  

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
are always supervised.  The lights above this pit have a plastic shroud around them to 
protect anyone in the area if one should burst.  Mr. Buechner said that if anyone took an 
open flame around this building, a fire could be started in any area.   
 
Mr. Dziurman said that was not the point.  The point was that this foam did not meet the 
requirements of the Fire Code. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he had spoken to a number of experts in this field and they state 
that these foam cubes are the best. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were other cubes that they could use that would meet the 
Fire Code. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that the Board was not here to debate whether or how something 
could catch fire and it is not this Board’s job to tell them that something is or isn’t going 
to happen.  The Board has to determine what can be done to make that building safe.  
They cannot in good conscience say that a fire will never start here.  There is nothing 
personal against the gymnastics profession but there are certain guidelines that they 
have to follow.  One of the changes that could be made would to be to change the 
sprinkler to a high hazard.  Mr. Richnak said that he does believe there are other foams 
that could be used that would meet the requirements of the Fire Code. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Mr. Buechner owned the building and he stated that he did.   
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that even if the sprinkler system was upgraded, the Code states that 
the foam has to meet the test standards.  If this Board approves the exception to the 
Building Code to allow this foam, Mr. Buechner would still be required to add the extra 
sprinkler system to protect the foam. 
 
Mr. Buechner asked if he would have to beef up the sprinkler system.  Mr. Dziurman 
said that would be one part of it, but a variance would still be required to allow him to 
use the foam. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that the pit is essential in the gymnastics field.   
 
Mrs. Buechner asked if the Fire Code was different in Troy.  Mr. Dziurman stated that 
this Board is not aware of what is required by other states. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he does not believe other states would take a chance of 
something happening to the people that use these facilities and also said that perhaps 
the Code is too strict in the City of Troy.  Mr. Buechner also said that the company he  
works for is thinking about leaving Troy because of issues with foam and the regulations 
the City is putting on them. 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3- con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac addressed Mr. Buechner’s remark and stated that the issue is the fact that 
the company Mr. Buechner works for is in fact storing foam in 12’ to 16’ high racks in an 
office building.  On its’ own, this foam is probably safe, but when stored in this quantity 
could certainly be deemed a hazard. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that this is a use group issue.  This company has taken an office 
building and is using it as a storage facility. 
 
Chief Nelson went on to say that the International Fire Code is in effect in the entire 
United States.  What has probably happened is that other people do not use due 
diligence.  The City of Troy has a lot of research facilities and the Fire Department is in 
tune with the processes that are used.  Chief Nelson apologized that Mr. Buechner got 
caught in Troy but this Fire Department does due diligence.  There is other material 
available that they can use that would meet the standards. 
 
Mr. Buechner said this is the most expensive and is the best foam in the business. 
 
Chief Nelson also said that an independent lab, a third party that has no vested interest 
should test the foam.  The manufacturer of the foam has a vested interest. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that his insurance agent tests the foam and it seems like the 
specifications here are more difficult. 
 
Chief Nelson said that he had spoken to the manufacturer and this issue has come up 
before at least three times in the last year.   
 
Mr. Buechner said that he does not believe the Olympics would take the chance and 
use this foam if it was not safe.   
 
Mrs. Buechner said that the foam is used for the protection of the children when they 
land in this pit. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that if he took a flame to a chair or window blind it would burn the 
same way. 
 
Chief Nelson said it would not burn in the same manner this foam would burn.  This 
foam would meet the standards if it was covered.  The foam in a chair is covered and 
almost everything they deal with is tested.  There is other foam available that would 
meet the Fire standards. 
 
Ms. Moore, whose daughter uses this facility, was present.  Ms. Moore asked if anyone 
could let them know where they could get this other foam.  The manufacturer they are 
dealing with wants people to buy their product and would be reluctant to endorse 
another product. 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Erin Pettid, Manager of this facility was present and stated that they cannot use a foam 
square that is harder due to the density involved in the makeup of the square.  
Furthermore, it would not make sense to cover the squares as a cover would create a 
hard surface that the children would land on and could create the possibility of broken 
bones.  This foam was specifically chosen because of the safety factor for children to 
fall into. This foam is used in pits all over the country and the only time she has heard of 
a problem with fire is when it is used for BMX motorbikes.  As far as she knows there is 
only one other foam that they could use and it is much heavier, and would create a 
chance for the children to be hurt when landing in it due to the heavier density.  This 
Board is faced with a unique situation and she would like to know how to get it safe for 
usability. 
 
Ms. Moore said that this pit is contained by concrete walls and does not believe this 
facility would have a problem with fire because it is a supervised environment.  She has 
never seen anyone smoking in the building.  There is always a risk with gymnastics but 
she does not believe fire is one of those risks. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he has not heard of any instance of a fire happening in any gym 
in the country. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that Codes go in to find ways to abate hazards.  He was hoping that 
this Board was going to look at the product and look at the hazards associated with it 
and would find a way to safeguard the blocks from a fire.  Mr. Kessler asked about the 
sump pump at the bottom of the pit and what safeguards were in place.  The Board 
needs to know that the floor is non-combustible and if the sprinkler system would be 
able to handle a fire in this pit.  Mr. Kessler also asked if Mr. Buechner had an 
Electrician look over the area to determine if there were any hazards.   
 
Mr. Buechner said that the sump pump has a hard plastic cover and the Electrician 
stated that it would not be a problem. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the ratio was regarding supervision.  Mr. Buechner said that it is 
usually eight children to one coach.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the kids sink when they land in the pit.  Ms. Pettid said that they do 
not sink, but often a couple of the cubes will come up and go over them. 
 
A discussion began between Mr. Buechner and Ms. Pettid regarding the time it would 
take for a child to get out of the pit and Ms. Pettid said that she thought it would be 
about five seconds. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they are concerned about the smoke and amount of flame 
involved.  Mr. Kessler asked if smaller children sink deeper in this pit. 
 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Pettid said that they move the cubes around weekly in the pit because it does 
compact.  Every Friday they change the foam squares.  They also provide instructions 
on how to get out of the pit.  The only thing she is concerned about is how to get 
someone out of the pit if they are injured as they would have to be extremely careful.   
 
Mr. Kessler confirmed that the pit is 16’ wide and asked if the majority of the children 
landed in the center of the pit.  Ms. Pettid said that was correct.  Mr. Kessler said then 
they would have about 8’ to get out of this pit.  Mr. Kessler asked what the height of the 
ceiling was and Mr. Buechner said that in that area it’s 30’ high.  The overhead lights 
have a hard protective cover on them. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of testing Mr. Buechner’s Insurance Agent had done on 
this type of material.  Mr. Buechner said that he would have to double check with him to 
see what type of testing he has done.  Mr. Buechner’s Insurance Agent said that 
California has the strictest testing in the country. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if Mr. Buechner had any results from a third part testing facility and 
Mr. Buechner said that he did not. 
 
Lieutenant Rod Bovensiep of the Fire Department was present and stated that he had 
spoken to a foam expert who informed him that there is a similar foam that has a better 
flammability rating.  Lieutenant Bovensiep said that he gave this information to Mr. 
Buechner but he was not interested in pursuing this.  The California 117 test states that 
this foam is to be used with a thermal barrier. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that the other foam was too dense and could cause injury. 
 
Mr. Dziurman commented that this foam is good for people but does not meet the fire 
safety standards. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that even if there is extra training and extra sprinklers around the pit, 
people can vandalize and destroy property.  All the codes out there do not prevent fires.  
Hazard is higher when people are not aware of the hazards.  Mr. Kessler asked what 
Mr. Buechner thought about the idea of adding extra sprinklers. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he would have to look into it and would need to know what the 
City wants him to do.  He can guarantee that these activities are 100% supervised. 
 
Mr. Kessler then asked if extra sprinklers would be required.  Mr. Nelson said that the 
sprinklers would end up in a 15’ perimeter around the pit; however, he doesn’t know 
what would be required, as they do not know how much heat would be released. 
 
Mr. Richnak why they there aren’t any test results regarding this issue. 
 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Fire Department had spoken to the manufacturer and they have 
not run these types of tests. 
 
Chief Nelson said that because there are no test results they do not know how many 
extra sprinklers they would need or if they would work. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they don’t have other buildings with the same ceiling height and 
Chief Nelson said that the higher the ceiling, more heat is required to trigger the 
sprinklers. 
 
Mrs. Buechner said that there is a huge door right next to the pit so the Fire Department 
would have easy access if there was ever a fire. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he had purchased the building two (2) years ago and has added 
the fire system.  The kids would be able to get out very quickly and the building is very 
safe. 
 
Mrs. Buechner went on to say that even if there was a fire in the pit it would not jump 
out of the pit and would be easily extinguished.  Mr. Buechner said that even if there 
was a bonfire in the pit it would not go anywhere. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there was a special fire extinguisher that was used strictly for foam 
products.   
 
Lieutenant Bovensiep said that all fire extinguishers are designed to put out fires of 
foam plastics.   
 
Mr. Buechner asked if a solution would be to put in more extinguishers and provide 
training in the use of these extinguishers. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they do not want the children using the fire extinguishers. 
 
Lieutenant Bovensiep said that a fire doubles in size every twenty (20) seconds and 
Chief Nelson said that their concern would be to get the people out of the building. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that the manufacturer mixes the fire retardant properties in the foam.  
The burn characteristics are all different and not consistent throughout the product. 
 
Lieutenant Bovensiep said that he had spoken to the manufacturer about the 
inconsistency in the test results and was told that they didn’t know why that happened 
but thought it might be due to contamination of the product. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that two (2) out of eight (8) foam cubes stopped burning 
immediately.  Six (6) cubes kept burning. 

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Fire Department test results did not match the results of 
the California 117 test reported by the manufacturer although this was a totally different 
test conducted here. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that obviously this pit is similar to pits used around the country and 
there are no other foams that meet this City’s requirements.   
 
Mr. Buechner showed pictures of different pits used around the country and by 
Olympians. 
 
Chief Nelson asked what the life of the foam was. 
 
Ms. Pettid said that it is approximately two (2) years.  This is one of the reasons they 
would rotate the foam cubes on a weekly basis. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that the pit is set up for all types of kids and if he is not allowed to 
use it he will lose customers. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they don’t want to have an incident where this Board approves the 
use of this foam and someone gets hurt. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that he would be willing to sign a waiver not holding the City 
responsible if someone were to get hurt.  The City knows more about the codes but he 
has been to gyms all around the country and believes if this foam was a problem he 
would have heard about it by now. 
 
A discussion continued for some time regarding how to provide safety around this pit.  
Chief Nelson said that they are trying to work with Mr. Buechner and come up with 
some type of compromise. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that the building was made of concrete and steel and he did not see 
how it would burn.  
 
Motion by Nelson 
Seconded by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Troy Gymnastics for relief of Section 803.2.1 of the 
International Fire Code with the following conditions: 
  

• The relief is granted for a period not to exceed two years. 
• A 24" deep draft curtain, constructed of non-combustible material, will be 

installed at the ceiling line to enclose the area of the foam pit. 
• The sprinkler system will be modified to meet the requirements of the extra 

hazard sprinkler category of the foam material. 

 9



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 

• Smoke detectors be installed in accordance with NFPA 72 and connected to the 
fire alarm system in the area of the foam pit. 

• A training program is developed and a log of training activities be maintained for 
employees of the facility that will instruct the employees about the hazards of 
the foam and the special precautions that should be taken in the event of a fire. 

• That a training program for employees on the use of fire extinguishers is 
implemented and a log of training activities be maintained. 

  
Further discussion followed regarding these stipulations. Chief Nelson explained that at 
1200 degrees, steel would bend and the integrity of the building would be in jeopardy.  
Smoke detectors within the draft curtain would enable the sprinklers to catch any type of 
fire in the early stages.   
 
Chief Nelson also said that they are writing an article regarding the flammability 
properties of this foam so that there will be national exposure.   
 
Mr. Buechner said that each manufacturer will promote their own product and as they 
go from gym to gym no one has ever heard of anyone having a problem with fire and 
these foam squares. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they rent this building out and Mr. Buechner said that they have had 
overnight parties in the building but have always had them supervised by his staff. 
 
Chief Nelson also stated that he would have to contact a sprinkler contractor and ask 
them to come and determine what type of sprinklers would be necessary and if there 
was enough water pressure to be able to sustain extra sprinklers under the 
classification of extra hazard.  Chief Nelson also said that in his opinion the present 
sprinkler system would not be able to put out a fire in this foam pit. 
 
Lieutenant Bovensiep said that they would have to provide a 15’ perimeter around an 
area that is considered an extra hazard.  He went on to say that the thing they have to 
consider is the amount of time between when the fire starts and the water gets on it. 
 
Chief Nelson thought it may be a better idea to postpone the decision on this request 
until Mr. Buechner could find out if he would be able to meet the conditions presented.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that it would be ideal to be able to reach a decision today so that this 
part of the facility could be opened.  He felt that perhaps the extra sprinklers would 
provide the extra protection needed. 
 
Lieutenant Bovensiep stated that when you have a sprinkler system that is designed 
with more sprinkler heads; the heads will go off but the water pressure will go down and 
the only thing happening is that you are over loading the sprinkler system. 
 

 10



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Subsequently another motion was made: 
  
Motion by Nelson 
Seconded by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to postpone action on the motion to approve the request of Troy Gymnastics 
for relief of Section 803.2.1 of the International Fire Code for thirty (30)-days or sooner if 
the petitioner can show that the proposed conditions can be met. 
  
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE ACTION ON THIS REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:22 A.M.  
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 13, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Michael W. Hutson 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-054 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Hutson is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-055 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as presented.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Wright noted a typographical error on page 7, item 14; the word “Discussion” 
should read “Commission”. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-056 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 27, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
corrected.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR-001) – Proposed 

Troy Medical Office (formerly Z 719), West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, 
Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the revisions and additions to the proposed conditional 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the Conditional Rezoning Agreement and preliminary site plan.   
 
Mr. Wright requested clarification on the width of the cross access easement 
driveway.   
 
The petitioner, Brandon Kaufman of Vision Quest Consulting, 4657 Wendrick Drive, 
West Bloomfield, was present.   
 
There was discussion on the proposed landscaping, specifically the caliber of the 
spruce trees, and the possibility of locating the sidewalk along the southern property 
line down the center between the one-way and two-way parking.   
 
Mr. Kaufman indicated his intent to continue to work with and communicate with the 
residents.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-057 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 conditional rezoning request, as per Section 03.24.00 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the west side of Livernois, north of 
Big Beaver, within Section 21, being approximately 1.26 acres in size, be granted, 
for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The applicant has worked with the neighbors to the north to reduce the 

impacts of the proposed office on the abutting residential property. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 726) – Warehouse portion of 
Existing Michigan Chandelier Building, South side of Maple Road, East of Livernois 
(190 E. Maple), Section 34 – From B-2 (Community Business) to M-1 (Light 
Industrial) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Tagle questioned the ownership of the building, noting the aerial photograph 
portrays the building extending beyond the west property line.   
 
A brief discussion followed.  It was determined the aerial photography is distorted 
and that the building sits on the west property line.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if both uses could operate under the M-1 zoning.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Miller replied in the negative because the two uses are not associated.   
 
The petitioner, Terence Bilovus of Mandell Bilovus Lenderman + Associates, 4082 
John R, Troy, was present.   
 
Mr. Strat brought to the members’ attention that he has known the petitioner for 
several years but that he has no financial interest in the project.   
 
The members agreed no impropriety exists, and welcomed Mr. Strat’s participation 
in the matter.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-058 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-2 to M-1 rezoning request, for the warehouse portion of the 
existing Michigan Chandelier building, located on the south side of Maple, east of 
Livernois, within Section 34, being approximately 1.57 acres in size, be granted, for 
the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, West 
side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 3 – From 
R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning application.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chair Schultz asked if there was any investigation into what size building could be 
placed on this site.   
 
Mr. Miller replied no.   
 
The petitioner, Lawrence Hromek of 23711 Sandpiper, Clinton Township, was 
present to represent the owner, Robin Siegel.  Mr. Hromek said the building size 
could not be much larger than the existing building.  He indicated the proposed 
vacation of the 20-foot easement for the alley would create an additional 20 feet for 
parking.  
 
Ms. Troshynski questioned if any consideration was given to accessing the property 
from the north.   
 
Mr. Hromek said they have no desire to access the property from the north and the 
existing drive on Rochester Road would be used.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner has an interest in consolidating with the 
property to the north. 
 
Mr. Hromek stated the property to the north, which is currently vacant, is a rental 
property that has been rented by different tenants.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Eileen Carty of 990 DeEtta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carty spoke in opposition to the 
proposed rezoning request.  She said Troy is taking on a Lincoln Park persona with 
strip malls and small storefronts.  Ms. Carty addressed recent commercial 
developments on Rochester Road, specifically Rochester Office Parc Building and 
Binson’s Home Health Care Center, and how they have negatively impacted her 
residential home.  She also addressed the proposed alley vacation, which she 
discovered is no benefit to her because her home does not fall within the 
appropriate subdivision boundaries.  Ms. Carty asked to go on record stating that 
her property and quality of life have deteriorated vastly since she moved into her 
home.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck expressed concern with the small corner lot to the north that would remain 
as a small undevelopable residential property should the rezoning request go 
forward.  He would like consideration to be given to consolidation of the properties.   
 
Mr. Strat noted that he voted against the previous rezoning request at this location 
based on the concerns of Ms. Carty.  He asked for clarification on the alley 
vacation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Lancaster clarified the “drawn” alley proposed to be vacated is platted as an 
alley on a subdivision plat, and only the subdivision owners within that plat have an 
interest in the alley.  She indicated the developer must start a re-plat action, which 
is a complicated matter. 
 
Mr. Miller stated a Public Hearing on the proposed vacation is scheduled on the 
next City Council agenda.  He indicated the request is to vacate the entire alley 
between DeEtta and Marengo. 
 
The members encouraged Ms. Carty to advise the City in writing of her concerns 
and any associated costs for damage incurred from the recently constructed 
developments; i.e., mailbox replacement, lawn ruts, unshielded vehicular lights, 
dead landscaping, unkempt dumpster, etc.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-059 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends denial to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, for the following reason:  
 
1. By rezoning this property, a financially un-redevelopable residential property 

to the north would remain.  
 
Yes: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed her reasoning to grant the rezoning request.  She said it 
appears that Rochester Road is not going to be a place for residences, as is the 
case for this remnant parcel.  Ms. Kerwin said she does not see it as an issue for 
redevelopment in the future, and the overlay accommodates for parcels such as 
this.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-060 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be granted, for the following reason:  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

1. The application is compatible to adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how site plan compliance would be insured, assuming a site plan 
would not come before the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said site plan approval would be required for the site.  He noted the parcel 
would become a legal non-conformity should the parcel be rezoned and setback 
requirements do not meet the ordinance. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he would be more inclined to approve the rezoning request if there 
was an attempt to consolidate the two parcels, and noted the problem is the 
remaining residential parcel that would never be redeveloped as R-1.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-061 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until there is some attempt to consolidate with 
the property to the north.    
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Troshynski said the rezoning request goes against the intent of the Planning 
Commission to decrease the driveways along Rochester Road, from Square Lake 
to South Boulevard.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission has postponed items and requested 
petitioners to look into consolidation of properties in the past.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 228) – 
Articles 20.00.00, 21.00.00 and 22.00.00  Seasonal Outdoor Displays in the B 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to seasonal outdoor displays in business zoning districts.   
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed a previous discussion relating to the combination of 
limiting the Zoning Ordinance and licensing with respect to types of businesses.   
 
Ms. Lancaster encouraged the members to forward the item to City Council so the 
licensing procedure could be initiated.  She indicated members could keep an open 
mind in terms of seeing if there is something that could be developed as relates to 
the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Vleck suggested zoning ordinance text that would give authority to City Council 
to grant licensing for a time period of one to three years.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-062 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission considered a text amendment to the Zoning 
Ordinance that would permit seasonal outdoor display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 
Districts; and  
 
WHEREAS, Regulating seasonal outdoor display through the Zoning Ordinance 
creates enforcement issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that seasonal outdoor 
display is more appropriately permitted via a licensing procedure through the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby tables ZOTA 228.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that City 
Council consider creating a licensing procedure that would permit seasonal outdoor 
display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts for periods of one to three years in duration. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 229) – 
Article 28.00.00  Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to automobile rental establishments, and reported City Management 
recommends approval of the ZOTA.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-063 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting 
Automobile Rental Establishments subject to Special Conditions in the M-1 District, 
be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, 
Planning Commission Draft dated February 9, 2007.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 349) – Existing Global Towing & 
Auto Repair, West side of Heide, North of Maple Road (2133 Heide), Section 28 – 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan, and reported City Management 
recommends approval of the special use request and site plan with the following 
conditions:   
 
1. The Planning Commission shall determine whether it is appropriate to waive the 

required dumpster screening.  To do so, they shall determine that the trash 
receptacles are located so as to be obscured from view from any abutting public 
streets, and no other significant negative effects will result from the waiver of 
such screening (Section 39.70.09). 

2. Parking of vehicles shall be limited to the off-street parking spaces delineated on 
the site plan. 

3. All vehicles parked on the site shall be licensed. 
4. Provide one (1) additional tree within the required greenbelt. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted the Planning Department received correspondence from 
Hoekstra Transportation of 2133 Heide Street in support of the rezoning request, a 
copy of which was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the following: 
• Parking calculations and requirements. 
• Maneuverability of trailer as relates to delineated parking spaces and dumpster. 
• Dumpster location, access and screening. 
• Condition #3, relating to licensing of parked vehicles. 
• Enforcement of no parking regulation in fire lanes. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-03-064 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item until the Regular meeting of April to allow the 
petitioner to be present to discuss the matter with the Planning Commission and to 
continue the Public Hearing.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was general discussion with respect to the petitioner’s absence and the site 
plan issues brought to the floor tonight.   
 
Mr. Strat indicated he would not support a motion to postpone based on the 
petitioner’s absence.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 350) – Proposed Dequindre 
Road Taco Bell Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake Road, 
Section 12 – Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request and preliminary site plan, and reported City 
Management recommends approval of the special use request and site plan with 
the following conditions.   
 
1. To enhance the natural character of the E-P property, plant additional shrubs on 

the berm.  The shrubs shall be planted in massings (or groups) to create a more 
natural appearance on the berm and to strengthen the visual screening of the 
development from the north. 

2. All plant species to be approved by the Landscape Analyst. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted the Planning Department received correspondence from Pamela 
Prewitt in opposition to the proposed site plan, a copy of which was distributed to 
the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant also noted 
that the original site plan proposed a shared drive to the north and to the south.  He 
reported the petitioner has been very cooperative in that respect and eliminated one 
of those drives.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

James Barnwell of Desine, Inc., 2183 Pless Drive, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Barnwell indicated cooperation in providing additional 
plantings on the berm as suggested by the City, and working with the City to bring 
the project to fruition.  He said a Taco Bell restaurant located to the south of the 
proposed location is currently in operation, and they have been looking for a new 
site within the neighborhood for the past four years.  Mr. Barnwell confirmed the 
dumpster has provisions for a grease container.   
 
Mr. Vleck questioned the rationale for additional plantings on the berm since a 
screen wall is required. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the additional plantings on the berm would enhance the buffer to 
residential and the E-P zone. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller addressed the landscape plan as relates to the storm water detention.  He 
said the petitioner is gaining developable land by placing the detention in the E-P 
zone, and that places a limitation on the landscaping.   
 
The following items were discussed with the petitioner.   
• Consult landscape architect. 
• Protection of existing deciduous tree during construction of screen wall. 
• Variations to screen wall design; dimensional, character. 
• Creativity in berm design. 
• Landscape both sides of the driveway  
• Alternate underground storm water detention as relates to limitation of 

landscaping. 
• Quality and quantity of plantings. 
• Contact resident to the north.  
• Zoning Ordinance interpretation of screen wall.  
 
Mr. Barnwell indicated he could have a revised site plan before the Planning 
Commission within the next two weeks.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-065 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 21.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed restaurant with drive-through, located on the west side of Dequindre, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

north of Long Lake Road, in Section 12, within the B-2 zoning district, is hereby 
postponed until such a time that the petitioner has had a chance to work with City 
staff, talk to the property owner to the north and submit a revised site plan.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER 
 

12. CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the proposed amendments to the City of Madison Heights 
Future Land Use Plan would have no impact on the City of Troy. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-066 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Madison Heights is preparing two amendments to their 
Future Land Use Plan and has submitted the proposed amendments to the Troy 
Planning Commission for review; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed amendments involve changing the land use 
classification of two small parcels, and will have no impact on the City of Troy. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission supports the proposed amendments to the 
City of Madison Heights Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski said the Planning Commission meeting is a public presentation and 
people ought to know the Commissioners care when they come.  
 
Mr. Strat agreed.  He indicated some communities have a no tolerance policy for 
petitioners who are a no-show.   
 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:31 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\03-13-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

Mark Maxwell, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, March 20, 2007, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2007 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 20, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 20, 2007 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  K-MART, 100 E. MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance 
to allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side of 
the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the building 
adjacent to the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board on a yearly basis since 1978, which allows for an outdoor display of plant 
materials in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced area and four-foot section 
of the sidewalk adjacent to the building, at the west end of the building.  This display 
area is used for plants and flowers, and the variance is valid during the months of April 
through July.  This request has previously been subject to the petitioner providing a 
corral type fence to both enclose the area of the display and maintain a safe sidewalk at 
the same time.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of March 15, 
2005 and was granted a one-year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same 
and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that City Administration and the Planning Commission are 
working on a business license to allow these types of displays.  If this occurs, this would 
be the last time this item would appear before this Board. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Sherri Haywood was present and stated that she had nothing to add. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant K-Mart, 100 E. Maple a one-year renewal of relief of the Ordinance to 
allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side of 
the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the building 
adjacent to the building. 
 

• This is the same request that has come before this Board for a number of years. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 

Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SANKARAN BALAKRISHNAN, 1654 LIVERNOIS, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gasoline station service building that would 
result in a 31.48’ front setback where Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front yard setback;  
a setback of only 9’ from the R-1E (Residential One-Family) property to the northeast, 
where Section 30.20.07 requires a 75’ setback; and 750 square feet of landscaping 
where Section 39.70.04 requires at least 1,547 square feet of countable landscape for a 
site this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a new gasoline station service building.  Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front 
yard setback and a 75’ setback from residential zoned property for developments in the 
H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates a front yard 
setback of 31.48’ to the west property line along Livernois and a setback of only 9’ from 
the R-1E (Residential One-Family) Zoned property to the northeast. 
 
In addition, Section 39.70.04 requires at least 1,547 square feet of countable landscape 
for a site this size.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 750 square feet of 
countable landscaping will be provided. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 20, 2007 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to present a new site plan showing the proposed 
driveway and a landscaping plan to the Board. 
 
Since that meeting we have received revised plans for the development.  These revised 
plans show that additional landscape area has been added.  The plans with the 
additional landscape area shows that they would now be in compliance with the  
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
minimum area of landscaping required on this site.  The other variance requests 
regarding the front setback and setback from residential remain the same. 
 
Jason Longhurst was present and stated that they had taken the comments of the 
Board from the last meeting and attempted to address as many concerns as possible.  
They have relocated the dumpster to the south side of the building and have also 
looked at adding more landscaping.  Extra landscaping has been added to the front of 
the building and they also added to the landscaping along Maple so that everyone could 
see it and now meet the landscape requirement.  If they shift the building one way or the 
other, the setback variances would have to be increased.  They feel they have the 
building in the only place that fits the site correctly. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner could put any screening on the east side of the 
building.  Mr. Longhurst said that they are proposing that it remain an access drive and 
they plan to add concrete paving on their portion of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the house behind this property uses this alley as a driveway and 
the commercial property also uses it as a driveway.  The only parcels that benefit from 
the alley are the ones that are owned by Maple Road Investments. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the alley in question was originally platted as an alley.  Last 
year at the request of the property owners the alley was vacated.  The adjacent property 
owners have agreed to keep it open and use it as a shared driveway.  Mr. Maxwell 
asked if this was done at the request of all of the property owners from Chopin to Maple.  
Mr. Stimac explained that this is a private agreement among the property owners, the 
City has no interest in it. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the owners that have retail businesses along Maple use 
this alleyway as a driveway as well as the home on the south side of Chopin.  Mr. 
Stimac also said that he does not believe there is any access to the alley to the retail 
building to the North. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the residential property would be sharing the access with 
Commercial property. 
 
Mr. Clark had a question about the screening wall.  Mr. Longhurst said that they are 
going to extend a screening wall from the building to the corner of the lot. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Sydney Frank, representing the property owner who has the commercial property at 
35, 37 E. Maple and 26 Chopin.  Mr. Frank said that in his opinion there is no difference 
other than the increase in landscaping from the plan that was presented last month.  It 
is there understanding that a variance is granted to accommodate a property owner if  

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
there is a deficiency with the property.  Nothing about this property compels a variance.  
This is a piece of property that could not possible comply with the zoning setbacks.   
That is the exact condition that existed on this property when it was purchased.  It was 
non-conforming and could not possibly be put in conformance.  The little store is 
presently about 40’ or 50’ away from the back end of this house.  It is not 75’ from the 
property line.  The petitioner wants to move that store and make it significantly larger -  
just about  three times its size, which will then put the building 20’ away rather than 50’ 
away.  If the owner of the residential property wanted to put on an addition to this home, 
it would look directly down on the gas station whether there is or isn’t a screen wall. The 
petitioner is here for one purpose only, and that is to make more money.  The petitioner 
wants to put up a 1200 square foot building.  He could move the building back and 
made it 400 square feet.  He doesn’t want to do that because he it would not give him 
the ability for the extra income. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the petitioner could put up a phone booth and it would still 
require a variance. 
 
Mr. Frank said that was correct, but when this property was purchased and 
subsequently re-zoned the petitioner was  told that they would not be able to change the 
property without a variance.  All you are getting is a prettier gas station. You are getting 
more landscaping, a prettier view and a screened dumpster. It will have a negative 
effect to residential property and diminish the value of this property.  Granting this 
variance will create a different type of non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that currently the view from the back of the residential property is a 
chain link fence.  If the petitioner moves his building and puts up a screen wall the view 
from the residential property will still be a wall.  You would still see a gas station, which 
has been on that site for a number of years.  The owner of the residential property knew 
that was a gas station and should have assumed it would remain a gas station. 
 
Mr. Frank stated that when the property was originally purchased, although it was a gas 
station, it was not zoned Highway. The owner of the property did not realize it would 
always be a gas station.  Before it was re-zoned Highway there was a possibility that it 
could have been something else. This is an area of Maple that does not look very good 
but by granting a variance you are solving a small problem, and creating a much larger 
problem.  Mr. Frank said that he did not know what the alternative to the problem was. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that when this gas station was constructed it was not Highway 
Service, but when Mr. Frank’s client moved in there was an existing gas station and 
therefore complied with the requirements of the zoning at that time.  The current zoning 
classification came into effect many years later.  Mr. Courtney went on to say that in his 
opinion, Mr. Frank’s client’s side of Chopin is a detriment to that side of Chopin.  One of 
the existing homes has a front door that fronts the alley. 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Frank made it clear that his client did not own all four of the homes on Chopin.  Mr. 
Frank said that if she ever wanted to enlarge her property or improve it, it would be 
extremely difficult.  Mr. Frank said that they are requesting this variance be denied. 
 
Mr. Stempien the Architect for this project was present.  He stated that his job is to 
design a building that will not effect the health, safety and welfare of the surrounding 
community.  He believes this will be a dramatic improvement to the area.  They have 
eliminated driveways and this will make it a much safer area.  There are a lot of stations 
that have been abandoned and boarded up.  The landscaping and the new building will 
enhance this area.  It will help the owner to survive on this corner.  It is impossible to do 
anything with this site unless the Board allows them to bend the rules, so to speak, and 
create a better building and serve the community.  Mr. Stempien said that gas station 
owners do not make a lot of money selling the gas, but in fact survive on people 
purchasing the items provided in the service station store.   
 
Mr. Brian Howard was present and stated that he is the Architect for Maple Properties.  
This existing building is 400 square feet.  He does not believe that the petitioner needs 
a 1600 square foot building.  The size of the building could be reduced by 238 square 
feet and the new building would still be 1362 square feet.  This would increase the front 
setback and keeps the building in line with the other buildings on Livernois. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for a clarification of Mr. Howard’s interest in this property.  Mr. 
Howard said that he is the Architect for the adjacent property owner.  Mr. Kovacs said 
that the building to the north of this site is much closer to Livernois than the existing gas 
station. 
 
Mr. Howard said that if the building to the north was torn down, this Board would have to 
grant the same variance to allow them to re-build.  This would be precedent setting. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that variances are granted based on the present circumstances as the 
Board has no way of knowing what is going to happen in the future. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that the property to the north is zoned B-1 and has a 25’ 
front setback requirement.   
 
Mr. Howard said that the petitioner could still reduce the size of the proposed building 
and meet the setback requirements. 
 
Mr. Nick Stefanson, the owner of the property to the north said that right now there is 
much better exposure for his building.  In the fast food industry it has been realized that 
the northeast corner is the most desirable location.  Visibility, and accessibility to the 
building to the north will be effected by the new building.  Mr. Stefanson said that he 
thinks 40’ should be taken into consideration before granting a variance for 31.48’. 
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what would be a good business for this corner. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the setbacks shown on the plan would be required for any 
building on this corner.  The H-S Zoning (Highway Service) requires a 75’ setback from 
Residential Zoning.  Within the last two years the property was re-zoned from B-1 to 
H-S Zoning.  B-1 Zoning does not require a 75’ setback to residential property.  
Regardless of the use of the building, there is only a small triangle in the corner that 
would meet all of the setback requirements for this Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if there was any current business category that allows a commercial 
building to be 9’ from a residential area.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that without research he thought 20’ would be the minimum setback 
requirement from a residential area. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he thought the setback from Livernois was important, but he was 
hoping that the building could have been pushed up closer to Livernois and farther away 
from the residential property.  Mr. Clark said that he had lived in the area for several 
years and he thinks this building is going to be bearing down on the existing home.  Mr. 
Clark said that in his opinion there is a large difference between having a screen wall 
close to your property or a building. There are many homes in this area and he believes 
that this building will have a negative impact on both the Chinese restaurant as well as 
the residential property.  He does not like the building encroaching on the neighbor.  He 
believes this is a big foot development on a small parcel and he is very concerned about 
the impact to the surrounding property.  
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the job of this Board is to determine if this variance will have a 
detrimental effect to the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that last year this Board had heard a very similar request and at 
that time the building was 18’ from the residential property.  The reason it is now 9’ is 
because the owner of the property on Chopin petitioned to have this alley vacated.  In 
his opinion when looking down the alley this new building will be an improvement and 
will create the illusion of a longer wall.  He also stated that an improvement to the 
neighborhood would be if the houses were demolished.  Maple Road Properties are not 
demonstrating any responsibility for the physical condition of the residential property.  
The Chinese restaurant will still have at least two-thirds of the building shown going 
north.  This new building will be an improvement and increase safety in the area 
because they are eliminating two driveways, one on Maple and one on Livernois.  Mr. 
Courtney said that he would like to see someone living and working in Troy able to 
benefit from changes being made.  Mr. Courtney also said that Mr. Frank’s client was  
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
interested in developing this property and that is the reason they are against granting 
this variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he did not believe moving the building closer would have a 
detrimental effect to the surrounding property. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he agrees with Mr. Courtney in that this new building would be an 
improvement to the surrounding area.  Mr. Fejes also stated that the petitioner has 
made a concerted effort to improve this corner and has satisfied the landscaping 
requirement.  Mr. Fejes said that there are a lot of gas stations that are boarded up and 
would not want that to happen to this corner. 
 
Mr. Frank stated that Mr. Courtney’s comments were out of order and to use a property 
owner’s residence as part of a reason to make a decision is totally out of order.  A 
variance is not justified by whether or not someone lives in Troy or somewhere else. 
Two years ago, Mr. Frank’s client was interested in developing the area.    Mr. Frank 
further stated that his client is no longer interested in trying to develop her property with 
this parcel.  A variance should be granted based on a hardship with the land.  Mr. Frank 
also said that his client believes that the development of this property to a larger service 
station will have a negative effect on her property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that financial considerations are not to be taken into account in the 
decision to grant a variance, but they have to look at whether or not the variance will 
have a negative effect to surrounding property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the petitioner has done their best to avoid blocking the business 
to the north.  This building is still visible and the signage for the building will still be 
visible.  The residence on the northeast corner will not be impacted because it is still 
sitting next to a restaurant, gas station and commercial property.  The view will remain 
the same and this site has a definite hardship because of the H-S Zoning classification, 
which allows a building to be constructed on a very small triangle. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Sankaran Balakrishnan, 1654 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new gasoline station service building that would result in a 31.48’ front 
setback where Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front yard setback; and a setback of only 
9’ from the R-1E (Residential One-family) property to the northeast, where Section 
30.20.07 requires a 75’ setback. 
 

• Setback variance to Livernois is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use. 
• Variance does not cause adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 

• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• The health, safety and welfare of the citizens will be improved due to the 

elimination of two (2) driveways. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ALLEN ROSTAM, 6595 EDITH, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition to a walk out basement that will result in a 33’-3” rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-
1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to an existing home.  This addition is at the level of the walkout basement 
and includes an open patio above with a proposed 33’-3” rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the original deck would be removed.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
the current deck would be removed and a new deck would be constructed with steel 
and concrete. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the structure below would still require a variance if it was 
constructed without windows. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that it would be the same because of the way the upper structure 
is constructed; it in fact becomes a roof.  Instead of being an area under the deck, it 
now becomes a roof over an occupiable room.   
 
Mr. Rostam was present and stated that the present deck requires a lot of maintenance.  
There is no access proposed from the basement to the area under the deck; they have 
a staircase they use.  This new deck will increase the value of the property, he has 
spoken to his neighbors, and they approve of this request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs confirmed that Mr. Rostam did not have any direct access to the deck. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why this would be considered an addition without direct access.  Mr. 
Stimac compared it to an attached garage without direct access from the house.  The 
structure would still have to comply with the setbacks. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was a poured basement.  Mr. Rostam said it was a poured 
walkout basement.   
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Kyle Humphrey, the builder, was present and stated that at one time the petitioner was 
thinking about breaking into the basement and putting in a door, but that is not part of 
this plan. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion this was a very unique situation and did not believe 
that this type of structure was addressed anywhere in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Allen Rostam, 6595 Edith, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition to a walk-out basement that will result in a 33’-3” rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request is not excessive. 
• Variance will not change the use of the property. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Meeting recessed at 8:40 P.M. 
 
Meeting resumed at 8:45 P.M. 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MAZIN AND SENNICA NAFSU, 3769 
MEADOWBROOK, for approval under Section 43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle 
outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are seeking approval under Section 43.74.00 
to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property.  The Ford cube van does 
not meet the exceptions as described in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City 
Ordinance. 
 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
A similar request was approved by City Council under the previously adopted criteria on 
February 23, 2004 for a period of two years.  Copies of the minutes from that meeting 
were included for reference. 
 
The site in question is approximately 12,500 square feet in area and has a home that 
has 1,302 square feet of living space on the first floor with a 420 square foot attached 
garage.  A detached garage could be constructed up to 700 square feet in area.  
Another 556 square feet of attached garage could also be constructed on the site. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked for a clarification on the guidelines for approval of this request.  Mr. 
Stimac gave an explanation of the requirements and changes for approval of the 
parking of commercial vehicles outside on residential property.  Mr. Stimac also 
explained that if this Board grants this request now, the next time it comes back to the 
Board it will come back as a renewal. 
 
Mr. Nafsu was present and stated that he had followed the guidelines set up by City 
Council and believes his neighbors are happy with the results.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it was possible for Mr. Nafsu to construct a garage.   
 
Mr. Nafsu said that he didn’t think he would be able to add on to his attached garage.  
He had planted bushes as requested by City Council, and extended his driveway, and 
has not received any complaints from the neighbors.  He would be more than willing to 
come back to the City every two years and will do whatever the City requires. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why he needed to park his commercial vehicle at his home. 
 
Mr. Nafsu said that he uses this vehicle everyday. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if he used this vehicle for everyday use.  Mr. Nafsu said that he only 
uses it when he works. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the nature of his business was and Mr. Nafsu said that he 
sells candy and the company he works for is very small and has only five or six 
employees.  The property the factory is on does not have enough room to park these 
commercial vehicles. 
 
Mr. Courtney informed Mr. Nafsu that the Homeowners Association had written a letter 
urging the Board to deny this request as they did not believe the conditions set by City 
Council were met. 
 
Mr. Nafsu said that he thought it would be possible for him to make the trees look better. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mrs. Nafsu was present and stated that City Council had request that they construct a 
side driveway, which they did.  Mrs. Nafsu did not understand why they had to appear 
before the Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the City does not have business uses in the same location as 
residentially zoned property and they need permission to break the Ordinance law to 
park a commercial vehicle on a residential street.   
 
 No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he is opposed to this request.  In 2004 City Council instructed the 
Planning Department to find spaces that would allow for the parking of commercial 
vehicles that would not be on residential property.  The Zoning Ordinance text 
amendments allows for 375 available spaces to park commercial vehicles.  They were 
not in residential areas.  One year ago Mr. Motzny, one of Assistant City Attorneys, 
informed the Planning Commission that this was basically a use variance.  This Board 
does not have the authority to grant a use variance. 
 
Mr. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney, stated that he had reviewed Mr. Motzny’s memo 
before tonight’s meeting and stated that although it may be found to be a special use 
variance but under more general language it is considered a zoning matter.  Mr. Motzny 
also stated that it was appropriate for this Board to act on this request.  City Council 
gave this Board the authority to act on this type of request as long as certain criteria are 
followed. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance does allow exceptions for the parking of 
commercial vehicles of a certain size on residential property.  The reason the petitioner 
is here tonight is because his vehicle does not meet the exceptions regarding these 
vehicles.  Mr. Stimac also said that Mr. Motzny said that there is the potential for a 
special use, but if this vehicle were smaller it would not require approval from this 
Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that basically it is a legal opinion and asked if Mr. Wright had any 
information of where this available parking would be.  
 
Mr. Wright said that he had a whole list of available parking and passed it on to Mr. 
Stimac. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the document provided by the Planning Department in 2004, which 
is part of the Zoning text amendment, shows facilities that would allow for the parking of 
these vehicles with special use approval.  It was his understanding however, that only 
one of the facilities has gone through the special use approval process.   

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Mazin and Sennica Nafsu, 3769 Meadowbrook, 
under Section 43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 

• For a period not to exceed one-year. 
• One-year approval will allow petitioner to explore the possibility of parking this 

vehicle in another location. 
• Approval granted in accordance with Items B & C. 
• Variance does not negatively impact the neighbors. 

 
Mr. Clark asked the petitioner if he owns the truck.  Mr. Nafsu said that was correct.  Mr. 
Clark also asked what name was on the truck.  Mr. Nafsu explained that the Police 
Department told him that he needed a name on the truck so that is his name. 
 
Mr. Clark then asked if his office was in Troy.  Mr. Nafsu said that he did not have an 
office.  He buys and sells candy. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this was a 20’ RV could be parked in this location.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that the Ordinance allows for the parking of recreational vehicles in either the 
side or rear yard of a residence. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he needed to amend his motion, as he believes that the 
petitioner can add on to his existing garage or add a detached building to park this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this site could have a detached garage up to 700 square feet and 
he could also add an addition 550 square feet to the attached garage.  Based on the 
description of the property given by the petitioner he could build an additional structure 
on either side of his property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how the Board could vote on the motion when Item B is not 
applicable. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the motion has been properly made but it is up to the Board on 
whether or not it can be voted on. 
 
An amended motion was made. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Mazin and Sennica Nafsu, 3769 Meadowbrook, 
under Section 43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 

• For a period not to exceed one-year. 
• One-year approval will allow petitioner to explore the possibility of parking this 

vehicle in another location. 
• Approval granted in accordance with Items A & C. 
• Variance does not negatively impact the neighbors. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR A PERIOD OF ONE-YEAR 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 727 COLEBROOK 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new home on an 
existing 10,000 square foot lot where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10,500 square foot 
minimum lot are in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new home.  The site plan submitted indicates construction of this new home on an 
existing 10,000 square foot platted lot where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10,500 square 
foot minimum lot area in the R-1C Zoning District.   
 
Records show this property is in single ownership with the adjacent property at 715 
Colebrook that is also on a 10,000 square foot platted lot.  Section 40.50.02 requires 
that lots with continuous frontage in single ownership that do not by themselves meet 
minimum lot area requirements be considered one undivided parcel.  The conversion of 
these parcels into separate ownership and construction of an additional home on this lot 
is in violation of the Ordinance. 
 
Gary Abitheira developer of the property was present, representing the owner of the 
property.  The owner of this property purchased it in 1970 and is looking to sell the lot 
next door.  He bought it as a buildable lot.  Area was platted in 1924 as all 100’ lots and 
the proposed house would meet all the setback requirements. The only requirement that 
would not be met is the 10,500 square foot area.  Every other lot on the street is non-
conforming and there is no other available property to purchase.  Mr. Abitheira 
contacted the neighbors on each side and also across the street and no one objects to 
this request.  Mr. Abitheira said that they are trying to split the lot that was subdivided 
off.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Abitheira asked if any other variances would be required.  Mr. 
Abitheira said that he would not require any other variances.  All other setbacks would 
be met.  The house would blend in with the other houses in the neighborhood. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how this home would blend in with the other homes. 
 
Mr. Abitheira said that he thought there were eighty-two (82) lots on this street and most 
of them are built on 100’ x 100’ lots, and this home would conform to the other lots. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there are sixty-five (65) houses on this street.  There are a 
number of homes on this street that are in fact on 100’ x 100’ lots.  Some of the lots are 
150’ x 200’ also. 
 
Mr. Abitheira pointed out that there are a few 50’ stub streets that were put in to make 
the lots look wider.  There are a few 150’ lots. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Thomas McKaig of 3509 Bristol was present.  Mr. McKaig said that his property 
backs up to this lot and he concerned that a two-story home would be out of place on 
this street as there are a lot of ranch homes in the area.  Right now they have a very 
nice view and he would rather not look at the back of a large home.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that they are not in control of what he can build as long as he complies 
with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. McKaig said that he was wondering where the 10,500 square foot requirement 
came from. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the City of Troy has five (5) different residential zoning 
districts and each district has a minimum lot area requirement.  The minimum lot size 
establishes how dense an area is developed.  This Board does have the power to place 
conditions on the structure to limit the size of the variance. 
 
Mr. McKaig said that in his opinion when you drive up and down the street, the new 
larger home look funny on small lots. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what type of home Mr. Abitheira was planning to construct. 
 
Mr. Abitheira said that he wants to construct a four-bedroom colonial.  Three bedroom 
ranches do not sell any more.  There are other colonial style homes on the street and 
he wants to build what will sell.   
 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what would happen if the Board placed a restriction limiting the new 
construction to either one story or one and one half stories. 
 
Mr. Abitheira said that he may not be able to keep within the restrictions because 
everyone wants a four bedroom colonial. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he understands the concern of the neighbor on Bristol, but does 
not think a colonial would be out of place in this area.  Mr. Kovacs would not be willing 
to grant any other variance on this property. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Gary Abitheira, 727 Colebrook, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new home on an existing 10,000 square foot lot where Section 30.10.04 requires a 
10,500 square foot minimum lot area in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petitioner. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Mr. Courtney asked if a restriction could be placed on this request stating that no other 
variances could be added. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if the subsequent owner wants to add something that would 
require a variance, this Board would have to listen to that request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHRIS MILLER, 3301 TALBOT, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a covered front porch that will result with a proposed 23’-4” front 
setback to the roof support columns where Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum 
front yard setback in R-!E Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a covered front porch as part of additions on an existing single family home.  The site 
plan submitted indicates the construction of a covered front porch with a proposed 23’-
4” front setback to the roof support columns.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum 
front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. McGavin the designer of the alteration for this home was present.  Mr. McGavin 
stated that it is only the porch posts that require a variance.  They want to put a roof 
over the porch to protect the area from inclement weather. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed.   
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if they removed the posts, or stanchions, and could make this 
project from the home a variance would not be required. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Chris Miller, 3301 Talbot, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
covered front porch that will result with a proposed 23’-4” front setback to the roof 
support columns where Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in 
R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Variance request is minimal. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that City Council had appointed Mrs. Gies to another 
three-year term on this Board and elections will take place in May to appoint a new 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to waive the rules of the Board of Zoning Appeals and appoint a Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman at this meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO WAIVE RULES CARRIED 
 
 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 20, 2007 

Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
Moved to appoint Mr. Maxwell, Chairman for the Board of Zoning Appeals, and Mr. 
Kovacs, Vice-Chairman until May 2008. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPOINT MR. MAXWELL, CHAIRMAN AND MR. KOVACS, VICE-
CHAIRMAN CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that at last month’s meeting there was a question 
regarding how the home on Hampton was constructed with a 20’ setback from the front 
setback line.  After further research, it was determined that in 1972 a variance was 
granted to allow the garage to be constructed within 25’ of the front setback line. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that the Mr. Nafsu approached him after his hearing, as he did not 
understand the action of the Board. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that Mr. Nafsu will be receiving written notification of what this 
Board had approved regarding his commercial vehicle request. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:45 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Mr. Maxwell, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary  

 17



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 27, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-067 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-068 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – March 6, 2007 Special/Study Meeting and March 13, 2007 Regular 
Meeting 
 
Mr. Vleck requested a revision to the March 13, 2007 Regular meeting minutes, 
item #6, Rezoning Request Z-727, page 5.  The first sentence in the second to last 
paragraph should read:  “Mr. Vleck expressed concern with the small corner lot to 
the north that would remain as a small undevelopable residential property should 
the rezoning request go forward.”   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-069 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 6, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented and the March 13, 2007 Regular meeting minutes as amended.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the March 20, 2007 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the March 21, 2007 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting. 
 
There was discussion with respect to participation by the Planning Commission and 
Board of Zoning Appeals on DDA projects; specifically, proposed I-75/Rochester 
Road and I-75/Big Beaver interchange improvements, Gateway Park and Big 
Beaver corridor. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported City Council actions on the following:   
• Z 725 – Request to rezone office building located east of Livernois, south side of 

Wattles, Section 22, from R-1C to O-1 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• SV 189 – Request to vacate section of alley located west of Rochester Road 
between Marengo and DeEtta, Section 3. 

• ZOTA 225 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment relating to Planned Unit 
Development Provisions. 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 350) – Proposed Dequindre Road Taco Bell 
Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake Road, Section 12 – Zoned 
B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed special use request, and 
reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the special use 
request and site plan as submitted.   
 
James Barnwell of Desine, Inc., 2183 Pless Drive, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Barnwell said they attempted to address all concerns 
relating to the entranceway and landscaping.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Pam Prewitt of 41203 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  Ms. Prewitt lives north of the 
proposed request.  Her color preference of the wall is a natural environmental color.  
Ms. Prewitt addressed compatibility of the proposed development with future 
development to the west.  She also addressed the entrance in relation to the K-Mart 
shopping center on the east side of Dequindre.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Eric Rauch of Desine, Inc., addressed the design of the boulevard in relation to 
future development to the west.  Mr. Rauch said trees would be planted along the 
centerline of the boulevard and mulch would be extended to the curb once it is 
established.  He indicated lawn maintenance agreements are in place for the 
landscaped portion directly to the north and that it would be sprinkled.  Mr. Rauch 
said the wall would be an earth tone shade and not visually obtrusive.  He indicated 
consideration would be given to staining the wall.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the configuration of the road would be constructed as 
depicted on the site plan with site plan approval.  
 
Mr. Strat said the plan is better than previously submitted but he thinks the design of 
the wall could be better.   
 
Chair Schultz expressed appreciation to the petitioner in providing a much improved 
landscape plan within a short time frame.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-03-070 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the special use request and revised site plan, dated 3-15-07, for 
the Taco Bell Restaurant located on the west side of Dequindre, north of Long Lake, 
in Section 12, B-2 zoning, be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. REZONING REQUEST (Z 721) – Proposed Multi-family Development, West of John 
R, North of Wattles, Section 14 – From B-2 (Community Business) and R-1C (One 
Family residential) to RM-1 (Low Rise Multi-Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Hutson recused himself from discussion on this item because of his business 
and financial interest in the matter.   
 
[Mr. Hutson exited.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a brief history of the proposed rezoning request that was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner at the October 10, 2006 Regular meeting.  
He stated it was the recommendation of City Management to deny the proposed 
request because it is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan and does not meet 
the location standards of Section 15.40.00.   
 
The petitioner, Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Real Estate, 5877 Livernois, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Garrett briefly discussed the intent of the proposed rezoning and 
distributed a data sheet as relates to RM and RM-1 density.  
 
Discussion followed.   
 
The members discussed consideration of a conditional rezoning at this site.   
 
Mr. Garrett agreed that a conditional rezoning application might be the most 
favorable approach. 
 
[Mr. Hutson returned.] 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. POTENTIAL FUTURE P.U.D. – Proposed Long Lake Rochester Senior Housing 
P.U.D., South side of Long Lake Road, West side of Rochester Road, Section 15, 
Currently Zoned:  R-1T (One Family Residential Attached), R-1C (One Family 
Residential) and B-2 (Community Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief history of proposed projects at this particular location.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

The petitioner, Corey Jacoby, was present.  Mr. Jacoby briefly addressed the 
proposed development and introduced the project development team. 
 
Marty Smith of Siegal/Tuomaala Associates, 29200 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, 
displayed visual boards of the proposed 239-unit continuum care senior living 
community.  He addressed:   

• Three development phases: 
o Independent living. 
o Assisted living. 
o Skilled care and therapy center. 

• Transitional relationship to surrounding uses. 
• Parking. 
• Benefits to the City. 
• Walkability. 

 
Tim Storey of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy, 
addressed storm water management, environmental aspects and topography. 
 
Jeff Smith, project landscape architect from Professional Engineering Associates, 
addressed the proposed rain gardens and water detention.  
 
Mr. Jacoby addressed potential noise pollution as relates to the manufacturing use 
to the south. 
 
Discussion followed.  There was general consensus that the proposed use is a 
good fit at this location.   
 
Chair Schultz asked the petitioner to provide the Planning Department with density 
statistics of a similar development at this location zoned as R-EC, residential elderly 
care.   
 
The project development team thanked the members for their comments and time. 
 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:20 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

11. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Restaurants in the M-1 
Light Industrial District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed a request to expand an existing restaurant located at 1090 
Rochester Road.  The owner would like to accommodate outdoor seating.  Mr. 
Savidant reviewed the parameters of the request as relates to the M-1 zoning 
district and addressed questions that members should take under consideration.   
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Norm Johnson, owner of the restaurant, was present.  Mr. Johnson shared the 
proposed restaurant expansion plans, and addressed the intent of the family-owned 
and operated business.   
 
The members agreed to look into the matter and work with the owner toward a 
favorable solution.   
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield, was present.  Mr. Wilson suggested 
the matter might be addressed similar to the zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to day care and financial facilities in the O-1 district.   
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Cell Towers on School 
Property 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed a request received from the Troy School District to consider 
amending the Zoning Ordinance to permit wireless communication towers on school 
property.  He addressed questions that members should take under consideration 
should an amendment go forward. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members that cell towers on school property should be 
governed by the school district.  They further agreed that cell towers on City 
property could be advantageous.   
 
Ms. Troshynski suggested a compilation of data with respect to existing cell tower 
locations and projection of future need.   
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield, said he foresees a bid demand for cell 
towers from one particular wireless communications company.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

13. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Big Beaver Overlay 
District 
 
Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle developed provisions for the Big Beaver 
Corridor Overlay District.  Mr. Savidant identified parameters by which the overlay 
district provisions would be based.   
 
There was general discussion on:  

• Timeframe/timeline of critical importance. 
• Milestone dates. 
• Knowledge and information acquired from national planning conference. 
• Architectural standards; specifically, design of the backsides of buildings.  
• Expand on landscape and lighting requirements.   

 
 

14. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
commercial vehicle definitions and outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts. 
 
General discussion on: 

• Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR). 
• Trailers. 
• Recreational vehicles. 
• Screening. 
• Noise limitations. 

 
 

15. CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SHELBY MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the Master Plan Amendment of the Charter Township of 
Shelby.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-071 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Shelby Township Planning Commission has prepared the Shelby 
Township Master Plan Draft Amendment – Lakeside Village Enhancement Plan; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Shelby Township Master Plan Draft Amendment will have no 
impact on the City of Troy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Shelby Township Planning Commission has provided a copy of 
the Shelby Township Master Plan Draft Amendment to the City of Troy Planning 
Commission for their review and comment, as required by Section 125.37b of Public 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Act 185 of 1931 as amended, known as the Municipal Planning Act; and by Section 
125.327a of Public Act 168 of 1959, known as the Township Planning Act; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission has determined that the Draft 
Plan is not inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Troy Planning Commission 
hereby supports the proposed amendment to the Shelby Township Master Plan.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

16. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

17. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the prevalence of “paper” noise on the audio portion of 
meeting tapes.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the development project on Coolidge across from Home Depot.  
 
Mr. Tagle attended a MAP Basic Training Workshop over the weekend, and briefly 
shared his experience.   
 
Ms. Kerwin attended a Persons with Disabilities Committee meeting.  She briefly 
addressed the sensitivity issues of persons with disabilities in relation to proposed 
developments.  
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:25 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\03-27-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   March 28, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on March 28, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Maxine D’Amico and Katie Thoenes called the meeting 
to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (Secretary) 

Andrew Corey  
Maxine D’Amico (Co-chair) 
Alex Gabriel 
Rishi Joshi  
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Co-chair) 
Nicole Vitale  
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Joseph Niemiec, Karen Wullaert, Anupama Prasad,  
Jessica Kraft 

VISITORS: Jeff Stewart/Sandy Macknis,  Troy Daze Committee 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-3-3 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Gabriel 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of February 28, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 9 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  4    
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through February 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Visitor:   Jeff Stewart, Troy Daze Entertainment Chair 
   Provided an update on the status of the 2007 Troy Daze entertainment: 

-Will have indoor and outdoor entertainment. 
-Indoor is completely booked. 
-Outdoor 75% booked, looking for teen bands. 
-Corey suggested working with the Battle of the Bands scheduled 
for spring 2007 and taking the bands that finish in the top 3 positions 
and invite them to perform at Troy Daze.   Corey will pass on 
contact information for Jeff Stewart to Battle organizers. 
-Judges for talent show are needed. 
 
 
 

  Sandy Macknis, Troy Daze Volunteer Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   March 28, 2007  
 

 2

-Thanked Youth Council members for the wonderful job they did at 
2006 event and would like all of the current members to work at the 
2007 event in the headquarters again. 

   -Shifts will be in 4 hour increments. 
   -Need females to help with the Miss Troy event. 
    
5. Troy Daze Festival Update:      

-Discussed upcoming meeting and which Youth Council member(s) will attend.   
-Would like the parking fee issue added to Troy Daze meeting agenda for 
April.  Mercer to contact Cindy Stewart to request agenda addition. 
-Letter to Troy Daze committee will be finalized in April. 

 
6.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provid ed Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-3-4 

  Moved by  Vitale 
  Seconded by  Randall  

  
RESOLVED that Joseph Niemiec, Karen Wullaert, Anupama Prasad are 
excused. 

  Yes:  All - 9   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  4 
 
7.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
8. Public Comments  –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:36 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Maxine D’Amico, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: April 25 at 7:00 P.M.  



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft April 2, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, April 2, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:14 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of February 12, 2007 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-04-003 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes 
of Monday, February 12, 2007 as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All-3 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, May 8, 2007 Regular 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-04-004 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
  
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Election Commission hereby APPROVES Election 
Inspector appointments for the Tuesday, May 8, 2007 Election as presented by the City 
Clerk. 
 
Yes:  All-3 

Approval of Ballot – Tuesday, May 8, 2007 Regular Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-04-005 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
  
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Election Commission hereby APPROVES the ballot for 
the Tuesday, May 8, 2007 Election as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  All-3 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft April 2, 2007 
 
Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:16 AM. 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 9, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2007/08 Annual Budget 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The proposed fiscal year 2007/08 budget is being submitted for City Council’s review.  The first 28 

pages of the document provide a concise summary of the entire budget. City Council has 
established the following dates for budget study sessions:  April 23, 2007 and April 30, 2007 at 
7:30 PM in the City Council Board Room.  Based on City Council direction at the April 2, 2007 City 
Council meeting, this budget advances the following: 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City’s refuse millage rate has been reduced by .15 mills resulting in a combined total City 

millage rate of 9.28 mills. 
 The total City budget of $151.6 million increased by $7.2 million or 4.9% from the previous year. 
 The undesignated General Fund reserves are anticipated to equal at least $9.7 million or 15.2% of 

the recommended budget. 
 Capital project funds totaling $44.8 million are contained on pages 249-290 of the proposed 

budget. 
 We have reduced the full-time workforce by 4 positions to a lean 472. Our full-time work force 

equates to 5.39 employees for every 1,000 Troy residents and 3.93 full-time City of Troy 
employees per 1,000 people who work here. 

 The 4 positions that were reduced through attrition are as follows:   
 

Department     Position
Engineering       Engineering Specialist (1) 
Library     Librarian II (1) 
Police      Animal Control Officer (1) 
Real Estate and Development  Right-of-Way Representative (1) 
 
We will endeavor to maintain the same level of service by redistributing tasks amongst current 
employees and outside contractors.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2007/08 Annual Budget 
April 9, 2007 
Page Two 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Section 8.2 of the City of Troy Charter requires a proposed budget for the next fiscal year be 

presented to City Council on or before the third Monday in April in each year. 
 Section 8.3 of the City of Troy Charter requires a Public Hearing on the budget shall be held 

before its final adoption, and notice of such public hearing shall be published at least one week in 
advance of the public hearing. The City Council shall, on or before the third Monday in May, adopt 
a budget for the ensuing fiscal year. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The 2007/08 budget is a policy document based on direction given by City Council in the form of 

annual goals on January 22, 2007: 
 

I Enhance the livability and safety of the community 
II Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government 
III Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV Effectively and professionally community internally and externally 
V Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic planning process 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that City Council note and file receipt of the proposed 2007/08 annual budget 

and hold a public hearing for adoption of the 2007/08 annual budget on May 14, 2007.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2007/08 Annual Budget 
 



2007

CITY of TROY

Assessment Roll

&

Board of Review

Report

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



 
Eileen Turner, Chairwoman

Submitted by:   Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Frank Howrylak
James Hatch

City of Troy

2007 Board of Review:

2007 ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL REPORT

Board of Review



 i

April 3, 2007 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
RE: 2007 Assessment Roll Report and Board of Review Minutes 
 
   I am pleased to present to you the 2007 Assessment Roll Report for the City of 
Troy.  This roll is the product of a full year’s effort by the entire Assessing 
Department staff.  Without their assistance and concerted aid, this roll would 
surely suffer in accuracy and completeness.  I am most appreciative of the efforts 
they expend every year in the service of the community. 
   The 2007 Assessment Roll is summarized as follows: 
  

Total  Total Residential Commercial Industrial Personal 
Assessed Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Value Value Value Value Value Value 
            
6,422,659,810 5,550,516,437 3,187,144,987 1,388,201,850 510,504,920 464,213,650 

 

   The Assessed Value decrease for 2007 is $186,144,940, or a 2.80% decrease 
from 2006.  Excluding the exemption of inventory from the Personal Property 
Rolls in 1976 (a $6.9 million overall decrease), this is the only time the 
Assessment Roll has decreased since Troy was incorporated in 1955.   
   The Taxable Value increase is $115,480,995, an increase of 2.12%, This is the 
smallest increase in levied value that the City has seen since the Assessment 
‘freeze’ of 1992 (1.8% increase), and again, the exemption of inventory in 1976.   
   The following chart represents a 5-year history of Assessed and Taxable 
Values: 
 

Year Assessed Increase % Taxable Increase % 
  Value (Decrease)   Value     

              
2007 6,442,659,810 (186,144,940) (2.80) 5,550,516,437 115,480,995 2.12
2006 6,608,804,750 82,730,420 1.27 5,435,035,442 170,683,892 3.24
2005 6,526,074,330 149,138,717 2.98 5,264,351,550 169,593,327 3.33
2004 6,337,222,973 149,138,717 2.41 5,094,758,223 116,494,786 2.34
2003 6,188,084,256 232,386,858 3.90 4,978,263,437 116,622,789 2.40

 



 ii

 
 
   The Consumer Price Index in Michigan for 2007 Taxable Values was set at 
3.7%, the highest since the inception of Proposal A in 1994.  In spite of the 
misconception of the general public, the City is not guaranteed an increase of the 
same amount.  In fact the total Taxable Value has increased only 2.12%, or 
57.3% of the CPI.  
   The lesser increase is due to the erosion of the Commercial and Industrial 
values caused by the most recent years economy, and vacancy.  Additionally, 
the Supreme Court decision in WPW v. City of Troy et al, has compressed the 
Assessed and Taxable Values of these types of properties closer together.  
Since Taxable Value cannot be higher than Assessed, we see this year a 1.5% 
increase in the Industrial class, a 0.87% increase in the Commercial class, and 
once again the Personal Property roll is down this year, –3.26%. 
   While the Residential class had a Taxable Value increase of 3.61%, this class 
represents only 57.42% of the total Taxable Value, hence a 2.12% overall 
increase.    
   It is important to take notice of the difference in Assessed and Taxable Values.  
Since the passage of Proposal “A”, the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value 
has been dropping steadily through 2004.  The statute providing the limitation on 
the increase in Taxable Value to inflation (or 5%, whichever is less), plus new 
construction, had been dramatically eroding the tax base of the City. 
   This is the third year where the increase (an actual decrease) in Assessed 
Value is actually less than the increase in Taxable Value.  Now the reduction in 
Market Values, coupled with the inflationary increases in Taxable Values have 
compressed the two totals closer together, and the erosion of Taxable Value to 
Market Value is reversing.   
   The next chart shows the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value, minus 
Personal Property.  Historically, Personal Property has the same Assessed and 
Taxable Value.  Therefore, in order to achieve a more accurate reflection of the 
ratio of the tax base, the Personal Property totals need to be removed. 
   As can been seen in the following chart, the 2007 Taxable Value including 
Personal Property, is at 43.21% of Market Value.  In 2006 this percentage was at 
41.12% of Market Value.  
   By removing the Personal Property totals from the calculation, the truer 
percentage of Taxable Value to Market Value is 42.68% for 2007, as compared 
with 40.42% for 2006. 
   The following chart details the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value (2 times 
the Assessed Value) with and without Personal Property, since the passage of 
Proposal “A”. 
 



 iii

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value since 1994 

Year Assessed Value Taxable Value Ratio All
Personal 
Property 

Ratio No 
Personal

2007 6,422,659,810  5,550,516,437 43.21  464,213,650  42.68  
2006 6,608,804,750 5,435,035,442 41.12  479,874,950 40.42  
2005 6,525,074,330 5,264,351,550 40.33  503,497,670 39.53  
2004 6,337,222,973 5,094,758,223 40.20  536,093,423 39.34  
2003 6,188,084,256 4,978,263,437 40.22  584,236,696 39.21  
2002 5,955,697,398 4,861,640,648 40.82  619,964,538 39.75  
2001 5,652,563,942 4,686,250,942 41.45  649,562,212 40.34  
2000 5,218,597,300 4,373,072,080 41.90  643,070,690 40.76  
1999 4,696,926,183 4,183,560,453 44.54  666,496,353 43.63  
1998 4,284,960,814 4,005,628,276 46.74  626,129,990 46.18  
1997 3,954,663,960 3,775,248,837 47.73  579,417,710 47.34  
1996 3,672,996,870 3,573,652,298 48.65  522,531,950 48.42  
1995 3,463,173,910 3,425,410,880 49.45  507,025,520 49.36  
1994 3,308,095,110 3,308,095,110 50.00  453,375,110 50.00   

 
 
   The Personal Property Roll for 2007 is $ 464,213,650, a decrease of 
$15,661,300, or 3.26%.  This still represents the 13th highest dollar value 
Personal Property Roll in the history of the City of Troy.   
   As a dollar value decrease, it is the 7th largest decrease in value since 1976 
(when inventory was made exempt). 
   A decreasing Personal Property Roll is trending as an ongoing phenomenon.  
Seven of the last nine years have shown a decrease in the Personal Property 
totals for the City of Troy.   
   This decrease is a result of two separate factors.   
   The first contributing factor is the new Multiplier Tables adopted by the State of 
Michigan in 2000.  These tables depreciate Personal Property at a vastly 
accelerated rate from previous tables.  This trend will continue to erode the tax 
base of the City for many years to come.   
   The Personal Property Roll actually had a $66,732,320 increase in value due to 
new purchases and new companies in the City.  However, this was offset by an 
$82,393,370 loss in value from the changes in depreciation schedules, and the 
second factor, vacancies in the commercial and industrial rental market. 
      The following chart illustrates the 5-year Personal Property Roll history. 



 iv

 
 

5 Year Personal Property History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 
        
2007 464,213,650 (15,661,300) (3.26) 
2006 479,874,950 (23,622,720) (4.69) 
2005 503,497,670 (32,595,753) (6.08) 
2004 536,093,423 (48,143,273) (8.24) 
2003 584,236,696 (35,727,842) (5.76) 

 
   The Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Roll shows a decrease of $1,012,000, 
or –3.97%.    
   There are normal fluctuations expected in an IFT roll due to depreciation, new 
equipment purchases, and the expiration of abatements.  
     The chart below reflects a 5 year history of the tax abatement roll. 
 

5 Year Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 
        
2007 24,471,720 (1,012,000) (3.97) 
2006 25,483,720 (7,259,900) (22.10) 
2005 32,843,620 (509,640) (1.53) 
2004 33,353,260  3,949,450  13.43  
2003 29,403,810  5,990,800  25.59  

 



 v

    
   The total 2007 Downtown Development Authority Roll is at $664,121,560, a     
0.34% decrease from the 2006 Roll.  Real Property is up 1.35% or $7,191,180.  
The Personal Property portion has decreased 5.99% or $8,000,420. 
   Subsequently, the captured amount of the DDA is now at $234,843,030, a 
0.30% decrease from 2005.  In dollars, the captured portion of the DDA has 
decreased $809,240.     
 
  The following chart details the history of the DDA since its inception. 

DDA History and Capture Changes 

Year TOTAL DDA Real Personal Capture 
Capture 

%+,- 
2007 673,838,080 546,188,650 127,649,430 244,559,550 4.14  
2006 664,121,560 538,571,100 125,550,460 234,843,030 (0.34) 
2005 664,930,800 531,379,920 133,550,880 235,652,270 3.74  
2004 656,443,260 522,118,430 134,324,830 227,164,730 (12.06) 
2003 687,610,440 524,793,130 162,817,310 258,331,910 (4.68) 
2002 700,292,970 520,281,770 180,011,200 271,014,440 5.05  
2001 687,261,110 493,426,640 193,834,470 257,982,580 3.91  
2000 677,550,840 469,734,570 207,816,270 248,272,310 10.60  
1999 653,782,621 432,998,790 220,783,831 224,504,091 9.60  
1998 634,117,140 430,125,100 203,992,040 204,838,610 33.44  
1997 582,784,390 391,782,920 191,001,470 153,505,860 82.80  
1996 513,251,790 366,197,830 147,053,960 83,973,260 55.38  
1995 483,321,290 334,906,240 147,415,050 53,042,760 152.49  
1994 450,682,090 338,797,800 111,886,290 21,403,560   
1993 429,278,530 342,342,400 86,936,130 0   

 



 vi

 
   The City of Troy now has two Brownfield Redevelopment Authorities, the 
existing Midtown Square project (in Birmingham schools), and a new authority for 
TCF Bank on Coolidge (in Troy schools).  
   The Midtown project has seen a slight decrease due to the reduction in value 
on the condominiums, and a reduction in Personal Property value do to normal 
depreciation.  
  The following chart illustrates the history of the Midtown Square Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority. 

BRA History and Capture Changes 
Year Total BRA Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2007 60,530,820 56,678,770 3,852,050 55,275,148 (3.55) 
2006 62,563,020 54,408,040 4,154,980 57,307,348 10.83 
2005 56,912,680 52,659,750 4,252,930 51,704,708 19.68 
2004 48,623,370 43,966,490 4,656,880 43,201,540 40.36 
2003 36,200,760 31,045,190 5,155,570 30,778,930 63.57 
2002 24,239,170 19,359,200 4,879,970 18,817,340 483.12 
2001 9,316,800 9,316,800 0 3,894,970 71.84 
2000 5,421,830 5,421,830 0 0   

 
   The TCF Bank Brownfield is new this year.  The 2006 Taxable Value of the 
property was $197,940, and this becomes the Base Value.  The 2007 Taxable 
Value is $538,570.  This creates a Captured Taxable Value of $340,630.   
   This is the 4th year for the Smart Zone (SZ) in Troy.  This is the development 
occurring at the old Troy Airport site.   
   The initial base value for the area is $14,447,380.  The real and personal 
property components of the Zone have both increased, as another building was 
completed, and tenants moved in. 
   The following chart details the history of the SmartZone.   

SmartZone Totals 
Year     TOTAL SZ Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,-
2007 25,725,320 18,164,810 7,560,510 11,277,940 25.89 
2006 23,405,930 16,888,080 6,517,850 8,958,550 11.50 
2005 22,482,220 16,372,300 6,109,920 8,034,840 48.22 
2004 19,867,910 15,089,770 4,778,140 5,420,530   



 vii

 
   For the 2007 Assessment Year there are 23,565 residential improved parcels 
in the City of Troy (excluding condominiums).  They have an average Assessed 
Value of $147,377, and an average Market Value of $294,754.  The average 
Taxable Value for these parcels is $124,597. 
   There are currently 2,662 condominium units in the City of Troy.  They have an 
average Assessed Value of $95,139 and an average Market Value of $190,278.  
The average Taxable Value of these parcels is $88,337. 
   There were 622 residential sales in the 2006 calendar year, 300 less than in 
2005.  The total sales price for these parcels was $196,405,556, for an average 
selling price of  $315,765.  The lowest recorded residential sale was $100,083 
and the highest recorded residential sale was $1,700,000.    
   There were also 161 sales of condominiums in 2006, half as many as in 2005.  
They had a total selling price of $35,970,826, for an average sale price of 
$226,421.  The lowest recorded condominium sale was $103,515 and the 
highest recorded condominium sale was $630,000.    
   There were 2,230 deeds processed by the Office Assistant staff in the 
Assessing Department.  The vast majority of these lead to the filing of a Property 
Transfer Affidavit that is processed by this department.  In addition, we handle 
approximately the same amount of Principal Residence Exemption Affidavits 
annually. 
 



 viii

 
    There are currently 1,956 Commercial or Industrial zoned parcels in the City of 
Troy.  These parcels encompass 5,765 businesses that file Personal Property 
returns in the City.  The Personal Property returns are mailed to the businesses 
at the end of the calendar year.  The filing deadline is February 20th, of any given 
year.  All of these returns are processed before the last scheduled session of the 
Board of Review. 
   Additionally, I have added a Summary Sheet of the Assessment Roll for 2007.  
Much of the information in this report is summarized in this “Quick Facts” sheet.  
It also contains the Top 20 Taxpayers in the City for 2007. 
      I hope you will appreciate, as I do, the valuable work performed by the staff of 
the Assessing Department, on behalf of the citizens of the City of Troy.  The 
telephone volume this year was unlike anything since pre 1994.  The traffic at our 
counter was many times end to end.  In spite of the thousands of citizens we 
spoke with by telephone, or dealt with in person, I received no complaints about 
any of our staff, and in fact, received many compliments from the citizens we 
interacted with.  We all look forward to serving them in the future and we thank 
you for the opportunity to assist you in serving the citizens of the City. 
   I would be remiss if I did not also mention the extraordinary work performed by 
the citizen volunteers who serve on the Board of Review.  This year, in particular, 
was very difficult and stressful.  The Board ran a full 5 days, with appointments 
scheduled 10 minutes apart, and very little time to even take a short break.  The 
number of the appointments was almost four times the normal amount we have 
seen since the passage of Proposal A in 1994.  They remained, to a person, 
calm, rational, and focused.  They did a great job, in a difficult environment. 
  Finally, the minutes of the Board of Review close out this report.   
  I am available to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
 
Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor   



Type Count Assessed Value Taxable Value
Agricultural Real 4 742,900 451,030
Commercial Real 965 1,618,529,060 1,388,201,850
Industrial Real 991 579,040,370 510,504,920
Residential Real 27,688 3,760,133,530 3,187,144,987

Total Real 29,648 5,958,445,910 5,086,302,787

Commercial Personal 4,486 270,134,830 270,134,580
Industrial Personal 1,260 151,077,050 151,077,050
Utility Personal 19 43,002,020 43,002,020
Deletes 622
Total Personal 6,387 464,213,900 464,213,650
Total of Roll 36,035 6,422,659,810 5,550,516,437

Assessed Value Percent Change Taxable Value Percent Change
% %

Residential (all) (2.07) Residential (all) 3.61
     Residential (2.20)     Residential 3.48
     Condo 0.30     Condo 5.26
Commercial (4.70) Commercial 0.87
Industrial (2.00) Industrial 1.50
Personal (3.30) Personal (3.30)

Overall A/V (2.80) 2.10

A/V % T/V % A/V % T/V %
Commercial 25.21 25.02 Real 92.77 91.64
Industrial 9.02 9.20 Personal 7.23 8.36
Residential 58.54 57.42
Personal 7.23 8.36

 
Total 100.00 100.00 Total 100.00 100.00

965 Commercial Personal 4,486
Commercial Vacant Real 128
Commercial Improved Real 711
Apartment Vacant Real 3
Apartment Improved Real 63
Other Real 60

991 Industrial Personal 1,260
Industrial Vacant Real 115
Industrial Improved Real 876

27,688 UtilityPersonal 19
Residential Vacant Real 925
Residential Improved Real 23,565
Condo Vacant Real 16 Deletes Personal 622
Condo Improved Real 2,662
Exempt Real 520
Total Real 29,648 Total Personal 6,387

2007 Assessment Roll Summary

Percent of Total Roll (A/V = Assessed Value, T/V = Taxable Value)

Percent Changes by Class

Industrial Real

Residential Real

Commercial Real
Parcel Count (36,035) Breakdown



2007 Assessment Roll Summary

Sale Market Assessed Taxable 
Price Value Value Value

Residential 315,765 294,754 147,377 124,597
622 Sales @ $196,405,556  

Condo 223,421 190,278 95,139 88,337
161 Sales @ $35,970,826

Total Market Value (including Personal Property) 12,845,319,620
Total Taxable Value (including Personal Property) 5,550,516,437

Ratio of T/V to M/V (including Personal Property) % 43.21

Total Market Value (No Personal Property) 11,916,891,820
Total Taxable Value (No Personal Property) 5,086,302,787

Ratio of T/V to M/V (No Personal Property) % 42.68

By Type (No Personal Property) Market Taxable
Value Value Ratio

Commercial 3,237,058,120 1,388,201,850 42.88
Industrial 1,158,080,740 510,504,920 44.08
Residential 7,520,267,160 3,187,144,987 42.38

Base 07 T/V 07 Capture
Total 429,278,530 673,838,080 244,559,550

Base 07 T/V 07 Capture
Total 5,421,830 60,530,820 55,275,148

Base 07 T/V 07 Capture
Total 197,940 538,570 340,630

Base 07 T/V 07 Capture
Total 14,447,380 25,725,320 11,277,940

Troy Brownfield - Troy (TBRA) Statistics

Troy Smart Zone (SZ) Statistics

Averages

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value

DDA Statistics

Troy Brownfield - Birmingham (BRA) Statistics



2007 Assessment Roll Summary

School Code School P.R.E July P.R.E Dec Total P.R.E Non-H July Non-H Dec Total Non-H

260 TROY 28.3046 7.0757 35.3803 34.4965 13.6361 48.1326
010 Avondale 27.7870 6.9266 34.7136 36.2457 15.3852 51.6309
030 Birmingham 30.9250 6.7920 37.7170 35.6833 11.5504 47.2337
035 Brownfield 30.9250 6.7920 37.7170 35.6833 11.5504 47.2337
040 Bloomfield 28.1576 7.2683 35.4259 33.4984 12.6379 46.1363
160 Lamphere 32.3600 11.4996 43.8596 34.1275 13.2671 47.3946
230 Royal Oak 31.1009 2.4604 33.5613 46.2580 2.4604 48.7184
262 Warren 2 Troy 28.3908 7.0757 35.4665 34.5827 13.6361 48.2188
265 DDA 28.3046 7.0757 35.3803 34.4965 13.6361 48.1326
268 SmartZone 28.3046 7.0757 35.3803 34.4965 13.6361 48.1326
750 Warren 32.8183 2.4604 35.2787 44.3798 2.4604 46.8402

Rank 07 A/V 07 T/V Activity Parcels

1 Frankel Forbes Cohen 73,885,700 66,908,700 Somserset N & S 3
2 Liberty Property 60,111,630 43,202,080 Office Leasing 23
3 Nykel 40,726,630 40,726,630 Somerset Apts 24
4 888 W Big Beaver Assoc 33,499,410 33,826,600 Office Leasing 2
5 Detroit Edison 33,588,050 33,584,420 Utility 16
6 Osprey Troy Officentre LLC 40,239,380 32,578,810 Office Leasing 2
7 Kelly Services 42,206,590 31,360,640 Corporate HQ 13
8 Riggs & Co 35,597,250 30,719,090 Office Leasing 2
9 Macy's 32,726,920 29,435,560 Retail 4
10 Oakland Mall LLC 55,619,970 28,992,980 Retail 9
11 Nemer Troy Place 49,185,600 26,513,910 Office Leasing 5
12 Lasalle Bank 27,142,110 25,355,170 Banking & HQ 2
13 Sheffield Office 24,014,210 24,011,340 Office Leasing 4
14 Delphi Automotive 25,836,220 22,652,420 Office Leasing 14
15 755 Tower Associates 26,996,770 21,731,430 Office Leasing 2
16 EA & S Investments 20,506,670 21,156,640 Office Leasing 6
17 First Industrial 24,743,610 20,906,480 Industrial Leasing 32
18 Diamond Troy JV LLC 16,611,520 20,506,670 Office Leasing 2
19 Flagstar Bank 17,852,810 20,074,750 Banking & HQ 2
20 Sunstone Big Beaver 20,192,950 16,611,520 Hotel (Marriott) 1

2006 Millage Rates (2007 rates are not known until late Fall)

P.R.E. = Principal Residence Exemption (Homestead),   Non-H = Non=Homestead

Name
Top Twenty Taxpayers



TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

12:45 P.M. - The 2007 Board of Review met at the Troy City 
offices. Eileen Turner was elected to the Chair.  Also serving 
were Frank Howrylak and James Hatch.  City Assessor, Nino 
Licari, served as the Secretary.  Mr. Licari presented the 
Assessment Roll to the Board.  There were no corrections of 
omissions or errors.  The Board was then called to order to 
hear all appeals of Assessments placed against property in the 
City of Troy.  Thirty-three appeals were heard between 1:00 PM 
and 9:00 PM.  They follow this introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:00 PM # 07.001

Phone: (home) 248-828-2913 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RICHARD NASH
add 6259 SMITHFIELD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
01B COL 2,349 133.97 0 0 4,210
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-354-008 401 153,350 146,410 157,350 151,820 157,350 151,820 0

Mr. Nash arrived and presented homes compared to his that had finished 
basements, additional bathrooms and more square footage.  He stated he backs to 
John R and isn't receiving the correct amount of reduction.  The Board told Mr. Nash 
he is not being charged for a finished basement and was receiving the correct 
amount of reduction because he backs to a main road.  Based on sales the Board 
voted for no change.                                                                                           

1



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:10 PM # 07.002

Phone: (home) 248-879-0823 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ALAN CARMAN
add 2701 WILLARD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
12B COL 2,105 123.41 1,400
S.D.

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-402-006 401 128,490 91,930 129,890 95,330 118,500 95,330 0

Mr. & Mrs. Carman appeared before the Board because they felt they could not sell 
their house for this Assessed Value. They presented comparable sales that sold for 
under $250,000 that were larger than theirs. Based on sales two Board members 
voted to lower the Assessed Value to $113,500.  Jim Hatch was excused from the 
vote because the Carman's are his neighbors.  

2



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:20 PM # 07.003

Phone: (home) 248-318-1245 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PHILIP BANSEN
add 4296 GATESFORD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
13B R 1,712 142.75 (940)
S.D.

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-332-005 401 123,130 121,830 122,190 122,190 119,000 119,000 -3,190

Mr. Bansen appealed to the Board to lower his Assessed Value.  He presented sales 
data with average selling prices in his neighborhood. Sales were colonials, his is a 
ranch and he felt he shouldn't be catagorized with tri levels and colonials. The Board 
explained that ranches sell for more per square foot than colonials. The Board voted 
to lower the Assessed Value to $119,000 based on sales.

3



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:30 PM # 07.004

Phone: (home) 248-585-5437 Phone:(work) 248-217-6244

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GERALD & MARGARET CONNELL
add 621 BURTMAN
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
35B R 1,305 156.58 2,420
S.D.
230

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

35-305-024 401 99,750 69,060 102,170 71,610 102,170 71,610 0

Margaret Connell arrived at the meeting and stated that based on 2006 sales her 
home was worth $180.000. She has a small lot, no major improvements or updates.  
This house is nicer than most in the neighborhood and has a porch.  Based on sales 
the Board voted for no change.

4



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:40 PM # 07.005

Phone: (home) 248-528-1357 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LINDA KOEHLER
add 927 ECKFORD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
15D R 1,725 172.35 11,190
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-251-020 401 137,460 96,670 148,650 100,240 120,000 100,240 0

Mr. & Mrs. Koehler appealed to the Board to lower their Assessed Value due to a 
flood plain situation on their property.  The rear yard is dry only in the summer and 
flooded almost the rest of the rear.  There is a drain in the back of the yard.  The 
Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $120,000.

5



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 1:50 PM # 07.006

Phone: (home) Phone:(work) 248-642-4368

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SETH INGRAM
add 2579 TOWNHILL
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
19A TRI 2,251 147.85 3,140
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-176-006 401 163,260 112,420 166,400 116,570 163,260 116,570 0

Mr. Ingram appeared before the Board with newspaper articles with regard to home 
values dropping due to economic and employment conditions. He would like his 
Assessed Value to be the same as last year.  Based on sales the Board agree to 
lower the Assessed Value to $163,260.

6



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 07.007

Phone: (home) 248-680-8790 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BABAK MAKKINEJAD
add 3275 FRANKTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22G R 1,090 167.12 (1,270)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-353-027 401 92,350 92,350 91,080 91,080 91,080 91,080 0

Mrs. Makkinejad arrived and stated she paid $180,000 for this property but that 
values have gone down. Property at 3270 Frankton sold for $166,500.  Her mother 
lives here and it doesn't have a homestead.  The Board advised Mrs. Makkinejad she 
could put her mother on the deed to become eligable for homestead.  The Board 
voted for no change to the Assessed Value by a 2 to 1 vote.

7



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 2:20 PM # 07.008

Phone: (home) 248-828-4272 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LARRY KESLER
add 6131 BEACH RD
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
6F COL 3,471 236.69 33,330

S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-352-017 401 377,450 273,730 410,780 283,850 390,000 283,850 0

Mr. Kesler appeared before the Board and provided pictures and chart of sales. He 
lives in Manchester Woods and  felt his True Cash Value should be $695,000 and 
asked for an average decline of 5% .  Mr. Kesler thought our sales were not 
comparable and had included sales data to the Board.  Based fronting a heavily 
traveled road, the Board agreed to lower Assessed Value to $390,000.

8



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 2:30 PM # 07.009

Phone: (home) 248-312-0266 Phone:(work) 248-689-9111

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SCOTT PYYKKONEN
add 2617 GLEN
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
7B TRI 2,636 179.36 (10,140)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-326-001 401 246,540 215,110 236,400 223,060 217,500 217,500 -5,560

Mr. Pyykkonen arrived at the meeting with a list of homes sold in his neighborhood 
from a realtor.  These sales based on colonials, he could not find comparble sales for 
tri-levels.  We had one sale of a quadlevel.  After discussion of sales the Board 
agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $217,500 and Taxable Value to $217,500.

9



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 2:40 PM # 07.010

Phone: (home) 248-879-7375 Phone:(work) 248-376-1568

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CAROL BROOKS
add 258 ASPINWALL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
4A TRI 1,640 212.62 29,670

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-404-031 401 144,680 85,820 174,350 88,990 160,000 88,990 0

Carol Brooks arrived and requested  and explanation of why her Assessed Value 
went up so much. She presented sales to the Board and had an appraisal done by a 
realtor who told her her home was worth $300,000 tops. The Board explained our 
sales study which had sales in her neighborhood and that this increase was for 
everyone in her subdivision.  Based on sales the Board agreed to lower the Assessed
Value to $160,000.

10



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 2:50 PM # 07.011

Phone: (home) 248-647-0277 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAUL DEPORRE
add 101 W LONG LAKE
c/s/z BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48304-2749

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
14A #DIV/0!
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-151-023 401 81,680 42,370 83,920 43,930 83,920 43,930 0
14-151-024 401 92,790 51,420 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000 0
14-151-025 401 78,460 56,810 78,050 78,050 78,050 78,050 0

Mr. DePorre appeared before the Board and requested the Assessed Value of these 
three properties be lowered to the same as a fourth vacant property the family owns 
at  the corner of Rochester Rd & Bradley.  There were homes on these properties 
that were demolished in February 2007.  The Board explained that the houses were 
still on the property on December 31, 2006 and that they will come off next year.  The 
Board voted for no change.

11



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 3:00 PM # 07.012

Phone: (home) 248-643-0987 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LAWRENCE LUDWICKI
add 2351 DERBY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30E R 1,165 189.73 22,480
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-278-017 401 88,040 62,590 110,520 64,900 95,000 64,900 0

Mr. Ludwicki came into the Board with comparable sales data from our sales study 
for his neighborhood.  There is one on the market at 2401 Derby for $199,000 with a 
garage.  His home does not have a garage.  Based on sales the Board lowered the 
Assessed Value to $95,000.

12



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 3:30 PM # 07.013

Phone: (home) 248-644-6444 Phone:(work) 248-948-4623

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAMELA BERGER
add 2828 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 2,691 250.90 20,090

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-051 401 317,500 317,500 337,590 329,240 287,500 287,500 -41,740

Pam Berger and her Realtor appeared before the Board to lower the Assessed 
Value.  The Realtor stated there was a steady decline of prices in that area and had a
list of homes taken off the market.  Ms. Berger paid $631,000 in September 2005.  
The Board agreed to lower the Assessed and Taxable Value to $287,500 based on 
sales.

13



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 3:40 PM # 07.014

Phone: (home) NO PHONE Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID ROSS
add 1879 NORTH LAKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
23A R 1,190 170.47 (2,180)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

23-276-011 401 103,610 92,810 101,430 96,240 87,500 87,500 -8,740

Mr. Ross arrived and presented pictures of his house to the Board.  It is the smallest 
house in Raintree Subdivision and originally was a model. It currently needs work and
because of its size is unique to the neighborhood.  Based on sales the Board agreed 
to lower the Assessed Value to $87,500.

14



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 3:50 PM # 07.015

Phone: (home) 248-879-4555 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MICHAEL J CAROLAN
add 6322 EVANWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
COL COL 3,524 141.19 10,210
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-476-062 401 238,560 238,560 248,770 247,380 230,000 230,000 -17,380

Mr. Carolan arrived at the meeting to appeal his Assessed Value.  He felt his house 
is worth $460,000.  Mr. Carolan is a Realtor and presented to the Board a listing of 
homes for sales.  The Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value and Taxable Value 
to $230,000 based on sales.

15



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 4:00 PM # 07.016

Phone: (home) 313-300-3747 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BELAH GHAZI
add 3178 DALEY
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
23E R 2,391 103.15 4,240 19,332 (8,282)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

23-377-038 401 116,500 112,130 123,310 123,310 117,500 117,500 -5,810

Mr. Ghazi arrived at the meeting and stated he put on additions to his home for 
$41,250.  His total cost was $209,250. This was a Sheriff's sale and was originally 
listed for $235,000.   The Board reviewed sales and agreed to lower the Assessed 
Value and Taxable Value to $117,500.

16



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 4:10 PM # 07.017

Phone: (home) 248-457-0832 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KARL & KELLY MERTZ
add 883 VANDERPOOL
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22A COL 2,312 146.00 10,470 6,410
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-401-089 401 151,900 151,560 168,780 167,630 157,500 157,500 -10,130

Mr. Mertz arrived at the meeting and presented data to the Board for new 
construction on Vanderpool.  He requested a market value of $307,000. The houses 
on his street are mixed, some quite old and he felt they negatively impact the 
neighborhood.  Based on sales the Board agree to lower the Assessed Value to 
$157,500.

17



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 4:20 PM # 07.018

Phone: (home) 248-526-1845 Phone:(work) 313-337-8130

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PATHMANADHAN VARATHARAJAH
add 5469 ALLISON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
11D COL 2,227 151.07 2,990
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-402-002 401 165,230 165,230 168,220 168,220 155,610 155,610 -12,610

Mr. Varatharajah appeared before the Board to correct his sale of September 2005.  
He was not able to come last year to lower his Assessed Value.  The sales study had 
a sale at 5159 Allison for $327,500.  Board agreed to lower Assessed Value and 
Taxable Value to $155,610 based on sales.

18



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 4:30 PM # 07.019

Phone: (home) 248-540-7272 Phone:(work) 248-223-4679

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BYRON TRERICE
add 2771 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,207 209.47 20,350

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-064 401 315,530 275,910 335,880 286,110 273,000 273,000 -13,110

Mr. Trerice arrived at the meeting and stated his house was worth $508,000. There 
was one sale in his neighborhood at 3841 Roseglenn for $571,000 and it was a more 
superior house.  Mr. Trerice's house is by the railroad tracks and would sell for less.  
Based on sales and location the Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value and 
Taxable Value to $273,000.

19



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 6:00 PM # 07.020

Phone: (home) 248-431-9975 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PING GE
add 236 REGENTS
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
28D COL 2,092 153.15 (810)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-428-032 401 161,000 139,840 160,190 145,010 160,190 145,010 0

Mr. Ge arrived at the meeting and presented the Board with neighborhood sales and 
Assessed Values indicating the market is dropping.  His house has a deck, however 
our 2006 sales did not reflect homes with a deck.  Based on sales the Board agreed 
to no change.

20



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 6:10 PM # 07.021

Phone: (home) 248-723-1319 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CATHRYN C RYBICKI
add 3418 PADDINGTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
19A R 1,778 149.29 2,100
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-326-004 401 130,620 130,620 132,720 132,720 132,720 132,720 0

Mrs. Rybicki appeared before the Board to have her Taxable Value reduced to 
$116,846. She presented them with comparables with square foot averages for two 
ranches.  The Board agreed to no change.

21



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 6:40 PM # 07.022

Phone: (home) 248-835-9238 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MAGDY HABIB
add 3415 CROOKS
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20C COL 4,743 160.61 9,840
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-427-036 401 371,040 287,580 380,880 298,220 380,880 298,220 0

Mr. Habib appeared before the Board to appeal his Taxable Value.  He stated 
economic conditions and the low market should reduce the value.  The Board 
explained the difference in Assessed and Taxable Values.  The Board agreed to no 
change.

22



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 6:50 PM # 07.023

Phone: (home) 313-578-3127 Phone:(work) 586-381-2656

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DORA ODISHO
add 5766 COLLEEN
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
12M COL 4,186 120.26 (7,520)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-228-011 401 259,220 254,060 251,700 251,700 251,700 251,700 0

Mrs. Odisho arrived to the meeting and told the Board she did not get the lower 
Assessed Value due to her purchase price and that the City has an easement on her 
property and that Value should be removed.  The Board showed and explained to 
Mrs. Odisho that the correction has been made and her Taxable has decreased.  
They also showed and explained that the easement is not on her property.  It is 
access for the City to get to the detention area.  Based on the correction the Board 
agreed to no change.

23



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 7:00 PM # 07.024

Phone: (home) 248-408-1741 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JUDI BAPTISTA
add 277 SCOTTSDALE
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
21C TRI 1,851 132.59 (4,880)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-201-042 401 127,590 112,300 122,710 116,450 120,000 116,450 0

Judi Baptista appeared before the Board to contest her Taxable Value. She 
presented sales activity from a Realtor for present values and from a website.  The 
Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $120,000 based on sales.

24



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 7:10 PM # 07.025

Phone: (home) 248-828-8979 Phone:(work) 248-576-3768

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n XUEWEI YAO
add 821 DREW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
260 COL 2,002 161.16 7,540

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-304-011 401 153,780 141,220 161,320 146,440 150,000 146,440 0

Mr.Yao appeared before the Board to contest the increase in his Assessed Value.  
He presented sales from a diffferent neighborhood because he couldn't find any for 
his.  The Board explained to Mr. Yao that his increase was based on 2005 sales and 
the whole subdivision was increased.  Based on sales the Board agreed to change 
the Assessed Value to $150,000.

25



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 7:20 PM # 07.026

Phone: (home) 313-522-6930 Phone:(work) 313-577-5087

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ZHIQIANG ZHANG
add 5330 CLEARVIEW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
7C COL 2,429 134.21 (11,420)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-428-006 401 174,420 170,530 163,000 163,000 155,000 155,000 -8,000

Mr. & Mrs. Zhang appeared before the board to appeal the Assessed Value, they 
paid $280,000.  Mrs. Zhang read from an inspection report that the house had roof 
damage, rotted windows and block mold in the attic.  They stated to the  Board  they 
were aware of the problems and that they were getting a good deal at the time of 
purchase.  Based on sales the Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value and 
Taxable Value to $155,000.

26



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 7:30 PM # 07.027

Phone: (home) 248-670-5552 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROB WISSER
add 387 OTTOWA
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
03E R 1,795 145.42 4,330
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-302-026 401 126,180 124,100 130,510 128,690 119,640 119,640 -9,050

Mr. Wisser arrived at the meeting to appeal his Assessed Value.  The Board 
discovered there was an error and his house had not received the decrease that was 
applied to everyone in the subdivision.  Based on this information the Board agreed 
to change the Assessed Value and Taxable Value to $119,640.

27



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 7:50 PM # 07.028

Phone: (home) 248-614-9056 Phone:(work) 513-347-4172

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LEI HAN
add 1558 PICADILLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20D COL 2,905 179.44 10,630
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-326-007 401 250,000 250,000 260,630 260,630 237,500 237,500 -23,130

Mr. Han arrived at the meeting to appeal his Assessed Value, he paid $475,000 for 
his house in 2006.  The sales at 1631 Lexington, was hit by lightening, has mold and 
water damage, and 1597 Picadilly, owner borrowed $550,000 for that home,  were 
not good comparables. Based on sales the Board agreed to lower the Assessed and 
Taxable Value to $237,500. 

28



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 8:00 PM # 07.029

Phone: (home) 248-643-4843 Phone:(work) 248-543-6130

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ASHRAF & MAGDA BOULES
add 3397 CROOKS
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20C COL 4,743 160.08 9,800
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-427-037 401 369,820 287,580 379,620 298,220 379,620 298,220 0

Mr. Boules appeared before the Board to appeal his Assessed Value.  He would like 
it the same as last year. Due to decease in market sales he wants the Taxable Value 
to decrease.  The Board explained that we don't have the authority to change the 
Taxable unless the Assessed Value drops below the Taxable.  This house is unique 
to that area and we will try to get more equitable values.  Based on Value the Board 
agreed to no change.

29



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 8:10 PM # 07.030

Phone: (home) 248-879-8414 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n EILEEN CARTY
add 990 DEETTA
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
03D R 1,927 121.24 (4,760)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-278-013 401 121,570 108,800 116,810 112,820 109,000 109,000 -3,820

Mr. & Mrs. Carly appeared before the Board to appeal their Assessed Value.  They 
felt they had unusual circumstances due to the re-zoning across the street, 
Rochester Park Office has built there.  There is no screening wall, the vegetation that 
was planted died and they look at a dumpster from the dining room window.  Binson's 
is going to build near them also.  Their Value has plumeted.  Based on the re-zoning 
the board agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $109,000.

30



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 8:20 PM # 07.031

Phone: (home) 248-879-9267 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOSEPH MAIURI
add 349 ASPINWALL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
4A COL 3,258 192.15 73,000

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-451-019 401 240,010 187,080 313,010 194,000 295,000 194,000 0

Mr. Maiuri appeared before the Board and presented documents with sales for 2007, 
we are using 2006 data.  He requested an Assessed Value of $227,000, his is the 
most expensive house in the area.  Based on sales the Board agreed to change the 
Assessed Value to $295,000.

31



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 8:40 PM # 07.032

Phone: (home) 248-877-4977 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GARY BISHOP
add 3700 LIVERNOIS
c/s/z ROCHESTER MI  48307

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
27B TRI 2,015 103.16 6,550
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-182-019 401 97,380 85,350 103,930 88,500 103,930 88,500 0

Mr. Bishop arrived at meeting and stated his Assessed Value is not fair.  His house 
does not have a garage, no basement and is next to a parking lot.  This is a rental 
house.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no change.

32



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/06/07 Appt Time 8:50 PM # 07.033

Phone: (home) 248-813-0131 Phone:(work) 248-225-8248

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ZONGZHI LIN
add 6830 MOUNTAIN
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
05C COL 2,127 147.75 (7,850)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-128-001 401 164,980 153,720 157,130 157,130 157,130 157,130 0

Mr. & Mrs. Lin appeared before the Board and presented sales comparisons to the 
members.  They felt their Assessed Value was not lowered enough and there haven't 
been upgrades to their house.  The sales Mr. & Mrs. Lin brought in were not in their 
neighborhood.  Bases on our sales study the Board agreed to no change.

33



MONDAY, MARCH 12, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

9:00 A.M. - The 2007 Board of Review met for the second 
session at the Troy City offices. Eileen Turner called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Frank Howrylak, James 
Hatch, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, as the Secretary.  Thirty-
four appeals were heard between 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM.  They 
follow this introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 9:00 AM # 07.034

Phone: (home) 248-528-0188 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JIANWEI LIN
add 4068 SUMMERFIELD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C1301 COL 2,635 125.09 1,350
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-351-057 405 163,450 163,450 164,800 164,800 164,800 164,800 0

Mr. Lin appeared at the Board to lower his Assessed Value. He presented sales data 
for his condominium complex for years prior to 2006. Mr. Lin purchased his home in 
2003 and complained about his shared driveway.  The Board explained that we used 
2006 sales and based on sales they agreed to no change. 

34



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 9:10 AM # 07.035

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: Insert Date Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID TRAURIG
add 4036 SUMMERFIELD
c/s/z TROY MI 48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C1301 Col 2,635 127.00 1,360
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-351-028 405 165,960 165,960 167,320 167,320 167,320 167,320 0

Mr. Traurig appeared before the Board with his son-in-law who is a real estate 
broker.  He presented a spreadsheet with 3 units originally purchased in 2001.  
Based on 2006 sales for Summerfield the Board agreed to no change with a split 
vote.

35



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 9:30 AM # 07.036

Phone: (home) 248-723-9777 Phone:(work) 248-798-9603

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n STEVEN & KATHRYN DOHERTY
add 4347 ALLEGHENY
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
13B COL 2,270 130.71 (1,090)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-304-019 401 149,450 135,510 148,360 148,360 125,500 125,500 -22,860

Mr. & Mrs Doherty appeared before the Board to lower the Assessed Value of the 
house they purchased in May 2006.  This was a foreclosure and they brought an 
appraisal for $259,000.  Mr. Doherty stated the house needs a roof, gutters, 
basement windows replaced and it has the original furnace. After review of sales the 
Board agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Values to $125,500.

36



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 9:40 AM # 07.037

Phone: (home) 248-941-9417 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT KOVACS
add 1669 MAPLE CREEK CT
c/s/z ROCHESTER MI  48306

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22E R 1,176 172.31 4,820
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-380-035 401 96,500 91,480 101,320 94,860 91,430 91,430 -3,430

Mr. Kovacs came to the Board to appeal his increase in Assessed Value.  He has 
tried to sell the house for several years, had offers from $179,450 to $182,875 and is 
currently renting it.  Mr. Kovacs stated it would help to sell if he had a garage but 
there are power lines over his driveway which would have to be moved.  Edison told 
him it would cost $10,000 to move the lines and he would need a variance to build a 
garage.The sales he had were not for comparable homes.  Based on the concession 
to move the power line the Board agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Value 
to $91,430.

37



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 9:50 AM # 07.038

Phone: (home) 248-879-3831 Phone:(work) 248-703-7796

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLIAM REYNOLDS
add 6545 PARKVIEW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
6C R 2,683 188.80 (8,380)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-276-010 401 261,660 223,540 253,280 231,810 207,930 207,930 -23,880

Mr. & Mrs. Reynolds appeared before the Board to appeal the Assessed Value. 
There were no comparable sales for the Hills of Charnwood so Mr. Reynolds used 
the average of dollars per square foot for colonials and ranches that were nicer 
homes.  The Board explained that ranches sell for more per square foot.  Based on 
Sales the Board agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $207,930.

38



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 10:00 AM # 07.039

Phone: (home) 248-528-2604 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RICHARD GEGGIE
add 2719 DOVER
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
25C R 1,253 143.40 6,160
S.D.
750

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-227-021 401 83,680 83,680 89,840 86,770 87,500 86,770 0

Mr. Geggie came to the Board to appeal the increase in his Assessed Value.  He 
quoted newspaper articles regarding the decline in property values and state of the 
economy.  Mr. Geggie had real estate listings and would like his cash value to be 
$167,000. The Board explained that we have to use actual sales for his neighborhood
for the study and that sales in his went up.  Based on sales the Board agreed to 
change the Assessed Value to $87,500.

39



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 10:10 AM # 07.040

Phone: (home) 248-765-1114 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FRANCIS SHIER
add 2786 RHODES
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
25D R 1,574 130.04 (1,350)
S.D.
750

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-279-008 401 103,690 77,230 102,340 80,080 97,500 80,080 0

Mr. Shier arrived at the meeting to request his Assessed Value be reduced more than
it had. Frank Howrylak recused himself as Mr. Shier is a friend of his.  The Board 
agreed to change the Assessed Value based on sales.

40



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 10:20 AM # 07.041

Phone: (home) 248-689-4226 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GEORGE CURRY
add 201 CARTER
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
16B R 1,716 149.32 8,120
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

16-477-002 401 120,000 93,180 128,120 96,620 128,120 96,620 0

Mr. Curry came into the Board to appeal his Assessed Value.  When he appeared 
last year it was changed to $120,000.  Mr. Curry's house is larger than others in his 
neighborhood.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no change.

41



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 10:30 AM # 07.042

Phone: (home) 248-981-7992 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DANIEL LEEBOVE
add 1786 HARTSHORN
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
27A COL 3,223 127.49 7,040
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-359-025 401 198,410 171,270 205,450 177,600 182,000 177,600 0

Daniel LeeBove petitioned the Board to change his Assessed Value.  He built the 
house himself and felt the cash value should be $300,000.  There were no 2006 
sales, but 2005 had some comparable sales. The Board agreed to change the 
Assessed Value based on sales to $182,000. 

42



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 10:40 AM # 07.043

Phone: (home) 248-361-3506 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BECHARA TOHME
add 1425 SHAKER
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
36A COL 2,310 109.45 (2,120)
S.D.
750

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-127-011 401 128,530 91,340 126,410 94,710 110,000 94,710 0

Mr. Tohme arrived at the meeting to change his Assessed Value and stated his was 
the highest in the neighborhood.  His poverty exemption application  was denied last 
year because of his Assessed Value. Mr. Tohme told the Board he has been 
unemployed for 2 years, gets a small pension from Edison, his wife is self employed 
and is ready for bankruptcy.  Mr. Licari explained that the Board can give a Hardship 
Exemption  and the State will return the $1,200 he pays or they can lower his 
Assessed Value so he can qualify for the poverty exemption.  Based on sales the 
Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $110,000.

43



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:00 AM # 07.044

Phone: (home) 248-342-5007 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN BICKEL
add 670 TROYWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22H R 1,812 130.33 22,900
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-251-008 401 95,180 67,000 118,080 69,470 95,180 69,470 0

Mr. Bickel came to the meeting to appeal the increase in his Assessed Value.  He 
has an updated ranch without a basement.  Mr. Bickel had a difficult time finding 
comparable sales because Troywood has a varied mix of dwellings.  After reviewing 
sales the Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $95,180.

44



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:10 AM # 07.045

Phone: (home) 248-219-6667 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAUL BECK
add 2101 MCINTOSH
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
06B COL 2,779 126.01 (3,840)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-226-034 401 178,930 138,560 175,090 143,680 175,090 143,680 0

Mr. Beck appeared before the Board and asked on which sales his decrease in 
Assessed Value were based.  He received the reduction used thorughout the City 
because there were no current sales for his neighborhood.  Based on other sales the 
Board agreed to no change.

45



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:20 AM # 07.046

Phone: (home) 248-229-0833 Phone:(work) 313-758-4872

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ERIC DOYLE
add 4722 HOLLAND
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
13F R 2,129 171.83 17,030

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-280-002 401 165,880 156,490 182,910 162,280 162,500 162,280 0

Mr. Doyle came to the meeting to change his Assessed Value, his home is a ranch.  
The comparables he presented had finished basements and were not in his 
neighborhood.  We had a 2005 sale of $340,000 for a ranch.  Based on sales the 
Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $162,500.

46



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

 
Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:30 AM # 07.047

Phone: (home) 248-901-4009 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARK MCGOWAN WHITE CHAPEL
add 38505 WOODWARD #2000 621 W LONG LAKE
c/s/z BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48304

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
CEM N/A N/A #VALUE! 5,740
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

16-601-001 401 0 0 5,740 5,740 5,740 5,740 0
00-338-480 251 0 0 230 230 230 230

Mr. McGowan appeared before the Board for the third year representing White 
Chapel Cemetary.  They would like to change the Personal Property Value back to 0 
to continue to be tax exempt.  White Chapel sells flowers as a service to visitors that 
come to visit.  His presentation included letters from groups that are putting pressure 
on the State to tax cemetaries.  He stated that the Board had the ability to grant the 
exemption, even though the Assessor did not.  After considerable discussion among 
the Board members they agreed to no change by a 2 to 1 vote.

47



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:40 AM # 07.048

Phone: (home) 248-641-1407 Phone:(work) 248-310-9940

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JACK BERTOIA
add 5075 BAYSIDE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
08D TRI 2,061 164.67 (1,810)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-351-006 401 171,500 102,850 169,690 106,650 135,000 106,650 0

Mr. Bertoia appeared before the Board to change his Assessed Value to $135,000. 
He felt a 2005 sale at 5103 Bayside and it had increased the subdivision.  Based on 
sales the Board voted to change the Assessed Value to $135,000.

48



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 11:50 AM # 07.049

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT THIBODEAU
add 1595 DEVONSHIRE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
17D R 2,245 188.52 (1,510)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-379-007 401 213,120 205,290 211,610 211,610 195,000 195,000 -16,610

Mr. Thibodeau appealed to the board to lower his Assessed Value.  He was told by a 
real estate company his true cash value should be $365,000 which is what he paid 
for it.  Mr. Thibodeau has a ranch and it's the cheapest in the subdivisoon.  We had a 
2005 sale for $350,000.  Based on sales the Board agreed to lower the Assessed 
Value and Taxable Value to $195,000. 

49



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 1:00 PM # 07.050

Phone: (home) 248-689-1904 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SUIMEI HUANG
add 4708 HOLLAND
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
13F COL 2,867 140.54 19,260

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-280-001 401 182,210 174,990 201,470 181,460 190,000 181,460 0

Ms. Huang came to the meeting because she felt the sales study did not support her 
Assessed Value increase.  She passed out sales data for 2004, 2005 and 2006.  The 
2006 sale at 4739 Douglas Fir was for $432,000.  The Board agreed to change the 
Assessed Value to $190,000 based on sales.

50



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 1:10 PM # 07.051

Phone: (home) Phone:(work) 248-689-8120

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n NOAH CO LLC-DAVID SOFY
add 1200 E BIG BEAVER-1230
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
ILM80 ILM 18,512 151.68 0
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

26-104-017 301 1,403,960 1,322,150 1,403,960 1,371,060 1,260,000 1,260,000 -111,060

Mr. Sofy appeared before the Board to lower the Assessed Value for his industrial 
building.  He distributed sales data and quoted sales prices per square footage of 
other industrial buildings.  Mr. Sofy used the sale of 1470 Coolidge, 2350 Meijer and 
2801 John R for comparables.  He stated that Behr offered him $2,520,000 plus 
$800,000 for moving expenses which he declined.  Based on sales the Board agreed 
to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $1,260,000. 

51



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 1:20 PM # 07.052

Phone: (home) 586-530-2090 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BAM PROPERTY MNGMNT
add 11446 GREENDALE
c/s/z STERLING HEIGHTS MI  48312-2929

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C0902 COL 2,131 166.23 4,570 4,580
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-476-085 405 186,270 186,270 177,120 177,120 177,120 177,120 0

Bob Sykes appeared before the Board and furnished condominium sales which he 
had averaged and requested a cash value of $313,000. He felt values had gone 
down in is neighborhood.  Based on sales for his condominum complex the Board 
agreed to no change.

52



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 1:40 PM # 07.053

Phone: (home) 248-528-3811 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LAWRENCE SLIMAK
add 5303 CHURCH HILL
c/s/z TROY MI 48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
11A COL 2,223 97.55 (18,280)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-302-009 401 126,710 89,780 108,430 93,100 122,600 93,100 0

Mr. Slimak came to the Board meeting to raise his Assessed Value.  He used our 
2006 sales study for his presentation and stated the lower priced sale on Babbit was 
due to its poor condition.  Based on sales the Board agreed to change the Assessed 
Value to $122,600.

53



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 1:50 PM # 07.054

Phone: (home) 248-649-2437 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN G GROWNEY
add 1975 AXTELL 2
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C2902 R 1,012 138.75 1,130
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

29-357-014 401 69,080 69,080 70,210 70,210 70,210 70,210 0

Mrs. Growney, John's mother came to the Board to lower the Assessed Value.  Her 
son owns the unit, it is not Homestead.  She stated the condo taxes don't cover 
garbage pickup, they can't recycle and the buildings are old.  Mr. Licari printed a 
Valuation Statement so Mrs. Growney could see the depreciation for age. We didn't 
have 2006 sales, her sale was for $146,900 in 2005.  Based on sales the Board 
agreed to no change.

54



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 07.055

Phone: (home) 248-619-9344 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FIKRET ALIC
add 906 VANDERPOOL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22A COL 1,691 157.50 4,780
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-426-020 401 128,390 128,180 133,170 132,920 125,000 125,000 -7,920

Mr. Alic and his daughter came to the Board to reduce the Assessed Value.  She 
stated there was a sale of a larger home across the street for $307,000 and they feel 
the Dunkin Donut building coming near them will further decrease their value.  Based 
on sales the Board agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $125,000.

55



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 2:10 PM # 07.056

Phone: (home) 248-342-6466 Phone:(work) 248-593-0500

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID CAMPBELL
add 2730 HYLANE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18H R 2,607 120.76 1,350
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-301-016 401 156,060 147,140 157,410 152,580 157,410 121,550 -31,030

Mr. Campbell came to the Board to discuss a correction for his Taxable Value.  Mr. 
Licari agreed that an uncapping error had occurred.  He offered to return the Taxable 
Value to $121,550 and Mr. Campbell agreed.  Based on this correction the Board 
agreed to change the Taxable Value to $121,550.

56



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 2:40 PM # 07.057

Phone: (home) 678-596-7947 Phone:(work) 678-612-3435

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOSEPH TRIPOLI
add 4163 BERLCELEY LANDING
c/s/z KENNESAW  GA  30144

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04H TRI 2,809 114.77 (6,600)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-276-004 401 167,790 126,040 161,190 130,700 161,190 130,700 0

Mr. & Mrs. Tripoli came into the meeting to request a change to the Assessed Value.  
They live in Georgia, the house was rented and is now vacant.  Mr. Tripoli was told by
Real Estate people there was a 20% sales decrease in the area.  The sales he 
presented were lower per sq. ft. than what we had.  Based on sales the Board 
considered lowering the Assessed Value.  However, the owner reconsidered after the 
discussion and withdrew his appeal.

57



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 2:50 PM # 07.058

Phone: (home) 248-828-3322 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GEORGE GOBLE
add 2990 CHARNWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
06D R 2,652 114.82 12,020 15,810
S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-302-007 401 124,420 79,030 152,250 93,970 152,250 93,970 0

Mr. Goble came to the meeting to lower the Assessed Value and didn't want his 900 
ft addition taxed because it isn't completed.  Mr. Licari explained it is required by law 
that the addition be assessed at the stage of completion. As an example, Mr. Licari 
stated that insurance companies would estimate the point of completion, and value of 
that construction to compensate for value lost, due to fire, tornado, etc.  Our 2006 
sales study had a sale at 2251 Dalesford for $313,500.  Based on sales the Board 
agreed to no change.

58



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 3:10 PM # 07.059

Phone: (home) 248-594-9726 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GEORGE BEDNARIK
add 2757 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 2,887 231.03 19,910

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-065 401 313,580 271,920 333,490 281,980 304,000 281,980 0

Mr. & Mrs. Bednarik appeared before the Board with sales charts for his appeal.  He 
reviewed the data of dollars per sq foot and presented sales from 2005, 2827 
Amberly at $440,000, not an arms length sale, 2066 Roseglen for $571,000 and 2007
pending at 2585 Amberly for $499,000.  The Board told Mr. Bednarik we can't use the
2007 nor 2005 sales.  Based on the 2006 sale the Board agreed to change the 
Assessed Value to $304,000. 

59



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 3:30 PM # 07.060

Phone: (home) 248-608-8117 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n STEVEN DELUCA
add 2464 NORTON LAWN
c/s/z ROCHESTER MI  48308

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
24K R 1,611 201.65 11,330
S.D.
262

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-401-026 401 151,100 110,640 162,430 114,730 132,500 114,730 0

Mr. DeLuca came to the meeting to request $125,000 for his Assessed Value.  This 
is a rental home and there is an existong option to purchase the property for 
$265,000.  The Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $132,500 based on 
the option.

60



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 3:40 PM # 07.061

Phone: (home) 310-926-9263 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n IVAN SAMANO MICHAEL MAURO, ATTY
add 338 E SOUTH BLVD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02D COL 2,294 156.54 16,820
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-126-038 401 162,730 162,730 179,550 168,750 170,000 168,750 0

Mr. Mauro appeared at the Board representing his client, Ivan Samano, to contest the
increase in Assessed Value. He presented comparable sales for the subdivision 
behind him.  Mr. Samano paid $330,000 in 2004.  Our 2006 sales study shows a 
smaller house sale for $330,000.  Based on sales and property size the Board agreed
to change the Assessed Value to $170,000

61



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 3:50PM # 07.062

Phone: (home) 248-890-0759 Phone:(work) 586-286-8720

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FASAHAT HAMZAVI
add 2363 BROOKLAWN
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,021 213.32 18,980

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-034 401 303,240 203,050 322,220 210,560 237,500 210,560 0

Mr. Hamzavi came to the meeting to lower his Assessed Value.  He paid $475,000 
for his home January 2007. He didn't have any  other sales for  his neighborhood. 
Without being able to verify if this was an arm's length transaction, the Board agreed 
to change the Assessed Value to $237,500 for the 2007 year.

62



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 4:00 PM # 07.063

Phone: (home) 248-250-3822 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT GOSSELIN
add 2915 LENOX
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07A R #DIV/0!
S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-151-042 402 78,750 21,270 112,500 22,050 99,500 22,050 0
07-151-043 401 249,260 134,640 267,980 139,620 165,000 139,620 0
07-151-044 401 121,880 85,540 155,240 88,700 125,000 88,700 0
06-227-031 401 185,710 172,530 181,320 181,320 175,000 175,000 -6,320

Mr. Gosselin appeared before the Board to change the Assessed Value for 4 
properties he owns. Frank Howrylak recused himself from this hearing.  Parcel 07-
151-042 is vacant. He stated he has not been able to sell at the current values and 
wanted to change the three remaining properties to half of the price that he has them 
listed for.  After review of sales the Board agreed to the following change in Values:  
07-151-042 vacant to Assessed Value $99,500; 07-151-043, 2915 Lenox,  to 
Assessed Value $165,000; 07-151-044, 5773 Lenox to Assessed Value $125,000 
and 06-277-031 2022 McIntosh at $175,000 Assessed and Taxable Value based on 
sales.

63



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 4:30 PM # 07.064

Phone: (home) 248-649-5927 Phone:(work) 586-947-7084

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n NANTU ROY
add 1465 MUER
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20C COL 2,653 153.60 4,440
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-427-034 401 199,310 199,310 203,750 203,750 203,750 203,750 0

Mr. Roy appeared before the Board to change his Assessed Value to $184,000. He 
found 1556 Banmoor, built same year as his with $368,000 Cash Value.  Mr. Roy 
furnished pictures of the house across the street that has piles of scrap, junk, cars, 
truck and trailer in violation of City Codes.  This situation has been ongoing.  Mr. 
Licari reported to Mr. Roy that this property has been split, it will be cleaned up and a 
new house will be added.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no change. 

64



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 4:40 PM # 07.065

Phone: (home) 248-528-9746 Phone:(work) 248-753-4414

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHANGMING WANG
add 3319 TROY
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22G COL 1,982 135.33 6,610
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-352-022 401 127,500 127,500 134,110 132,210 134,110 132,210 0

Mr. Wang came to the meeting to ask about his taxes.  Mr.Licari answered Mr. 
Wang's questions and told him what the 2007 increase would be on his Taxable 
Value.  Mr. Wang stated he felt the house was worth $240,000.  Based on sales the 
Board agreed to no change.

65



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 4:50 PM # 07.066

Phone: (home) 248-828-9980 Phone:(work) 586-575-7847

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YUNQIANG LI
add 6115 COUNTRY RIDGE
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
05F COL 4,107 134.46 (4,260)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-354-002 401 280,380 280,380 276,120 276,120 270,000 270,000 -6,120

Mr. Li appeared before the Board and distributed his sales for comparison.  His wife 
is a loan officer and they follow the market decline closely.  Mr. Li's neighborhood has 
houses with mixed values.  He purchased in 2003 for $540,000, his home backs to 
Coolidge and he feels $520,000 is the fair market value.  Based on sales the Board 
agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $270,000.

66



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/12/07 Appt Time 5:00 PM # 07.067

Phone: (home) 248-689-3426 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/07/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CAROL TAYLOR
add 4165 FORSYTH
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
13C COL 2,363 191.98 57,490
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-401-038 401 169,340 112,910 226,830 117,080 205,000 117,080 0

Carol Taylor came the the board to contest the increase in Assessed Value, for the 
previous 3 years she had a decline. She stated the homes in her neighborhood range 
in age from 1950 - 2000 and some older homes are not well maintained.  The selling 
prices range from $162,000 to $400,000.  Ms. Taylor's property is 883' deep by 123' 
wide, 2 1/2 acres and she has more value in the land.  The 2006 sale at 2165 Forsyth
increased her subdivision.  Based on sales and land value the Board agreed to 
change the Assessed Value to $205,000. 

67



TUESDAY, MARCH 13, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2007 Board of Review met for the third session 
at the Troy City offices. Eileen Turner called the meeting to 
order.  Also present were Frank Howrylak, James Hatch, and 
City Assessor, Nino Licari, as the Secretary.  Thirty-six appeals 
were heard between 1:00 PM and 9:00 PM.  They follow this 
introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:00 PM # 07.068

Phone: (home) 248-320-0557 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ANNE MARIE DYLEWSKI
add 2559 OXFORD
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
19A COL 1,980 156.16 2,920
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-127-011 401 151,680 150,280 154,600 154,600 147,000 147,000 -7,600

 Ann Marie Dylewski arrived and began her presentation.  She shared some 
comparisons with the Board members that were not in her subdivision, and could not 
be used.  Ms Dylewski felt her home should be valued at $265,000 to $285,000 on 
the market.  The Board voted to lower her Assessed Value to $147,000.

68



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:10 PM # 07.069

Phone: (home) 586-899-4801 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VIRGINIA JARVIS
add 6744 NORTHPOINT
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02S R 2,121 218.00 32,880
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-202-002 401 198,310 129,580 231,190 134,370 212,500 134,370 0

Michael Jarvis and his mother came to the Board.  His mother showed some 
comparables that were colonials and were in the wrong dollar range to use for this 
study.   All the comparables were on the lake, but some were not in the same 
subdivision.  Mr. Jarvis felt $171.00 per sq ft was fair.  The decision of the Board was 
to reduce the Assessment from $231,190 to $212,500.

69



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:20 PM # 07.070

Phone: (home) 248-515-8308 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAUL HENN
add 1928 SMALLBROOK
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02A R 2,187 145.27 (410)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-230-007 401 159,260 159,260 158,850 158,850 158,850 158,850 0

Paul Henn appeared before the Board in regards to his home at 1928 Smallbrook.  
He said he purchased this home in 2005, with no regard to the price, because his 
wife was very ill and they needed to move to a ranch style home.  Last year Mr Henn 
didn't protest his assessment.  He gave the Board comparisons on ten properties, 
comparing both ranch and colonial homes.  The decision of the Board was no 
change.

70



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:30 PM # 07.071

Phone: (home) 248-828-2877 Phone:(work) 248-755-5747

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YU ZHANG
add 1851 NEW CASTLE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
05M COL 3,586 186.07 2,350 (31,130)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-301-042 401 362,400 362,400 333,620 333,620 333,620 333,620 0

Mr Zhang told the Board he felt his home was worth $315,000.  He indicated that he 
is on the Homeowner's Association Board and has comparisons available.  It was 
brought up that a deck was added to his home which would increase his value.  The 
Board of Review voted for no change.

71



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:40 PM # 07.072

Phone: (home) 248-762-6229 Phone:(work) 248-495-7414

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MICHAEL D CAUMARTIN GARY JOHNSON II
add 1091 GLASER
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
14F R 1,236 135.97 (700)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-101-026 401 84,730 84,730 84,030 84,030 84,030 84,030 0

Mr. Caumartin and his mother were introduced to the Board.  His mother told the 
Board she is a real estate broker and passed out some comparison properties.  This 
home was purchased as a forclosure.  The comparables presented didn't appear 
similar to this home.  The Board voted for no change.

72



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 1:50 PM # 07.073

Phone: (home) 586-291-9839 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LEOKADIA SULLY
add 1122 DORAL
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
11C R 1,874 192.00 4,150
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-104-017 401 175,750 160,280 179,900 166,210 167,500 166,210 0

Leokadia Sully and her daughter addressed the Board.  It was indicated that this 
home has no improvements and is one of the smaller homes in the subdivision.  
There were no comparisons available and the ones presented could not be used.  
The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value from $179,900 to $167,500 based on 
the size of the home.

73



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 07.074

Phone: (home) 248-641-0171 Phone:(work) 248-505-7183

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLIAM COLE TRUST
add 5837 CLEARVIEW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07J COL 5,191 169.07 (27,630)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-202-024 401 466,450 376,780 438,820 390,720 355,680 321,070 -69,650

Mr Cole told the Board he is a widower with a very large home, who had intentions of 
moving to the new Monarch project, which was terminated.  In his comparisons, he 
questioned his Assessed Value, indicateing he felt it was inflated along with his 
square footage.  It was the decision of the Board to have an appraisor remeasure the 
home for accuracy.  The dimensions on the appraisal were in error.  The Board 
accepted the reduction proposed by the Assessor based on the corrected 
dimensions.

74



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:10 PM # 07.075

Phone: (home) 248-267-0169 Phone:(work) 248-219-1786

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LAURENCE GUINDI
add 5762 ALGONQUIN
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07J COL 4,569 170.43 (10,660)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-202-013 401 400,000 400,000 389,340 389,340 389,340 389,340 0

Mr Guindi presented paperwork to the Board with comparisons indicating his home 
should have an Assessed Value of $375,000.  The comps presented were homes of 
different ages and subdivisions than his home, which could not be used.  The Board 
explained that only 2006 sales, in his subdivision, were used to determine the 
Assessed Value.  No change was made by the Board.

75



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:20 PM # 07.076

Phone: (home) 248-217-2403 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ISSAM TAWFIK
add 6304 PEACOCK
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
03J COL 3,779 149.42 170,980 13,990

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-401-036 401 97,360 97,360 282,330 282,330 274,160 274,160 -8,170

Issam Tawfik presented the members of the Board a hand out.  He said the builder 
has dropped the prices of these homes since he purchased last year.  The Board 
voted to reduce the Assessment to half of the sale price, which would be an 
Assessed Value of $274,160 from $282,330.

76



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:30 PM # 07.077

Phone: (home) 248-641-9524 Phone:(work) 248-705-0416

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ALY TAWANSY
add 2586 FOX  CHASE
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07B COL 3,097 155.00 (10,600)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-326-009 401 250,620 167,430 240,020 173,620 240,020 173,620 0

Mr Tawansy stated he works in real estate, and homes have dropped in value.  He 
showed a chart which would indicate no dispute in the Assessed Value.  The Board 
explained to him that the taxable value has no correlation to the value of his home.  
Mr Tawansy then presented a 2007 sale, which would not be used until next years 
sale study.  It was voted that no change would be made.

77



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:40 PM # 07.078

Phone: (home) 248-641-5928 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LENORE PAXTON
add 5900 SUSSEX
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07A COL 3,705 140.87 10,970
S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-102-016 401 250,000 250,000 260,970 259,250 260,970 259,250 0

Ms Paxton also appeared before the Board of Review last year.  She thinks her home
is worth $450,000.  It was built in 1972, has no updates, and was passed down to her 
from her parents.  She showed some sales of homes near her.  It was voted by the 
Board to make no changes.

78



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 2:50 PM # 07.079

Phone: (home) 248-813-9921 Phone:(work) 248-252-2583

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LINDA FITZPATRICK
add 6735 LITTLE CREEK 
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02S R 1,775 241.34 39,190
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-229-015 401 175,000 163,680 214,190 169,730 183,000 169,730 0

Linda Fitzpatrick explained that she felt her home is worth only $340,000, which 
would make her Assessed Value $170,000.  She said she is on Crystal Lake, which 
was one of the nicest in her opinion.  Right now they are having a problem with street 
drains in this subdivision which are creating a problem with the lake, and the former 
treatment that used to clear up this problem, is no longer allowed to be used.  It was 
voted to lower Ms Fitzpatrick's Assessed Value from 214,190 to $183,000.

79



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 3:00 PM # 07.080

Phone: (home) 248-763-2236 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YOUSEF ELISSA
add 4093 DREXEL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
17D COL 2,776 160.08 (1,630)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-351-007 401 223,820 215,230 222,190 222,190 221,000 221,000 -1,190

Mr Yousef Elissa asked the Board for their assistance in lowering his Assessed Value
from $222,190 to $202,500.  He made some comparisons in his neighborhood, that 
were sold in 2007, but could not be used this year.  After much deliberation, the 
Board of Review lowered the Assessed Value from $222,190 to $221,000.

80



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 3:20 PM # 07.081

Phone: (home) 248-978-5152 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KURT EWALD
add 2590 BINBROOKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
19A R 1,558 188.45 2,640
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-101-049 401 144,160 110,880 146,800 114,980 103,000 103,000 -11,980

Mr Ewald stated that based on 2006 sales, his price per square foot should be at 
$135.00.  This home was built in 1962 and should be valued on the market at around 
$206,000 to $209,000.  Mr Ewald also went on the say that his home is the smallest 
in the neighborhood.  The Board voted to change the Assessment from $146,800 to 
$103,000.  

81



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 3:30 PM # 07.082

Phone: (home) 248-978-5439 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID FENSCH
add 3177 OTTER
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
24A TRI 1,570 119.96 (790)
S.D.
262

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-451-004 401 94,960 86,850 94,170 94,170 94,170 94,170 0

David Fensch arrived with his father.  He purchased this home from a relative.  He 
then presented his comparisons of sales in his area.  The Board voted for no change 
due to the fair values.

82



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 3:40 PM # 07.083

Phone: (home) 586-770-0733 Phone:(work) 248-879-8567

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CECELIA JOTANOVIC
add 199 STALWART
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
09D COL 3,733 131.26 138,400 (28,540)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-408-014 401 135,140 135,140 245,000 245,000 245,000 245,000 0
C

Cecelia Jotanovic arrived with her mother.  She built in this area trying to keep her 
taxes down.  No comparisons were found due to the large size of her home.  This 
home is still under construction, and 75% finished.  This is a one acre site 
approximently 130 x 310 in size.  Most homes in this subdivision are 30-40 years old 
and much smaller.  Cieceila's neighborhood has Class C-D homes, while her's is a 
Class B.  Ms Jotanovic was concerned that she would not be able to afford her home 
when it is finished.  The Board of Review voted for no change after comparisons 
were made to the few similar homes in the area.

83

licarila
Text Box



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 4:00 PM # 07.084

Phone: (home) 313-805-4787 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID MESSIH
add 2591 LOCKSLEY
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
24K COL 2,342 157.97 13,370
S.D.
262

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-401-035 401 171,610 126,670 184,980 184,980 184,980 184,980 0

Mr. Messih was introduced to the Board members when he arrived.  He explained 
that he bought this home last year for $370,000, and has been raised 8% in one year.
Mr Messih feels his value has come down, not gone up like the assessment 
indicates.  He explained that when he was buying the home, he added into the 
purchase agreement things like appliances and granite countertops.  He felt he 
should just get the upgrades then rather than later as a replacement.  The Board 
voted for no change.

84



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 4:10 PM # 07.085

Phone: (home) 248-283-2209 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAIME TORRES
add 6925 EDGEWATER
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C0301 COL 2,161 115.14 1,030
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-226-059 405 123,380 122,510 124,410 124,410 124,410 124,410 0

Jaime Torres felt this home is worth $240,000, which would bring the assessment to 
$120,000.  he stated that homes are down in price and this is a very basic home plan 
with no upgrades.  After the Board reviewed sales and comparisons they voted no 
change.

85



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 4:20 PM # 07.086

Phone: (home) 248-680-1191 Phone:(work) 248-842-1191

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n EMAD ATTALLA
add 6358 PEACOCK
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
03J COL 3,780 148.51 119,278 106,162

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-401-039 401 55,250 55,250 280,690 280,690 280,690 280,690 0

Emad Attalla arrived.  He said he paid $572,084 in March of 2006.  Because he 
added upgrades of windows, cabinets and granite, instead of replacing it later, the 
cost of the house was higher.  The builder has not been selling homes and is listing 
them for $500,000.  He showed a flyer from the builder to the members.  He 
indicated his neighbor next door has a walk-out basement and lower taxes.  It was 
pointed out to Mr Attalla that his neighbor's sale was in 2007 and was not used in this 
sales study.  He realized he set the price because of what he paid for the home.  The 
Board voted for no change to this residential property.

86



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 4:30 PM # 07.087

Phone: (home) 313-410-8385 Phone:(work) 248-740-8735

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID O'DONNELL
add 8985 MORNING MIST DR
c/s/z CLARKSTON MI  48348-2871

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
OFF80 OFF 10,465 128.85 30,610 30,610
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-379-013 201 612,970 497,010 674,190 546,000 674,190 546,000 0

Mr David O'Donnell stated that the Assessed Value has gone up 10% this year on 
this office property.  He presented copies of an appraisal from 2003, and the last two 
years of income and expense information.  Mr. Licari suggested that he study the 
information, and present a recommendation to the Board on March 21.                        
The information  supports the Assessment on the parcel, and is much higher than the 
current Taxable Value.  The Board voted for no change.

87



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 6:00 PM # 07.088

Phone: (home) Phone:(work) 248-642-2531

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BRIAN CONSIDINE
add 1578 HEATHERWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
08E COL 2,699 162.15 (25,860)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-331-003 401 244,680 235,960 218,820 218,820 210,000 210,000 -8,820

Mr. Considine thanked the Board for meeting with him.  He also said that his 
residence is the smallest in the neighborhood yet he feels he is being assessed 
equivilent to larger homes.  Mr. Considine indicated that he checked the city website 
and his contention is that his Assessment should be lower.  Many comparables were 
presented to the Board, some were not in this sales study.  The Board of Review 
voted to lower the Assessed Value from $218,820 to $210,000.

88



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 6:20 PM # 07.089

Phone: (home) 248-267-8488 Phone:(work) 248-343-2633

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n TANIA JANN
add 4555 RIVERCHASE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18F COL 3,605 179.94 (5,810)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-277-003 401 330,160 298,580 324,350 309,620 301,500 301,500 -8,120

Ms. Jann arrived with a hand out for the Board members.  She said she didn't come 
to the Board of Review when she bought the house, which was a mistake because it 
was assessed higher than what she paid for it.  Some of her comparables could not 
be used because they were forclosure property.  This home backs up to the river, 
and park, which is a very desirable area.  Based on comparable sales, it was decided 
to reduce the Assessed Value from $324,350 to $301,500.

89



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 6:30 PM # 07.090

Phone: (home) Phone:(work) 586-492-8956

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HOWARD WEISS
add 3445 ROXBURY CT
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30D R 1,582 116.09 15,680
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-126-082 401 76,150 68,120 91,830 70,640 76,150 70,640 0

Mr Weiss had a flood which has not been settled by the insurance company yet.  
There has been no work done on the home.  Because of the time involved, the roof is 
now sagging and other problems with the house have been incurred.  It was the 
recommendation of the Board to lower the assessment to the 2006 level.  The 
Assessed Value will be $76,150 instead of $91,830 for 2007.

90



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 6:40 PM # 07.091

Phone: (home) 248-835-1106 Phone:(work) 248-645-5930

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SCOTT SPAULDING
add 2042 JEFFERY
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
12A TRI 1,919 124.17 (2,360)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-152-011 401 121,500 121,500 119,140 119,140 109,000 109,000 -10,140

Scott Spaulding appeared at the Board.  Board member Jim Hatch excused himself 
because he knows Mr. Spaulding and his parents.  Mr. Spaulding said he bought the 
house for $200,000 in 2004.  Due to the market values going down, he feels it should 
have an Assessed Value of $109,000.  After many comparisons were looked at, with 
not very many tri-levels to compare to, the Board voted to lower the Assessed Value 
to $109,000 from $119,140.

91



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 6:50 PM # 07.092

Phone: (home) 248-232-0552 Phone:(work) 248-860-8812

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HARENDRA KUMAR
add 5097 LONGVIEW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07E COL 3,034 130.66 (7,070)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-376-016 401 205,280 159,580 198,210 165,480 198,210 165,480 0

Mr Kumar told the Board his home is only worth $330,000 according to similar homes 
in his area.  He showed comparisons to the Board members that were in surrounding 
subdivisions not in this immediate sub.  The Board stated that next year some of the 
sales in 2007 may help present a better determination of assessment.  The Board of 
Review voted for no change.

92



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:00 PM # 07.093

Phone: (home) 248-421-5455 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KELLIE RAO
add 2614 MANCHESTER
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
06F COL 4,220 241.86 44,580

S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-352-022 401 465,740 347,240 510,320 360,080 450,000 360,080 0

Kellie Rao told the Board that there was a 9% increase since last year on the 
Assessed Value.  With home prices going down, she needs to sell.  Her husband 
passed away two weeks ago and she has two teenagers.  Kellie said she has been in 
the home for 14 years.  A house on Adams Pointe was closest in sq ft at 4,337, and 
sold for $1,100,000.  Million dollar comparables were found within 200 feet of this 
home.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value from $510,320 to 450,000.

93



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:10 PM # 07.094

Phone: (home) 248-835-4975 Phone:(work) 248-303-8703

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ERIK NORDSTROM
add 2245 TRAVERSE
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
24C R 1,623 134.42 (5,090)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-306-017 401 114,170 110,390 109,080 109,080 93,500 93,500 -15,580

Mr. Nordstrom arrived at the Board explaining this home was bought through 
forclosure and is in need of much repair.  He thinks the Assessed Value should only 
be $93,500 instead of $109,080.  He showed the Board members pictures of repairs 
that are needed to the home.  He also indicated high heat bills due to holes in the 
basement walls, a new furnance and water heater is needed.  In the state of repair 
that this home is in, the Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value to $93,500 from 
$109,080.

94



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:20 PM # 07.095

Phone: (home) 248-879-1009 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SHARON MANNING
add PO BOX 1737
c/s/z TROY MI  48099-1737

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
BUN BUN 1,753 113.76 1,570
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-476-087 401 69,910 66,980 99,710 99,710 99,710 99,710 0
01-476-088 401 70,360 56,610 71,930 58,700 71,930 58,700 0

Ms. Manning has two properties to review.  She passed out comparables for the 
Board.  She told the members that 30 feet of her property was taken for Right of Way 
and she should be assessed lower now that the properties are both smaller.  She 
was told that she has never been assessed for the 30 feet of Right of Way property, 
because the City of Troy makes allowances for this purpose, knowing they will take 
the property eventually.  The Board voted no change for both properties.

95



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:30 PM # 07.096

Phone: (home) 248-828-2858 Phone:(work) 248-265-6478

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DIANE WESTERN
add 1124 FAIRWAYS
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C1101 COL 1,664 151.83 (7,820)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-102-053 405 134,130 121,040 126,320 125,510 121,500 121,500 -4,010

Diane Western observed some Board of Review cases prior to hers.  She said she 
had a sale on her house last year that fell through.  She explained to the members 
that her house is a larger floor plan called the Baytree, yet only has two bedrooms 
because it was customized when built.  The other Baytree homes all have three 
bedrooms.  The Augusta is a two bedroom, which often gets confused with hers.  
The Board voted to change the Assessed Value from $126,320 to $121,500.

96



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:40 PM # 07.097

Phone: (home) 248-723-6984 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RICHARD CZAPSKI
add 3869 ROSEGLEN
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,128 195.87 17,970

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-058 401 288,370 279,300 306,340 289,630 306,340 289,630 0

Mr Czapski compared homes that have been sold, listed and also some pending 
sales.  He feels his home should be assessed at $235,000.  He mentioned that 
homes in his comparables have larger garages, granite countertops, cedar closets 
and many upgrades that his home does not have.  Some of the comparisons we 
could not be usee, because they are pending sales or are not sold in 2006.  Based on
the sales available for 2006, the Board voted for no change.

97



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 7:50 PM # 07.098

Phone: (home) 248-854-7542 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RUDOLF LAZE
add 2843 IOWA
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
36C R 1,872 125.47 4,950
S.D.
750

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-226-072 401 112,490 112,490 117,440 116,650 97,500 97,500 -19,150

Mr Rudolf Laze was upset over the fact that five sales in 2006 would help determine 
his assessment this year.  He told the Assessor that he had the burden of proof to 
show that the Assessment was valid.  Mr. Licari explained that in Assessment 
disputes, the burden of proof is on the Petitioner.  Mr Laze told the Assessor that he 
thought we used two years of sales in our Sales Study for this years assessment.  
Mr. Licari informed him we only are  using 2006 sales.  He questioned the veracity of 
using a 2% sampling to set the values in his area.  Eilleen Turner excused herself 
from the meeting.   Mr Laze continued to request information such as how many 
times each home in his area of study were sold and how long the owners kept their 
property. All questions were answered.   Mr Laze also told the Board that he overpaid 
for his home and has carried a tax burden since.  There was also discussion about a 
park near his home, that was not built.  He also had complaints of his neighbors and 
rezoning issues. In order to insure a beneficial resolve for all parties at the meeting, 
the Assessor suggested a reduction that the Board granted. 

98



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 8:00 PM # 07.099

Phone: (home) 248-722-0224 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BASHAR IMAM
add 1657 HAMLET
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20D COL 1,995 341.07 (26,340)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-328-008 401 367,220 335,510 340,220 340,880 314,350 314,350 -26,530

Mr Imam came in with his wife.  He showed some listings, but no sales for 2006.  The 
Board members then studied the 2006 Sales Study and voted to decrease the 
Assessed Value from $ 340,220 to $314,350.

99



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 8:10 PM # 07.100

Phone: (home) 248-722-0224 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MOHAMMED IMAM
add 2425 CHESWICK
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
19A COL 3,321 116.48 3,940
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-252-002 401 189,480 188,700 193,420 193,420 183,420 183,420 -10,000

Mr Imam and his wife represented their son Mohammed Imam.  Their son bought 
this home from them in 2004.  It has a detached garage and a small basement, which 
they feel is not desirable for resale.  Comparisons were discussed, along with 3890 
Woodman.  This is a similar home that sold for $380,000, except that the deck and 
garage would be a consideration.  The Board voted to change this Assessed Value 
from $193,420 to $183,420.

100



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 8:20 PM # 07.101

Phone: (home) 248-643-7743 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n TONYA AQUINO
add 2551 DERBY
c/s/z TROY MI 48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30E R 1,165 205.27 23,700
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-278-028 401 95,870 67,680 119,570 70,180 100,000 70,180 0

Ms. Aquino told the members of the Board that she feels she should have an 
Assessed Value of $95,000.  The house at 2401 Derby is identical to hers, and is  
currently listed for $199,000.  The Board agreed this house should be around 
200,000 Market Value.  The Board voted to reduce Assessed Value to $100,000 from 
$119,570.

101



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 8:30 PM # 07.102

Phone: (home) 248-528-9467 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YIMIN BAO
add 1538 MERRIWEATHER
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
14D COL 2,414 143.39 1,360
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-451-040 401 171,710 171,710 173,070 173,070 173,070 173,070 0

Yimin Bao introduced himself to the Board members.  Mr Bao indicated that if he had 
sold his home last year he would have gotten more money.  He would like to see his 
Assessed Value lowered to $150,000.  Mr. Bao felt that being located close to 
Wattles Road is a downfall.  He also mentioned that other homes have lower taxable 
values than his.  It was explained that this occurred because of his more recent 
purchase.  The Board voted for no change at this time.

102



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/07 Appt Time 8:50 PM # 07.103

Phone: (home) 313-805-6442 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/15/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RAKESH SEHGAL
add 1068 AUGUSTA
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
11C COL 3,144 158.88 6,440
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-104-026 401 243,320 208,620 249,760 216,330 236,000 216,330 0

Mr Sehgal came to the Board with a handout.  He is the original owener of this house.
He indicated to the Board of Review that the traffic by his home is terrible and the 
schools on the east side of Rochester Road are not desirable.  There were no sales 
in 2006 for this neighborhood for comparison.  This home was built in 1999 with the 
cost of this home at $368,000.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value to 
$236,000 from $249,760.

103



TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2007 Board of Review met for the fourth 
session at the Troy City offices. Eileen Turner called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Frank Howrylak, James 
Hatch, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, as the Secretary.  Thirty-
two appeals were heard between 1:00 PM and 9:00 PM.  They 
follow this introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 1:00 PM # 07.104

Phone: (home) 248-709-2871 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DONALD DEERING
add 2043 APPLEWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C1301 COL 2,671 135.19 1,520
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-351-045 405 179,020 179,020 180,540 180,540 170,000 170,000 -10,540

Mr Deering and a friend arrived.  He stated that he felt his home would be marketable 
at $300,000.  Mr Deering went on to explain that out of 36 units, 6 units have not sold 
in over two years, with one forclosed.  Mr Deering also told the Board that the two 
2006 sales in our Sales Study were smaller and therefore not a good comparison to 
his home.  The Board of Review voted on a split vote to lower the the Market Value 
from $$361,080 to $340,000, which would reduce the Assessed Value and Taxable 
Value from $180,540 to $170,000.  

104



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 1:10 PM # 07.105

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n XIAOYAN CHEN
add 6933 DUCHESS
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
06B COL 2,709 132.91 (4,080)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-227-008 401 184,100 137,560 180,020 180,020 160,000 160,000 -20,020
18-402-001 401 184,300 184,300 199,000 199,000 199,000 199,000 0

Ms Xiao Chen appealed 2 properties.  Ms Chen told the Board she felt the Assessed 
Value of the home at 6933 Duchessis should be $150,000.  Ms Chen also showed 
the Board members some comparisons of other properties.  It was determined these 
comparables were not in the same neighborhood or similar in size to the subject 
property.  Ms Chen also explained that this home was not in the condiition of homes 
in this neighborhood.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed and Taxable Values 
from $180,020 to $160,000, based on the condition of the property.   She felt the 
value of her own home, at 4408 Beach, was near $300,000.  She had purchased this 
property in in July of 2006 for $398,000.  The Board felt she had set the market for 
this home, and voted for no change. 

105



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 1:30 PM # 07.106

Phone: (home) 248-885-3316 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LIN ZONG
add 3460 BALFOUR
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20D COL 3,866 179.77 32,500
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-302-007 401 315,000 315,000 347,500 326,650 327,500 326,650 0

Mr Zong said he thought his home should be assessed at $316,300.  He showed 
average prices of homes sold in his neighborhood.  It was determined that additional 
value on this property was due to a pool.  Mr Zong also indicated his neighbor's home
is $163.63 per square foot.  This is in agreement with an appraisal he received on his 
home from Motor City Appraisers of $633,000.  The Board members felt the 
appraisal had errors.  It was voted to lower Mr Zong's Assessed Value to $327,500 
based on the sale data. 

106



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 1:50 PM # 07.107

Phone: (home) 248-828-4160 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ARPAD MADO
add 6870 JASMINE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04G COL 3,313 179.05 7,590
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-132-015 401 189,010 205,770 296,600 213,380 296,600 213,380 0

Mr Arpad Mado and his daughter told the Board they felt this property was worth 
$350,000.  Mr Mado told the Board that he had built a  bigger home so he could sell it 
for more when he retired. Mr Mado is now retired and needs to scale down, but the 
market has slumped.  After reviewing comparisons the Board voted that the 
Assessed Value of $296,600 on this home is accurate and there would be no 
change.

107



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 07.108

Phone: (home) 248-619-0293 Phone:(work) 313-227-7887

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PATRICIA BALL
add 4950 SOMERTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
15J COL 2,356 176.00 (5,520)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-203-003 401 212,850 152,860 207,330 158,510 187,000 158,510 0

Ms. Ball felt her home was valued at $305,000.  Ms Ball said she doesn't think that 
she could get $414,660.  This home was built in 1994.  The Board voted to lower the 
Assessed Value from $207,330 to $187,000.  

108



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 2:20 PM # 07.109

Phone: (home) 248-689-8831 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES GAGNON
add 1907 STONEY COVE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
11B COL 2,375 133.75 9,110
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-426-012 401 149,720 109,230 158,830 113,270 153,500 113,270 0

Mr James Gagnon told the Board since property values have been in decine for two 
years now, he feels he could only get about $275,000 for his home.  He said friends 
and neighbors have had their homes for sale and could not sell them.  Mr Gagnon 
told the Board he does not understand the raise in Assessed Value on his property.  
He also said this is a home built in 1977 that needs remodeling and does not have a 
finished basement.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value from $158,830 to 
$153,500.

109



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 2:30 PM # 07.110

Phone: (home) 248-766-9923 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BERGE AVESIAN
add 3960 CROOKS
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
MR R 1,278 179.09 6,020

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-101-002 401 108,420 108,420 114,440 112,430 106,250 106,250 -6,180

Mr. Avesian feels his home is worth $225,000.  He told the Board he only has two 
bedrooms, 1,278 sq ft and was built in 1953.  It was indicated that he does have a 
recreation area in the basement, a 28 x 20 garage with a 20 x 10 workshop, a 
breezeway, and a two-way fireplace.  Last year the Assessed Value was $108,420, 
which was higher than 1/2 the amount Mr Avesian paid for the house.  The Board 
voted to reduce the Assessed & Taxable Values to $106,250.

110



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 2:40 PM # 07.111

Phone: (home) 248-740-1259 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES REEVES
add 2512 LONDON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C2501 BI 1,414 99.22 (820)
S.D.
750

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-129-019 405 70,970 70,970 70,150 70,150 65,000 65,000 -5,150

Mr Reeves told the Board this is a rental property that he feels should be assessed at 
$129,500.  After comparisons of the Bi-Level sales in the areas were discussed, the 
Board voted to lower the Assessed Value and Taxable to $65,000.

111



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:00 PM # 07.112

Phone: (home) 248-588-5194 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n STEWART COTHBERTSON
add 117 REDWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
35B R 1,296 148.23 2,230
S.D.
230

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

35-354-027 401 93,820 63,380 96,050 65,720 87,500 65,720 0

Mr. Cothbertson told the Board his home should be valued at $175,000.  He stated 
that if he could get $175,000 for it, he would be happy to sell.  He read a letter to the 
Board, telling them he has lived in Troy for 20+ years, doesn't claim to know 
everything about assessing and appreciates that he lives in Troy.  Mr Cothbertson 
thanked the Board for allowing him to express his concerns.  Mr Cothbertson showed 
eight comparisons.  The Board showed him the 2006 Sales Study that was used to 
determine his Assessed Value of $96,050.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed 
Value to $87,500.  

112



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:10 PM # 07.113

Phone: (home) 248-457-1197 Phone:(work) 248-935-4839

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES THER
add 4066 WORTHINGTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
14J COL 3,018 130.28 4,310

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-351-076 401 192,280 181,710 196,590 188,430 196,590 188,430 0

Mr James Ther showed some comparisons of homes on Cobbestone, the same 
builder as his with similar square footage.  The was only one sale for the 2006 Sales 
Study in this neighborhood.  The Board voted no change.

113



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:20 PM # 07.114

Phone: (home) 248-614-0066 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: Insert Date

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JLC BIG BEAVER LLC RENEE SHULL
add 1985 W BIG BEAVER #200A
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
OFF50 OFF 25,964 125.27 391,530 78,350
S.D.
265

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

29-226-043 201 1,156,430 818,170 1,626,310 1,239,970 1,626,310 1,239,970 0

The Petitioner requested a reduction in Assessed and Taxable Value because the 
renovations to the office building were only 25 - 30% complete.  The Assessor asked 
for time to review the permit status in the Building Department.  Any change will be 
brought forward in the Correspondence appeals heard on the evening of the 21st.

114



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:30 PM # 07.115

Phone: (home) 248-568-5132 Phone:(work) 248-267-2337

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARK SINGER
add 2237 HIDDEN FOREST
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07J COL 5,098 168.18 (10,300)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-278-016 401 439,000 439,000 428,700 428,700 428,700 428,700 0

248-857-0599

Mr Mark Singer passed out a package to the Board of Review members.  He told the 
Board the dollars per square foot on his property is too high.  Mr Singer showed 2005 
sales and 2007 sales on the market now.  He asked if pending sales can be used in 
comparisons.  The Board explained to him that if the pending sales do sell in 2007, 
they would be used in next years sales study.  Based on the comparisons, the Board 
voted no change.  

115



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:40 PM # 07.116

Phone: (home) 248-408-3030 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROY JOHNSON
add 2744 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI 48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,475 207.42 21,740

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-073 401 338,650 284,870 360,390 295,410 347,500 295,410 0

116

Mr Roy Johnson stated that there are many appeals being presented from his 
neighborhood.  Mr Johnson went over some 2007 sales that could not be used in this 
Sales Study.  Mr Johnson also spoke about dollar amounts on square footage that he 
felt was wrong.  The Board told Mr Johnson that only the 2006 sale could be used 
this year to determine his assessment.  Any sales in 2007 would be reflected in the 
2008 assessments.  Based on the 2006 sale in the neighborhood, the Board voted to 
lower Mr Johnson's Assessed Value to $347,500, from $360,390.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 3:50 PM # 07.117

Phone: (home) 248-875-9102 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VELAMPUDI REDDI
add 984 ECKFORD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
15D COL 2,452 144.87 17,300
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-252-044 401 160,310 160,310 177,610 166,240 170,000 166,240 0

Mr Reddi told the Board he feels his Market Value should be $320,000.  There has 
been a downturn in the market, plus he is on a gravel road which is undesirable to 
perspective buyers.  The Board of Review members agreed that the assessment was 
too high in comparison to homes in area.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed 
Value to $170,000 from $177,610.

117



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 4:00 PM # 07.118

Phone: (home) 313-530-2900 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MICHAEL CURIS JR
add 4155 COOLIDGE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18E COL 3,605 178.58 1,440 (29,770)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-477-071 401 350,220 321,380 321,890 321,890 321,890 321,890 0

118

Mr Michael Curis Jr told the Board that he has always lived in Grosse Pointe.  he 
stated that Coolidge is a main artery for the City of Troy, which he didn't know about 
when he built his home.  Mr Curis  felt the builder should have told him about the 
traffic.  The Board indicated to Mr Curis that he does receive a 15% reduction living 
on Coolidge.  The Board voted for no change because the assessment is fair in 
comparison to homes in his neighborhood.  



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 4:10 PM # 07.119

Phone: (home) 248-840-7903 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN COSKI
add 398 ASPINWALL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04A R 1,579 257.54 37,160
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-404-009 401 166,170 133,460 203,330 138,390 183,000 138,390 0

Mr John Coski felt his Assessed Value should only be $166,170.  He showed homes 
in his neighborhood that haven't sold, some sitting for two years.  After much study, 
the Board lowered the Assessed Value to $183,000 from $203,330.

119



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 4:20 PM # 07.120

Phone: (home) 248-376-5599 Phone:(work) 248-588-5800

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAMELA MAJESKE
add 2667 RONALD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
01C COL 2,431 125.22 (510)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-402-009 401 152,710 130,690 152,200 135,520 152,200 135,520 0

120

Ms. Majeske told the Board members that no sales of homes in her area have 
accured in two years.  She also stated that she felt the home values were inflated and
have come down significatly.  Ms Majeske thinks her True Cash Value should be at 
$290,000, which would be an Assessed Value of $145,000.  The Board voted for no 
change.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 4:30 PM # 07.121

Phone: (home) 248-703-8082 Phone:(work) 248-689-1398

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHEN YUAN
add 249 ECKFORD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
15C R 2,176 146.24 8,150
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-128-016 401 150,960 150,960 159,110 156,540 159,110 156,540 0

Mr Chen Yuan told the Board has not done any remodeling.  He feels that the State 
of Michigan's market values keep dropping along with the value of his home.  Mr 
Yuan showed the Board homes on the web that have gone down in value.  Mr Yuan 
feels his home should be assessed at $134,360.  The Board of Review voted for no 
change.

121



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 6:10 PM # 07.122

Phone: (home) 248-379-4801 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n THOMAS VIOLANTE
add 2758 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,801 198.36 22,880

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-074 401 354,110 301,200 376,990 312,340 367,250 312,340 0

122

Mr Thomas Violante told the Board that the Assessor relied on only one sale in his 
subdivision to calculate the assessments, with disregard to comparable sales within 
the City of Troy.  Mr Violante estimated his True Cash Value at $524,400.  After 
much discusssion in regards to 2005 sales and pending 2007 sales, the Board 
concluded that only 2006 sales could and should be used for this year's assessment.  
It was also explained to Mr Violante that the 3.7% increase on his taxable amount is a
mathematical calculation.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value from 
$376,990 to $367,250.  



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 6:40 PM # 07.123

Phone: (home) 248-265-7724 Phone:(work) 248-808-8869

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YUEDONG CHEN
add 1734 GREENWICH
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
17D COL 3,059 152.10 (1,530)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-329-008 401 234,160 231,210 232,630 232,630 222,500 222,500 -10,130

Mr & Mrs Chen arrived.  They told the Board they feel their Assessed Value should 
be $219,000.  Mr & Mrs Chen presented some sales that could not be used this year. 
The Board explained that we can only use 2006 sales for this Sales Study to 
calculate the 2007 Assessed Value.  After much debate, the Board voted to reduce 
Mr & Mrs Chen's Assessed & Taxable Values to $222,500 from $232,630.

123



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 6:50 PM # 07.124

Phone: (home) 248-203-0460 Phone:(work) 313-916-7425

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DENISE COLLINS
add 2813 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,429 191.93 19,910

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-061 401 309,160 294,210 329,070 305,090 313,500 305,090 0

124

Ms. Collins said she feels her Assessed Value should be $236,000.  She also 
thanked the Board for hearing her petition.  Ms Collin's explained to the members 
that she borders Adams Rd and does not have a finsihed basement.  She was told 
that she is getting a reduction for the proximity to Adams.  It was also indicated that 
only the 2006 sales can be used this year to determine the Assessed Value.  The 
Board told Ms Collins that she can appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal if she isn't 
satified with this Board's decision.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value to 
$313,500 from $329,070.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:00 PM # 07.125

Phone: (home) 248-379-0353 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KENNETH SVRCINA
add 6858 NORTHPOINT
c/s/z TROY MI 48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02S COL 2,525 195.71 44,580
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-229-029 401 202,500 189,720 247,080 196,730 198,400 196,730 0

Mr. Svrcina thinks his Assessed Value should be $198,000.  Mr Svrcina indicated he 
had a problem with only one sale in his neighborhood reflecting his assessment.  He 
thought that homes on the same street should be comparable even if not sold in 
2006.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value to $198,400 from $247,080.

125



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:10 PM # 07.126

Phone: (home) 248-882-6060 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROCH MORIN
add 6725 MICHAEL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04J COL 3,246 172.23 9,530

S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-276-059 401 270,000 268,810 279,530 278,750 270,000 270,000 -8,750

126

Mr. Morin felt the Market Value of his home should be $525,852.  With only two sales 
in 2006, Mr Morin felt 2005 sales should have been used in this study to determine 
the 2007 assessment.  He also told the Board that his home is one of three homes in 
this subdivision that is not built by Orion Homes.  The Board voted to reduce the 
Assessed & Taxable Values to $270,000.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:20 PM # 07.127

Phone: (home) 248-290-5100 Phone:(work) 586-947-6348

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLIAM EID
add 2674 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,436 208.86 21,630

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-068 401 337,200 335,930 358,830 348,350 343,500 343,500 -4,850

Mr William Eid told the Board that he doesn't feel the assessed and taxable value of 
his homes relects the market in Michigan.  Mr Eid estimated his home to be valued at 
$498,220.  Mr Eid also said he didn't know he should have come in to see the Board 
when he bought his home.  He said he made a mistake.  He showed comparible 
homes that were sold in 2005.  He lives by the railroad track.  It was explained to Mr 
Eid that the Board can only use 2006 sales to determine his Assessed Value this 
year.  The Board voted to redice the Assessed and Taxable Values to $343,500.  

127



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:30 PM # 07.128

Phone: (home) 248-312-0028 Phone:(work) 586-242-2277

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MELISSA BAILEY
add 1681 FLEETWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
08A R 1,828 140.55 (2,600)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-126-006 401 131,060 131,060 128,460 128,460 120,000 120,000 -8,460

Ms. Bailey said her home has been appraised for $200,000, so she thinks her 
assessment is too high.  Ms Bailey told the Board that the expressway is in back of 
them and they are the only ranch home in the area.  The appraisal was reviewed by 
the Board.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed & Taxable Values from $128,460 
to $120,000.

128

586-747-8621



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:40 PM # 07.129

Phone: (home) 248-207-5984 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KONSTANINA DEMETRIOU
add 2702 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,135 216.45 20,300

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-070 401 318,980 277,460 339,280 287,720 321,550 287,720 0

Mr & Mrs Demetriou think their home should be worth $479,000.  They had some 
data for the Board and indicated that the market has gone down, yet their 
assessment has gone up.  Mr Demetriou stated that his neighbors are being taxed 
less per square foot than he is.  It was explained that taxable value is not uniform 
from one house to another.  The Board told Mr & Mrs Demetriou that only 2006 sales 
could be used this year to determine the Assessed Value.  Zoning and Classification 
was used to determine the data.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value to 
$321,550 from $339,280.

129



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 7:50 PM # 07.130

Phone: (home) 248-641-7663 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GARY HAZERGIAN
add 4541 RIVER EDGE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18E COL 3,234 174.58 (11,640)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-251-017 401 293,940 287,250 282,300 282,300 265,000 265,000 -17,300

Mr. Hazergian told the Board he believes his house should be worth $488,340.  Mr 
Hazergian said he went to the Website for 2006 and found five sales. He took the 
sale price divided by the square footage to determine the value.  After much 
calculation, the Board voted to lower the Assessed & Taxable Values to $265,000 
from $282,300.

130



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 8:00 PM # 07.131

Phone: (home) Phone:(work) 248-981-7527

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KEVIN WILSON
add 2799 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,203 186.84 17,860

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-062 401 281,370 237,490 299,230 246,270 293,000 246,270 0

Mr. Kevin Wilson arrived with a presentation for the Board members.  He felt his 
Assessed Value should be $220,000.  He stated that one sale brought up all the 
assessments in the neighborhood, and in his opinion the Assessor purposely chose 
this sale to keep the values and taxes high in his area.  He showed a list of many 
colonial sales in the City, that he felt should have been used to set the values.  It was 
explained that many of the sales on his list were in different zonings, and had 
different classes of construction than his area.  He also questioned why 2005 and 
2007 sales in his area were not used.  It was explained that we had to use only 2006 
sales.  He also questioned lowering a 2007 sale's assessment based soley on a 
purchase agreement.  The Board explained to Mr Wilson that the asssessments 
must be relative to the one sale that did occur in the subdivision in 2006.  Discussion 
took place as to what guidelines the Board members would follow for a decision, as 
he stated that the Board is not bound by the same rules as the Assessor.  The Board 
voted to lower Mr Wilson's Assessed Value to $293,200.

131



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 8:20 PM # 07.132

Phone: (home) 248-524-3873 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FAN DAI
add 3905 ROOT
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22C TRI 1,702 131.89 8,750
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-202-022 401 103,490 77,660 112,240 80,530 104,700 80,530 0

Mr. Dai requested that his Assessed Value be lowered to $103,490.  Mr Dai told the 
Board members that the housing market is down right now, and yet his assessment 
went up.  He also said that raccoons have torn a hole in his front porch.  He was 
asked if he had an estimate for the repairs, but he did not.  The Board voted to lower 
the Assessed Value to $104,200 from $112,240.

132



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 8:30 PM # 07.133

Phone: (home) 248-267-0522 Phone:(work) 248-705-0077

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WENCHUN FANG
add 2641 CREEK BEND
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
07E COL 3,032 133.34 (7,330)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-377-028 401 209,480 194,750 202,150 201,950 197,600 197,600 -4,350

Mr. Fang said he would like his estimated True Cash Value to be $380,000 which 
would make his Assessed Value $190,000.  Mr Fang said he had two points to make. 
First the market is down according to information from Real Estate.  His second point 
is that his home is not up to the high standards of his nieghbor's homes.  He needs to 
get his driveway fixed, which could cost $15,000-$20,000.  The Board reviewed 
comparable sales with similar homes and voted to lower the Assessed and Taxable 
Values to $197,600.  

133



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 8:40 PM # 07.134

Phone: (home) 248-890-4057 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLIAM LEE
add 2688 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,430 212.49 22,020

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-069 401 342,400 325,960 364,420 338,020 342,950 338,020 0

Mr. Lee feels his Market Value is $479,000.  Mr Lee wanted to know if the Board 
members are appointed or elected and how.  It was explained that the Mayor and the 
City Council make that determination.  He said he felt the assessment isn't reflecting 
what the market really is, and one sale clearly doesn't reflect the market at all.  Mr. 
Lee asked what would happen if there weren't any sales in a neighborhood.  he also 
felt there was a discrepancy in the square footage of his home.  The Board voted to 
lower the Assessed Value to $342,950 from $364,420 based on the sale in the 
subdivision..

134



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/20/07 Appt Time 8:50 PM # 07.135

Phone: (home) 24-816-3952 Phone:(work) 248-434-7834

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CONGJU ZHAO
add 3424 ALPINE
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
20C R 1,797 179.76 3,000
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-402-045 401 158,510 142,380 161,510 147,640 150,000 147,640 0

Mr. Zhao thinks his house is worth $285,000 and should have an Assessed Value of 
$142,500.  Mr Zhao told the Board that his assessment has increased yet he has 
seen some homes decreased.  The house at 3224 Alpine was compared by Mr Zhao 
to his.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value to $150,000 from $161,510.  

135



WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2007 Board of Review met for the fifth session 
at the Troy City offices. Eileen Turner called the meeting to 
order.  Also present were Frank Howrylak, James Hatch, and 
City Assessor, Nino Licari, as the Secretary.  Twenty appeals 
were heard between 1:00 PM and 7:00 PM.  Then the 
Correspondence, Protection, Poverty Exemption, Affidavits and 
reconsiderations were brought forward to the Board.  The in-
person appeals follow this introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 1:10 PM # 07.136

Phone: (home) 248-563-5835 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n STEPHEN ANDERSON
add 2048 SUNDEW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18G COL 3,241 165.50 (5,490)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-428-002 401 273,680 258,250 268,190 267,800 255,000 255,000 -12,800

Mr. Anderson came to the Board to appeal that his home's market value should be 
$470,000.  The 2006 sales comparisons he presented were of  current listings.  One 
of the homes closed in 2007 for $480,000.  The Board explained to Mr. Anderson 
only actual sales could be used, cannot use listings.  Based on sales the Board 
agreed to change the Assessed and Taxable Values to $255,000.

136



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 1:20 PM # 07.137

Phone: (home) 248-649-2437 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN GROWNEY
add 1975 AXTELL #2
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
12F COL 2,419 137.78 (1,330)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-455-002 401 167,970 167,970 166,640 166,640 166,640 166,640 0
20-329-026 401 279,450 208,940 259,390 216,670 259,390 216,670 0

Mrs. Growney appeared before the Board representing 2 properties.  5175 Spring 
Meadows was purchased for $407,000 in 2005.  The other property at 1543 Hamlet 
does not have 5 bedrooms.  Mrs. Growney did not present recent sales data. She 
questioned the land value of both properties.  Based on sales the Board voted for no 
change for both.

137



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 1:30 PM # 07.138

Phone: (home) 248-250-0511 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GRAHM FIELD
add 2725 PINE HILL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
18H R 1,871 145.86 950
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-351-015 401 135,500 130,080 136,450 134,890 136,450 134,890 0

Mr. Field arrived at the Board to have his Assessed Value lowered.  He paid 
$232,000 and he stated his home is in disrepair.  The sales he presented for his 
neighborhood were from a real estate agent. Our 2006 sale at 2775 Pine Hill was for 
$264,500.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no change.

138



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 1:40 PM # 07.139

Phone: (home) 248-703-4063 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YI ZHANG
add 4426 REILLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
14E COL 2,385 114.82 (6,340)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-328-017 401 143,260 129,690 136,920 134,480 136,920 134,480 0

Ms. Zhang came in to appeal her Assessed Value. She had averaged her search for 
2006 sales of colonials and presented them to the Board.  Based on the price per 
square. foot for colonials in 2006 the Board agreed Ms. Zhang's Assessed Value is 
accurate and voted for no change.

139



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 1:50 PM # 07.140

Phone: (home) 248-379-4204 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MUAYED ZAITOUNA
add 6956 OMAR
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04N COL 4,088 150.08 134,670 (10,530)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-226-069 401 182,620 182,620 306,760 306,760 260,000 260,000 -46,760

Mr. Zaitouna appealed to the Board to lower his Assessed Value.  He stated he paid 
$500,000 in 2006. It was new construction, $165,000 for the lot and $334,000 for the 
house.  Mr. Licari asked if he had a contract from his builder.  Mr. Zaitouna stated he 
didn't bring one but had an appraisal for $539,000 and sales from a multi list system.  
Based on sales the Board changed the Assessed Value and Taxable to $260,000.

140



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 2:10 PM # 07.141

Phone: (home) 248-723-9190 Phone:(work) 248-561-6678

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CATHERINE SEAGO TRUST
add 2660 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 3,535 201.18 21,690

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-067 401 333,900 289,490 355,590 300,200 315,000 300,200 0

Mr. Seago appeared before the Board to contest his Assessed Value.  He presented 
sales and stated his property backs to the railroad tracks.  Mr. Seago quoted the 
same sales his neighborhood colleagues represented and the 2007 signed sales 
agreement signed by the purchaser and buyer.  He also presented 2771 Amberly as 
a comparable sale, which is a smaller house.  Based on the sale the Board voted to 
change the Assessed Value to $315,000.

141



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 2:40 PM # 07.142

Phone: (home) 248-813-0113 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAUL MARRA
add 1843 BUCKTHORN
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
05H COL 3,264 174.50 (7,490)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-153-027 401 292,270 243,710 284,780 252,720 264,500 252,720 0

Dana Marra came to the meeting to appeal her Assessed Value.  Her comparable 
sale was a listing at 6541 Aspen for $475,000 which was a larger home.  There has 
not been much sales activity in her subdivision.  The Board suggested a 
neighborhood sale at 6750 Tree Knoll, but there was an age difference.  Based on 
sales the Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $264,500.

142



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 2:50 PM # 07.143

Phone: (home) 248-362-0874 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DONNA BANNERTON
add 3853 FINCH
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
CM COL 2,804 174.76 8,240

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-101-034 401 236,780 143,350 245,020 148,650 245,020 148,650 0

Mrs. Bannerton appeared before the Board and stated she felt her Assessed Value 
should be $145,000. FEMA revised the maps and told them they will need to buy 
flood insurance. Mrs. Bannerton stated this would discourage the sale of their home 
and they were only offered $17,000 for the lot beside them.  The newspaper she had 
was for sales listings not in her neighborhood and were for larger houses.  She had 
pictures of serveral properties around her in various degrees of disrepair, junk stored 
and condemned houses.  They were in this state when they bought their home.  
Based on sales and the value of land the Board voted for no change.

143



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 3:00 PM # 07.144

Phone: (home) 586-491-6660 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHARLES PANKRATZ II
add 2827 AMBERLY
c/s/z TROY MI 48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
30F COL 2,858 184.09 15,310

S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-050 401 247,750 247,750 263,060 256,910 263,060 256,910 0

Mr. Pankrantz came in and passed out documents to the Board to support lowering 
his Assessed and Taxable Value to $220,000, 1/2 of his 2005 purchase price.  he 
thought the 2006 Assessment would have automatically been lowered to 1/2 of his 
purchase price.  There was discussion that due to special circumstances this was not 
a good sale.  The Board reviewed a 2005 neighborhood sale for $631,000 and 2006 
sale of $571,000 for a smaller house.  He has 10% obsolesence for Adams Rd.  The 
Board agreed the Assessed Value was based on the 2006 sale and the market is 
between the 2 sales and agreed to no change.

144



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 3:50 PM # 07.145

Phone: (home) 248-760-1281 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DANIEL JENUWINE
add 1094 E SOUTH BLVD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
01D R 2,281 153.14 33,260
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-101-022 401 141,400 141,400 174,660 146,630 165,000 146,630 0

Daniel and his sister appeared before the Board to request a cash value of $285,000. 
He stated he works with mortgages, didn't have any sales to compare with and felt 
their home wasn't worth $340,000.  Daniel thought his taxes were going up over 
$4,000.  Mr. Licari explained his tax increase would be $188 and how it is calculated 
on the Taxable Value. We had one 2006 sale in his neighborhood for $365,000 and it 
increased the entire subdivision.  Their property backs to the lake but they don't have 
access because of the previous owner.  Based on sales the Board agreed to change 
the Assessed Value to $165,000. 

145



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 4:10 PM # 07.146

Phone: (home) 248-689-4209 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN THOMPSON
add 2181 BEECH LANE
c/s/z TROY MI 48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
27G R 1,044 172.05 380
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-326-005 401 89,430 61,490 89,810 63,760 60,000 60,000 -3,760

Mrs. Thompson came to the meeting to appeal the increase in taxes. She stated 
because of her low income she could not afford an increase in taxes.  Her income 
also has to cover insurance, utilities and food.  Mr. Licari reviewed her income and 
explained to Mrs. Thompson she would qualify for the Poverty Exemption.  She 
stated she was not comfortable asking for the Poverty Exemption.  The Board had 
the option of change in Value or hardship exemption. Based on sales the Board 
voted to change the Assessed and Taxable Values to $60,000.

146



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 4:20 PM # 07.147

Phone: (home) 248-813-9988 Phone:(work) 248-764-2121

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n IOAN MOS
add 6899 DONALDSON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
03A COL 3,429 118.36 (5,730)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-101-055 401 208,650 183,880 202,920 190,680 202,920 190,680 0

Mr. Mos appeared before the Board and requested an Assessed Value of $180,000.  
The neighbor built a garage in front of Mr. Mos' house and because of its location it 
reduces the value of his house.  Mr. Mos spoke with the Building Department to stop 
this construction but it meets the City Code and it was placed in this location. The 
Board reviewed the appraisal Mr. Mos submitted and there was discussion regarding 
the unfortunate placement of this garage.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no 
change.

147



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 4:30 PM # 07.148

Phone: (home) 248-813-8859 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n THEODORE KAZMIERCZAK
add 1839 LYSTER
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
02L R 1,599 201.71 (6,290)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-279-056 401 167,560 147,520 161,270 152,970 147,500 147,500 -5,470

Mr. Kazmierczak came into the meeting and distributed packets to the Board 
members.  In his study he averaged 8 sales from 2006 with a price per square foot. 
of $201.71 and had included the garage.  The sale at 6621 Northpoint was for 
$169.78 per sq. ft., the sale at 6253 Atkins was $190.14 sq. ft.  Based on sales the 
Board voted to change the Assessed and Taxable Values to $147,500.

148



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 4:40 PM # 07.149

Phone: (home) 248-740-7776 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES SCHWARB
add 421 TROMBLEY
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
22A R 1,200 148.93 2,240
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-177-033 401 87,120 87,120 89,360 89,360 82,500 82,500 -6,860

Mr. Schwarb came in at 5:20 for his 4:40 appointment due to traffic.  He appeared 
before the Board at 7:00 p.m.  Mr. Schwarb stated he would like a cash value of 
$165,000 and found sales between $160 - 170,000 from the City website.  There 
were two 2006 sales, 3255 Ellenboro for $174,000 and 3410 Ellenboro for $205,000.  
Based on sales the Board voted to change the Assessed and Taxable Values to 
$82,500.

149



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 4:50 PM # 07.150

Phone: (home) 248-952-1587 Phone:(work) 248-944-5990

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YIH SHIH
add 4078 LEDGESTONE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
17J COL 4,096 181.69 3,120

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-351-020 401 368,980 368,670 372,100 372,100 372,100 372,100 0

Mr. Shih came to the meeting to contest the value on his house.  The descision of the 
2005-06 Michigan Tax Tribunal was for no change. He bought his home in 2003 and 
his sales data was from past years sales of 8 houses in his subdivision.  Mr. Shih felt 
the values should be equitable and it was explained to him that there are specific 
factors which make them different.  Based on sales the Board agreed to no change.  

150



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 6:00 PM # 07.151

Phone: (home) 248-496-3488 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ALEXANDER BOGAERTS
add 6501 PARKVIEW
c/s/z TROY MI 48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
06C COL 2,809 168.39 (7,610)
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-251-002 401 244,110 184,520 236,500 236,500 207,500 207,500 -29,000

Mr. & Mrs. Bogaerts appeared before the Board with an appraisal and comparable 
sales in their subdivision.  Jim Hatch excused himself because he knows the family.  
Mr. Bogaerts stated they purchased from his parents for $205,000, and they back up 
to Beach Rd. He had averaged 4 sales from 2007 with price per square foot of 
$135.00.  Mr. Licari explained the the Bogaerts that the State mandated we use 2006 
sales and his subdivision received the average reduction.  Based on sales the Board 
voted to change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $207,500.

151



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 6:10 PM # 07.152

Phone: (home) 248-515-3133 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DEANNA FAKHOURI
add 3066 CAMDEN
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
C3101 COL 1,910 136.07 (10,320)
S.D.
035

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

31-228-052 405 140,270 140,270 129,950 129,950 129,950 129,950 0

Deanna Fakhouri with her representative Ryan Riddle appeared before the Board to 
request a reduction in Assessed Value. He did have 2006 recent  sales which he 
presented.  He also had a broker price opinion done by AM Ambro.  Mr. Riddle stated 
the 13 units for sale currenty are driving prices down.  Based on recent 2006 sales 
the Board voted for no change. 

152



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 6:30 PM # 07.153

Phone: (home) 248-891-9742 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DANIEL PRATT
add 847 BENJAMIN
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04P COL 3,538 165.53 65,500 44,860
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-100-076 401 182,470 182,470 292,830 254,720 292,830 205,820 -48,900

Dan Pratt and his father came to the Board for a reduction in Assessed Value.  His 
reasons for appearing are: his house is on at 80% complete for 2005 in error and the 
change in classification. He moved in on 12-17-05 and at that time our appraiser told 
him he was on at 100% for last year.  His BC classification was changed to B. He 
presented pictures of C class houses to compare with his.  He feels because he is in 
the Avondale School District and not Troy there is a $80 - 100,000 price difference in 
new home sales.  Based on the error in the percent complete the Board agreed to 
correct the Taxable Value to $205,820.

153



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 6:40 PM # 07.154

Phone: (home) 248-879-5642 Phone:(work) 248-376-7286

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/21/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YUSHENG LI
add 6699 FULTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
04B COL 2,715 121.01 650
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-152-028 401 163,620 163,620 164,270 164,270 164,270 164,270 0

Mr. Li came to the meeting to question the Assessed Value increase.  He stated his 
calculations of 3 colonials in his neighborhood indicated, prices per square foot were 
falling. Based on sales the Board agreed that Mr. Li's Assessed Value was  accurate 
and voted for no change.

154



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/07 Appt Time 6:50 PM # 07.155

Phone: (home) 248-787-2900 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/16/07 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SRIVIDYA DAVULURI
add 6143 SMITHFIELD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2006 Loss 2007 Add'n 2007 Adj
01B R 1,746 159.20 3,640
S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 06 A/V 06 T/V 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-354-016 401 135,340 135,340 138,980 138,980 133,760 133,760 -5,220

Ms. Davuluri arrived and stated she felt the home values in her neighborhood have 
been dropping and is requesting a change in her Assessed Value. She had a printout 
of values from her agent for 2007.  There were no 2006 sales for ranches in her 
neighborhood and 2005 data was examined.  Based on sales the Board agreed to 
change the Assessed and Taxable Value to $133,760.

155



WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

7:00 P.M. - Property owners who cannot appear at the Board, 
or do not wish to appear at the Board are allowed to appeal in 
writing to the Board.  This correspondence must be received by 
the last published date of the Board (March 13, for 2007).  The 
Board reveiws these Assessments, and either changes or not 
changes them.  Nineteen Correspondence Appeals were heard 
by the Board.  They follow this introduction.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.001

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-201-068 402 38,750 24,670 38,750 25,580 38,750 25,580 0
0

The appeal is to insure that public improvements have not been added to Taxable 
Value.  The Assessor stated that no additions to Taxable Value have been added for 
public improvements.  The Board voted for no change.

156

SHELBY TWP, MI 48315
      

ROBERT A KUHR PLLC
46719 HAYES

03/21/07

586-532-9400



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.002

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-228-002 401 159,210 156,120 159,030 159,030 147,000 147,000 (12,030)
0

      

The Board voted to reduce the Assessed and Taxable values to 1/2 of the listing 
price.

157

1718 NEIL DR
PELLA,  IA 50219

WILLIAM AND SHEILA HEREDIA

03/21/07

N.A.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.003

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-201-010 401 504,960 471,690 474,360 474,360 474,360 474,360 0
0

Based on comparable sales, the Board voted for no change.

158

TROY, MI  48048
      

FRED MAWSON
2268 HAVERFORD

03/21/07

248-310-6898



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.004

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-427-034 401 151,790 110,540 161,050 114,620 161,050 114,620 0
0

      

The Board voted for no change based on comparable sales.

159

5437 WESTMORELAND
TROY, MI  48085-3444

ROBERT PENROSE

03/21/07

N.A.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.005

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-454-003 401 171,440 106,730 174,620 110,670 174,620 110,670 0
0

The Board voted for no change based on sales.

160

TROY, MI  48085-3468
      

LORNA M SEIDL
5206 ALLISON 

03/21/07

N.A.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.006

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-155-002 401 130,790 97,930 128,190 101,550 128,190 101,550 0
0

      

The Board voted for no change based on sales.

161

2139 JEFFREY
TROY, MI   48085

STELLA CICHECKI

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.008

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-251-009 401 308,070 241,960 295,740 250,910 262,500 250,910 0
0

03/21/07

N.A.

NAPLES, FL 34103

WILLIAM STACEY
3333 GULFSHORE BLVD N VILLA 12

      

The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value based on comparable sales.

162



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.009

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-327-007 401 197,730 155,820 182,510 161,580 182,510 161,580 0
0

The Board voted for no change.

163

TROY, MI  48098
      

JAMES M MCGRAW
2532 TARRAGONA WAY

03/21/07

313-300-0060



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.010

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-231-007 401 213,800 213,800 200,700 200,700 200,700 200,700 0
0

      

As the current Assessment is less than 46% of the 2001 sale, the Board voted for no 
change.

164

2840 ASHBURY 
TROY, MI  48083

DAVID AND JENNIFER GOODMAN

03/21/07

248-330-6163



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.011

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-479-019 401 87,930 87,930 153,680 142,820 140,000 140,000 (2,820)
0

Based on the owner's information, the Board reduced the Assessed and Taxable 
Values to $140,000.

165

FARMINGTON HILLS, MI  48334
      

OJIBWAY HILLS PARTNERS LLC
32255 NORTHWESTERN HWY 196

03/21/07

248-539-3332



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.012

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-433-003 301 231,580 231,580 369,410 240,140 231,580 231,580 (8,560)
0

As the conditions have not changed since last year for this owner, the Board reduced 
the Assessed and Taxable Values to reflect the same Market value as last year's 
reduction.

166

ROYAL OAK, MI  48073
      

4326 DELEMERE BLVD
HEINTZ CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

03/21/07

248-549-0830



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.013

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-477-017 401 83,790 51,460 77,010 53,360 77,010 53,360 0
0

      

The owners requested an increase in value on this property.  Based on sales the 
board voted for no change.

167

4552 PROSPECT
WEST BLOOMFIELD, MI  48324

LOWELL AND LYNN RODD

03/21/07

N.A.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.014

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

29-226-043 201 1,156,530 818,170 1,626,310 1,239,970 1,230,560 922,570 (317,400)
0

Based a 25% completion of the new renovations, the Board voted to lower the 
Assessed Value to $1,230,560 and the Taxable Value to $922,570.

168

TROY MI 48084
      

JLC BIG BEAVER LLC
1985 W BIG BEAVER #200A

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.015

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

32-151-018 301 365,890 323,810 365,890 365,890 365,890 365,890 0
0

      

Based on comparable sales on the same street, and the appearance that this was a 
forced, or foreclosure sale, the Board voted for no change.

169

1122 COLE STREET
BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

ROSSO DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

03/21/07

248-647-7077



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.016

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

32-151-025 301 362,220 362,220 385,490 385,490 385,490 385,490 0
0

Based on comparable sales on this street, and the income and expense information 
provided by the owner, the Board voted for no change.

170

2520 INDUSTRIAL ROW    
TROY, MI  48084

2520 INDUSTRIAL ROW DR LLC
GERALD BORSAND

03/21/07

248-540-8066



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.017

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

34-152-013 301 320,140 247,370 261,910 212,500 261,910 212,500 0
0

JACKSON MI 49203-3791 TROY MI, 48084

The Assessing Department visited the site at the owners request to view the 
deteriorated condition of the building, to help explain the below market sales price.  
After the inspection, the Assessor lowered the Assessed and Taxable Values based 
on the sale and the inspection.  The Board made no further reduction.

171

W & H REAL ESTATE LLC
2545 SPRING ARBOR RD STE 103 1005 TROY

PAT WILLIS

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.018

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-426-054 301 265,680 265,680 265,680 265,680 265,680 265,680 0
36-426-114 301 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 0
36-377-023 301 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 0

The owner provided an appraisal and additional data to support the contention of 
value for the 3 properties.  There were some questions as to the amount of mortgage 
and debt secured after the purchase, which exceeds the purchase price.  The Board 
voted for no change.

172

446 EXECUTIVE 
TROY, MI  48083

MGA RESEARCH CORPORATION
P MICHAEL MILLER II

03/21/07

248-577-5001



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.019

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

00-207-620 251 240,410 240,410 334,030 334,030 334,030 334,030 0
0

Without adequate detail on the Leasehold Improvements, the Board voted for no 
change.

173

PO BOX 168608
IRVING, TX  75038

FIRST AMERICAN COMM REAL ESTATE. BED, BATH & BEYOND

03/21/07

800-359-3908



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # C.07.020

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-252-006 401 95,570 92,770 87,520 87,520 87,520 87,520 0

The Board voted for no change based on comparable sales.

174

TROY MI  48084

DAVID BEMIS
365 KIRK LANE

03/21/07



 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

7:00 P.M. - Property owners who are not yet sure if they will 
appeal a Commercial/Industrial type property may file a 
Protection Appeal in writing by the last published date of the 
Board (March 13 for 2007).  The Appeal is 'Noted and Denied', 
which records an appearance for the appellant, and allows 
them to appeal further to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  For 2007 
and 2008 the Legislature is conducting an experiment, whereby 
Commercial/Industrial properties may skip the local appearance 
requirement, and appeal directly to the Michigan Tax Tribunal 
(by May 31, instead of June 30).  Eleven petitioners still filed 
Protection appeals this year.  They follow this introduction.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.001

Phone: (#1) 425-580-8391 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n AT&T MOBILITY 
add PO BOX 97061
c/s/z REDMOND, WA.  98073

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
04-601-002 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

06-603-001 212 32,220 30,950 33,550 33,550 33,550 33,550 Noted & Denied

06-603-003 212 202,890 195,060 208,920 202,270 208,920 202,270 Noted & Denied

08-604-001 212 46,320 46,550 47,720 44,890 47,720 44,890 Noted & Denied

08-604-002 212 43,920 43,860 27,850 27,850 27,850 27,850 Noted & Denied

09-603-004 212 4,740 4,590 6,820 4,750 6,820 4,750 Noted & Denied

10-602-001 212 7,840 7,590 14,920 7,870 14,920 7,870 Noted & Denied

14-604-006 212 113,800 110,420 117,250 114,500 117,250 114,500 Noted & Denied

22-601-004 212 204,020 196,440 209,290 203,700 209,290 203,700 Noted & Denied

26-601-002 212 18,200 17,640 18,750 18,290 18,750 18,290 Noted & Denied

26-601-007 212 66,200 66,200 52,530 52,530 52,530 52,530 Noted & Denied

28-602-003 211 44,800 43,490 46,600 45,090 46,600 45,090 Noted & Denied

29-604-002 212 25,370 24,610 26,140 25,520 26,140 25,520 Noted & Denied

29-604-003 212 200,280 193,990 206,850 201,160 206,850 201,160 Noted & Denied

30-602-002 211 86,650 83,850 104,460 86,950 104,460 86,950 Noted & Denied

35-601-001 212 13,220 13,220 8,780 8,780 8,780 8,780 Noted & Denied

00-066-210 351 106,140 106,140 77,390 77,390 77,390 77,390 Noted & Denied

00-247-940 251 132,750 132,750 94,180 94,180 94,180 94,180 Noted & Denied

00-247-960 251 101,960 101,960 68,130 68,130 68,130 68,130 Noted & Denied

00-247-980 351 101,490 101,490 74,900 74,900 74,900 74,900 Noted & Denied

00-248-000 251 107,310 107,310 76,240 76,240 76,240 76,240 Noted & Denied

00-248-020 251 98,600 98,600 61,650 61,650 61,650 61,650 Noted & Denied

00-247-040 251 101,540 101,540 60,110 60,110 60,110 60,110 Noted & Denied

00-248-060 251 6,490 6,490 11,020 11,020 11,020 11,020 Noted & Denied

00-263-020 251 122,700 122,700 81,390 81,380 81,380 81,380 Noted & Denied

00-283-080 251 5,950 5,950 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 Noted & Denied

00-283-200 251 26,140 26,140 2,470 2,470 2,470 2,470 Noted & Denied

00-283-240 251 26,860 26,860 1,160 1,160 1,160 1,160 Noted & Denied

00-283-260 251 717,440 717,440 197,400 197,400 197,400 197,400 Noted & Denied

00-283-280 251 83,990 83,990 39,220 39,220 39,220 39,220 Noted & Denied

00-283-320 251 57,210 57,210 35,540 35,540 35,540 35,540 Noted & Denied

00-291-300 251 106,020 106,020 62,970 62,970 62,970 62,970 Noted & Denied

00-297-440 351 33,870 33,870 300 300 300 300 Noted & Denied

00-310-220 251 61,390 61,390 52,860 52,860 52,860 52,860 Noted & Denied

175

PAMELA WILLMOTH

03/21/07

JESLYN LIN



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

n AT&T MOBILITY 
add PO BOX 97061
c/s/z REDMOND, WA.  98073

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-326-900 251 69,810 69,810 61,420 61,420 61,420 61,420 Noted & Denied

00-335-100 251 0 0 76,400 76,400 76,400 76,400 Noted & Denied

00-339-100 251 38,080 38,080 15,540 15,540 15,540 15,540 Noted & Denied

00-339-120 251 2,190 2,190 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-348-980 251 0 0 1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150 Noted & Denied

00-750-590 251 24,730 24,730 11,260 11,260 11,260 11,260 Noted & Denied

00-248-000 251 107,310 107,310 76,240 76,240 76,240 76,240 Noted & Denied

 

176

JESLYN LIN
PAMELA WILLMOTH



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.002

Phone: (#1) 248-324-2030 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FINSILVER / FRIEDMAN
add 34975 W. TWELVE MILE RD. SUITE 100
c/s/z FARMINGTON HILLS, MI.  48331

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
08-227-004 201 4,924,410 3,225,920 4,924,410 3,345,270 4,924,410 3,345,270 Noted & Denied

35-327-024 201 5,459,530 5,459,530 4,213,780 4,213,780 4,213,780 4,213,780 Noted & Denied

177

SCOTT SHEFMAN

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.003

Phone: (#1) 248-865-4700 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HOFFERT & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
add 30300 NORTHWESTERN HWY., STE. 269
c/s/z FARMINGTON HILLS, MI.  48334

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
09-476-029 201 255,790 255,790 255,790 255,790 255,790 255,790 Noted & Denied

09-476-034 201 467,350 324,150 453,380 326,090 453,380 326,090 Noted & Denied

09-476-042 201 1,608,890 1,008,020 1,608,890 1,045,310 1,608,890 1,045,310 Noted & Denied

10-351-018 201 4,335,860 4,206,190 4,277,740 4,277,740 4,277,740 4,277,740 Noted & Denied

10-351-019 201 658,120 482,190 658,120 500,030 658,120 500,030 Noted & Denied

11-226-003 301 475,200 423,450 492,840 439,100 492,840 439,110 Noted & Denied

15-101-025 201 314,090 304,580 314,090 314,090 314,090 314,090 Noted & Denied

27-301-023 201 333,900 310,920 333,900 322,420 333,900 322,420 Noted & Denied

28-101-041 405 6,595,020 3,568,930 6,615,710 6,615,710 6,615,710 6,615,710 Noted & Denied

28-301-016 301 747,820 505,200 747,820 523,890 747,820 523,890 Noted & Denied

28-401-063 301 272,090 199,170 272,900 206,530 272,900 206,530 Noted & Denied

28-401-077 301 306,900 206,430 306,900 214,060 306,900 214,060 Noted & Denied

29-352-049 201 1,380,940 978,980 1,380,940 1,015,200 1,380,940 1,015,200 Noted & Denied

29-357-020 405 69,910 69,910 71,050 71,050 71,050 71,050 Noted & Denied

31-228-042 405 129,100 129,100 120,120 120,120 120,120 120,120 Noted & Denied

35-102-037 301 551,750 551,750 568,250 568,250 568,250 568,250 Noted & Denied

35-102-038 301 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 Noted & Denied

35-226-042 201 229,280 229,280 229,280 229,280 229,280 229,280 Noted & Denied

36-300-002 201 216,340 216,340 216,340 216,340 216,340 216,340 Noted & Denied

36-302-008 301 1,404,490 1,087,690 1,404,490 127,930 1,404,490 1,127,930 Noted & Denied

36-326-037 301 1,585,270 1,380,710 1,585,270 1,431,790 1,585,270 1,431,790 Noted & Denied

36-326-041 301 660,560 440,930 660,560 457,240 660,560 457,240 Noted & Denied

36-326-042 301 758,260 561,960 758,260 582,750 758,260 582,750 Noted & Denied

36-376-019 301 542,120 409,150 542,120 424,280 542,120 424,280 Noted & Denied

36-376-033 301 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 Noted & Denied

36-376-035 301 342,960 295,460 342,960 306,390 342,960 306,390 Noted & Denied

36-377-020 201 584,950 431,280 584,950 447,230 584,950 447,230 Noted & Denied

00-052-151 251 8,980 8,980 6,910 6,910 6,910 6,910 Noted & Denied

00-337-540 251 51,560 51,560 45,350 45,350 45,350 45,350 Noted & Denied

00-337-560 251 34,140 34,140 32,770 32,770 32,770 32,770 Noted & Denied

00-711-610 251 404,970 404,970 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

178

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.004

Phone: (#1) 517-788-6547 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CONSUMERS ENERGY
add ONE ENERGY PLAZA
c/s/z JACKSON, MI.  49201

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
11-101-016 205 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 Noted & Denied

17-351-029 205 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 Noted & Denied

26-101-001 205 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 Noted & Denied

29-352-003 250 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 Noted & Denied

00-006-100 551 525,240 252,240 524,830 524,830 524,830 524,830 Noted & Denied

00-006-101 551 425,250 425,250 447,700 447,700 447,700 447,700 Noted & Denied

00-006-102 551 69,340 69,340 74,720 74,720 74,720 74,720 Noted & Denied

00-006-103 551 41,000 41,000 40,320 40,320 40,320 40,320 Noted & Denied

00-006-104 551 30,540 30,540 72,690 72,690 72,690 72,690 Noted & Denied

00-006-105 551 6,338,930 6,338,930 7,070,970 7,070,970 7,070,970 7,070,970 Noted & Denied

00-006-106 551 574,410 574,410 562,630 562,630 562,630 562,630 Noted & Denied

00-707-330 551 96,850 96,850 94,800 94,800 94,800 94,800 Noted & Denied

179

03/21/007



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.005

Phone: (#1) 248-644-8700 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARK CAPALDI
add P.O. BOX 159
c/s/z BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI.  48303

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
17-278-014 201 6,906,710 6,118,550 6,906,710 6,344,930 6,906,710 6,344,930 Noted & Denied

35-201-066 201 5,335,650 3,080,560 5,890,820 3,194,630 5,890,820 3,194,630 Noted & Denied

00-294-820 251 2,356,710 2,356,710 2,420,560 2,420,560 2,420,560 2,420,560 Noted & Denied

00-352-280 251 0 0 2,590 2,590 2,590 2,590 Noted & Denied

00-359-360 251 0 0 71,220 71,220 71,220 71,220 Noted & Denied

180

03/21/07

SIEMENS VDO
SIEMENS VDO AUTOMOTIVE



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.006

Phone: (#1) 901-362-8299 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PROPERTY TAX MANAGEMENT 
add PO BOX 75007
c/s/z MEMPHIS, TN.  38115-1819

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
20-476-036 201 3,051,080 2,466,440 2,801,970 2,557,690 2,801,970 2,557,690 Noted & Denied

181

DAVID YOUNG

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.007

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2) 866-614-7562

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GE CAPITAL SOLUTIONS
add P O BOX 3649
c/s/z DANBURY, CT  06813-3649

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-010-011 251 660,860 660,860 752,310 752,310 752,310 752,310 Noted & Denied

00-010-014 251 0 0 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 Noted & Denied

00-708-150 251 53,070 53,070 258,910 258,910 258,910 258,910 Noted & Denied

00-714-410 251 8,510 8,510 2,680 2,680 2,680 2,680 Noted & Denied

00-716-610 251 0 0 320 320 320 320 Noted & Denied

00-726-750 251 0 0 1,890 1,890 1,890 1,890 Noted & Denied

00-737-470 251 18,010 18,010 11,170 11,170 11,170 11,170 Noted & Denied

00-737-750 251 83,010 83,010 52,590 52,590 52,590 52,590 Noted & Denied

00-737-810 251 76,020 76,020 56,240 56,240 56,240 56,240 Noted & Denied

00-739-610 251 7,580 7,580 9,020 9,020 9,020 9,020 Noted & Denied

00-739-630 251 145,280 145,280 132,750 132,750 132,750 132,750 Noted & Denied

00-739-650 251 253,180 253,180 190,820 190,820 190,820 190,820 Noted & Denied

00-739-670 251 585,100 585,100 539,000 539,000 539,000 539,000 Noted & Denied

00-740-470 251 1,990 1,990 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 Noted & Denied

00-740-490 251 1,990 1,990 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 Noted & Denied

182

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.008

Phone: (#1) 425-383-5282 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n T-MOBILE USA, INC.
add 12920 SE 38 ST. 
c/s/z BELLEVUE, WA.  98006

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
36-601-004 212 19,760 19,760 20,370 20,370 20,370 20,370 Noted & Denied

00-298-540 251 119,550 119,550 122,630 122,630 122,360 122,360 Noted & Denied

00-320-880 251 26,700 26,700 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 Noted & Denied

00-324-400 251 93,570 93,570 87,310 87,310 87,310 87,310 Noted & Denied

00-325-580 251 48,570 48,570 29,130 29,130 29,130 29,130 Noted & Denied

00-335-080 251 61,180 61,180 29,660 29,660 29,660 29,660 Noted & Denied

00-336-700 351 44,480 44,480 45,660 45,660 45,660 45,660 Noted & Denied

00-339-200 351 64,920 64,920 31,820 31,820 31,820 31,820 Noted & Denied

00-339-220 251 710 710 350 350 350 350 Noted & Denied

00-719-230 251 74,950 74,950 43,570 43,570 43,570 43,570 Noted & Denied

00-719-250 251 104,330 104,330 49,550 49,550 49,550 49,550 Noted & Denied

00-726-630 251 57,740 57,740 37,800 37,800 37,800 37,800 Noted & Denied

183

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/22/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.009

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n EDS- ATTN: VICKY CHAPMAN
add 5400 LEGACY DRIVE
c/s/z PLANO, TX  75024

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-720-510 251 28,640 28,640 25,310 25,310 25,310 25,310 Noted & Denied

00-720-530 251 672,790 672,790 512,380 512,380 512,380 512,380 Noted & Denied

00-720-550 251 650 650 630 630 630 630 Noted & Denied

00-720-570 251 4,815,600 4,815,600 3,750,830 3,750,830 3,750,830 3,750,830 Noted & Denied

00-720-610 251 1,289,640 1,289,640 558,110 558,110 558,110 558,110 Noted & Denied

184



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/22/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # P.07.010

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BERGESEN & CLARK
add 363 W BIG BEAVER #450
c/s/z TROY MI  48084-5350

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-338-660 251 40,000 40,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 Noted & Denied

185



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/22/07 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 07.011

Phone: (#1) 734-462-6161 Phone:(#2)  

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n EMBERS DELI-DAVID REA
add 35951 FIVE MILE RD
c/s/z LIVONIA MI  48154

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-356-120 251 0 0 148,810 148,810 148,810 148,810 Noted & Denied

186

licarila
Text Box
P.07.011



 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

7:00 P.M. - Poverty Exemptions are appeals for relief of a 
resident's tax burden for one year, based on a financial or 
medical hardship.  Income and Asset guidelines, as required by 
court order, are adopted by City Council each year.  Each 
applicant fills out a confidential affidavit detailing their eligibility.  
By law, the Board of Review and the Assessor must agree on 
an exemption.  The twenty-two applications, and the Board and 
Assessor's decision follow this introduction. 



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.001

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-151-002 401 110,770 100,330 105,230 104,040 105,230 104,040 0

      

The income exceeds the guidelines.  The exemption is denied.

187

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.002

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-101-020 401 126,130 0 123,700 123,700 123,700 123,700 0

The Assessed Value exceeds the stated limits. The applicant has a 2005 mortgage 
that cannot be supported by the stated income level.  The exemption is denied.

188

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.003

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-101-024 401 113,810 0 111,720 99,450 111,720 99,450 0

      

It appears that the home has a reverse mortgage, which income is not being 
declared.  The existing listed mortgage cannot be found.  If this information is proven 
to be inaccurate, the applicant can re-apply at the July or December Board of 
Review.  This exemption is denied.

189

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.004

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-253-004 401 94,180 0 92,940 61,540 92,940 0 (61,540)

The exemption is granted.

190

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.005

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-352-020 401 101,130 83,080 88,360 86,150 88,360 0 (86,150)

      

The exemption is granted.

191

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.006

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-377-009 401 103,230 0 89,110 83,330 89,110 0 (83,330)

The exemption is granted.

192

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.007

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-380-010 401 110,680 77,990 95,870 80,870 95,870 80,870 0

      

The income exceeds the guidelines.  The exemption is denied.

193

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.008

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-253-015 401 126,460 0 123,930 97,020 123,930 97,020 0

The Assessed Value of the home exceeds the guidelines.  There is a 2006 mortgage 
that cannot be supported by the stated income.  The exemption is denied.

194

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.009

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-102-028 401 109,500 0 109,560 44,450 109,560 0 (44,450)

      

The exemption is granted.

195

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.010

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-126-002 401 125,030 89,360 105,510 92,660 105,510 92,660 0

The income exceeds the guidelines.  The exemption is denied.

196

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.011

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-276-006 401 102,120 0 93,160 80,160 93,160 0 (80,160)

      

The exemption is granted.

197

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.012

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-379-001 401 77,250 0 76,240 45,820 76,240 0 (45,820)

The exemption is granted.

198

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.013

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-106-018 405 60,350 42,550 59,670 44,120 59,670 0 (44,120)

      

The exemption is granted.

199

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.014

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-127-004 405 63,940 47,460 43,230 33,830 43,230 0 (33,830)

The exemption is granted.

200

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.015

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-255-035 401 98,530 42,550 98,510 68,670 98,510 0 (68,670)

      

The exemption is granted.

201

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.016

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-276-002 401 98,040 0 96,810 96,810 96,810 0 (96,810)

The exemption is granted.

202

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.017

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-354-029 401 62,280 0 63,800 33,040 63,800 0 (33,040)

      

The exemption is granted.

203

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.018

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-430-024 401 41,940 0 40,510 21,830 40,510 0 (21,830)

The exemption is granted.

204

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.019

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-151-188 405 86,300 0 81,070 63,100 81,070 0 (63,100)

      

The exemption is granted.

205

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.020

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

34-126-011 401 60,430 0 58,120 31,280 58,120 0 (31,280)

The exemption is granted.

206

      

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.021

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

35-352-045 401 65,090 0 63,370 44,110 63,370 0 (44,110)

      

The exemption is granted.

207

03/22/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # PE.07.022

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-127-011 401 128,530 91,340 110,000 94,710 110,000 94,710 0

At his earlier meeting with the Board (03/12/07, 10:40 AM, #07.043), the Board 
lowered the Assessed Value, only, to $110,000.  The total assets still exceed the 
limitations in the guidelines.  The poverty exemption is denied.

208

      

03/22/07



 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007

2007

Board of Review 

Minutes

7:00 P.M. - In some instances a Petitioner has a recent sale, or 
very good rationale for a change in Assessment.  In these 
cases, the Petitioner and an Appraiser from the Assessing 
Department will sign an affidavit agreeing to the corrected 
Assessment.  These affidavits are in lieu of an appointment 
before the Board, and afford the Petitioner a recorded 
appearance at the Board of Review.  There were thirty-seven 
affidavits signed this year,  The summary follows this 
introduction.



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # S.07.001

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: Stipulation Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/07

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-153-070 405 167,450 167,450 170,270 170,270 158,960 158,960 (11,310)
03-228-013 401 90,260 90,260 277,310 167,870 219,580 110,140 (57,730)
03-228-014 401 86,330 86,330 258,620 158,530 234,500 134,410 (24,120)
03-228-015 402 55,250 10,510 214,030 94,450 128,680 68,340 (26,110)
03-326-009 401 114,900 79,630 109,480 82,570 102,760 82,570 0
03-401-037 401 72,460 72,460 285,060 285,060 283,460 283,460 (1,600)
04-178-002 401 168,560 168,560 169,620 169,620 158,500 158,500 (11,120)
04-303-028 401 150,830 112,840 158,120 117,010 144,700 117,010 0
04-376-007 401 101,290 94,040 102,540 97,510 90,000 90,000 (7,510)
05-101-023 401 282,890 244,010 289,080 266,990 285,300 260,500 (6,490)
05-129-021 401 177,500 177,500 180,950 180,950 172,450 172,450 (8,500)
05-204-028 401 236,960 236,960 206,540 206,540 191,500 191,500 (15,040)
07-153-017 401 436,530 226,600 324,880 324,880 316,250 316,250 (8,630)
07-251-005 401 512,980 371,770 453,540 385,520 425,000 385,520 0
08-376-242 405 77,500 77,500 80,220 80,220 75,870 75,870 (4,350)
11-102-062 405 129,020 114,430 139,000 118,660 132,500 118,660 0
11-427-014 401 145,750 143,550 154,560 154,560 148,000 148,000 (6,560)

  

Most of the following 37 parcels had recent sales.  The Petitioners were asked to 
bring in copies of their Purchase Agreement, Closing Statement, and Deed.  This 
occurs after the Board has opened, and before it closes.  Upon verification of the 
sale, and ensuring that the transaction was arm's length, the Petitioner and Appraiser 
from the Assessing Department agree to a value.  In a few instances (7) the 
Petitioner had ample proof to support a different contention of value.  In either case, 
the Petitoner and the Appraiser then sign an affidavit stipulating to the 2007 
Assessed and\or Taxable Value.  The Affidavit is presented to the Board for their 
approval.  This also ensures the Petitioner an appearance at the Board, should they 
decide to pursue further appeal.

209

 
  

Stipulation Affidavits

03/21/07



 2007 City of Troy March Board of Review

n
add
c/s/z

Sidwell Use 2006 A/V 2006 T/V 2007 A/V 2007 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-479-006 401 148,760 121,970 157,890 126,480 156,379 126,480 0
11-481-012 401 145,150 129,880 159,160 159,160 148,950 148,950 (10,210)
13-278-020 401 143,430 117,040 141,630 141,630 119,000 119,000 (22,630)
15-202-016 401 247,440 177,120 240,860 183,670 222,490 167,860 (15,810)
15-380-021 401 207,500 207,500 220,690 215,170 207,500 207,500 (7,670)
18-276-004 401 290,180 251,740 284,510 261,050 240,000 240,000 (21,050)
18-302-013 401 118,800 79,420 135,940 135,940 125,000 125,000 (10,940)
18-352-024 401 130,000 130,000 139,730 134,810 130,000 130,000 (4,810)
18-402-037 401 431,900 431,900 425,460 425,460 411,000 411,000 (14,460)
19-326-016 401 204,990 144,530 209,790 209,790 187,500 187,500 (22,290)
19-377-005 401 160,950 111,390 148,130 148,130 135,000 135,000 (13,130)
22-278-020 401 106,900 106,900 131,720 110,850 125,680 110,850 0
23-405-035 401 116,400 116,400 117,070 117,070 113,100 113,100 (3,970)
28-151-056 405 70,000 70,000 71,300 71,300 70,000 70,000 (1,300)
28-428-039 401 133,690 129,530 139,350 139,350 134,250 135,250 (4,100)
30-279-007 401 113,330 100,140 137,290 103,840 107,180 103,840 0
31-227-096 405 125,000 125,000 133,390 129,620 125,000 125,000 (4,620)
31-228-017 405 142,500 142,500 140,260 140,260 124,360 124,360 (15,900)
31-228-066 405 141,320 141,320 130,910 130,910 105,000 105,000 (25,910)
31-228-083 405 143,120 129,780 132,560 132,560 104,900 104,900 (27,660)

 

210

Stipulation Affidavits (continued)
 
 



Cross Reference Index

March Board of Review

2007



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
01-101-022 401 174,660 146,630 165,000 146,630 (9,660) 0 07.145 145
01-354-008 401 157,350 151,820 157,350 151,820 0 0 07.001 1
01-354-016 401 138,980 138,980 133,760 133,760 (5,220) (5,220) 07.155 155
01-402-009 401 152,200 135,520 152,200 135,520 0 0 07.120 120
01-476-062 401 248,770 247,380 230,000 230,000 (18,770) (17,380) 07.015 15
01-476-087 401 99,710 99,710 99,710 99,710 0 0 07.095 95
01-476-088 401 71,930 58,700 71,930 58,700 0 0 07.095 95
02-126-038 401 179,550 168,750 170,000 168,750 (9,550) 0 07.061 61
02-153-070 405 170,270 170,270 158,960 158,960 (11,310) (11,310) S07.001 209
02-201-068 402 38,750 25,580 38,750 25,580 0 0 C07.001 156
02-202-002 401 231,190 134,370 212,500 134,370 (18,690) 0 07.069 69
02-228-002 401 159,030 159,030 147,000 147,000 (12,030) (12,030) C07.002 157
02-229-015 401 214,190 169,730 183,000 169,730 (31,190) 0 07.079 79
02-229-029 401 247,080 196,730 198,400 196,730 (48,680) 0 07.125 125
02-230-007 401 158,850 158,850 158,850 158,850 0 0 07.070 70
02-279-056 401 161,270 152,970 147,500 147,500 (13,770) (5,470) 07.148 148
03-101-055 401 202,920 190,680 202,920 190,680 0 0 07.147 147
03-151-002 401 105,230 104,040 105,230 104,040 0 0 PE07.001 187
03-226-059 405 124,410 124,410 124,410 124,410 0 0 07.085 85
03-228-013 401 277,310 167,870 219,580 110,140 (57,730) (57,730) S07.001 209
03-228-014 401 258,620 158,530 234,500 134,410 (24,120) (24,120) S07.001 209
03-228-015 402 214,030 94,450 128,680 68,340 (85,350) (26,110) S07.001 209
03-278-013 401 116,810 112,820 109,000 109,000 (7,810) (3,820) 07.030 30
03-302-026 401 130,510 128,690 119,640 119,640 (10,870) (9,050) 07.027 27
03-326-009 401 109,480 82,570 102,760 82,570 (6,720) 0 S07.001 209
03-401-036 401 282,330 282,330 274,160 274,160 (8,170) (8,170) 07.076 76
03-401-037 401 285,060 285,060 283,460 283,460 (1,600) (1,600) S07.001 209
03-401-039 401 280,690 280,690 280,690 280,690 0 0 07.086 86
04-100-076 401 292,830 254,720 292,830 205,820 0 (48,900) 07.153 153
04-132-015 401 296,600 213,380 296,600 213,380 0 0 07.107 107
04-152-028 401 164,270 164,270 164,270 164,270 0 0 07.154 154
04-178-002 401 169,620 169,620 158,500 158,500 (11,120) (11,120) S07.001 209
04-226-069 401 306,760 306,760 260,000 260,000 (46,760) (46,760) 07.140 140
04-276-004 401 161,190 130,700 161,190 130,700 0 0 07.057 57
04-276-059 401 279,530 278,750 270,000 270,000 (9,530) (8,750) 07.126 126
04-303-028 401 158,120 117,010 144,700 117,010 (13,420) 0 S07.001 209
04-304-011 401 161,320 146,440 150,000 146,440 (11,320) 0 07.025 25
04-376-007 401 102,540 97,510 90,000 90,000 (12,540) (7,510) S07.001 209
04-404-009 401 203,330 138,390 183,000 138,390 (20,330) 0 07.119 119
04-404-031 401 174,350 88,990 160,000 88,990 (14,350) 0 07.010 10
04-451-019 401 313,010 194,000 295,000 194,000 (18,010) 0 07.031 31
04-601-002 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 P07.001 175
05-101-023 401 289,080 266,990 285,300 260,500 (3,780) (6,490) S07.001 209
05-128-001 401 157,130 157,130 157,130 157,130 0 0 07.033 33
05-129-021 401 180,950 180,950 172,450 172,450 (8,500) (8,500) S07.001 209
05-153-027 401 284,780 252,720 264,500 252,720 (20,280) 0 07.142 142
05-204-028 401 206,540 206,540 191,500 191,500 (15,040) (15,040) S07.001 209
05-301-042 401 333,620 333,620 333,620 333,620 0 0 07.071 71
05-354-002 401 276,120 276,120 270,000 270,000 (6,120) (6,120) 07.066 66
06-226-034 401 175,090 143,680 175,090 143,680 0 0 07.045 45
06-227-008 401 180,020 180,020 160,000 160,000 (20,020) (20,020) 07.105 105
06-227-031 401 181,320 181,320 175,000 175,000 (6,320) (6,320) 07.063 63
06-251-002 401 236,500 236,500 207,500 207,500 (29,000) (29,000) 07.151 151
06-276-010 401 253,280 231,810 207,930 207,930 (45,350) (23,880) 07.038 38
06-302-007 401 152,250 93,970 152,250 93,970 0 0 07.058 58
06-352-017 401 410,780 283,850 390,000 283,850 (20,780) 0 07.008 8
06-352-022 401 510,320 360,080 450,000 360,080 (60,320) 0 07.093 93

Cross Index 1



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
06-603-001 212 33,550 33,550 33,550 33,550 0 0 P07.001 175
06-603-003 212 208,920 202,270 208,920 202,270 0 0 P07.001 175
07-102-016 401 260,970 259,250 260,970 259,250 0 0 07.078 78
07-151-042 402 112,500 22,050 99,500 22,050 (13,000) 0 07.063 63
07-151-043 401 267,980 139,620 165,000 139,620 (102,980) 0 07.063 63
07-151-044 401 155,240 88,700 125,000 88,700 (30,240) 0 07.063 63
07-153-017 401 324,880 324,880 316,250 316,250 (8,630) (8,630) S07.001 209
07-201-010 401 474,360 474,360 474,360 474,360 0 0 C07.003 158
07-202-013 401 389,340 389,340 389,340 389,340 0 0 07.075 75
07-202-024 401 438,820 390,720 355,680 321,070 (83,140) (69,650) 07.074 74
07-251-005 401 453,540 385,520 425,000 385,520 (28,540) 0 S07.001 209
07-278-016 401 428,700 428,700 428,700 428,700 0 0 07.115 115
07-326-001 401 236,400 223,060 217,500 217,500 (18,900) (5,560) 07.009 9
07-326-009 401 240,020 173,620 240,020 173,620 0 0 07.077 77
07-376-016 401 198,210 165,480 198,210 165,480 0 0 07.092 92
07-377-028 401 202,150 201,950 197,600 197,600 (4,550) (4,350) 07.133 133
07-428-006 401 163,000 163,000 155,000 155,000 (8,000) (8,000) 07.026 26
08-101-020 401 123,700 123,700 123,700 123,700 0 0 PE07.002 188
08-101-024 401 111,720 99,450 111,720 99,450 0 0 PE07.003 189
08-126-006 401 128,460 128,460 120,000 120,000 (8,460) (8,460) 07.128 128
08-227-004 201 4,924,410 3,345,270 4,924,410 3,345,270 0 0 P07.002 177
08-331-003 401 218,820 218,820 210,000 210,000 (8,820) (8,820) 07.088 88
08-351-006 401 169,690 106,650 135,000 106,650 (34,690) 0 07.048 48
08-376-242 405 80,220 80,220 75,870 75,870 (4,350) (4,350) S07.001 209
08-604-001 212 47,720 44,890 47,720 44,890 0 0 P07.001 175
08-604-002 212 27,850 27,850 27,850 27,850 0 0 P07.001 175
09-253-004 401 92,940 61,540 92,940 0 0 (61,540) PE07.004 190
09-408-014 401 245,000 245,000 245,000 245,000 0 0 07.083 83
09-476-029 201 255,790 255,790 255,790 255,790 0 0 P07.003 178
09-476-034 201 453,380 326,090 453,380 326,090 0 0 P07.003 178
09-476-042 201 1,608,890 1,045,310 1,608,890 1,045,310 0 0 P07.003 178
09-476-085 405 177,120 177,120 177,120 177,120 0 0 07.052 52
09-603-004 212 6,820 4,750 6,820 4,750 0 0 P07.001 175
10-351-018 201 4,277,740 4,277,740 4,277,740 4,277,740 0 0 P07.003 178
10-351-019 201 658,120 500,030 658,120 500,030 0 0 P07.003 178
10-602-001 212 14,920 7,870 14,920 7,870 0 0 P07.001 175
11-101-016 205 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 0 0 P07.004 179
11-102-053 405 126,320 125,510 121,500 121,500 (4,820) (4,010) 07.096 96
11-102-062 405 139,000 118,660 132,500 118,660 (6,500) 0 S07.001 209
11-104-017 401 179,900 166,210 167,500 166,210 (12,400) 0 07.073 73
11-104-026 401 249,760 216,330 236,000 216,330 (13,760) 0 07.103 103
11-226-003 301 492,840 439,100 492,840 439,110 0 10 P07.003 178
11-302-009 401 108,430 93,100 122,600 93,100 14,170 0 07.053 53
11-352-020 401 88,360 86,150 88,360 0 0 (86,150) PE07.005 191
11-377-009 401 89,110 83,330 89,110 0 0 (83,330) PE07.006 192
11-380-010 401 95,870 80,870 95,870 80,870 0 0 PE07.007 193
11-402-002 401 168,220 168,220 155,610 155,610 (12,610) (12,610) 07.018 18
11-426-012 401 158,830 113,270 153,500 113,270 (5,330) 0 07.109 109
11-427-014 401 154,560 154,560 148,000 148,000 (6,560) (6,560) S07.001 209
11-427-034 401 161,050 114,620 161,050 114,620 0 0 C07.004 159
11-454-003 401 174,620 110,670 174,620 110,670 0 0 C07.005 160
11-479-006 401 157,890 126,480 156,379 126,480 (1,511) 0 S07.010 210
11-481-012 401 159,160 159,160 148,950 148,950 (10,210) (10,210) S07.010 210
12-152-011 401 119,140 119,140 109,000 109,000 (10,140) (10,140) 07.091 91
12-155-002 401 128,190 101,550 128,190 101,550 0 0 C07.006 161
12-228-011 401 251,700 251,700 251,700 251,700 0 0 07.023 23
12-253-015 401 123,930 97,020 123,930 97,020 0 0 PE07.008 194

Cross Index 2



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
12-402-006 401 129,890 95,330 118,500 95,330 (11,390) 0 07.002 2
12-455-002 401 166,640 166,640 166,640 166,640 0 0 07.137 137
13-278-020 401 141,630 141,630 119,000 119,000 (22,630) (22,630) S07.010 210
13-280-001 401 201,470 181,460 190,000 181,460 (11,470) 0 07.050 50
13-280-002 401 182,910 162,280 162,500 162,280 (20,410) 0 07.046 46
13-304-019 401 148,360 148,360 125,500 125,500 (22,860) (22,860) 07.036 36
13-332-005 401 122,190 122,190 119,000 119,000 (3,190) (3,190) 07.003 3
13-351-028 405 167,320 167,320 167,320 167,320 0 0 07.035 35
13-351-045 405 180,540 180,540 170,000 170,000 (10,540) (10,540) 07.104 104
13-351-057 405 164,800 164,800 164,800 164,800 0 0 07.034 34
13-401-038 401 226,830 117,080 205,000 117,080 (21,830) 0 07.067 67
14-101-026 401 84,030 84,030 84,030 84,030 0 0 07.072 72
14-102-028 401 109,560 44,450 109,560 0 0 (44,450) PE07.009 195
14-151-023 401 83,920 43,930 83,920 43,930 0 0 07.011 11
14-151-024 401 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000 0 0 07.011 11
14-151-025 401 78,050 78,050 78,050 78,050 0 0 07.011 11
14-328-017 401 136,920 134,480 136,920 134,480 0 0 07.139 139
14-351-076 401 196,590 188,430 196,590 188,430 0 0 07.113 113
14-451-040 401 173,070 173,070 173,070 173,070 0 0 07.102 102
14-604-006 212 117,250 114,500 117,250 114,500 0 0 P07.001 175
15-101-025 201 314,090 314,090 314,090 314,090 0 0 P07.003 178
15-126-002 401 105,510 92,660 105,510 92,660 0 0 PE07.010 196
15-128-016 401 159,110 156,540 159,110 156,540 0 0 07.121 121
15-202-016 401 240,860 183,670 222,490 167,860 (18,370) (15,810) S07.010 210
15-203-003 401 207,330 158,510 187,000 158,510 (20,330) 0 07.108 108
15-251-020 401 148,650 100,240 120,000 100,240 (28,650) 0 07.005 5
15-252-044 401 177,610 166,240 170,000 166,240 (7,610) 0 07.117 117
15-380-021 401 220,690 215,170 207,500 207,500 (13,190) (7,670) S07.010 210
16-477-002 401 128,120 96,620 128,120 96,620 0 0 07.041 41
16-601-001 401 5,740 5,740 5,740 5,740 0 0 07.047 47
17-278-014 201 6,906,710 6,344,930 6,906,710 6,344,930 0 0 P07.005 180
17-329-008 401 232,630 232,630 222,500 222,500 (10,130) (10,130) 07.123 123
17-351-007 401 222,190 222,190 221,000 221,000 (1,190) (1,190) 07.080 80
17-351-020 401 372,100 372,100 372,100 372,100 0 0 07.150 150
17-351-029 205 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 0 0 P07.004 179
17-379-007 401 211,610 211,610 195,000 195,000 (16,610) (16,610) 07.049 49
18-251-009 401 295,740 250,910 262,500 250,910 (33,240) 0 C07.008 162
18-251-017 401 282,300 282,300 265,000 265,000 (17,300) (17,300) 07.130 130
18-276-004 401 284,510 261,050 240,000 240,000 (44,510) (21,050) S07.010 210
18-277-003 401 324,350 309,620 301,500 301,500 (22,850) (8,120) 07.089 89
18-301-016 401 157,410 152,580 157,410 121,550 0 (31,030) 07.056 56
18-302-013 401 135,940 135,940 125,000 125,000 (10,940) (10,940) S07.010 210
18-327-007 401 182,510 161,580 182,510 161,580 0 0 C07.009 163
18-351-015 401 136,450 134,890 136,450 134,890 0 0 07.138 138
18-352-024 401 139,730 134,810 130,000 130,000 (9,730) (4,810) S07.010 210
18-402-001 401 199,000 199,000 199,000 199,000 0 0 07.105 105
18-402-037 401 425,460 425,460 411,000 411,000 (14,460) (14,460) S07.010 210
18-428-002 401 268,190 267,800 255,000 255,000 (13,190) (12,800) 07.136 136
18-477-071 401 321,890 321,890 321,890 321,890 0 0 07.118 118
19-101-049 401 146,800 114,980 103,000 103,000 (43,800) (11,980) 07.081 81
19-127-011 401 154,600 154,600 147,000 147,000 (7,600) (7,600) 07.068 68
19-176-006 401 166,400 116,570 163,260 116,570 (3,140) 0 07.006 6
19-252-002 401 193,420 193,420 183,420 183,420 (10,000) (10,000) 07.100 100
19-326-004 401 132,720 132,720 132,720 132,720 0 0 07.021 21
19-326-016 401 209,790 209,790 187,500 187,500 (22,290) (22,290) S07.010 210
19-377-005 401 148,130 148,130 135,000 135,000 (13,130) (13,130) S07.010 210
20-302-007 401 347,500 326,650 327,500 326,650 (20,000) 0 07.106 106

Cross Index 3



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
20-326-007 401 260,630 260,630 237,500 237,500 (23,130) (23,130) 07.028 28
20-328-008 401 340,220 340,880 314,350 314,350 (25,870) (26,530) 07.099 99
20-329-026 401 259,390 216,670 259,390 216,670 0 0 07.137 137
20-402-045 401 161,510 147,640 150,000 147,640 (11,510) 0 07.135 135
20-427-034 401 203,750 203,750 203,750 203,750 0 0 07.064 64
20-427-036 401 380,880 298,220 380,880 298,220 0 0 07.022 22
20-427-037 401 379,620 298,220 379,620 298,220 0 0 07.029 29
20-476-036 201 2,801,970 2,557,690 2,801,970 2,557,690 0 0 P07.006 181
21-101-002 401 114,440 112,430 106,250 106,250 (8,190) (6,180) 07.110 110
21-101-034 401 245,020 148,650 245,020 148,650 0 0 07.143 143
21-201-042 401 122,710 116,450 120,000 116,450 (2,710) 0 07.024 24
21-252-006 401 87,520 87,520 87,520 87,520 0 0 C07.020 174
21-276-006 401 93,160 80,160 93,160 0 0 (80,160) PE07.011 197
22-177-033 401 89,360 89,360 82,500 82,500 (6,860) (6,860) 07.149 149
22-202-022 401 112,240 80,530 104,700 80,530 (7,540) 0 07.132 132
22-251-008 401 118,080 69,470 95,180 69,470 (22,900) 0 07.044 44
22-278-020 401 131,720 110,850 125,680 110,850 (6,040) 0 S07.010 210
22-352-022 401 134,110 132,210 134,110 132,210 0 0 07.065 65
22-353-027 401 91,080 91,080 91,080 91,080 0 0 07.007 7
22-379-001 401 76,240 45,820 76,240 0 0 (45,820) PE07.012 198
22-380-035 401 101,320 94,860 91,430 91,430 (9,890) (3,430) 07.037 37
22-401-089 401 168,780 167,630 157,500 157,500 (11,280) (10,130) 07.017 17
22-426-020 401 133,170 132,920 125,000 125,000 (8,170) (7,920) 07.055 55
22-601-004 212 209,290 203,700 209,290 203,700 0 0 P07.001 175
23-276-011 401 101,430 96,240 87,500 87,500 (13,930) (8,740) 07.014 14
23-377-038 401 123,310 123,310 117,500 117,500 (5,810) (5,810) 07.016 16
23-405-035 401 117,070 117,070 113,100 113,100 (3,970) (3,970) S07.010 210
24-231-007 401 200,700 200,700 200,700 200,700 0 0 C07.010 164
24-306-017 401 109,080 109,080 93,500 93,500 (15,580) (15,580) 07.094 94
24-401-026 401 162,430 114,730 132,500 114,730 (29,930) 0 07.060 60
24-401-035 401 184,980 184,980 184,980 184,980 0 0 07.084 84
24-451-004 401 94,170 94,170 94,170 94,170 0 0 07.082 82
24-479-019 401 153,680 142,820 140,000 140,000 (13,680) (2,820) C07.011 165
25-106-018 405 59,670 44,120 59,670 0 0 (44,120) PE07.013 199
25-127-004 405 43,230 33,830 43,230 0 0 (33,830) PE07.014 200
25-129-019 405 70,150 70,150 65,000 65,000 (5,150) (5,150) 07.111 111
25-227-021 401 89,840 86,770 87,500 86,770 (2,340) 0 07.039 39
25-255-035 401 98,510 68,670 98,510 0 0 (68,670) PE07.015 201
25-276-002 401 96,810 96,810 96,810 0 0 (96,810) PE07.016 202
25-279-008 401 102,340 80,080 97,500 80,080 (4,840) 0 07.040 40
26-101-001 205 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 0 0 P07.004 179
26-104-017 301 1,403,960 1,371,060 1,260,000 1,260,000 (143,960) (111,060) 07.051 51
26-601-002 212 18,750 18,290 18,750 18,290 0 0 P07.001 175
26-601-007 212 52,530 52,530 52,530 52,530 0 0 P07.001 175
27-182-019 401 103,930 88,500 103,930 88,500 0 0 07.032 32
27-301-023 201 333,900 322,420 333,900 322,420 0 0 P07.003 178
27-326-005 401 89,810 63,760 60,000 60,000 (29,810) (3,760) 07.146 146
27-354-029 401 63,800 33,040 63,800 0 0 (33,040) PE07.017 203
27-359-025 401 205,450 177,600 182,000 177,600 (23,450) 0 07.042 42
27-379-013 201 674,190 546,000 674,190 546,000 0 0 07.087 87
27-430-024 401 40,510 21,830 40,510 0 0 (21,830) PE07.018 204
27-433-003 301 369,410 240,140 231,580 231,580 (137,830) (8,560) C07.012 166
27-477-017 401 77,010 53,360 77,010 53,360 0 0 C07.013 167
28-101-041 405 6,615,710 6,615,710 6,615,710 6,615,710 0 0 P07.003 178
28-151-056 405 71,300 71,300 70,000 70,000 (1,300) (1,300) S07.010 210
28-151-188 405 81,070 63,100 81,070 0 0 (63,100) PE07.019 205
28-301-016 301 747,820 523,890 747,820 523,890 0 0 P07.003 178

Cross Index 4



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
28-401-063 301 272,900 206,530 272,900 206,530 0 0 P07.003 178
28-401-077 301 306,900 214,060 306,900 214,060 0 0 P07.003 178
28-428-032 401 160,190 145,010 160,190 145,010 0 0 07.020 20
28-428-039 401 139,350 139,350 134,250 135,250 (5,100) (4,100) S07.010 210
28-602-003 211 46,600 45,090 46,600 45,090 0 0 P07.001 175
29-226-043 201 1,626,310 1,239,970 1,626,310 1,239,970 0 0 07.114 114
29-226-043 201 1,626,310 1,239,970 1,230,560 922,570 (395,750) (317,400) C07.014 168
29-352-003 250 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 0 0 P07.004 179
29-352-049 201 1,380,940 1,015,200 1,380,940 1,015,200 0 0 P07.003 178
29-357-014 401 70,210 70,210 70,210 70,210 0 0 07.054 54
29-357-020 405 71,050 71,050 71,050 71,050 0 0 P07.003 178
29-604-002 212 26,140 25,520 26,140 25,520 0 0 P07.001 175
29-604-003 212 206,850 201,160 206,850 201,160 0 0 P07.001 175
30-101-034 401 322,220 210,560 237,500 210,560 (84,720) 0 07.062 62
30-101-050 401 263,060 256,910 263,060 256,910 0 0 07.144 144
30-101-051 401 337,590 329,240 287,500 287,500 (50,090) (41,740) 07.013 13
30-101-058 401 306,340 289,630 306,340 289,630 0 0 07.097 97
30-101-061 401 329,070 305,090 313,500 305,090 (15,570) 0 07.124 124
30-101-062 401 299,230 246,270 293,000 246,270 (6,230) 0 07.131 131
30-101-064 401 335,880 286,110 273,000 273,000 (62,880) (13,110) 07.019 19
30-101-065 401 333,490 281,980 304,000 281,980 (29,490) 0 07.059 59
30-101-067 401 355,590 300,200 315,000 300,200 (40,590) 0 07.141 141
30-101-068 401 358,830 348,350 343,500 343,500 (15,330) (4,850) 07.127 127
30-101-069 401 364,420 338,020 342,950 338,020 (21,470) 0 07.134 134
30-101-070 401 339,280 287,720 321,550 287,720 (17,730) 0 07.129 129
30-101-073 401 360,390 295,410 347,500 295,410 (12,890) 0 07.116 116
30-101-074 401 376,990 312,340 367,250 312,340 (9,740) 0 07.122 122
30-126-082 401 91,830 70,640 76,150 70,640 (15,680) 0 07.090 90
30-278-017 401 110,520 64,900 95,000 64,900 (15,520) 0 07.012 12
30-278-028 401 119,570 70,180 100,000 70,180 (19,570) 0 07.101 101
30-279-007 401 137,290 103,840 107,180 103,840 (30,110) 0 S07.010 210
30-602-002 211 104,460 86,950 104,460 86,950 0 0 P07.001 175
31-227-096 405 133,390 129,620 125,000 125,000 (8,390) (4,620) S07.010 210
31-228-017 405 140,260 140,260 124,360 124,360 (15,900) (15,900) S07.010 210
31-228-042 405 120,120 120,120 120,120 120,120 0 0 P07.003 178
31-228-052 405 129,950 129,950 129,950 129,950 0 0 07.152 152
31-228-066 405 130,910 130,910 105,000 105,000 (25,910) (25,910) S07.010 210
31-228-083 405 132,560 132,560 104,900 104,900 (27,660) (27,660) S07.010 210
32-151-018 301 365,890 365,890 365,890 365,890 0 0 C07.015 169
32-151-025 301 385,490 385,490 385,490 385,490 0 0 C07.016 170
34-126-011 401 58,120 31,280 58,120 0 0 (31,280) PE07.020 206
34-152-013 301 261,910 212,500 261,910 212,500 0 0 C07.017 171
35-102-037 301 568,250 568,250 568,250 568,250 0 0 P07.003 178
35-102-038 301 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 0 0 P07.003 178
35-201-066 201 5,890,820 3,194,630 5,890,820 3,194,630 0 0 P07.005 180
35-226-042 201 229,280 229,280 229,280 229,280 0 0 P07.003 178
35-305-024 401 102,170 71,610 102,170 71,610 0 0 07.004 4
35-327-024 201 4,213,780 4,213,780 4,213,780 4,213,780 0 0 P07.002 177
35-352-045 401 63,370 44,110 63,370 0 0 (44,110) PE07.021 207
35-354-027 401 96,050 65,720 87,500 65,720 (8,550) 0 07.112 112
35-601-001 212 8,780 8,780 8,780 8,780 0 0 P07.001 175
36-127-011 401 126,410 94,710 110,000 94,710 (16,410) 0 07.043 43
36-127-011 401 110,000 94,710 110,000 94,710 0 0 PE07.022 208
36-226-072 401 117,440 116,650 97,500 97,500 (19,940) (19,150) 07.098 98
36-300-002 201 216,340 216,340 216,340 216,340 0 0 P07.003 178
36-302-008 301 1,404,490 127,930 1,404,490 1,127,930 0 1,000,000 P07.003 178
36-326-037 301 1,585,270 1,431,790 1,585,270 1,431,790 0 0 P07.003 178

Cross Index 5



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
36-326-041 301 660,560 457,240 660,560 457,240 0 0 P07.003 178
36-326-042 301 758,260 582,750 758,260 582,750 0 0 P07.003 178
36-376-019 301 542,120 424,280 542,120 424,280 0 0 P07.003 178
36-376-033 301 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 0 0 P07.003 178
36-376-035 301 342,960 306,390 342,960 306,390 0 0 P07.003 178
36-377-020 201 584,950 447,230 584,950 447,230 0 0 P07.003 178
36-377-023 301 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 1,465,300 0 0 C07.018 172
36-426-054 301 265,680 265,680 265,680 265,680 0 0 C07.018 172
36-426-114 301 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 1,927,060 0 0 C07.018 172
36-601-004 212 20,370 20,370 20,370 20,370 0 0 P07.008 183
00-006-100 551 524,830 524,830 524,830 524,830 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-101 551 447,700 447,700 447,700 447,700 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-102 551 74,720 74,720 74,720 74,720 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-103 551 40,320 40,320 40,320 40,320 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-104 551 72,690 72,690 72,690 72,690 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-105 551 7,070,970 7,070,970 7,070,970 7,070,970 0 0 P07.004 179
00-006-106 551 562,630 562,630 562,630 562,630 0 0 P07.004 179
00-010-011 251 752,310 752,310 752,310 752,310 0 0 P07.007 182
00-010-014 251 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 0 0 P07.007 182
00-052-151 251 6,910 6,910 6,910 6,910 0 0 P07.003 178
00-066-210 351 77,390 77,390 77,390 77,390 0 0 P07.001 175
00-207-620 251 334,030 334,030 334,030 334,030 0 0 C07.019 173
00-247-040 251 60,110 60,110 60,110 60,110 0 0 P07.001 175
00-247-940 251 94,180 94,180 94,180 94,180 0 0 P07.001 175
00-247-960 251 68,130 68,130 68,130 68,130 0 0 P07.001 175
00-247-980 351 74,900 74,900 74,900 74,900 0 0 P07.001 175
00-248-000 251 76,240 76,240 76,240 76,240 0 0 P07.001 175
00-248-000 251 76,240 76,240 76,240 76,240 0 0 P07.001 176
00-248-020 251 61,650 61,650 61,650 61,650 0 0 P07.001 175
00-248-060 251 11,020 11,020 11,020 11,020 0 0 P07.001 175
00-263-020 251 81,390 81,380 81,380 81,380 (10) 0 P07.001 175
00-283-080 251 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 0 0 P07.001 175
00-283-200 251 2,470 2,470 2,470 2,470 0 0 P07.001 175
00-283-240 251 1,160 1,160 1,160 1,160 0 0 P07.001 175
00-283-260 251 197,400 197,400 197,400 197,400 0 0 P07.001 175
00-283-280 251 39,220 39,220 39,220 39,220 0 0 P07.001 175
00-283-320 251 35,540 35,540 35,540 35,540 0 0 P07.001 175
00-291-300 251 62,970 62,970 62,970 62,970 0 0 P07.001 175
00-294-820 251 2,420,560 2,420,560 2,420,560 2,420,560 0 0 P07.005 180
00-297-440 351 300 300 300 300 0 0 P07.001 175
00-298-540 251 122,630 122,630 122,630 122,630 0 0 P07.008 183
00-310-220 251 52,860 52,860 52,860 52,860 0 0 P07.001 175
00-320-880 251 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 0 P07.008 183
00-324-400 251 87,310 87,310 87,310 87,310 0 0 P07.008 183
00-325-580 251 29,130 29,130 29,130 29,130 0 0 P07.008 183
00-326-900 251 61,420 61,420 61,420 61,420 0 0 P07.001 176
00-335-080 251 29,660 29,660 29,660 29,660 0 0 P07.008 183
00-335-100 251 76,400 76,400 76,400 76,400 0 0 P07.001 176
00-336-700 351 45,660 45,660 45,660 45,660 0 0 P07.008 183
00-337-540 251 45,350 45,350 45,350 45,350 0 0 P07.003 178
00-337-560 251 32,770 32,770 32,770 32,770 0 0 P07.003 178
00-338-480 251 230 230 230 230 0 0 07.047 47
00-338-660 251 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 0 P07.010 185
00-339-100 251 15,540 15,540 15,540 15,540 0 0 P07.001 176
00-339-120 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 P07.001 176
00-339-200 351 31,820 31,820 31,820 31,820 0 0 P07.008 183
00-339-220 251 350 350 350 350 0 0 P07.008 183

Cross Index 6



2007 City of Troy March Board of Review Cross Index

Parcel ID Use 07 A/V 07 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
00-348-980 251 1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150 0 0 P07.001 176
00-352-280 251 2,590 2,590 2,590 2,590 0 0 P07.005 180
00-356-120 251 148,810 148,810 148,810 148,810 0 0 P07.011 186
00-359-360 251 71,220 71,220 71,220 71,220 0 0 P07.005 180
00-707-330 551 94,800 94,800 94,800 94,800 0 0 P07.004 179
00-708-150 251 258,910 258,910 258,910 258,910 0 0 P07.007 182
00-711-610 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 P07.003 178
00-714-410 251 2,680 2,680 2,680 2,680 0 0 P07.007 182
00-716-610 251 320 320 320 320 0 0 P07.007 182
00-719-230 251 43,570 43,570 43,570 43,570 0 0 P07.008 183
00-719-250 251 49,550 49,550 49,550 49,550 0 0 P07.008 183
00-720-510 251 25,310 25,310 25,310 25,310 0 0 P07.009 184
00-720-530 251 512,380 512,380 512,380 512,380 0 0 P07.009 184
00-720-550 251 630 630 630 630 0 0 P07.009 184
00-720-570 251 3,750,830 3,750,830 3,750,830 3,750,830 0 0 P07.009 184
00-720-610 251 558,110 558,110 558,110 558,110 0 0 P07.009 184
00-726-630 251 37,800 37,800 37,800 37,800 0 0 P07.008 183
00-726-750 251 1,890 1,890 1,890 1,890 0 0 P07.007 182
00-737-470 251 11,170 11,170 11,170 11,170 0 0 P07.007 182
00-737-750 251 52,590 52,590 52,590 52,590 0 0 P07.007 182
00-737-810 251 56,240 56,240 56,240 56,240 0 0 P07.007 182
00-739-610 251 9,020 9,020 9,020 9,020 0 0 P07.007 182
00-739-630 251 132,750 132,750 132,750 132,750 0 0 P07.007 182
00-739-650 251 190,820 190,820 190,820 190,820 0 0 P07.007 182
00-739-670 251 539,000 539,000 539,000 539,000 0 0 P07.007 182
00-740-470 251 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 0 0 P07.007 182
00-740-490 251 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 0 0 P07.007 182
00-750-590 251 11,260 11,260 11,260 11,260 0 0 P07.001 176

Cross Index 7



DATE:         April 2, 2007

TO:             Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Month of March 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 12 $2,291,000.00 $17,400.00
Parking Lot 1 $28,000.00 $341.00

Sub Total 13 $2,319,000.00 $17,741.00

COMMERCIAL
Shell New 1 $75,000.00 $670.00
New Less Tenent 1 $3,096,000.00 $17,625.00
Tenant Completion 1 $15,000.00 $250.00
Add/Alter 25 $2,044,740.00 $17,408.00

Sub Total 28 $5,230,740.00 $35,953.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 3 $484,281.00 $3,830.00
Add/Alter 22 $332,091.00 $4,433.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 6 $37,260.00 $704.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 2 $20,274.00 $346.00
Repair 2 $59,500.00 $415.00
Fire Repair 1 $28,500.00 $348.00
Wreck 6 $20,000.00 $320.00

Sub Total 42 $981,906.00 $10,396.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 4 $498,696.00 $4,080.00
Add/Alter 2 $25,690.00 $381.00

Sub Total 6 $524,386.00 $4,461.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $75,000.00 $670.00

Sub Total 1 $75,000.00 $670.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 2 $70,000.00 $780.00

Sub Total 2 $70,000.00 $780.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 1 $3,900.00 $95.00
Signs 35 $0.00 $3,410.00
Fences 7 $0.00 $115.00

Sub Total 43 $3,900.00 $3,620.00

TOTAL 135 $9,204,932.00 $73,621.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 172 $1,720.00
Cert. of Occupancy 46 $3,080.50
Plan Review 92 $5,534.00
Microfilm 46 $389.00
Building Permits 135 $73,621.00
Electrical Permits 207 $12,913.00
Heating Permits 188 $9,120.00
Air Cond. Permits 97 $4,400.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $265.00
Plumbing Permits 94 $6,958.00
Storm Sewer Permits 9 $226.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 11 $343.00
Sewer Taps 8 $4,138.00

TOTAL 1107 $122,707.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 24 $120.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 41 $615.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 10 $10.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 2 $20.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 4 $60.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 12 $120.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 5 $75.00

TOTAL 15 $1,020.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 0 $0.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 0 $0.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 355 $24,856,032.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Apr 2, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 2801 W BIG BEAVER G-201  433,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMFORT CRAFT CONSTR CO 901 TOWER 250  230,000
Commercial, Add/Alter CRANE CONSTRUCTION CO LLC 2801 W BIG BEAVER E-144  420,000
Commercial, Add/Alter OSPREY CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPME 340 E BIG BEAVER 120  110,000
Commercial, Add/Alter TRI-NORTH BUILDERS 2801 W BIG BEAVER G-223  232,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,425,000

Commercial, New Less Tenant REB CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 1639 E BIG BEAVER  3,096,000

Commercial, New Less TenantTotal  3,096,000

Industrial, Add/Alter OLIVER HATCHER CONSTRUCTION 1304 E MAPLE  2,100,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  2,100,000

Total Valuation:  6,621,000Records  8



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: April 10, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2007 FIRST QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the FIRST quarter of 2007 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

2. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a 
motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a 
judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other structures that 
have been built upon the property without approvals that are required 
under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an early intervention 
conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The Court has 
set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for January 4, 
2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition, 
Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the hearing 
was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for 
money damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court 
also granted Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for 
declaratory relief, and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the 
northern parcel, and that the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel 
were protected under the Right to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled 
the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City permitting requirements under the 
agricultural building permit exemption of the State Construction Code Act.  
The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  Troy has filed an appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed a cross appeal 
challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and injunctive 
relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that 
the case will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was 
assigned to the expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final 
decision on appeal is expected before the end of September of this year. 

 2



On June 16, 2006, the Building Department discovered that the Papadelis 
family was erecting a new, large pole barn structure on the property at 
3301 John R. Road.  This structure was likely in violation of local and/or 
state law.  The Building Department followed the procedure for issuing a 
Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an emergency motion with the 
Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of the building pending 
final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of Appeals 
granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion to 
enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing 
on the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on 
appeal, the new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of 
the Stop Work Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The 
Papadelis Family then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the 
Director of Building and Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the 
Papadelis family argued that the Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen 
O’Brien) allows the construction of the new building without a permit and 
without having to comply with the zoning ordinance provisions regulating 
the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied this Motion on 
June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on appeal) was 
limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and did not 
extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the 
Court affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also 
affirmed the dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark 
Stimac, and Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to 
Appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League 
is also filing an amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  The Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  If the Supreme Court denies both the Application for Leave to 
Appeal and the Cross Application for Leave to Appeal, the Court of 
Appeals decision becomes the final decision in this case.  The Supreme 
Court may grant both the Application and Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may grant either 
Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of 
the municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the 
MML’s Motion for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now 
waiting for the Michigan Supreme Court to take action.   

 
2. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. –The 

lawsuit was filed, seeking a Declaratory Judgment that a 43-foot easement is a 
“public” roadway easement under the control of the City of Troy.  Garrett 
Family Ltd. Partnership has an option to purchase an outlot that is currently 
owned by Mr. and Mrs. Karagiannakis.  The property would be a part of a 
proposed site condominium project.  However, Troy’s Zoning Ordinance 
requires that there be public street access for all new residential development.   
Therefore, this lawsuit was filed to convert the 43- foot wide driveway into a 

 3



“public roadway.”   Our office filed an immediate Motion for Summary 
Disposition, arguing that there is no authority for the Court to grant the 
requested relief, since the Land Division Act requires a re-plat action to 
accomplish what the Plaintiffs propose.  In a re-plat action, the Plaintiffs would 
file the case against all property owners within 300 feet, as well as the utilities 
and the units of government.  Plaintiffs filed their Brief in Response to our 
Motion for Summary Disposition, and also filed a First Amended Complaint, 
adding two new claims against the Defendants.  In the first additional claim, 
Plaintiffs allege that the Court should order the City to allow the Plaintiffs to 
construct a private driveway from their property to the nearest public road.  In 
the second additional count, Plaintiffs argue that the City has violated Plaintiffs’ 
due process rights.  This alleged due process violation stems from the City’s 
failure to allow the use of an easement for roadway purposes for a public or 
private driveway for their development.  The City filed a new Motion for 
Summary Disposition requesting dismissal of all claims, including the additional 
claims.  Oral arguments on this new Motion were scheduled for February 14, 
2007.  Prior to the oral arguments, the Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the 
lawsuit without prejudice, and will now pursue a plat revision lawsuit in 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  This new lawsuit would necessarily 
be served on the neighboring property owners, as well as the utilities 
and governing entities.   

 
3. Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. – This lawsuit 

was filed on December 11, 2006.  It seeks to amend part of a plat to vacate an 
easement reserved on the original plat of the Square Acres Subdivision Plat, 
located in Section 14.  The Plaintiff is proposing to develop a 13-unit site 
condominium project on Lot 17.  The City has already granted preliminary site 
plan approval of the proposed Athens Park Site Condominium Project.   
However, the development cannot be completed in accordance with the 
approved site plan unless the private roadway easement is vacated.  
The City has filed an answer and discovery is continuing.  

 
 
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

 
1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36) 

 
1. Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit against 

Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) to acquire 
property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery process, a 

 4



bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to interrupt the bench 
trial proceedings with a number of other matters, including criminal jury trials, 
and had the parties on stand by and/or took limited testimony for several 
months.  The last testimony in the lengthy bench trial was taken on June 10, 
2005.  After the testimony, the Judge required the parties to submit post-trial 
“Finding of Facts and Conclusion of Law” and a summary Memorandum, 
which were timely submitted by July 13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs were 
due July 20, 2005.  The parties are now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s 
decision.   It is unknown when the decision will be rendered.  After several 
months, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Mark Goldsmith requested 
portions of the transcript of the lengthy trial proceedings.  Unfortunately, this 
request has been unexpectedly delayed, since the transcribing court reporter 
broke his wrist, and is unable to complete the work himself and/or have others 
complete it for him.  The parties continue to wait for the Court’s decision.   The 
Court issued his written opinion on February 3, 2006.  The Defendants filed a 
Motion for Attorney Fees, and a hearing on that request was scheduled for 
April 5, 2006.  The Court issued a written order on June 9, 2006 determining 
the amount of attorney fees.  An appeal of the Court’s decisions was filed with 
the Michigan Court of Appeals on June 30, 2006.  The Michigan Court of 
Appeals subsequently ordered mandatory facilitation, which is continuing.  The 
trial transcript was completed and filed with the Court of Appeals.  The City’s 
appellate brief is due on March 30, 2007. 

  
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the City of 
Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 
1. Hooters v. Troy- Hooters filed this lawsuit against the City in Federal 

District Court after its state court case was dismissed, and after the 
Michigan Court of Appeals denied Plaintiff’s motion for peremptory 
reversal. Hooters alleges that in denying its request to transfer a Class C 
Liquor License, Troy City Council violated its constitutional freedom of 
speech, equal protection, and due process rights. City Council’s action, 
according to the federal complaint, has caused Hooters to delay the 
opening of its new restaurant at Rochester and Big Beaver, and to lose 
significant profits. Consequently, Hooters has requested damages in 
excess of a million dollars. On November 22, 2006 we filed a motion for 
summary judgment asking District Court Judge Julian A. Cook to dismiss 
the case. On February 28, 2007, Judge Cook heard our motion, and 
abstained on the case, which now stays all proceedings on the 
federal case until there is a final resolution in the state court lawsuit.   

 
2. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed 

this lawsuit against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a 
jury found him not guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in 

 5



the Second Degree. Plaintiff alleges that the City and Detective Pokley 
violated his constitutional rights to be from an unreasonable seizure, 
due process, and equal protection.  These constitutional violations 
allegedly occurred during the criminal sexual conduct investigation of 
Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants conspired 
with other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, and 
intentionally inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is 
requesting an unspecified amount of compensatory, exemplar, and 
punitive damages. On February 27, 2007, Troy filed a motion to 
dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  District Court 
Judge Gerald E. Rosen will set the hearing date on this motion.     

 
   

E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 
 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City enjoys 
governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within one of four 
exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, which includes 
sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which imposes liability only 
when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, 
which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) 
proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily 
to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
1. Norma Robertson v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, 

claiming that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after falling 
on a sidewalk in front of 392 Hickory. The complaint alleges that the 
city is liable under the defective highway exception. According to the 
complaint, on January 10, 2006, Plaintiff was walking on the 
sidewalk when she tripped over a raised portion of concrete. This 
raised portion, she alleges, caused severe injuries, including a 
broken right arm.  We filed our answer to the complaint and are 
exchanging discovery with the Plaintiff. 

 
2. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, 

claiming that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after 
her vehicle was struck by a Troy Police Officer as he was 
pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her complaint alleges 
serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has 
neurological damages.  The City has filed an answer to the 
complaint, and the parties are now conducting discovery.   

 
 

 

 6



F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1. In Re Hooters of Troy Inc. – Hooters has filed this lawsuit to challenge the June 
19, 2006 City Council denial of their application to transfer a liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters was seeking to re-locate their business from 
John R to Rochester Road, to the building that was previously occupied by the 
Wagon Wheel Saloon.   Hooters has signed agreements with the former 
owners (Sign of the Beef Carver- Wagon Wheel), for the building and also the 
liquor license with entertainment permit.  Pursuant to state law, local legislative 
approval is required for a transfer of Class C Liquor License and entertainment 
permit.  In their complaint, Hooter’s alleges that the City Council denial of the 
transfer of the liquor license violates their equal protection rights and due 
process rights.  They are asking the Court for an order of superintending 
control, which means they are asking a Circuit Court Judge to overrule City 
Council’s decision.  Hooters is also asking for costs, attorney fees, and 
incidental damages as a result of the delay in moving its operation to 
Rochester Road.  Shortly after filing their complaint, Hooter’s filed a motion 
requesting a superintending control order. On July 26, 2006 Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge John McDonald, after hearing argument, denied Hooter’s 
motion and dismissed their case. Judge McDonald in making his ruling, stated 
that municipalities are afforded broad discretion in review applications for new 
or transferred liquor licenses, and that Troy City Council exercised this 
discretion properly in denying Hooter’s request for to transfer a Class C Liquor 
License and new entertainment permit.  On August 4, 2006, Hooters filed a 
claim of appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals. They also filed a motion for 
immediate consideration and motion for peremptory reversal arguing that 
Judge McDonald’s decision was so blatantly wrong that immediate reversal is 
warranted. On August 16, 2006, the Court of Appeals granted Hooter’s motion 
for immediate consideration but denied their motion for peremptory reversal. 
Hooter’s appeal is still pending, and all the required briefs have been filed with 
the Court of Appeals.  The Court of Appeals has not yet set the date for oral 
argument.  

2. Troy v. George Roberts – This nuisance abatement action was filed after the 
City received multiple complaints from neighbors about the unsafe and 
unsanitary conditions existing at Defendant’s residence, located at 6791 
Livernois Rd., in the City of Troy.  According to reports from his neighbors, 
Defendant accumulated a large amount of trash, papers and debris inside his 
residence.  There also was a concern that the residence did not have working 
plumbing.  These reports were confirmed by subsequent inspections by Troy 
Building Inspectors, who observed multiple ordinance violations at Defendant’s 
home.  On November 17th, our office filed a lawsuit and a motion for a 
preliminary injunction with the Oakland County Circuit Court. Judge Mark A. 
Goldsmith entered an order on November 29, 2006, precluding Defendant 
from occupying the home until the first floor of the property was brought in 
compliance with the City’s Property Maintenance Code.  The order allows 
Defendant to clean his residence in phases, but requires completion of the 

 7



entire project by January 10, 2007.  Defendant substantially complied with 
the Court’s order, and cleaned most of his property.  However, since 
there were still violations, some of which were impacted by the winter 
weather, the Court ordered another inspection for March 7th.  After this 
inspection, Troy’s Building Inspectors reported that all violations were 
corrected.  We then prepared a proposed consent judgment to finalize 
the case.  Under the terms of the consent judgment, the City would 
continue to monitor Defendant’s property by conducting inspections 
every quarter for a period of one year.  On March 14, 2007, Mr. Roberts 
agreed to the terms of the proposed consent judgment.  The Consent 
Judgment was approved by Troy City Council at the April 2, 2007 City 
Council meeting.     

          3.          Nardi v Troy, et al.  - Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi named the City of Troy, the 
County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan as Defendants in this 
lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District 
of Michigan.  The Plaintiff owns a parcel of land located at 97 East 
Wattles.  On April 26, 2001, he received a letter from the Building 
Department, advising him that public sanitary sewer would soon be 
available to service his property, since there was a new subdivision 
that abutted his property.  The letter informed Mr. Nardi of Chapter 20, 
which at that time required connection to the newly available public 
sewer within 18 months.  This mandatory connection included a 
$200.00 Interceptor Connection fee (tap fee) and a $3,400.00 Lateral 
Benefit Charge.  These costs could be financed over a 40- year period 
of time, through a Sewer Contract with the City.  In November 2001, 
Plaintiff’s septic system on the property was showing signs of failure, 
and the Oakland County Health Department was investigating the 
matter.  On November 21, 2001, the Plaintiff signed a Sewer Contract 
with the City, where he agreed to pay the sewer connection fees for 
the hook up in quarterly installments of $57.00 each.   Pursuant to the 
contract, unpaid installments are collected in the same manner as 
taxes, which means that all delinquent payments are forwarded to 
Oakland County for collection and/or foreclosure proceedings.  As a 
result of Plaintiff’s failure to pay the quarterly installments, Oakland 
County initiated foreclosure proceedings for the property. 

In the lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks an injunction to stop the foreclosure 
proceeding, as well as reimbursement for all sewer fees previously 
paid, and punitive damages in the amount of $500,000.00.  Plaintiff filed 
the complaint without the assistance of an attorney, and his basis for 
relief is not exactly clear.  He contends all defendants have violated his 
rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th Amendments of the United States 
Constitution and he alleges fraud, extortion, a violation of Article VI, 
Section 2 of the Constitution, and a taking of property without due 
process of law.  Essentially, he claims the Sewer Contract is not valid 
because he signed it under duress.  He did make a note on the contract 

 8



when signing that said that he was signing it under duress.  However, 
without such a contract, the entire collection fee would have been 
immediately due, rather than financing the payments over a 40 year 
period.  Plaintiff also challenges the City’s ability to collect a Benefit 
Charge, because a private developer constructed the portion of the 
sanitary sewer system to which his property is connected.  The Benefit 
Charge is designed to reimburse the City for the proportional cost of 
operating the entire system.  The City has filed a Motion to Dismiss, 
which is scheduled for April 23, 2007. 

 

G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  
 

People v Aileen Grace Potter – Ms. Potter was charged with operating a 
motor vehicle while intoxicated.  Her attorney filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
complaint, arguing that the Defendant was not “operating” a motor vehicle 
pursuant to the statute.   Visiting Judge Levy granted the Defendant’s 
Motion.  The City filed a Claim of Appeal with the Oakland County Circuit 
Court.  On February 15, 2007, the Oakland County Circuit Court 
affirmed the trial court’s dismissal.  

 
On March 8, 2007 the City filed an Application for Leave to Appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  This case involves the 
application of the fairly recent amendments to the drunk driving 
statute, which allow for an arrest when an officer has probable cause 
to believe a defendant drove a vehicle while drunk.  Previously, police 
officers were required to actually observe a defendant drive, unless 
there was an accident.  The Application is pending in the Court of 
Appeals. 

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 9



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d





campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



PH  Big Beaver PUD 7 - 4/30/07
PH Rez  Z-726 190 E Maple-5/14/07

PH ZOTA 229 Auto  Rental in M-1-5/14/07
CR001 Medical Office Sec 21-5/14/07 

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007April 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

April 1

2
8:00am Election Commission 

(Council Boardroom)
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study Meetin
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 

4
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

6
City Hall Closed

7

8

9
7:00pm CANCELLED Liquor 

Advisory Committee 
Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

12
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council-Budget 

(Council Boardroom)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)
7:30pm City Council-Budget 

(Council Boardroom)

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



PH  Big Beaver PUD 7 - 4/30/07
PH Rez  Z-726 190 E Maple-5/14/07
PH ZOTA 229 Auto  Rental in M-1-5/14/07
CR001 Medical Office Sec 21-5/14/07 

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007May 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
May 1

7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting (Cou

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

2
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

3
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

4 5

6

7 8
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

9
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

10
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

11 12

13

14
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

16
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

17
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

18 19

20

21
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

22
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

23
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

24 25 26

27

28
City Hall Closed

29 30 31

campbellld
Text Box



PH  Big Beaver PUD 7 - 4/30/07
PH Rez  Z-726 190 E Maple-5/14/07

PH ZOTA 229 Auto  Rental in M-1-5/14/07
CR001 Medical Office Sec 21-5/14/07 

S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007June 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
June 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetin

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

6
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

14
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

22 23

24

25 26
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource R

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetin

27 28 29 30

campbellld
Text Box



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
April 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan and the  
   Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
 
Background: 
 
Following a comparative review of the TDDA’s development plan and the Big Beaver corridor study, 
City staff determined that an amendment to the TDDA development plan is required if TDDA funds 
are used to implement the key concepts found in the plan. 
 
In order to exact a development plan amendment, a public hearing before the City Council is 
required.  A public hearing will be held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI at 7:30 PM on 
Monday, June 4, 2007, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider amending the 
TDDA plan to include Development Plan #6, which provides for implementation of the key concepts of 
the Big Beaver corridor study. 
 
Development Plan #6 will be presented at the May 16, 2007 regularly scheduled TDDA meeting, for 
the board’s review and consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BPM/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\04.16.07 - TDDA Development Plan 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
 
DATE: April 11, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Seasonal Outdoor Display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on March 13, 

2007, and recommended that City Council consider creating a licensing 
procedure that would permit seasonal outdoor display in the B-1, B-2 and 
B-3 Districts for periods of one to three years in duration.   

 
• A business owner in Troy expressed an interest in adding an outdoor 

display area near the entrance of a grocery store, to display seasonal 
items such as pumpkins, apples, flowers, etc. 

 
• Presently “open air business uses” are permitted by Special Use Approval 

in the B-2 District when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District (Section 21.30.04).  However, retail items 
sold are limited to “plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 
furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies; provided further that 
such sales areas shall be designed as a part of the building mass to which 
they are accessory, in the sense that they shall be enclosed by masonry 
walls and/or decorative fencing elements extended from the main building, 
and shall be capable of entry only from the interior of the main building”.  
Additionally, the requirement that entry be only from the interior of the main 
building would prohibit sidewalk display for many businesses. 

 
• The Planning Commission determined that a Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendment permitting outdoor display in all B districts would create 
grandfathering of non-conforming uses and difficulties in enforcement.  
The Planning Commission recommended that outdoor display be 
permitted by license, similar to a sidewalk sale license.  A license would 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



be easier to enforce and easier to revoke than if the use were permitted 
under the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The City Attorney’s Office will create a licensing procedure that permits 

seasonal outdoor display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to authorize the creation of a licensing 

procedure for seasonal outdoor display. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed licensing procedure is consistent with City Council Goal I 

(Enhance the livability and safety of the community), Goal II (Minimize the 
cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government), 
and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council could agree with this report or oppose this report. 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
Attachments: 
1. Minutes from March 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
File/ZOTA 228 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 228 Seasonal Outdoor Display B-2\CC Memo 04 02 07.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 228) – 
Articles 20.00.00, 21.00.00 and 22.00.00  Seasonal Outdoor Displays in the B 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to seasonal outdoor displays in business zoning districts.   
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed a previous discussion relating to the combination of 
limiting the Zoning Ordinance and licensing with respect to types of businesses.   
 
Ms. Lancaster encouraged the members to forward the item to City Council so 
the licensing procedure could be initiated.  She indicated members could keep an 
open mind in terms of seeing if there is something that could be developed as 
relates to the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Vleck suggested zoning ordinance text that would give authority to City 
Council to grant licensing for a time period of one to three years.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-062 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission considered a text amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance that would permit seasonal outdoor display in the B-1, B-2 and 
B-3 Districts; and  
 
WHEREAS, Regulating seasonal outdoor display through the Zoning Ordinance 
creates enforcement issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that seasonal outdoor 
display is more appropriately permitted via a licensing procedure through the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby tables ZOTA 228.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that City 
Council consider creating a licensing procedure that would permit seasonal 
outdoor display in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Districts for periods of one to three years 
in duration. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 10, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Law Day 2007  
 

 
 
 

Part of the mission of the City Attorney’s Office is to educate the City officials, board 
and committee members, employees, and the general public.  In furtherance of this goal, our 
office has actively participated in an annual Law Day Program, which is promoted by the 
American Bar Association (ABA).  Each year, the ABA selects a theme for Law Day.  The 
theme for Law Day 2007 is “Liberty Under the Law:  Empowering Youth, Assuring 
Democracy.”  The purpose of this theme is to address the needs of youth and focus on the 
issues affecting them today.  The theme prompts us to listen to the voices of young people 
and to consider how the law can better serve their needs and interests.  

Consistent with this year’s theme, we prepared a survey for the purpose of obtaining 
information from high school students in Troy.  The questions in the survey are designed to 
educate students about the current laws that affect young people, and also to solicit their 
opinions on the current laws, as well as their opinions on how the law can better serve their 
needs.   A copy of the survey and an introductory page to the survey are attached.  

Information about the Law Day 2007 Youth Survey has already been disseminated to 
the schools, and we are advised many students have already completed it.  In addition, the 
survey is also available on line on our departmental web page, 
http://www.ci.troy.mi.us/law/lawday2007.   

Our office will collect the surveys and submit a report outlining the results. The report 
will be submitted to Council, local judges, legislators, and local newspapers.  It is our hope 
the results of the survey will be taken into consideration by all those involved in the 
implementation and enforcement of laws that affect young people, as well as the 
implementation of the future vision for our community.  The survey and the report will also be 
featured in the Law Day display, which will appear in the Troy Library during the month of 
May, and it will be available for public review on the City Attorney’s web page. 

We have also attached a proposed proclamation for Law Day 2007, which we hope to 
have passed by the Troy City Council.   

As always, if you have any questions, please let us know.        

 
    

http://www.ci.troy.mi.us/law/lawday2007
campbellld
Text Box
J-08



 

City of Troy Attorney’s Office  
Law Day 2007 Youth Survey 

 
(Note to Teachers: Thank you for participating in our Law Day 2007 Youth Survey. 
Please take a moment to read the following introduction to your students. After doing so, 
please allow them a few minutes to complete the survey.) 
 

Law Day is a national day set aside to celebrate the rule of law.  Law Day 
underscores how law and the legal process have contributed to the freedoms that all 
Americans share. In 1961, May 1 was designated by a joint resolution of the United 
States Congress as the official day for celebrating Law Day.  However, Law Day 
programs, which are designed to help people understand how law keeps us free and how 
our legal system strives to achieve justice, often take place throughout the month of May 
each year.  
 

In recognition of this year’s theme for Law Day, “Liberty Under Law: 
Empowering Youth, Assuring Democracy” the Troy City Attorney’s Office has prepared 
a Youth Survey.  The future of our nation is in the hands of our young people.  We all can 
and should play a role in assuring America’s future by addressing the needs of youth and 
focusing on the issues affecting them today.  The Law Day 2007 theme prompts us to 
listen to the voices of young people and consider how the law can better serve their needs 
and interests.  Consistent with this theme, the Youth Survey was designed to both educate 
students as to the current provisions of various laws that affect young people, and to 
gather input on how the law can better serve their needs.  A complete report of the results 
of this survey will be available on the City of Troy, City Attorney’s Office Web Page 
www.ci.troy.mi.us/law after May 1, 2007. The report will also be submitted to the Troy 
City Council, local legislators, and local newspapers.   
 
We wish to thank all the students who choose to participate in our Law Day Youth 
Survey.  Your participation will help us to accomplish our goal of assuring that the voices 
of our youth are heard and considered within our democracy. 
 

Thank you, 
 
Troy City Attorney's Office 

 



 

 City of Troy Attorney’s Office  
 Law Day 2007 Youth Survey 
 
 
Instructions   
 
If you are a high school student, please take 10 to 15 minutes to provide 

your responses to the following questions.  Choose one response that best fits 
your belief. 

 
1. In Roper v Simmons, 543 US 551(2005), the United States Supreme Court 
ruled that the death penalty may not be applied to minors, citing the Eighth and 
Fourteenth Amendments. Do you agree with this decision of the Supreme Court? 

 
A. I agree with the decision because a person under 18 years of age 

should not be held to the same standard of accountability as an 
adult. 

B. I disagree with the decision because a young person (for example, 
a person between the ages of 13 and 17), who commits a serious 
crime, should be subject to the same punishment as an adult. 

C. I neither agree nor disagree because I am opposed to the death 
penalty. 

 
2. School Boards are made up of elected officials who make decisions for the 
students in their districts.  Under Section 492 of Michigan’s Election Law, MCL 
168.492, students cannot vote for the School Board members that represent them 
until they reach 18 years of age. Do you agree with this law? 

 
A. This is the way it should be. 
B. All students should be able to vote for School Board members. 
C. Students’ age 16 or older should be able to vote for School Board 
D. All high school students should be able to vote for School Board 

members. 
 

3.  In 1971, when the Twenty-Sixth Amendment to the United States 
Constitution was ratified, the voting age was lowered to 18 from 21.  The majority 
of students in high school cannot vote in elections. What is the appropriate voting 
age? 

 
A. The minimum voting age should be lowered to 16. 
B. The minimum voting age should be lowered to 17. 
C. The minimum voting age should remain at 18 
D. The minimum voting age should be changed to 21. 

 
4. Due to advances in technology, images, videos, and music can be obtained 

 



 

rapidly through Internet downloading.  Often this downloading constitutes a 
violation of the Copyright Act, 17 USC § 101, et seq., which allows an artist to 
protect their monetary interest in their own work. Do you think free downloading 
is a crime? 

 
A. It is stealing and should be treated as a crime. 
B. It does not harm anyone and should be allowed as long as the 

person who downloads the material agrees to not sell the material 
for a profit. 

C. Since the artist is making plenty of money, the person who 
downloads the material should not be subject to any adverse 
consequences or restrictions. 

D. The person violating the copyright should not be charged with a 
crime but should be required to pay the artist for what they have 
downloaded. 

 
5.  Under Michigan law, MCL 722.754, a township, city or village may 
impose a curfew of minors by ordinance.  A typical curfew ordinance may make 
it illegal for a person under the age of 18 to be out of their homes from 11pm to 
6am. Choose the one response that best fits your belief with regard to curfews. 

 
A. There should be no curfew of minors because young people should 

have the same right to be outside of their homes as adults. 
B. There should be a curfew for minors, but it should only apply to 

young children and not high school students. 
C. A curfew of minors under the age of 18 is a good idea because it 

keeps young people out of trouble, and it protects children from 
harm. 

 
6.   The Federal minimum wage may soon be raised from $5.15 to $7.25.  
Some people believe that the minimum wage for people under 18 should remain 
at $5.15.  Choose the response that best reflects your belief regarding a lower 
minimum wage for those under 18. 

 
A. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be lower 

than the minimum wage for adults because most young people who 
are working are working part time simply for extra discretionary 
spending money. 

B. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be the 
same as the minimum wage for adults because the value of 
services provided by workers are the same regardless of age and 
therefore the law should not discriminate against young people. 

C. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be lower 
than the minimum wage for adults if the young person is working 
only for extra discretionary spending money. However, if the 
young person is working to help support his/her family or saving 

 



 

the money for college then they should earn the same minimum 
wage as adults. 

D. I believe there should be no Federal minimum wage because free 
market forces should determine salaries and wages. 

 
7.    The Michigan Legislature has passed several laws designed to promote 
school     safety.  Among the laws passed is a law allowing school officials to 
search a student’s locker without a warrant (MCL 380.1306), a law requiring a 
student to be expelled for certain acts such as bringing a dangerous weapon to 
school (MCL 380.1311), laws requiring the board of a school district to obtain the 
criminal history of individuals employed by the school district and to terminate 
employees who have been convicted of certain offenses (MCL 380.1230g, MCL 
380.1230c, and MCL 380.1535a), and laws establishing school safety zones 
within an area that lies 1,000 feet from the school and prohibiting registered sex 
offenders from residing within such zones (MCL 28.733 and MCL 28.735).  What 
best describes your belief with regard to Michigan’s School Safety Laws?   

 
A. I feel totally safe in school and I am confident Michigan’s School 

Safety Laws will protect me. 
B. I do not feel safe in school and believe that more school safety 

laws should be in place. 
C. I feel Michigan’s School Safety laws are overly restrictive and 

interfere with the rights of students and individuals employed by 
school districts. 

 
8.  What issues affecting youth do you believe should be addressed by our 
representatives in Lansing and Washington? Please write your answer in the space 
below.  

______________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________ 
 

 9.  Do you believe our representatives in Lansing and Washington adequately 
represent the interests of youth? 
 

A. Yes, absolutely. 
B. Yes, somewhat. 
C. No, not really. 
D. No, not at all. 
 

10. In 1979, the legal drinking age in Michigan was raised from 18 to 21. The 
latest scientific research suggests that the brain is not fully developed until a 
person reaches his or her mid twenties. Given the latest studies, do you believe 21 
is the appropriate age? 

 

 



 

A. Yes. 
B. No, the drinking age should be raised. 
C. No, the drinking age should be lowered back to 18. 
D. There should be no minimum drinking age. 
 

11. One important principal of law in our country is that a person put on trial 
should have a jury of his or her peers. However, under Michigan law, when 
juveniles are prosecuted and put on trial, the jury is composed of adults. Do you 
believe this is fair? 

 
A. Yes, adults are best capable of acting as jurors.  
B. Yes, having minors serve on juries in juvenile cases would 

interfere with school or other important activities. 
C. No, I think the law should be changed to allow a person under the 

age of 18 to serve on a jury in a juvenile case because a juvenile 
should have a jury of his or her peers.  

 
12. Under Michigan Law, a minor cannot enter into a contract with an adult.  
For example, a car dealer will not sell a car to a minor unless an adult, typically a 
parent or guardian, signs the purchase agreement. Do you believe minors should 
be allowed to enter into contracts with adults without gaining the approval of a 
parent or guardian? 

 
A. Yes, at any age. 
B. Yes, if the minor is at least 16. 
C. Yes, if the minor is at least 17. 
D. No, allowing minors to enter into contracts would lead to abuses 

like fraud or duress. 
 

13. In Michigan, the Holmes Youthful Trainee Act (HYTA) provides that 
individuals between the ages of 17 and 21 who plead guilty to a criminal offense 
(misdemeanors and felonies), other than a traffic offense, major drug crime, a 
crime penalized by imprisonment for life and certain other specified crimes, may 
be assigned the status of youthful trainee and earn a dismissal of the criminal 
offense if the terms and conditions of the court ordered probation are complied 
with.   Which of the following best describes your opinion concerning this law? 

 
A. This is a good law because it provides young people who make a 

mistake with an opportunity to avoid a criminal record. 
B. This is a bad law because if an individual commits a crime, there 

should be a public record of conviction for that individual 
regardless of the age of the person when the crime was committed. 

C. I agree that young people who commit minor offenses should have 
an opportunity to earn a dismissal of the charges, but the current 
law is too lenient because it should not apply to felonies.  

 

 



 

 
14. The Michigan law that makes it a crime to operate a motor vehicle while 
under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance, or a combination of alcohol 
and a controlled substance has a zero tolerance provision for persons who are less 
than 21 years of age.  Under the law, a person under the age of 21 who has “any” 
bodily alcohol content (or who has the presence of “any” controlled substance in 
the person’s system) and drives can be convicted.  Which of the following 
describes your belief as to the effect of this law? 

 
A. People in my age group are well aware of this law and it is very 

effective at preventing teenage drinking and driving. 
B. Although people in my age group are aware of the law, it is not 

effective at preventing teenage drinking and driving.  
C. Most people in my age group are not aware of this law. 
 

 15. According to the Supreme Court in Tinker v Des Moines School District, 
393 US 503 (1969), if there is no interference with school activities, students may 
wear armbands to protest a war. A school’s attempt to prohibit the armbands was 
an impermissible prohibition against the expression of speech under the First and 
Fourteenth Amendments.  Many schools have dress codes that ban students from 
wearing hats.  Courts have upheld school dress codes on the basis that a student’s 
attire can have a positive or negative effect on the learning process and such codes 
are needed to limit distractions that may result from a student’s appearance. With 
this in mind, which of the following best describes your belief: 

  
A. A school ban on the wearing of hats should be abolished based on the 

First and Fourteenth Amendments. 
B. A ban on the wearing of hats does not violate the Constitution because 

a no hat policy results in students staying focused on instruction rather 
than on what hat someone is wearing. 

C. Hats should be allowed in school, but only if the student is wearing the 
hat to express his or her opinion on something. 

 
Thank you for participating in the City of Troy Attorney’s Office Law Day 2007 Youth 
Survey.  If there are other legal issues that you want us to hear about, or if you wish to 
provide further comment related to any of the questions in this survey, or if you have any 
ideas on how the law can better serve the needs and interest of young people, please 
respond in the space provided below.   
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 28, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic Planning Initiatives:  

Goal III, “Retain and Attract Investment While Encouraging Redevelopment” 
 
 
 
City Council held a special meeting on Thursday, March 22, 2007 for the purpose of discussing 
strategic planning initiatives.  The meeting ended around 10:00 PM, during the discussion of City 
Council’s goal of retaining and attracting investment and redevelopment. 
 
I have extracted the pages from the PowerPoint presentation that pertain to Goal III, and am 
requesting that we finish discussion on the topic of development and redevelopment as a study item 
at Monday night’s meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\04.02.07 - Strategic Planning Initiatives- Goal III 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



1

Keys for Implementation 
of City Council Goals 

and the 
Troy Futures Report

Strategic Planning 
Initiatives



2

Keys to Goal Achievement

Retain and attract investment 
while encouraging redevelopment

Sustainability: To keep up or keep going, as an 
action or process.



3

Keys to Goal Achievement

1. Commitment to infrastructure enhancements and 
investment through viable capital improvements 
planning and timely project implementation

2. Commitment to existing business community by 
implementing sound policies that do not inhibit 
business, and through recruitment of businesses 
that can enhance existing business community



4

Keys to Goal Achievement

3. Commitment to diversifying the local economy 
that will maintain Troy as the driving economic 
engine of southeast Michigan

4. Commitment to partnerships that provide 
education and training opportunities to the Troy 
business community

5. Commitment to Troy maintaining its place as a 
regional destination point



5

Critical Policy Points

What role can the City of Troy play in retraining or 
reeducating workers to be ready for the next work 
emphasis?

What role does City Council want to play in 
establishing housing policies for the short- and long-
term?

How can the City be prepared for the changing 
housing and economic climate?



6

Critical Policy Points

The Big Beaver corridor study indicates the 
possibility of creating 28,000 new jobs and 
increasing Troy’s population by as many as 10,000 
people.  Does City Council want to move the 
process ahead as quickly as possible?



7

Critical Policy Points

Does City Council want to make a financial 
commitment to the future by channeling City 
funds, grant funds and partnership funds (along 
with other governmental entities) into technology, 
educational programs and advanced 
infrastructure development?



8

Critical Policy Points

Should Troy find partners interested in revitalizing 
Brownfield Redevelopment Districts as similar uses 
of today, or should investments be made in 
infrastructure that will promote changes in land use 
to other types of uses, such as service, medical or 
mixed uses?

What role can Troy play in maintaining a viable job 
base?



9

Critical Policy Points

What role can Troy play in preventing “brain drain” 
and maintaining a viable work force with entry 
jobs that lead to higher paying positions in the 
future?

Does City Council want to acknowledge the new 
generation of senior citizens by creating a “saging 
center” concept to take advantage of the 
wisdom and talents of this generation?



10

Critical Policy Points

How will the changing style or spirit of the times 
(Zeitgeist) change the way the City does business?

How does Troy use the changing styles of the times 
to be better prepared for the future?



11

Key Board & 
Commission Roles

Planning Commission

Design of planning principles to allow more diversity 
in land use, transportation planning and business 
opportunities



12

Primary Staff Focus

Develop training and retraining programs

Form business retention and recruitment programs

Create marketing and branding programs

Cultivate partnerships with other governmental and 
private agencies that will help to maintain Troy’s 
economic and community wellbeing



13

Key Partnerships

Troy School District
Oakland County
State of Michigan
Road Commission for Oakland County
Troy Chamber of Commerce
Troy Represented Colleges and Universities



14

Key Partnerships

Troy School District
Troy Chamber of Commerce
State of Michigan
Marketing/Advertising Agencies



15

Primary Staff Focus

Establish criteria determining “who pays for what” in 
terms of new development or redevelopment of 
mixed land uses

Formulate new standards for development in 
certain development districts including but not 
limited to Big Beaver, Maple and Rochester Roads

Develop plans that will reduce natural resource 
demands even with the possibilities of higher land 
use densities



16

Primary Staff Focus

Develop plans that increase the green environment

Create short-range capital improvements plans to 
better coordinate available resources with highest 
priority capital needs

Develop short- to medium- range financial forecasts 
based on potential development models and on 
economic trends in Troy and the upper Midwest



17

Primary Staff Focus

Produce a fact sheet that truly and accurately 
shows the resident and commercial investors of Troy 
what they get for their tax dollars

Develop plans to reshape some of the uninhabited 
Brownfield areas in Troy; such plans might include 
development of plans to change land uses or utilize 
some of the vacant buildings as an incubator for 
new or developing businesses



18

Key Partnerships

Financial Community
Oakland County
Road Commission for Oakland County
State of Michigan
Troy Chamber of Commerce
Real Estate Community 
Commercial/Industrial Property Owners


	AGENDA: April 16, 2007
	GOALS 
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Service Commendation – Jeanette Bennett
	Proclamation – National Anthem Awareness Week – April 23-27,


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for I

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Postponed Reconsidered Resolution #2007-03-103 from Regu

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a\) National Anthem Awareness Week – Apr�
	b\) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2007

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Ap�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�

	E-5 Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County 
	E-6 Private Agreement for Stone Haven Park Site Condominiums
	E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Wellingt
	E-8 Request for Special Event Banner on Civic Center Propert

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advis
	F-2 Reconsideration of Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Su
	F-3 George W. Kuhn Drainage District Drain Refunding Bonds, 
	F-4 Bid Waiver – Pavement Condition Assessment and Digital V
	F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce
	F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations
	F-7 Revisions to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 98 (Criminal Cod
	F-8 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for
	F-9 Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Engineering/Design
	F-10 Application for New Class C and SDM License at Sanctuar
	F-11 Troy v. Premium Construction
	F-12 2007 Troy Daze Festival Parade
	F-13 AT&T Proposed Cable Franchise

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD
	Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-726) – 190 East Maple, 
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 229) – Ar
	Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number: CR-001) – Pro

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – January 17, 2007
	Election Commission/Final – February 12, 2007
	Traffic Committee/Final – February 21, 2007
	Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – February 27, 2007
	Youth Council/Final – February 28, 2007
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 5, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 6, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 7, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – March 13, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 20, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 27, 2007
	Youth Council/Draft – March 28, 2007
	Election Commission/Draft – April 2, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City Manager’s Office – Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 
	Assessing Department – City of Troy Assessment Roll and Boar
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Mar
	Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congres
	Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legisla
	City Attorney’s Office – 2007 First Quarter Litigation Repor

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Telephone Call from Resident Jim Forrer Commending Lt. Lyczk
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Lynn Crawford Reg
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Director of Buil
	Letter of Appreciation to Officer Isham and Officer Lenczews

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	City of Ferndale – Resolution to End the War in Iraq

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Economic Deve
	J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regard
	J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Law

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic P

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



